
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL
RHONDDA CYNON TAF

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

GWŶS I GYFARFOD O'R CYNGOR

C. Hanagan 
Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu
Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Rhondda Cynon Taf 
Y Pafiliynau 
Parc Hen Lofa'r Cambrian 
Cwm Clydach CF40 2XX

Dolen gyswllt: Ms J Nicholls - Gwasanaethau Democrataidd  (01443 424098) 

DYMA WŶS I CHI i gyfarfod rhithwir o PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU 
yn cael ei gynnal ar DYDD IAU, 30AIN GORFFENNAF, 2020 am 3.00 PM.

Caiff Aelodau nad ydyn nhw'n aelodau o'r pwyllgor  ac aelodau o'r cyhoedd 
gyfrannu yn y cyfarfod ar faterion y cyfarfod er bydd y cais yn ôl doethineb y 
Cadeirydd. Gofynnwn i chi roi gwybod i Wasanaethau Democrataidd erbyn 
Dydd Mawrth, 28 Gorffennaf 2020 trwy ddefnyddio'r manylion cyswllt uchod, 
gan gynnwys rhoi gwybod a fyddwch chi'n siarad Cymraeg neu Saesneg.

AGENDA
Tudalennau

1. DATGANIAD O FUDDIANT 
Derbyn datganiadau o fuddiannau personol gan Gynghorwyr, yn unol â 
gofynion Côd Ymddygiad y Cyngor.

Nodwch:

1. Mae gofyn i Aelodau ddatgan rhif a phwnc yr agendwm mae eu 
buddiant yn ymwneud ag ef a mynegi natur y buddiant personol 
hwnnw; a

2. Lle bo Aelodau'n ymneilltuo o'r cyfarfod o ganlyniad i ddatgelu buddiant 
sy'n rhagfarnu, rhaid iddyn nhw roi gwybod i'r Cadeirydd pan fyddan 
nhw'n gadael.

2. COFNODION 
Cadarnhau cofnodion o gyfarfod rhithwir y Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu 
a gynhaliwyd ar 26 Mehefin 2020.

5 - 14



3. Y DIWEDDARAF YNGLŶN Â COVID-19 YN RHONDDA CYNON TAF 
Derbyn diweddariad am y camau y mae'r Cyngor wedi'u rhoi
ar waith o ganlyniad i argyfwng cenedlaethol COVID-19 (Fel
yr adroddwyd i'r Cabinet ar 28 Gorffennaf 2020)..

15 - 64
4. ADRODDIAD AR GYFLAWNIAD Y CYNGOR – 31 MAWRTH 2020 

(DIWEDD BLWYDDYN) 
Derbyn adroddiad Cyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau Cyllid a Digidol sy'n rhoi 
trosolwg o gyflawniad y Cyngor o ran materion ariannol a gweithredol ar gyfer 
y flwyddyn ariannol a ddaeth i ben ar 31 Mawrth 2020.

65 - 172
5. MATERION BRYS 

Trafod unrhyw faterion sydd, yn ôl doethineb y Cadeirydd, yn faterion brys yng 
ngoleuni amgylchiadau arbennig.

6. ADOLYGIAD Y CADEIRYDD A DOD Â'R CYFARFOD I BEN 
Adlewyrchu ar y cyfarfod a'r camau gweithredu i'w dwyn ymlaen.

Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu

Cylchreliad:-

Cadeirydd ac is-gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu
(Y Cynghorydd M Adams a Y Cynghorydd S Evans)

Y Cynghorwyr Bwrdeistref Sirol:
Y Cynghorydd J Bonetto, Y Cynghorydd P Jarman, Y Cynghorydd J Harries, 
Y Cynghorydd H Boggis, Y Cynghorydd J Brencher, Y Cynghorydd E Stephens, 
Y Cynghorydd L Walker, Y Cynghorydd G Caple, Y Cynghorydd M Griffiths, 
Y Cynghorydd S Morgans, Y Cynghorydd W Jones and Y Cynghorydd A Cox

Christian Hanagan, Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a 
Chyfathrebu

Aelodau Cyfetholedig Addysg er gwybodaeth-

Mr M Cleverley, Cynrychiolydd Cymdeithas Genedlaethol yr Ysgolfeistri ac Undeb yr 
Athrawesau a'r Panel Athrawon
Ms A Jones, Cynrychiolydd UNITE
Mr C Jones, Cynrychiolydd GMB
Mrs C Jones, Cynrychiolydd Undeb Cenedlaethol yr Athrawon a'r Panel Athrawon
Mr D Price, Cynrychiolydd UNSAIN/UNISON
Mr J Fish, Cynrychiolydd Rhiant-Lywodraethwr wedi'i ethol
Mr A Ricketts, Cynrychiolydd Awdurdodau Esgobaethol â'r hawl i bleidlais
Mr Kevin Wilhite, Cynrychiolydd Rhiant-Lywodraethwr wedi'i ethol
Mrs R Nicholls, Cynrychiolydd Rhiant-Lywodraethwr wedi'i ethol



Y Cynghorydd M Webber

Mr R Hull – Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Archwilio



Tudalen wag



 

 

 
Cyngor Rhondda Cynon Taf  

Cofnodion o gyfarfod o'r Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu  a gynhaliwyd ddydd Gwener, 26 Mehefin 
2020 am 3.00 pm Ar-lein. 

 
Cynghorwyr y Fwrdeistref Sirol – Aelodau o'r Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu oedd yn 

bresennol: 
 

Y Cynghorydd M Adams (Cadeirydd)  
 

Y Cynghorydd S Evans Y Cynghorydd J Bonetto 
Y Cynghorydd P Jarman Y Cynghorydd J Harries 
Y Cynghorydd H Boggis Y Cynghorydd J Brencher 

Y Cynghorydd E Stephens Y Cynghorydd L Walker 
Y Cynghorydd G Caple Y Cynghorydd M Griffiths 

Y Cynghorydd S Morgans Y Cynghorydd W Jones 
 

 
Aelodau Cyfetholedig oedd yn bresennol:- 

Mr J Fish – Cynrychiolydd Rhiant-lywodraethwr wedi'i ethol â'r hawl i bleidlais 
 

Aelodau o'r Cabinet yn bresennol 
 

Y Cynghorydd A Morgan – Arweinydd y Cyngor  
Y Cynghorydd J Rosser – Aelod o'r Cabinet ar faterion Addysg a Gwasanaethau Cynhwysiant 

 
Aelodau eraill yn bresennol 

 
Y Cynghorydd S Bradwick – Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Craffu – Cynnal Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus, 

Cymunedau a Ffyniant 
Y Cynghorydd T Williams – Is-gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Craffu – Cynnal Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus, 

Cymunedau a Ffyniant 
Y Cynghorydd R Yeo – Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Craffu – Iechyd a Lles 

Y Cynghorydd G Holmes – Is-gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Craffu – Iechyd a Lles 
Y Cynghorydd G Thomas – Is-gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Craffu – Cyllid a Chyflawniad 

Y Cynghorydd W Lewis – Is-gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Craffu - Plant a Phobl Ifainc 
Y Cynghorydd G R Davies 

 
 

Swyddogion oedd yn bresennol 
 

Mr C Bradshaw, Prif Weithredwr 
Mr C Hanagan, Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth – Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu 

Mr B Davies, Cyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau Cyllid a Digidol 
Ms G Davies, Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Gwasanaethau Cynhwysiant 

Mr G Isingrini, Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran y Gwasanaethau Cymuned a Gwasanaethau i Blant 
Mr S Gale, Cyfarwyddwr Materion Ffyniant a Datblygu 

 
 

52   Datgan Buddiant  
 

 

 PENDERFYNWYD – yn unol â Chod Ymddygiad Aelodau,   
gwneud y datganiadau buddiant canlynol:- 
 

 

Tudalen 5

Agendwm 2



 

1. Datganodd Cynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol L M Adams y buddiannau personol 
canlynol sy'n ymwneud ag Eitem 5 ar yr Agenda - Ailagor Ysgolion - “Rwy'n 
gweithio fel athro mewn ysgol gyfagos ac yn Gadeirydd y Llywodraethwyr mewn 
ysgol yn RhCT”; 
 
2. Datganodd Cynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol J Brencher y budd personol 
canlynol yn ymwneud ag eitem 4 ar yr Agenda - Diweddariad ar Sefyllfa Covid-
19 yn Rhondda Cynon Taf “Rwy'n Gyfarwyddwr yr YMCA”. 
 

53   Ymddiheuriadau  
 

 

 Daeth ymddiheuriad am absenoldeb gan Gynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol A Cox.  
Daeth ymddiheuriad o absenoldeb hefyd gan S Rees-Owen, M Powell 
(Cadeirydd Pwyllgor Craffu – Plant a Phobl Ifainc a Phwyllgor Craffu – Cyllid a 
Chyflawniad yn y drefn honno) ac A Cox. 
 

 

54   Cofnodion  
 

 

 PENDERFYNWYD – cadarnhau cofnodion o gyfarfodydd  
y Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu a gynhaliwyd ar yr 20 Ionawr 2020 a'r  
10 Chwefror, 2020 yn rhai cywir yn amodol ei bod yn cael ei nodi: - 
 
Hepgorwyd yr 'Ymddiheuriadau' yn anfwriadol o'r fersiwn Saesneg o Gofnodion 
o gyfarfod 20 Ionawr 2020 a dylai gynnwys ymddiheuriad gan yr Aelodau a 
ganlyn: - 
 
Y Cynghorwyr J Harries, G Caple a L Walker. 
  

 

 

55   Rhaglenni Gwaith drafft y Cabinet a'r Pwyllgorau Craffu  
 

 

 Cyflwynodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth – Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a 
Chyfathrebu ei adroddiad a roddodd gyfle i aelodau o’r Pwyllgor Trosolwg a 
Craffu sefydlu rhaglen waith ar gyfer y flwyddyn ddinesig estynedig ar ôl ystyried 
rhaglen waith y Cabinet, mae adolygiad yr estyniad yn amodol ar 
gymeradwyaeth y Cyngor. 
 
Gofynnwyd i'r aelodau ystyried rhaglen waith y Cabinet (y cytunwyd arni'n 
ddiweddar gan y Cabinet) a nodi unrhyw faterion yr oedden nhw am eu 
hystyried, eu herio a'u craffu dros y cyfnod estynedig hwn. Gofynnwyd i'r 
aelodau gofio efallai y bydd angen cyflwyno gwybodaeth a thystiolaeth mewn 
cyfuniad o ffyrdd, ar lafar ac yn ysgrifenedig, gan ystyried bod amser 
Swyddogion yn parhau i ganolbwyntio ar ymateb i bandemig y Coronafeirws.  
 
Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth fod cefnogaeth a chytundeb wedi bod 
gan Arweinwyr Grwpiau a Chadeiryddion Pwyllgorau i flaenoriaethu'r Pwyllgor 
Trosolwg a Craffu fel y pwyllgor trosfwaol ac y byddai'n gweithredu dull 'ar draws 
y Cyngor' gyda gwahoddiad yn cael ei estyn i Gadeiryddion ac Is-gadeiryddion y 
Pwyllgorau Craffu thematig eraill.  
 
Cyfeiriodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth at un newid i raglen waith y Cabinet a 
gyflwynwyd gan yr Arweinydd mewn cyfarfod diweddar o'r Cabinet, sef derbyn 
adroddiad interim mewn perthynas â llifogydd yn Rhondda Cynon Taf yn ogystal 
â gofynion adrodd statudol ynglŷn â llifogydd yn ddiweddarach.  Adroddodd y 
Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth hefyd fod y Cabinet o'r farn y byddai cyfle i waith 
craffu gyfrannu at y drafodaeth hon. 

 

Tudalen 6



 

 
Darparodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth – Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a 
Chyfathrebu yr ymatebion canlynol i nifer o ymholiadau a godwyd:- 
 

 Bydd yr adroddiad ynghylch Llifogydd yn cael ei ychwanegu at yr 
eitemau parhaus a bydd yn fater i'w drafod rhwng Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor 
Trosolwg a Chraffu a Chadeirydd y Cabinet, y Cynghorydd Morgan, a 
fydd cyfle ar gyfer y cam cyn-graffu. Ailbwysleisiodd e fod y Cabinet wedi 
sôn am y bwriad i gynnwys craffu yn y trafodaethau.  

 
 Cadarnhaodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth fod trefniadau craffu ar y cyd 

ar waith gyda'r 10 Awdurdod Lleol i graffu ar waith Bargen Ddinesig 
Prifddinas-Ranbarth Caerdydd, a bydd y Cyngor hwn nawr yn bwrw 
ymlaen â hynny dros y deuddeg mis nesaf.  

 
 I gloi, atgoffodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth y Pwyllgor bod cael rhaglen 

waith hyblyg yn hanfodol ar yr adeg hon lle gall Aelodau dderbyn 
cyfuniad o adroddiadau ysgrifenedig ac ar lafar i'r pwyllgor, ac efallai caiff 
cyfarfodydd eu galw yn gyflym er mwyn ymateb i faterion wrth iddyn nhw 
godi. Gofynnwyd i'r Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Craffu fod yn ymatebol i raglen 
waith y Cabinet ac unrhyw eitemau ychwanegol y gellir eu hychwanegu 
ato. Gorffennodd e trwy ddweud mai'r bwriad yw bod yr holl Aelodau'n 
chwarae rhan lawn yn y broses graffu ac ychwanegodd fod y gyfres 
nesaf o gyfarfodydd i'w cynnal ar-lein yn cynnwys y Pwyllgor Craffu – 
Plant a Phobl Ifainc. 

 
PENDERFYNWYD: 
 
1. Cydnabod cynnwys y Rhaglen Waith Trosolwg a Chraffu arfaethedig ar gyfer 
y cyfnod Mehefin-Awst 2020; 
  
2. Derbyn adroddiadiad dros dro ynglŷn â llifogydd yn Rhondda Cynon Taf, yn 
ogystal â'r gofynion adrodd statudol o ran llifogydd;  
 
3. Adolygu Cynlluniau Adfer y Cyngor fel rhan o ddiweddariad parhaus ar sefyllfa 
Covid-19 yn Rhondda Cynon Taf, a fydd yn cael ei ddefnyddio fel sail i'r rhaglen 
waith Trosolwg a Chraffu at y dyfodol; a 
 
4. Bod y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth – Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a 
Chyfathrebu yn cyflwyno adroddiad ar ystyriaethau'r pwyllgor i'r Cabinet a / neu 
Aelodau priodol o'r Cabinet. 
 

56   Y Diweddaraf ynglŷn â sefyllfa COVID-19 yn Rhondda Cynon Taf  
 

 

 Cyflwynodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth – Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a 
Chyfathrebu gyfle i aelodau’r Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu drafod, adolygu a 
herio’r wybodaeth lefel uchel sydd wedi'u cynnwys yn adroddiadau’r Cabinet 
sydd ynghlwm, a gyflwynwyd ar 21 Mai a 25 Mehefin 2020.  
Dywedodd wrth y pwyllgor y byddai Arweinydd y Cyngor, y Cynghorydd A 
Morgan yn darparu diweddariad a lle bo hynny'n briodol, byddai aelodau o Uwch 
Garfan y Rheolwyr yn darparu ymatebion i unrhyw ymholiadau. I gloi, nododd y 
Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth mai Aelodau oedd i benderfynu pa faterion yr hoffen 
nhw dderbyn gwybodaeth bellach a rhagor o fanylion dros y tri chyfarfod nesaf. 
 
Rhoddodd yr Arweinydd drosolwg o ddigwyddiadau dros y tri mis diwethaf a 

 

Tudalen 7



 

ddechreuodd gyda'r Cyngor yn atal rhai gwasanaethau yn dilyn y cyfyngiadau 
symud, cau ysgolion a gweithredu'r cymorth cysgodi/gwarchod i gefnogi 
preswylwyr, a hynny heb fawr o rybudd. Cofrestrodd cyfanswm o 1160 o 
wirfoddolwyr cymunedol gyda'r Cyngor ar adeg pan oedd gweithwyr y cyngor yn 
hunan-ynysu neu'n cysgodi/gwarchod. 
 
Fe symudodd y Cyngor 700 o weithwyr i wasanaethau eraill, gyda 365 ohonyn 
nhw yn y gwasanaeth gofal cymdeithasol i gefnogi'r gofal critigol a 200 o staff yn 
cefnogi'r hybiau lle roedden nhw'n darparu nwyddau siopa, yn gweithio ochr yn 
ochr â gwirfoddolwyr, yn casglu meddyginiaeth ar ran y preswylwyr hynny oedd 
yn cysgodi/gwarchod, a mynd â'u cŵn am dro. Cafodd 25 aelod o staff eu 
hadleoli i'r ganolfan dosbarthu bwyd yn Aberdâr i ddarparu bwyd i'r rhai ar y 
rhestr gysgodi/gwarchod ac i'r rhai nad oeddwn nhw'n rhan o'r rhaglen, ond 
roedd angen cymorth ychwanegol. Mae preswylwyr wedi rhoi croeso mawr i 
weithio ochr yn ochr â'r trydydd sector a grwpiau cymunedol. Yn RhCT mae tua 
10,000 o drigolion yn y rhaglen gysgodi/gwarchod y cysylltwyd â nhw, a rhagor y 
tu allan i'r rhaglen gysgodi. 
 
Pwysleisiodd yr Arweinydd roedd y sefyllfa dybiedig waethaf yn ystod dyddiau 
cynnar y pandemig, ac yn seiliedig ar y modelu a'r wybodaeth a ddarparwyd i'r 
cyngor, yn awgrymu y byddai'r gwasanaethau claddu ac amlosgi wedi cael eu 
llethu. O ystyried hyn, gwnaed penderfyniadau er budd y cymunedau, ac felly 
caiff nifer sylweddol o wasanaethau eu blaenoriaethu megis gwasanaethau 
gwastraff, gwasanaethau ailgylchu (roedd y ddau ohonyn nhw yn gweithredu 
hyd eithaf eu gallu). Er mwyn sicrhau bod y meysydd blaenoriaeth hyn yn 
rhedeg yn effeithlon roedd meysydd eraill yn gweithredu ar gapasiti cyfyngedig 
megis glanhau a gwasanaethau eraill fel canolfannau ailgylchu a daeth y 
gwasanaeth casglu eitemau swmpus i ben. Atgoffwyd yr aelodau bod y gwaith 
yma yn dal i ddigwydd yn fuan ar ôl Storm Dennis pan oedd staff yn dal i ddelio 
ag effaith ac ar ôl y difrod storm. 
 
Rhoddwyd nifer o wasanaethau ychwanegol ar waith pan gaeodd ysgolion y sir 
gan agor y canolfannau/hybiau gofal plant brys ar gyfer gweithwyr hanfodol a 
sicrhau bod pob teulu sydd â hawl i Brydau Ysgol Am Ddim yn derbyn eu 
taliadau BACS (bellach dros 10,000 o blant cymwys am brydau ysgol am ddim). 
Gweithredwyd y system talu trwy BACS nid y system dalebau a rhoddodd 
Sefydliad Roundtree ganmoliaeth i'r Cyngor am ei gamau cyflym i sicrhau bod 
taliadau'n cyrraedd pob teulu cymwys. Canmolodd y Ffederasiwn Busnesau 
Bach y Cyngor hefyd am weithredu'r broses grantiau a'r gefnogaeth i fusnesau 
bach yn gyflym pan oedd angen y cymorth ariannol arnyn nhw. 
 
Dywedodd Arweinydd y Cyngor fod rhai gwasanaethau fel llyfrgelloedd a 
chyfleusterau cyhoeddus ar gau yn y lle cyntaf yn unol â chyfyngiadau mynediad 
cyhoeddus a rheoli'r haint. Mae tair llyfrgell wedi ailagor yn ddiweddar a bydd tair 
arall yn agor maes o law. Mae'r Cyngor yn adolygu ailagor toiledau canol trefi yn 
dilyn y trefniadau glanhau diwygiedig sydd ar waith. Hysbyswyd y Pwyllgor y bu 
ymdrech enfawr ar y cyd rhwng Gwasanaethau Addysg y Cyngor a 
Phrifathrawon i baratoi ar gyfer dychwelyd disgyblion yn ddiogel ar 29 Mehefin. 
Hyd yma cadarnhawyd bod 47,000 o alwadau trwy Ganolfan Gyswllt y Cyngor 
wedi'u hateb yn ystod y cyfnod yma. 
 
Hysbyswyd yr aelodau bod cyflenwadau o offer PPE wedi bod ar gael i'r sector 
gofal preifat annibynnol a chartrefi gofal sy'n eiddo i'r cyngor yn unol â 
chanllawiau Iechyd Cyhoeddus Cymru sydd wedi'u dilyn bob amser. Cysylltodd 
y Cyngor â Llywodraeth Cymru i sicrhau bod PPE yn cael ei anfon yn 

Tudalen 8



 

uniongyrchol i'r sector gofal annibynnol yn rhad ac am ddim. Cydnabu’r 
Arweinydd yr amser anodd sydd wedi wynebu staff gofal gyda nifer o 
farwolaethau ar draws y cartrefi gofal er iddo gadarnhau nad yw dwy ran o dair o 
ofal nyrsio a phreswyl yn y sector annibynnol / preifat a’r sector gofal sy’n eiddo 
i’r cyngor wedi cadarnhau unrhyw farwolaethau. Ar anterth y pandemig roedd 
hyd at 140/150 o bobl y dydd yn arddangos symptomau'r Coronafeirws yn y 
cartrefi gofal / preswyl ond bob wythnos mae'r niferoedd wedi gostwng yn 
sylweddol. Mae'r Cyngor bellach wedi gosod offer TG ym mhob Cartref Gofal y 
Cyngor i sicrhau bod teuluoedd yn dod i gysylltiad â'u hanwyliaid. Talodd yr 
Arweinydd deyrnged i'r staff sy'n gweithio yn y cartrefi gofal ledled y Fwrdeistref 
Sirol. 
  
Mae'r Cyngor yn ystyried gwersi a ddysgwyd o gam cyntaf y pandemig 
Coronofeirws, yn unol â chyngor gan Iechyd Cyhoeddus Cymru a thimau rheoli 
heintiau a fydd yn paratoi ar gyfer y posibilrwydd o ail don dros y misoedd nesaf. 
 

Wrth gloi, dywedodd Arweinydd y Cyngor fod y Cyngor yn ystyried gwersi a 
ddysgwyd o gam cyntaf pandemig y Coronafeirws, yn unol â chyngor gan 
Iechyd Cyhoeddus Cymru a thimau rheoli heintiau a fydd yn paratoi ar gyfer 
y posibilrwydd o ail don dros y misoedd nesaf. Bydd y Cyngor yn parhau i 
chwarae rhan allweddol wrth arwain y gwaith Olrhain Cysylltiadau ar draws 
Cwm Taf Morgannwg mewn partneriaeth â'r Bwrdd Iechyd lleol. Canmolwyd 
cyfraniad yr Uwch Dîm Arwain a'u cyfraniad a'u cyfathrebu â Llywodraeth 
Cymru a arbedodd, yn ddi-os, fywydau ar draws Cyngor y Fwrdeistref Sirol 
gan Arweinydd y Cyngor. 
 
Ychwanegodd Prif Weithredwr y Cyngor y byddai cynlluniau adfer y Cyngor 
yn cael eu hadrodd i'r Cabinet ym mis Gorffennaf y gellid eu defnyddio fel 
sail i ategu'r Rhaglenni Gwaith Craffu. 
 
Mewn ymateb i bwyntiau a godwyd gan aelodau o'r Pwyllgor darparodd 
Arweinydd y Cyngor y wybodaeth ganlynol: - 
 

 Gwnaed penderfyniad gan y Cyngor cyn y cyfyngiadau symud mewn 
perthynas â swyddogaethau dirprwyedig a roddwyd i'r Arweinydd, y 
Dirprwy Arweinydd ac i'r Uwch Dîm Arwain. Mae trefnau gwneud 
penderfyniadau a llywodraethu’r Cyngor wedi parhau i weithredu yn 
unol â Chyfansoddiad y Cyngor i gyflawni penderfyniadau allweddol. 
Mae hyn wedi cynnwys penderfyniadau brys sy'n angenrheidiol i 
ymateb gwasanaeth y Cyngor yn ystod y cyfnod hwn. Mae'r holl 

benderfyniadau hyn wedi bod o fewn pwerau dirprwyedig arferol Prif 
Swyddogion, a lle bo hynny'n bosibl yn cael eu cymryd ar ôl 
ymgynghori â'r Aelod perthnasol o'r Cabinet.  

 
 Yn ystod y cyfyngiadau symud, cyhoeddwyd nifer o ddiweddariadau e-

bost yn uniongyrchol gan Arweinydd y Cyngor i'r holl Aelodau Etholedig a 
chyflwynodd y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd ddiweddariadau dyddiol i'r 
holl Aelodau Etholedig ynghylch camau gweithredu, datganiadau gan 
Lywodraeth Cymru. Mae gwybodaeth gan Gymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol 
Cymru (WLGA) hefyd wedi bod yn aml. Mae cyfarfod rhithwir gyda'r 
Arweinydd ac Arweinwyr y Grwpiau hefyd wedi'i sefydlu i drafod materion 
allweddol. 

 

Tudalen 9



 

 Mae carfan Iechyd a Diogelwch y Cyhoedd y Cyngor yn arwain ar y 
gwaith o Olrhain Cysylltiadau ar draws Cwm Taf Morgannwg mewn 
partneriaeth â'r bwrdd iechyd lleol, Cynghorau Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr a 
Merthyr Tudful ac Iechyd Cyhoeddus Cymru. Cadarnhawyd bod digon 
o gapasiti yn y garfan i gyflawni'r gwaith hwn gan ganolbwyntio ar 
leoliadau risg uchel fel cartrefi gofal, hybiau ysgolion, llety byw â 
chymorth a llety i'r digartref. Mae cytundeb ar waith ar hyn o bryd 
gyda Phrifysgol Caerdydd y bydd nifer o leoliadau i Raddedigion yn 
cael eu dyrannu i garfan Iechyd a Diogelwch y Cyhoedd. 
 

Ar ôl trafod yr adroddiad, PENDERFYNWYD: 
 
1. Derbyn y diweddariad a ddarparwyd gan Arweinydd y Cyngor mewn 
perthynas ag ymateb y Cyngor i bandemig Covid-19 i gynnwys yr hyn sydd 
wedi'i nodi yn adroddiadau'r Cabinet; a 
 
2. (Fel y mae Cofnod Rhif 55 (3) yn cyfeirio) Cytuno y bydd Aelodau, fel rhan o 
Raglen Waith y Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu ar gyfer y Flwyddyn Ddinesig, yn 
parhau i dderbyn diweddariadau cynnydd rheolaidd ar sefyllfa COVID-19 yn 
Rhondda Cynon Taf, yn enwedig y Cynlluniau Adfer ac ymateb gan 
wasanaethau'r Cyngor. 
 
 

 
 

57   Y Diweddaraf o ran Ailagor Ysgolion  
 

 

 Darparodd y Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Gwasanaethau Cynhwysiant ddiweddariad 
ar lafar ynglŷn ag ailagor ysgolion yn Rhondda Cynon Taf, a hynny'n dilyn 
cynnig Gweinidog Addysg Llywodraeth Cymru i ailagor pob ysgol ar 29 Mehefin 
2020. 
 
Trafododd y Cyfarwyddwr y newid i dymor estynedig yr haf ac, er gwaethaf yr 
ymrwymiad cychwynnol a'r ewyllys da ymhlith staff ac arweinwyr ysgolion i 
ymestyn y tymor am wythnos ychwanegol, roedd problemau cymhleth o ran 
telerau ac amodau staff a heriau gofal plant felly gwnaed y penderfyniad i gau ar 
20 Gorffennaf 2020 yn ôl y cynllun gwreiddiol. Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr fod 
ysgolion a charfanau wrthi'n brysur yn paratoi ar gyfer trosglwyddo plant ar 
draws y 25 canolfan (hwb) gofal plant mewn ysgolion a dychwelyd hyd at draean 
o'r holl ddisgyblion i'r ysgol ar unrhyw ddiwrnod penodol. Mae'r staff yn awyddus 
i groesawu'r disgyblion yn ôl i'r ysgol. 
 
Rhoddodd y Cyfarwyddwr ddiweddariadau ynglŷn â'r meysydd allweddol 
canlynol: - 
 
Gofal Plant - Bu twf sylweddol yn nifer y plant sy'n manteisio ar ddarpariaeth 
gofal plant ledled y Fwrdeistref Sirol, ac mae nifer y canolfannau wedi cynyddu o 
12 i 25 yn unol â hynny. Ar hyn o bryd mae 720 o blant yn manteisio ar y 
ddarpariaeth gofal plant yn yr ysgol bob dydd. Arweiniodd y ceisiadau am 
ddarpariaeth gofal plant ar draws yr ysgolion at 1,672 o geisiadau am ofal plant 
brys, a chafodd pob un ohonynt eu cymeradwyo. Mae lleoliadau gofal plant 
wedi'u blaenoriaethu ar gyfer disgyblion agored i niwed a gweithwyr hanfodol. 
Bu 350 o blant rhwng 0 a 4 oed yn derbyn gofal plant bob wythnos. 
 

 

Tudalen 10



 

Cefnogi Ysgolion - Cyhoeddwyd gwybodaeth leol sy'n adlewyrchu canllawiau 
Iechyd Cyhoeddus Cymru a Llywodraeth Cymru yn rheolaidd i bob ysgol yn 
brydlon, a hynny mewn perthynas â nifer o faterion megis hylendid, cadw pellter 
cymdeithasol, asesiadau risg a chyfarpar diogelu personol. Rhannwyd 
canllawiau hefyd mewn perthynas â lleoliadau cyn-ysgol, Cyrff Llywodraethu, 
cyfathrebu â rhieni a gofalwyr er mwyn lliniaru unrhyw bryderon, a rhannu 
gwybodaeth ar wefan y Cyngor. Yn ogystal â hynny, dosbarthwyd gwybodaeth i'r 
rheiny sy'n dysgu o bell ac yn dysgu gartref. 
 
Cynlluniau Adfer - Cynhelir cyfarfodydd wythnosol i drafod cynlluniau adfer 
awdurdodau lleol, ac maen nhw'n cynnwys cynrychiolaeth traws-gyfarwyddiaeth 
a Phrifathrawon er mwyn sicrhau bod strategaethau addas ar waith a bod y 
cynllun cyflawni hefyd yn cael ei fonitro yn y cyfarfodydd. 
 
Pryderon o ran Ysgolion - Mae'r awdurdod lleol wedi darparu canllawiau manwl 
ar faterion iechyd a diogelwch er mwyn sicrhau bod trefniadau ar waith mewn 
ysgolion a bod asesiadau risg wedi'u cynnal a'u hadolygu gan Swyddogion 
Iechyd a Diogelwch y Cyngor, ac wedi'u llofnodi gan Gadeiryddion y Cyrff 
Llywodraethu. Mae cyfarpar diogelu personol, dyfeisiau thermol ac arwyddion 
sy'n rhoi gwybod am fesurau hylendid a chadw pellter cymdeithasol priodol 
wedi'u dosbarthu i bob ysgol. Mae pob ysgol wedi cyflwyno cynlluniau manwl ar 
sut maen nhw'n bwriadu integreiddio eu disgyblion ar 29 Mehefin i gynnwys y 
ddarpariaeth gofal plant a fydd yn cyd-fynd ag agor ysgolion i ddisgyblion. Mae 
trefniadau trafnidiaeth hefyd ar waith yn unol â'r gofynion cadw pellter 
cymdeithasol er mwyn cludo plant yn ddiogel i ysgolion. 
 
Disgyblion Agored i Niwed - Mae disgyblion agored i niwed yn parhau i fod yn 
flaenoriaeth ac mae Carfanau Cynhwysiant y Cyngor yn parhau i gefnogi 
ysgolion. Mae pedair Ysgol Arbennig yr Awdurdod a dwy Uned Cyfeirio 
Disgyblion wedi bod ar agor fel canolfannau drwy gydol y cyfnod cloi, gan 
gydymffurfio â'r gofynion angenrheidiol o ran trafnidiaeth i sicrhau bod y 
disgyblion mwyaf agored i niwed yn derbyn y ddarpariaeth sydd ei hangen 
arnynt. Nid yw'r gofynion statudol ynghylch plant ag anghenion addysgol 
arbennig wedi'u llacio yn ystod y cyfnod hwn, a darparwyd arweiniad a 
chefnogaeth fanwl i'r ysgolion. Mae holl Baneli'r Awdurdod Lleol wedi bod yn 
cael eu cynnal o bell, a darparwyd taliadau Prydau Ysgol Am Ddim trwy daliadau 
Bacs ynghyd â darparu prydau bwyd mewn ysgolion i sicrhau nad oes unrhyw 
blentyn dan anfantais. 
 
Adolygiad Disgyblion sydd wedi'u Heithrio'n Ddigidol - mae 2,345 o ddisgyblion 
sydd wedi'u heithrio'n ddigidol wedi'u nodi ar draws pob ysgol, ac mae cynllun ar 
waith sydd â'r nod o gasglu dyfeisiau electronig o ysgolion, ailosod meddalwedd 
briodol arnyn nhw a'u dosbarthu i'r rhai mewn angen. Mae ysgolion wedi derbyn 
nwyddau newydd yn ôl yr angen. Erbyn diwedd y tymor yma bydd gan bob 
disgybl sydd wedi'i eithrio'n ddigidol ddyfais sydd wedi'i ailbwrpasu neu ddyfais 
newydd, ynghyd â chyswllt Band Eang trwy becyn Myfi sy'n rhoi mynediad i'r 
rhwydwaith 4G. 
 
Y Camau Nesaf - Bydd disgyblion yn cael hyd at dri ymweliad â'r ysgol, a bydd 
hyn yn cael ei gydbwyso â dysgu o bell. Bydd ysgolion yn canolbwyntio ar 
ddysgu cydadferol ar gyfer y disgyblion mwyaf agored i niwed a difreintiedig. 
Bydd ffrydiau cyllido posibl ar gael i wella'r gwaith gyda'r rhai mwyaf agored i 
niwed a difreintiedig mewn ysgolion.  
 
Cydweithio - Mae'r holl staff, arweinwyr ysgolion a Phrifathrawon wedi dangos 

Tudalen 11



 

ymrwymiad gwirioneddol ac wedi gweithio am oriau estynedig a thros 
benwythnosau, Gwyliau'r Banc a chyfnodau gwyliau heb gwyno i sicrhau bod 
darpariaeth ar waith ar gyfer disgyblion agored i niwed, a bod dull partneriaeth 
gwirioneddol wedi bod ar waith drwyddi draw.  
 
Cytunodd yr Aelod o'r Cabinet ar faterion Gwasanaethau Addysg a 
Chynhwysiant â hyn, ac adleisio teimladau'r Cyfarwyddwr yn ei throsolwg. 
Estynnodd yr Aelod o'r Cabinet ei diolch i'r athrawon a'r staff hynny, yn enwedig 
staff y Cyngor o'r garfan Addysg a Chynhwysiant, a fu'n helpu staff i sefydlu'r 
canolfannau, cefnogi disgyblion agored i niwed, cynorthwyo gyda thaliadau 
Prydau Ysgol am Ddim, ac sydd bellach yn cefnogi'r disgyblion hynny sydd 
wedi'u heithrio'n ddigidol.  
 
Cyfeiriodd yr Aelod o'r Cabinet ar faterion Gwasanaethau Addysg a 
Chynhwysiant at y gwaith sydd ar y gweill i ailagor ysgolion, a fydd yn rhoi cyfle i 
blant ddychwelyd i'r ysgol, cael blas ar fod yno a dal i fyny gyda'u ffrindiau a'u 
hathrawon. I gloi, diolchodd yr Aelod o'r Cabinet unwaith eto i staff yr ysgolion a'r 
cyngor am eu hymroddiad a'u hymrwymiad. 
 
Ymatebodd Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Gwasanaethau Cynhwysiant i gyfres o 
gwestiynau a godwyd gan y Pwyllgor, mae rhai ohonynt wedi'u nodi isod: - 
  
Darpariaeth Feithrin - Cadarnhaodd y Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Gwasanaethau 
Cynhwysiant fod pob plentyn cyn oed ysgol wedi'i gynnwys yn y ddarpariaeth 
gofal plant a bod y cynnig gofal plant 0-4 oed hefyd ar gael gydag ystod o 
warchodwyr plant a darparwyr gofal plant. Bydd cynlluniau i integreiddio plant 
oed meithrin ym mis Medi, serch hynny, y flaenoriaeth ar gyfer y 3 wythnos 
gychwynnol fydd sicrhau bod disgyblion oed ysgol statudol a disgyblion ôl-16 yn 
cael cyfle i ddychwelyd i'r ysgol. Oherwydd y cyfyngiadau sydd ar waith, 
ystyriwyd ei bod hi'n briodol canolbwyntio ar blant oed ysgol statudol ar yr adeg 
hon, a bydd pob plentyn yn cael cyfle i gymryd rhan mewn dysgu o bell. 
Dosbarthwyd canllawiau o ran disgyblion agored i niwed ac fe'u 
blaenoriaethwyd.  
 
Y canllaw cyfarpar diogelu personol - Caiff y rhain eu hanfon i'r canolfannau'n 
rheolaidd ac fe'u diweddarwyd yn ôl yr angen. Maen nhw'n cynnwys gwybodaeth 
fanwl am asesiadau risg a pha lefel o gyfarpar diogelu personol sy'n ofynnol dan 
wahanol amgylchiadau. Cyhoeddwyd canllawiau ychwanegol hefyd lle bu 
pryderon penodol. 
 
Anghenion Dysgu Ychwanegol - Mae'r canllawiau cyfredol ar gyfer Anghenion 
Dysgu Ychwanegol wrthi'n cael eu cyfieithu fel bod modd eu cylchredeg ar 
unwaith. Yn y cyfamser, darparwyd nifer fawr o wybodaeth, gan gynnwys 
addasiadau i ddogfennau polisi fel canllawiau gofal iechyd i ysgolion ar gyfer y 
plant mwyaf agored i niwed a'r hyn y mae angen i ysgolion ei wneud o ran 
gofynion statudol unrhyw ddatganiadau ac adolygiadau blynyddol. 
 
Trefniadau ysgolion ar gyfer mis Gorffennaf - Yn unol â chanllawiau Llywodraeth 
Cymru, bydd 8 disgybl ym mhob dosbarth mewn Ysgolion Cynradd, gyda'r 
cafeat cyffredinol bod y gofynion cadw pellter cymdeithasol 2 fetr ar waith. Mae 
ysgolion wedi derbyn llawer o wybodaeth sy'n rhoi cyngor ynglŷn â hynny. Bydd 
y disgyblion yn aros o fewn eu swigod perthnasol. Er mwyn cydymffurfio â'r 
gofynion cadw pellter cymdeithasol, mae gan bob un o Ysgolion yr 21ain Ganrif 
ddigon o le mewn coridorau ac ystafelloedd dosbarth, ac mae lluniau wedi'u 
dosbarthu gyda chyngor ar faterion fel rheoli traffig unffordd, ar gyfer yr ysgolion 

Tudalen 12



 

hynny lle mae hynny'n fwy heriol.  
 

Lefelau ymgysylltu â'r canolfannau - Cyhoeddwyd canllawiau ar gyfer disgyblion 
agored i niwed, ac mae modd i Wasanaeth Mynychu'r Ysgol ymyrryd mewn rhai 
achosion yn ôl yr angen. Mae'r Gwasanaeth Addysg a'r Gwasanaethau i blant 
wedi llunio protocol er mwyn mynd i'r afael â theuluoedd sydd wedi ymddieithrio. 

 
Disgyblion sydd wedi'u Heithrio'n Ddigidol - Bydd pob ysgol sydd wedi rhoi 
dyfeisiau ar gyfer y disgyblion hynny sydd wedi'u heithrio'n ddigidol yn derbyn 
dyfais newydd cyn diwedd y tymor. Mae TGCh yn cefnogi'r gwaith o ail-osod y 
dyfeisiau, uwchlwytho'r feddalwedd briodol a'u hailddosbarthu i ysgolion. Y 
flaenoriaeth yw ailddosbarthu dyfeisiau i ysgolion a disgyblion, a hyd yma mae 
852 o ddisgyblion wedi derbyn dyfais.  
 
Dosbarthu'r Grant Amddifadedd Disgyblion (PDG) - Dosberthir y Grant 
Amddifadedd Disgyblion i ysgolion ar sail angen a chaiff ei ddyrannu ar y sail 
hon. Ar hyn o bryd, mae'r Cyngor yn edrych a oes angen adnoddau ychwanegol, 
er mwyn gwneud yn iawn, yn ystod y cyfnod yma. 
 
Cefnogi staff ysgolion - Mae gwasanaeth Adnoddau Dynol y Cyngor wedi bod yn 
rhagweithiol ac wedi rhannu gwybodaeth ynghylch lles â phob ysgol. Mae'r 
gwasanaethau seicoleg hefyd yn darparu hyfforddiant o bell fel y gall staff 
baratoi ar gyfer plant sy'n dychwelyd i'r ysgol ond mae modd i staff fanteisio ar y 
gwasanaeth hefyd os bydd angen iddyn nhw wneud hynny. 

 

Plant sy'n derbyn gofal - Pwysleisiwyd bod Llywodraeth Cymru wedi dadlau bod 
plant na ellir gofalu amdanynt yn ddiogel gartref, y plant hynny sy'n derbyn gofal, 
y rhai ar y gofrestr amddiffyn plant, cynhalwyr ifainc a'r rhai sydd ag anghenion 
dysgu ychwanegol wedi'u blaenoriaethu drwyddi draw. Ymhlith y grwpiau 
blaenoriaeth uchel hynny, mae nifer wedi'u nodi a'u targedu er mwyn derbyn 
gofal plant a chymorth pellach.  

 
PENDERFYNWYD cydnabod yr wybodaeth yn y cyflwyniad gan y Cyfarwyddwr 
Addysg a Gwasanaethau Cynhwysiant a'r ymatebion a ddarparwyd i'r 
ymholiadau a godwyd. 
 

58   Adolygiad y Cadeirydd a dod â'r cyfarfod i ben  
 

 

 Diolchodd Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu i'r Aelodau am eu 
presenoldeb yn y cyfarfod rhithwir ac am eu trafodaeth a'u hargymhellion, a gaiff 
eu dwyn ymlaen fel y ganlyn: - 
 

 Derbyn diweddariad am y llifogydd yn Rhondda Cynon Taf, yn ogystal â'r 
gofynion adrodd statudol o ran llifogydd; 
 

 Derbyn diweddariad ar sefyllfa Covid-19 yn Rhondda Cynon Taf mewn 
perthynas â'r cynlluniau adfer fydd yn sail i'r rhaglen waith Trosolwg a 
Chraffu ar gyfer y dyfodol 
 

O ran y diweddariad am y llifogydd, cydnabu'r Cadeirydd gais rhai aelodau o'r 
Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu bod Dŵr Cymru a Chyfoeth Naturiol Cymru, yn 
ogystal ag aelodau lleol o'r wardiau dan sylw, yn cael eu gwahodd i'r cyfarfod 
pan gaiff y mater ei drafod. 

 

   
 

Tudalen 13



 

 
Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 5.40pm Y Cynghorydd M Adams 

Cadeirydd 
 
 

Tudalen 14



 

 

 
 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

30th JULY 2020 
 
CONSIDERATION OF THE COUNCIL’S RESPONSE TO COVID-19 (DETAIL OF THE 

CABINET REPORTS CONSIDERED ON THE 28th JULY 2020) 
 

REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR, DEMOCRATIC SERVICES & 
COMMUNICATIONS 

 

1.        PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1 To provide members of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee with the 
opportunity to further scrutinise, review and challenge the Council’s response 
to the Covid-19 pandemic and the information within the Cabinet report titled, ‘ 

  UPDATE ON COVID 19 POSITION IN RHONDDA CYNON TAF – RECOVERY 

PLANS, to be considered by Cabinet on the 28th July 2020. 

 

2.        RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

           It is recommended that Members:-  
 
2.1 Acknowledge the contents of the information included and determine whether 

there are any areas in which Members would like to receive additional 

information at its next scheduled meeting (further to those areas selected at 

the previous meeting of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee as set out in 4.2); 

and  

2.2 Subject to 2.1 above, request the Service Director Democratic Services and 
Communications continues to report any relevant and further information to 
the Overview & Scrutiny Committee.  

 
3.        REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

  3.1       The Cabinet reports cited within this report, identify the critical actions taken 
by the Council since the COVID-19 restrictions were imposed by the UK and 

Tudalen 15

Agendwm 3



Welsh Governments and set out the future steps the Council will take in 
respect of service planning in the next recovery phase. 

 
  3.2 To support the committee’s previous recommendations to consider the 

recovery plans of Council services and to give consideration to any detail 
committee may require arising from the emerging recovery plans. 

    

  4.        BACKGROUND 
 

4.1        With the introduction of the Local Authorities (Coronavirus) (Meetings) 

(Wales) Regulations 2020 in May all local authorities in Wales have been 

provided with the opportunity to resume their committee processes. The 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee met for the first time under these 

arrangements on 26th June 2020. 

 

  4.2 The Overview & Scrutiny Committee determined areas for scrutiny over the 
extended municipal year up to the Council’s Annual General Meeting on 16th 
September 2020 at its first meeting, from a Council-wide service perspective 
and this included receiving information in respect of the Council’s recovery 
planning, following information received from the Leader of the Council, Chief 
Executive and members of the Senior Leadership Team. 

4.3 As part of the second phase of committee arrangements to resume operating 
virtually, the Children & Young People’s Scrutiny Committee met for the first 
time on Wednesday 22nd July. Alongside scrutinising the response of the 
Council to the pandemic from an education perspective over the last four 
months, members also considered the recovery arrangements for schools and 
guidance provided by the Council to support Schools from September. 
Members are therefore advised that this aspect has already received 
appropriate challenge and scrutiny from Members. 

 
5.       CONTINUING TO SCRUTINISE THE COUNCIL’S RESPONSE TO COVID-19 
 
5.1      Attached for Members are the reports considered by Cabinet at its meetings 

held on the 28th July 2020, setting out the Council’s step by step approach 
to re-opening services in line with Welsh Government guidance. Members are 
asked to consider and scrutinise the attached report and determine 
whether there are any issues on which they would like to receive 
further information or review in greater detail at its subsequent meeting. 
 

5.2  Opportunity will continue to be afforded for Scrutiny to be updated verbally with 
the latest service developments and information, providing greater scope to 
engage in these matters and request information and additional reporting as 
deemed appropriate by Committee Members. 

 
5.3 Within the current constraints the Council is operating and swift pace of change, 

it is proposed that the focus of Members’ discussions should continue to be 
facilitated around verbal updates and to committee. Members of the Council’s 
Cabinet and Senior Leadership Team will be in attendance to assist 
Members’ considerations as part of this report. 

Tudalen 16

https://gov.wales/local-authorities-coronavirus-meetings-wales-regulations-2020
https://gov.wales/local-authorities-coronavirus-meetings-wales-regulations-2020


 
5.4     The report to be considered at the Cabinet meeting held on the 28th July 2020 titled      

UPDATE ON COVID 19 POSITION IN RHONDDA CYNON TAF – RECOVERY PLANS is 
attached at Appendix A. 

 
6.        CONSULTATION / INVOLVEMENT  
 
6.1      There is no requirement to consult on this report, it is primarily for information. 
 
7.        EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1      An Equality Impact Assessment is not needed because the contents of the 

report are for information purposes only.  
 

8.       FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
8.1     There are no financial implications aligned to this report.  
 
9.       LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED 
 
9.1     There are no legal implications arising from the recommendations in this report. 
 
10.   LINKS TO THE COUNCILS CORPORATE PLAN / OTHER CORPORATE 

PRIORITIES. 
 
10.1    This is an information report presenting the Cabinet report which outlines how 

the Council is responding to the COVID-19 pandemic. No decisions are being 
taken in this report. 

 
11.     CONCLUSION  
 
11.1    Scrutiny continues to receive regular information identifying the Council’s 

response to the COVID-19 pandemic, potential pressure points on council 
services along with the business of reinstating services and the recovery and 
service planning process. Beyond the Council’s AGM in September 
consideration will need to be given to the prioritisation of ongoing scrutiny 
matters, to ensure that the democratic process and decision making is 
transparent.  

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 17



 

 

 

 

Tudalen 18



LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 
 

AS AMENDED BY 
 
 

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 
 
 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
 

30th JULY 2020 
 

REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR, DEMOCRATIC SERVICES & 

 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 19



Tudalen wag



 

 
 

APPENDIX A 

 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

CABINET 

28TH JULY 2020 

UPDATE ON COVID 19 POSITION IN RHONDDA CYNON TAF – RECOVERY 

PLANS 

REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN DISCUSSION WITH THE LEADER OF THE 

COUNCIL (COUNCILLOR A MORGAN) 

Author: Chris Bradshaw, Chief Executive  

 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

1.1 The purpose of the report is to provide an update of the action taken by the 

Council as a result of the COVID 19 national emergency. 

2 RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

It is recommended that Members: 

 

2.1 Consider the summary Service Recovery Plans and approve the proposed way 

forward; 

 

2.2 Consider the list of services proposed to be reopened, in full or in part, over the 

next 6 - 8 weeks and approve that the restrictions are lifted;  

 

2.3 Request that a further report on the lifting of further restrictions is presented to 

the following Cabinet meeting.  

 

3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

3.1 To set out for Cabinet a summary of the proposed Service Recovery Plans, and 

a list of services that could be opened within the next 6 – 8 weeks, as Covid 19 

restrictions are lifted.  

 4. BACKGROUND 

4.1 Over the past month or so, the Covid 19 lockdown has gradually been lifted by 

the Welsh Government in a very measured manner. To date we have opened 

Community Recycling Facilities, six libraries for a pick up and drop off service, 

Tudalen 21



 

 
 

and on 29th June, schools were open to pupils to catch up and prepare for the 

new school year in September. 

4.2  Other restrictions have been lifted such as non-essential shopping and on 6 

July the five mile restriction on movement was lifted in Wales. This was followed 

by the lifting of restrictions on 13th July for hotel and self-catering 

accommodation, tourism attractions and the sale of food and beverages in 

outside licensed settings. 

4.3 As a Council we are also reviewing the list of services that are yet to fully 

operate or are closed, such as leisure centres, theatres, and other community 

facilities. Each service has prepared Recovery Plans that set out how we will 

reopen these services in the future, as and when advised to do so by Welsh 

Government. 

4.4 In opening services each service will undertake a risk assessment and consider 

a range of issues in respect of social distancing, the requirements of service 

users and staff, maintaining good personal hygiene, the capacity of buildings to 

accommodate the service and social distancing, and the cleaning regimes 

required for shared areas.  

5. WHAT COUNCIL SERVICES WILL BE AVAILABLE IN THE NEXT 6-8 

WEEKS?  

5.1 To respond to the challenges posed by the Covid 19 lockdown, the Council is 

continuing to operate the majority of its key functions, with reduced staffing 

levels.  

5.2 Over the next 6-8 weeks it is proposed that the following services will be 

available to residents and businesses as appropriate: 

 Website and Customer Care Centre Pay it/Report it/Apply for it/Book it 

– All these services are now available except for leisure bookings as the 

service remains closed for the foreseeable future; 

 Customer Care Telephone Services – On 13th July, the vast majority of all 

customer care telephone services were reinstated except for the following 

services which can only be accessed via the website, and via email – 

Planning, General Enquiries, Revenues & Benefits financial queries not 

associated with a debt recovery letter, and non-emergency Streetcare 

services such as missed collections, bulky waste collections, etc which can 

be requested online. Currently a large number of the Customer Care staff 

are undertaking Test, Track and Protect roles, and once these staff can be 

released the remainder of the services can return to the levels prior to the 

pandemic.  

 Schools – will reopen to all pupils in September. Welsh Government has 

advised a phased introduction to pupils, with all pupils back in school full-

Tudalen 22



 

 
 

time by 14th September 2020 at the latest. The relevant guidance is being 

prepared and shared with schools. 

 Public Toilets – Toilets open at Pontypridd and Aberdare bus stations and 

are staffed. On 6th July four further toilets opened in Talbot Green, 

Tonypandy, Mountain Ash and Treorchy. The remaining toilets and urinals 

opened on 20th July. These toilets are not staffed and are regularly cleaned 

throughout the day. Toilets in Aberdare Public Park and Ynysangharad 

Park, Pontypridd will re-open from 27th July with enhanced cleaning; 

 Pest Control – the service has been providing emergency indoor 

treatments throughout the pandemic. Outdoor treatments recommenced 

from 29th June. Staff are supplied with suitable PPE for indoor treatments;; 

 Animal Warden Services – from 29th June, the Hope Rescue facility for the 

public to take stray or lost dogs to the kennels directly is available, with the 

appropriate safe working arrangements at the premises. The Council has 

also resumed proactive inspections of other boarding/ breeding premises;  

 Registrars Service – Marriage and civil ceremony services have restarted. 

From 13th July 2020, face to face birth registrations resumed but NOT face 

to face death registrations as these can be done remotely. There is no 

current capacity for other services to resume (e.g. genealogy) until the birth 

registration backlog and marriage re-scheduling has been cleared; 

 Bereavement Services – The Interment of cremated remains with family 

present restarted from 29th June. On 3rd August we will increase the number 

of mourners at crematorium services to 30 by opening the second chapels 

at Glyntaff and Llwycoed;  

 Libraries - The three libraries in Aberdare, Pontypridd and Treorchy opened 

on 24th June along with the at home service. The libraries in Mountain Ash, 

Porth and Rhydyfelin reopened on 16th July, with Hirwaun, Ferndale and 

Pontyclun reopening on 6th August, with the remaining libraries opening on 

20th August. To meet the new social distancing and hygiene measures 

additional staffing is required within each library. Initially all openings will just 

be for order and collect. The larger community rooms in Garth Olwg and 

Llys Cadwyn will be open in September. It may be significantly longer before 

we can go back to hiring out rooms especially at the smaller libraries where 

some of the rooms are quite small so that 2m social distancing will make 

any class/meeting unrealistic. The School Library provision is also available 

to schools.  

 Playgrounds – The majority of playgrounds will be open from 20th July. The 

grass has been cut and the equipment inspections and maintenance 

programmes for the 220 playgrounds are being completed; 

 Community Centres – a number of community centres will reopen from 

20th July, subject to the completion of risk assessments and safe working 

practices have been established. Other community centres will reopen 

thereafter when it is safe to do so and the risk assessments and relevant 

Tudalen 23



 

 
 

measures are in place. We will be working with the respective management 

committees to facilitate the opening of these centres; 

 Welsh Mining Experience – This tourist attraction will be open with a 

limited offer from 25th July with appropriate social distancing and other safety 

measures in place. The attraction has a booking app in place to safely 

manage attendance at the venue. 

 Learning disability social care day centres - we have maintained a 

prioritised learning disability day service through the Pandemic at the 

Gadlys Learning Curve in Aberdare and at Llwynypia Learning Curve for 

those people assessed as critical due to their own needs or crisis situations. 

At Dan y Mynydd in Porth we also offer more specialist provision for people 

with Autism and we have also commissioned provision at the Autism Life 

Centre in Trealaw. Some people have also received additional targeted 

outreach home support and direct payments to meet their needs. Changes 

to the support offered to people living in supported living accommodation 

has resulted in a need for reduced day service provision and this is expected 

to continue. 

We are currently supporting 28 people at the open Learning Curve Centres, 

although we are now seeing increase in demand for support, in particular 

from those people living at home with their parents and carers. Due to the 

vulnerability of people attending our Learning Curve Centres we have to be 

careful when we reopen services more widely so that it is safe and in 

accordance with Government social distancing, effective infection control 

and sufficient staffing resource. 

 

We are planning to increase the available places at Llwynypia and Gadlys 

Learning Curve Centres and reopen Talbot Green Day Learning Curve 

Centre from 3rd August 2020, if it is safe to do so. Abercynon Day Centre 

will open from Monday 24th August 2020. All other Learning Curve Centres 

and work-based projects will remain closed for now, but we will continue to 

review the need to open the remaining Centres based on demand and 

Government guidance. 

 

The level of day services support offered will be risk assessed and based 

on the building, staffing levels and the people using the Centres. We will 

continue to target our support at people with the greatest need and some 

people will continue to receive a reduced day service offer and increased 

care and support at home, if needed. We will contact people to talk about 

the day service care and support we will be able to offer. 

 

 Learning disability respite - we have also maintained a prioritised learning 

disability respite service providing emergency provision for high risk 

Tudalen 24



 

 
 

individuals and to support family crisis through the pandemic at our in-house 

Beach Cottage in Aberaman and at Drive’s Brynsadler House in Pontyclun. 

 

This service is also starting to see an increase in demand, and from Monday, 

3rd August 2020, we are planning to open our in-house respite 

accommodation at Ystradfechan Bungalow in Treorchy and Clwydwen in 

Miskin, Pontyclun, if it is safe to do so. Due to the vulnerability of people 

attending our learning disability respite service we have to ensure the 

service can meet the Government social distancing, good infection control 

guidance and have sufficient staffing resource. We will continue to review 

the need and provision based on demand and Government guidance.  

 

The level of learning disability respite support offered will be risk assessed 

and based on the building, staffing levels and the specific needs of the 

people using the accommodation. Whilst, we will continue to target the 

service at people with the greatest need we are planning to restart our 

planned respite service alongside the current emergency provision. We will 

contact people to talk about the support we will be able to offer prior to 

extending the service offer in August.  

 

 Older person social care day centres – these centres have been closed 

during the Pandemic in line with Government guidance and available 

resource to protect people. We are now starting to see increases in need for 

support from family/informal carers. This includes specialist support for 

people with dementia due to limitations regarding the availability of 

residential respite options and we need to consider a day service offer to 

alleviate some of this need. 

 

From Monday, 3rd August 2020, we are planning to open Tonyrefail Day 

Centre and Trecynon Day Centre, if it is safe in line with Government 

guidelines and staffing levels. Cwmni Dda Dementia Day Centre will open 

from Monday, 3rd August 2020, and we will continue to review the need to 

open the remaining older people centres based on demand and 

Government guidance.  

 

These older people day centres will support people from across Rhondda 

Cynon Taf currently registered for day services and any new people with an 

assessed need. The level of support offered will be risk assessed and based 

on the building, staffing levels, transport and the people using the centre. 

The planned reduced service offer will be targeted at people with the 

greatest need and will mean most people will receive a reduced day service 

support offer along with some care and support at home, if needed. We will 

contact people to talk about the day service care and support we will be able 

to offer prior during August. 

Tudalen 25



 

 
 

 

 Employment Support Services – some support for people seeking 

employment support has been on-going during the lockdown. Most of the 

staff who are supporting the Resilience Centres have returned to their usual 

duties. There are no plans currently in place for opening of offices or face-

to-face delivery until about mid-August, although we are expecting a high 

demand for employment support from July onwards. This support will 

continue to be provided remotely and we have enhanced digital and online 

provision; 

 Food Safety Inspections – under direction of the Food Standards Agency, 

the food regulation and inspection team has not undertaken routine physical 

inspections but has maintained food safety interventions. From 13th July, 

inspections of high risk settings, for example approved premises, re- 

commenced; 

 Housing enforcement – inspections are being undertaken in respect of the 

private rented sector where there is a potential risk to the tenant. 

 Licensing – From 13th July, taxi licence vehicle inspections for new vehicles 

re-commenced. 

 Building Control & Planning Enforcement  - these services are now fully 

operational; 

 Land Charges – The local authority land charges search is fully operational 

and will work towards its target of a 5 working days response;  

 Welsh Mining Experience – we will be looking to open a limited service 

whilst adhering to the government guidelines when the date is confirmed by 

Welsh Government for opening visitor attractions. 

 Leisure Services – outdoor non-contact sport facilities – bowling greens, 

tennis courts and athletic tracks – reopened from 29th June. The service is 

putting in place arrangements to facilitate social distancing in leisure centres 

so we are ready to reopen when a decision is made by Welsh Government. 

In the meantime the service is exploring providing some non-contact 

outdoor fitness classes over the summer. 

5.3 All the Council’s Services have prepared Recovery Plans and a summary of the 

plans are set out in Appendix A. The information included with Service 

Recovery Plans is now being developed further to support the compilation of 

Corporate Plan Priority action plans for 2020/21 and ensure the Council meets 

is statutory reporting requirements under the Well-being of Future Generations 

(Wales) Act 2015 and Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009. 

5.4 In opening up services we also have to take into account that the vast majority 

of the Council’s office based staff that can work from home continue to work 

from home, in accordance with Welsh Government advice. A number of 

community offices are being opened, in addition to Ty Elai, to enable a “small 

number” of social care staff to deliver their community based work where it is 

Tudalen 26



 

 
 

difficult or impossible to do so from home. Inside all the Council offices, staff 

are encouraged to be 2m apart, and the working environment is very different, 

with substantially fewer desks available, kitchen areas out of use, lift numbers 

reduced to one person, and staff asked to stagger the times they arrive and 

leave.  

5.5 Many public, private and global organisations have made working from home 

the “standard way of working” that promises a more empowering, productive 

and creative experience for employees. The past few months have proven that 

we can make working from home work for the Council’s business, and our staff 

are learning about the pros and cons of working in this way compared to the old 

way of life.  

5.6 Over the next two months, the Council will develop a work programme that will 

take into account the business needs of the service, and encourage staff that 

can work from home to primarily work from home but will allow staff the flexibility 

to choose where they work, whether that is from home or from an office, but 

recognising that not everyone can return to the office environment as there is 

now insufficient space due to social distancing. Therefore, we need to help staff 

combine the positives of working from home (less commuting, more 

productivity, less expenses etc) whilst minimising the negatives (the lack of 

personal contact/bonding, the feeling that you are always at work, etc). 

5.7 The global research suggests that this increased flexibility will help to improve 

the performance of teams and increase productivity. Nevertheless, we will 

continue to review the position in the light of changing requirements and the 

specific needs of services and our staff. 

5.8 At subsequent Cabinet meetings, further reports will be presented setting out 

the steps to open all services as and when appropriate taking into account 

Welsh Government lifting of specific restrictions and staff availability.  

6 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 An Equality and Diversity Assessment has not been carried out in connection 

with the recommendations set out in this report as the contents and actions do 
not require a policy or service change, resulting in no reasonably foreseeable 
differential impacts.  

 
7 CONSULTATION  
 
7.1 There is no requirement to consult on this report, it is primarily for information. 

8 FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S) 
 
8.1 Each Service has an agreed budget as set by Council in the approval of the 

2020/21 budget. In the first instance services will be expected to manage any 

Tudalen 27



 

 
 

increased costs from within existing resources or from the Welsh Government 

emergency fund. 

 

9 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED  
 
9.1 There are no legal implications arising from the recommendations in this report. 

10 LINKS TO THE CORPORATE AND NATIONAL PRIORITIES AND THE 
WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT. 

 
10.1 This is an information report on progress in responding to the Covid 19 

pandemic and reopening services. 
  

11 CONCLUSIONS 

12.1 As the number of cases of Covid 19 decrease across Wales and the County 

Borough, more services and functions open and life returns to a different 

normal, with social distancing and personal hygiene being paramount. Council 

services have considered how best they open in full or in part services that were 

required to close as a result of the pandemic.  

12.2 As we look forward into the future, it is impossible to plan for every eventuality, 

but it is inevitable that we will see further spikes in the virus as the lockdown 

restrictions are eased. We may be required to close services that we have 

recently reopened and as a Council we are confident that we have the capacity 

and capability to respond to these situations. 

 

  

Tudalen 28



 

 
 

COUNCIL SERVICE RECOVERY PLANS 

APPENDIX A 

Service Recovery Considerations – subject to conditions allowing.  

All Council services have been affected to a greater or lesser extent by the impact of 

Covid-19.  The effect on many, particularly those front line services that have 

continued in the most challenging circumstances for the most vulnerable residents has 

been significant, others forced to provide reduced services and extended time scales 

etc. and some, where staff have been furloughed.  

All Council services are now developing outline Service Recovery plans to provide an 

initial shape for the Council’s Covid-19 Recovery within the context of the Welsh 

Government’s approach to Covid-19.  Many services are also subject to direct 

statutory guidance from Welsh Government, which is either not yet available, or is 

being frequently revised and updated, and so have another layer of uncertainty within 

which to manage.   

Once in place all plans will take full account of Social Distancing, appropriate personal, 

equipment, meeting space and building hygiene and also Well-being measures in 

order to protect Service Users, staff and elected Members.  Where services co locate 

with others, appropriate steps will be taken to consider the impact on all services in 

planning.   

When services emerge, at potentially different speeds etc., they will share common 

needs, e.g. ICT for increased agile working arrangements and ‘Comms’ support to 

help them to provide clear and timely information to as wide an audience as possible.  

They will also seek to address common ‘barriers’ that may affect progress, e.g. the 

impact of self-isolating/shielding on resources across services, particularly in the front 

line; the potential for continuing reduced capacity arising from child care/schooling and 

other care responsibilities; access to ICT/technology equipment;  the effect of changes 

to training and support particularly on recently appointed staff as well as skills gaps 

arising from new ways of homeworking and service back logs that have arisen. 

Services are also taking the opportunity to build on what has been learnt from this 

experience and continue the benefits of working from home, delivering services 

digitally or in a different way.  Whilst services are still emerging from the RESPONSE 

phase of the pandemic SLT has also challenged them to learn from the Covid-19 

experience, to take opportunities and ideas to ensure services do not routinely return 

to “normal – as we were”.  The benefits of RENEWAL is being discussed nationally in 

Welsh Government, in initiatives such as RESET Cymru as well as through the Wales 

Council for Voluntary Action and the Future Generations Commissioner.  Audit Wales 

has also recently produced a short report on some emerging themes on reintroducing 

service delivery.  

Tudalen 29

https://resetcymru.wordpress.com/blog-2/
https://walesauditoffice.wordpress.com/2020/06/11/covid-19-learning-project-some-emerging-themes-on-re-introducing-service-delivery/


 

 
 

The outline RECOVERY arrangements for services set out below have been prepared 

at a point in time on the best advice at the time, and will be continually reviewed and 

revised in the light of experience, advice and the effect of Welsh Government’s 

relaxation of lockdown measures. 

  

Tudalen 30



 

 
 

COMMUNITY AND CHILDRENS’ SERVICES 

ADULT 
SERVICES 

Summary of steps to Recover, Renew individual Council 
Services 

 Adult social services and our providers in Rhondda Cynon Taf have 
been supporting over 4000 vulnerable people in their homes and in 
care settings every day since the start of the COVID-19 Pandemic. 
The Pandemic has led to the disruption of some services and there 
is likely to be some continued disruption for the foreseeable future.  
 
We are following and reviewing Government guidance to ensure we 
are able to respond to the latest advice. We are working closely with 
our care providers to ensure they are following infection control 
guidelines, so they are able to deliver safe care, and that together 
we can continue to fulfil our duties under the Care Act to provide 
appropriate care and support services. 
 
Our key priorities at this time are continuing to: 
 

 support our most vulnerable people and their carers to stay safe 
and well in the community 

 respond to urgent and immediate care and support requirements 

 safeguard and protect those adults considered most at risk in our 
county borough 

 work with partners to support timely and safe discharge from 
hospital, arranging care at home or in an appropriate care setting 
while longer term planning takes place 

 support our care providers to deliver quality and safe services 
and to respond to the risks associated with COVID-19 

 
and to do we will: 

 

 continue to assess and prioritise cases, in accordance with the 
flexibilities afforded by the Social Services and Wellbeing 
(Wales) 2014 Act, based on need and risk in a way that 
safeguards people and involves them and their families in 
decision making 

 continue (this could include care providers) to stay in touch with 
people to identify and protect the people who need us most and 
ensure that everything is in place to provide the best ongoing 
care and support as the situation continues to evolve 

 continue to review packages of care where calls have been 
reduced with a view to re-instating where assessed risk is 
escalating   

 continue to ensure that care homes and other care providers 
receive appropriate ongoing operational and financial support as 
the situation continues to evolve in line with Welsh Government 
guidance 

 continue to work with care homes and other care providers to 
understand and monitor their capacity in order to respond to 

Tudalen 31



 

 
 

COMMUNITY AND CHILDRENS’ SERVICES 

ADULT 
SERVICES 

Summary of steps to Recover, Renew individual Council 
Services 

demand. This will include maintaining bed capacity across all 
care home, including all 11 in-house care homes 

 work with care homes to implement procedures with them 
to safely accommodate visits from friends and family in line with 
Welsh Government guidance 

 work with Linc Cymru and Radis Care to continue to assess and 
support short and permanent placement of people to 
Maesyffynnon extra care scheme 

 work with partners to restart Stay Well@Home (Phase 2), 
Assistive Technology and Enhanced Primary Care regional 
transformation projects from July 2020 

 revisit interim placements made during the COVID19 period to 
date to support people with a choice of accommodation, where 
possible 

 work with Health to revisit complex cases that have not 
proceeded to CHC assessment during the COVID19 period to 
date and reassess them and complete CHC assessments in 
line with guidance 

 continue to review options for phased opening of day and respite 
services in line with demand and social distancing guidelines 

 work with our Supporting Living Providers to review new support 
models introduced in response to the COVID-19 Pandemic, to 
inform future service models 

 review our support to informal carers who are looking after 
vulnerable people in order to respond to their immediate and 
ongoing care and support requirements 

 Work with regional partners to continue the phased reopening of 
regional equipment services to full capacity and restarting of 
windows manufacturing at Vision Products 

 work with our partners continue to ensure that processes to 
safeguard and protect those adults considered most at risk are 
in line Welsh Government guidance. 

 

  

Tudalen 32



 

 
 

COMMUNITY AND CHILDRENS’ SERVICES 

CHILDRENS’ 
SERVICES 

Summary of steps to Recover, Renew individual Council 
Services 

 All staff across Children’s Services have been working as frontline 
essential staff since the start of lockdown. Statutory functions have 
remained unchanged.  Activity has been focused on four critical 
areas of work: access to services and family support; safeguarding 
duties; Children Looked After and youth offending.  We have 
delivered a reduced service in these areas by prioritising those with 
the highest level of risk and need using different methods of 
working e.g. utilising technology.  Face to face service delivery has 
been limited to business critical areas and emergencies only. 
The service is  
1. Developing a fit for purpose agile/home working framework for 

Children’s Services, which supports both the physical and 
emotional well-being of staff and optimises our work with 
families.  This will include a review of accommodation needs for 
staff and a review of agile working in the coming weeks. 

2. Building upon critical and emergency functions currently being 
delivered, develop a safe, sustainable service delivery model to 
provide Children’s Services statutory responsibilities that will 
meet anticipated WG guidance.  This means incrementally 
increasing the service that can safely be made available to the 
public with the goal of achieving a return to a full service in line 
with WG Guidance.  This will commence with a review child 
protection conference and increasing the number of children 
who we see and whose voices we hear. 

3. Ensuring staffing capacity in Intensive Intervention is sufficient 
to meet need.  This includes exploring opportunities to recruit 
more practitioners. 

4. Ensuring vulnerable children have access to Education and 
emergency childcare provision, working in partnership with 
Education.  This will include: 
a) Ensuring sufficient childcare provision is available for 

vulnerable children aged 0-4 throughout the summer 
holidays and for eligible Flying Start children when service 
resumes  

b) Continuing to deliver emergency childcare for children aged 
0 – 5 of key workers and vulnerable families 

c) Producing guidance for pre-school settings and 
parents/carers that reflects current Welsh Government’s 
position on Coronavirus Childcare  

d) Providing targeted play and youth provision for vulnerable 
children and young people aged 5-25 who are open to 
Enquiries and Assessment Team, Intensive Intervention, 
Disabled Children’s Team and Resilient Families Service 
over the summer holiday period  

e) Ensuring processes are in place to monitor the attendance 
of vulnerable children in schools when they reopen 

Tudalen 33



 

 
 

COMMUNITY AND CHILDRENS’ SERVICES 

CHILDRENS’ 
SERVICES 

Summary of steps to Recover, Renew individual Council 
Services 

f) Supporting Education to deliver summer emergency 
childcare at the chosen hubs during the summer holiday 
period 

g) YEPS Youth Engagement Officers to return to school sites 
when schools resume to provide youth work support 

Ensure robust safeguarding arrangements working with partners in 
the Cwm Taf Morgannwg Safeguarding Board.  We will maintain 
robust multi-agency safeguarding governance arrangements 
through the continuation of the Bronze and Silver Covid 19 
Command meetings 
 

 

  

Tudalen 34



 

 
 

COMMUNITY AND CHILDRENS’ SERVICES 

PUBLIC 
HEALTH, 
PROTECTION 
& 
COMMUNITY 
SVS 

Summary of steps to Recover, Renew individual Council 
Services 

Public 
Protection 
(Significant 
WG guidance 
throughout)   

REGISTRAR SERVICE has been transformed digitally during the 
Pandemic and the General Registrar Officer (GRO) is being urged 
to retain many of these changes including remote registration 
procedures and receipt of medical certificates. In house, we have 
established an online booking system for appointments as a trial 
and will be increasing its use as part of pre-pandemic plans new 
software.  Risk assessment in hand and Corporate Estates are 
providing the necessary screens.  Proposal to resume face to face 
birth registrations but NOT face to face death registrations as 
these can be done remotely.  No current capacity for other 
services to resume (e.g. genealogy) until we clear the birth 
registration backlog and get on top of marriage re-scheduling.   
 
Face to face death registrations and all birth registrations with 
marriage/civil ceremony services stopped.  
In line with appropriate guidance, priorities are to 
1. Resume Birth Registrations- remote, video/ telephone only and 

catch up with backlog of birth registrations since March 2020.  
2. Resume face to face birth registrations and death registrations.  
3. Resume small weddings and eventually medium/large 

gathering as allowed.  Resume citizenship services as allowed.  
4. Maintain capacity of relief registrar staff to cope with any 

increase in death registrations during the autumn/ winter 
periods. 

 
HOMELESSNESS & SUPPORTING PEOPLE – There has been 
an increase in homelessness and people eligible for temporary 
accommodation.  
Priorities  
1. Develop an integrated Homelessness Recovery Plan for 

sustainable move on arrangements for increased volume of 
homelessness clients seen during COVID.  

2. Submit Grant application to WG for funding to support 
delivery of Integrated Homelessness Recovery Plan. 

3. Increase capacity of office based resource to support 
telephone and face to face presentations by people facing/ 
who are homelessness and process increased volume. 

4. Subject to WG decision on the legal status of COVID 
homeless cases (Awaiting guidance on S75 duty and 
designation as Priority need clients) work with Partners to 
review the impact on the Allocations Policy and 
management of the Register over coming months both for 

Tudalen 35



 

 
 

COMMUNITY AND CHILDRENS’ SERVICES 

PUBLIC 
HEALTH, 
PROTECTION 
& 
COMMUNITY 
SVS 

Summary of steps to Recover, Renew individual Council 
Services 

COVID clients (direct match to the register applicable) and 
other clients in housing need. 

 
HOMEFINDER - The Team that manages the Common Housing 
Register and housing allocations, has been unable to provide the 
full range of services due to Social Landlords reducing their 
services and restrictions on house moves during lockdown.  This 
has had a significant impact on moving households out of 
emergency accommodation, refuge and supported 
accommodation placements.  
Priorities -We will resume allocations of properties in line with the 
Allocations Policy (impact when decision in relation S75 duty are 
known as less properties in the system for general need).   
Review procedures with a view to maintaining home working as 
the preferred operating model for all staff.  Launch new 
Homefinder Website to enable increased “self-service” of 
applications by clients.  
 
FOOD & FEED REGULATION - Food and Feed Regulation at 
food premises has largely stopped or is being done remotely.  
While many businesses have required guidance and advice on 
changing their business model e.g. to operate take away or food 
delivery services.  The inability to undertake inspections of 
business is a cause of concern in the medium term. From 13th July, 
inspections of high risk settings, for example approved premises, 
will re- commence. 
Priorities - We will maintain capacity to deliver service in line with 
FSA Direction during COVID i.e. reactive response and approved 
premises.  Engage actively in FSA Recovery Planning for Food 
Regulation to inform resumptions of proactive food regulation 
activity on a risk based approach.  Identify additional capacity to 
resume proactive interventions for high risk businesses in line with 
FSA Direction.  Resume proactive food and feed sampling.  
 
TRADING STANDARDS 
Trading Standards work has largely stopped, other than Scam 
investigations and animal health work.  This is due to the impact 
of business closures and restrictions resulting in significant 
reductions in demand from consumers.   
Priorities - We will resume proactive inspection of businesses and 
traders in line with Government Direction (non- food and metrology 
work).  Resume Metrology Lab services to other LA for the 
Calibration of statutory weights and measures. Identify and 

Tudalen 36



 

 
 

COMMUNITY AND CHILDRENS’ SERVICES 

PUBLIC 
HEALTH, 
PROTECTION 
& 
COMMUNITY 
SVS 

Summary of steps to Recover, Renew individual Council 
Services 

maintain capacity for COVID business restrictions and social 
distancing enforcement.  Resume Animal Health inspections 
including Farm and Animal Market inspections.  Resume True Call 
scam prevention work  
 
PEST and ANIMAL CONTROL. Pest Control has been 
suspended during lockdown with the exception of emergency 
treatments. 
Priorities - The service will be operational from 29th June. Staff 

have been provided with suitable PPE. From 29th June, the Hope 

Rescue facility for the public to take stray or lost dogs to the 

kennels directly is now available, with the appropriate safe working 

arrangements at the premises. The Council has also resumed 

proactive inspections of other boarding/ breeding premises; 

POLLUTION CONTROL - Air Quality monitoring has been 
adversely affected because laboratories have suspended analysis 
of NOX tubes. We will have a gap in our data for 2020 as a result. 
Priorities - Resume non-essential regulatory visits (external) e.g. 
waste in gardens during the summer.  Resume proactive 
inspections of premises and operations subject to Environmental 
Permitting Requirements; resume Private Water Supply sampling 
and inspection, and resume Air Quality monitoring following Welsh 
Government guidance. 
 
HOUSING ENFORCEMENT  
Priorities - Resume housing inspections related to requests for 
service including HMO licence applications and resume proactive, 
programmed house (including HMO) inspections) in line with 
Welsh Government guidance which is yet to be received. 
 
LICENSING - Licensing has had to manage the impact of 
numerous Government Guidance and Policy changes which has 
resulted in licensed premises closures and barriers to the effective 
operation of taxi licensing requirements. 
Priorities - Resume taxi safety testing at fleet garage.  We will 
continue to maintain capacity for off licence regulation and COVID 
related licensing enforcement in relation to business restrictions.  
Resume proactive inspections of licensed premise (all types) and 
resume animal licensing inspections as directed by Welsh 
Government. 

Tudalen 37



 

 
 

COMMUNITY AND CHILDRENS’ SERVICES 

PUBLIC 
HEALTH, 
PROTECTION 
& 
COMMUNITY 
SVS 

Summary of steps to Recover, Renew individual Council 
Services 

Fleet garage has acquired a new mobile cleaning unit so plans are 
in hand to resume plating of new taxis (existing taxis remain under 
an “exemption” until MOT tests resume).  Resumed service on 6 
July. 
 
HEALTH AND SAFETY REGULATIONS  
Priorities - Increase capacity to monitor and respond to 
intelligence and complaints about workplaces and health and 
safety breaches related to COVID requirements.  Resume 
programmed inspections of workplaces and skin piercing activities 
as directed by Welsh Government 
 
COMMUNITY SAFETY – Demand for Anti-Social Behaviour 
support, Domestic Violence Support and Substance Misuse 
Service referrals have remained consistent during the lockdown. 
Priorities - Resume face to face Substance Misuse Client Support 
meetings, resume face to face IDVA client meetings and drop in 
support at the Oasis Centre, and increase proactive community 
cohesion and engagement work in the Autumn 2020.  Increase 
ASB regulation in relation to knotweed control in response to 
resident demand throughout the summer months. 
HEALTH AND WELLBEING 
Priorities - Resume work of the team in relation to Older Peoples 
Action Plan in Autumn 2020. 
 
CONTACT TRACK AND TRACE (PART OF WG TEST TRACE 
PROTECT STRATEGY) 
Priorities - Ensure a sustainable workforce model is developed 
and deployed to deliver Contact Track and Trace for the duration 
of the Pandemic.  Deliver an effective and efficient Contact Track 
and Trace Service for Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough, as 
part of the Cwm Taf Morgannwg Regional Response, to control 
the prevalence of Coronavirus in the community.  Meet the 
required performance and outcome indicators to be set by Public 
Health Wales and Welsh Government (to be confirmed) 
 

Bereavement 
(WG 
Guidance) 

The service has continued to operate with increased demand but 

strict limitations on funeral attendees and some aspect of the 

service have been temporarily suspended The Interment of 

cremated remains with family present restarted from 29th June. On 

3rd August we will increase the number of mourners at 

Tudalen 38



 

 
 

COMMUNITY AND CHILDRENS’ SERVICES 

PUBLIC 
HEALTH, 
PROTECTION 
& 
COMMUNITY 
SVS 

Summary of steps to Recover, Renew individual Council 
Services 

crematorium services to 30 by opening the second chapels at 

Glyntaff and Llwycoed;  

Phases of recovery include 
1. Increasing funeral service attendees, cremation and 

burials in line with WG guidance on social distancing.  
Looking to allow service attendees to socially distance 
outside of the Chapel, aided by appropriate 2m markings.  
Also utilising the chapel exterior with television screen and 
sound system, and incorporating the use of the second 
chapel when WG guidance permits. 

2. Reinstating the laying to rest of cremated remains i.e. 
interments/scatterings, with a caveat that this may need to 
be further suspended should a second wave of the virus 
occur.   

3. Reopening Bereavement Services office to members of the 
public moving towards meeting ‘one only’ to comply with 
social distancing.  Move to digitising all records in order to 
allow a sanitised method of family scrutinising cremation 
and burial records. 

Leisure 
Services 
(WG 
Guidance) 

Leisure Centres have been closed since 20th March.  No WG 
guidance as yet on re-opening although industry experts suggest 
a possible 1st August partial re-start.  We have started to space 
out gym equipment in the centres in readiness for limited opening 
whenever.  The reality is that we could commence a limited service 
almost immediately if allowed to do so.  In the meantime, the 
service is looking at a potential 5 phase approach subject to review 
at each stage 
 
1. Introduce some open air classes, utilising our parks, 3G 

pitches to allow customers to exercise in a safe manner 
outdoors. 

2. Re-open gym facilities alongside outdoor classes 
3. Introduce some indoor classes, where practicable, and 
single person sports. 
4. Introduce pool use, cafeterias, socially distanced meetings 
etc. (where practicable) 
5. Full re-opening to include large groups, children birthday 
parties, events and large scale meetings. 
 
The preparation for opening Playgrounds has already started.  
Grass cutting operations started last week and we are hoping that 
all play areas will be cut over the next 2/3 weeks.  Plans to de-

Tudalen 39



 

 
 

COMMUNITY AND CHILDRENS’ SERVICES 

PUBLIC 
HEALTH, 
PROTECTION 
& 
COMMUNITY 
SVS 

Summary of steps to Recover, Renew individual Council 
Services 

furlough the remaining staff on 1st of July so that they can start 
the process of inspecting and servicing the play equipment.  To 
complete all 200+ will again take 2 to 3 weeks.  We would start 
with the bigger parks and popular destinations first e.g. 
Ynysangharad, Aberdare, Barry Sidings, Dare Valley etc.  Working 
towards having play areas open for the school summer holidays 
starting end July/early August. 
 
Sports Development plans include  

 Renegotiating a Sports Resilience Plan with Sport Wales which 
will re-purpose the funding for 2020/21.  The plan will cover the 
period from July 2020 to March 2021, with flexibility to adjust 
to changing national guidelines and review to incorporate 
learning. 

• Working with Sport Wales to deliver the community ‘Be Active’ 
Fund from July 2020, to support community organisations to 
re-open, re-engage and develop their services to increase 
participation, in line with WG and LA guidance.   

• Working in partnership with other services such as Education 
and YEPS to deliver safe, socially distanced exercise 
opportunities where services are being delivered e.g. summer 
HUB schools. 

 
Health Development plans include  
Exploring ways that technology can support more people to 
exercise at home or minimise face to face contact e.g. the 
‘Superagers’ Project and working with PHW to redesign National 
Exercise Referral Scheme for referred clients and introducing the 
all Wales referral and engagement processes i.e. remote 
inductions, production of exercise videos, weekly contact 
engagement by phone/video calling.  The service is looking at the 
potential to deliver limited number of 1-2-1 supported local 
exercise sessions for risk assessed clients, initially outdoors.   
 

Visitor 
Attractions 
including 
Welsh Mining 
Experience 

In line with WG advice, visitor attractions have been closed 
throughout lockdown.  Recent guidance has been provided by WG 
and we are able to open the WME by 25th July. The service is 
looking at a phased approach to recovery.  
 
Phase 1  

Preparing for potential reopening of RCT attractions by 
putting in place appropriate risk assessments, social 
distancing arrangements, health and safety measures, 

Tudalen 40



 

 
 

COMMUNITY AND CHILDRENS’ SERVICES 

PUBLIC 
HEALTH, 
PROTECTION 
& 
COMMUNITY 
SVS 

Summary of steps to Recover, Renew individual Council 
Services 

signage and adaptations supported by staff training on new 
procedures.  

1. Phase 2  
Reopening venues plus public areas and buildings such as 
visitor centres/galleries with all necessary safety 
considerations in place and PPE.  Visitor capacity will be 
reduced and online bookings will be encouraged to ensure 
social distancing can be achieved.  Takeaway service will 
be put in place at cafés. 

 
Long term aim is full operation of all venues, interactive sessions 
and cafes. 

Community 
Development 
Team 

The team was heavily involved in response to Storm Dennis 
including direct support to local communities and the collection, 
packing and distribution of food parcels.  Initial Covid-19 response 
has included support to the Community Resilience Hubs (CRH) 
and Sobell Centre Food Distribution Centre; management of WG 
food parcels and distribution with over 8,200 direct calls to date to 
those on the NHS shielding list; and active recruitment of 
Community Resilience Volunteers.  The employment team will 
shortly be resuming their usual roles, with the CDT Team taking 
sole responsibility for running the CRHs, coordinating a team of 
Community Resilience Volunteers.  Staff will continue support for 
NHS shielded patients and liaise with Test, Track & Trace 
colleagues to provide support to residents diagnosed with Covid-
19 and required to shield for 2 weeks. 
 
The team will continue to respond to active Community Asset 
Transfer Cases and are resuming work on Neighbourhood 
Networks, including volunteering. 

Employment 
support 

Some support for customers has been on-going during the 
lockdown; most staff who are supporting the Resilience Centres 
will have returned to their usual duties by 3rd July.  There are no 
plans currently in place for opening of offices or face-to-face 
delivery until about mid-August and although we are expecting a 
high demand for employment support from July onwards. Remote 
employment support will continue. 
 
No new clients have been referred for employment support due to 
DWP prioritising the processing of new universal credit claims.  
 
 

Tudalen 41



 

 
 

COMMUNITY AND CHILDRENS’ SERVICES 

PUBLIC 
HEALTH, 
PROTECTION 
& 
COMMUNITY 
SVS 

Summary of steps to Recover, Renew individual Council 
Services 

Adult 
Education 

Recovery will have three distinct priorities: 
Phase 1: Engage with as many leaners as possible through on-
line delivery. This includes online course brochures and enrolment 
and increased number of courses through formalising our 
agreement with Digital college. Online courses are already being 
delivered through a variety of platforms including Zoom, Skype, 
Edmodo and Facebook private groups. 
Phase 2: the safe opening of Garth Olwg Lifelong Leaning Centre 
with a limited programme of Adult Education, continuing to offer as 
many classes as possible remotely, and with the option to 
remotely access any class.  Make rooms available for community 
hire and public access computers available to book and 
reintroduce cultural activities including the gallery and theatre 
spaces.  
Phase 3: A full return to community learning using the wide range 
of community venues, first considering provision in libraries and 
then other council buildings and community venues. 
 

Library Service 
(subject to WG 
Guidance) 

Three area libraries with click and collect service only, at 
Aberdare, Llys Cadwyn (Pontypridd) and Treorchy 
successfully re-opened from 24 June along with at home service.  
On 16th July the following three libraries will be opened, Mountain 
Ash, Porth and Rhydyfelin. Hirwaun, Ferndale and Pontyclun 
libraries will open on 6th August, with the remaining libraries open 
on 20th August. It may be significantly longer before we can go 
back to hiring out rooms especially at the smaller libraries where 
some of the rooms are quite small so that 2m social distancing will 
make any class/meeting unrealistic. The School Library provision 
is also available to schools. 
 
Depending on the success of the steps above, the aim will be for 
all library services to be accessed from all libraries, including e-
teens, reference services and advice and support. 

Welsh 
Language 

Service has maintained business as usual to provide translation 
services both on paper and simultaneous translation to enable 
residents and elected Members to engage with the Council in the 
language of their choice.  The future availability of staff on site 
simultaneous translation at Committee meetings will be 
considered alongside the re-introduction of the Council’s 
governance arrangements.   
 
In the meantime, the Service aims to maintain or improve 
compliance/performance, continue with Welsh Language tutoring 

Tudalen 42



 

 
 

COMMUNITY AND CHILDRENS’ SERVICES 

PUBLIC 
HEALTH, 
PROTECTION 
& 
COMMUNITY 
SVS 

Summary of steps to Recover, Renew individual Council 
Services 

and provision of support to services to enable them to meet the 
WG standards.  Critical work, including service area audits, and 
‘urgent’ audits and feedback will continue as necessary.  
 
The Service will ensure that all steps are taken to progress the 
planning for Eisteddfod 2023 and will continue to support the 
Education service to plan for the development of Welsh-medium 
education.  

Arts Service Considering all options to create a flexible reopening plan, 
enabling the service to respond quickly as and when restrictions 
allow. 
 
Planning for a staged return to theatre productions over a long 
period.  This is likely to be after January 2021, subject to review, 
and thereafter will consider the viability of programming with social 
distancing measures in place, following the stages below:  
Phase 1: open theatres to limited staff to prepare for social 
distancing measures, maintain buildings and continue digital and 
other remote service delivery 
Phase 2: Open theatres to the public and deliver a limited theatre 
and outreach programme with social distancing measures in place 
Phase 3: Fully reopen theatres with precautions in place, including 
reintroduction of community hire/usage 
Phase 4: Full range of arts services resumed 
Continuing to deliver a number of services remotely, with the key 
consideration being the wellbeing of service users, including: 
- the SONIG Youth Music and Youth Arts programmes  
- the Forte artist development programme  
- Seeking further funding to digitise the programme for a 
wider reach and to sustain the provision long-term. 
 
Continuing policy of automatic ticket transfer to rescheduled date 
and contacting customer to ascertain their preference for transfer 
or refund. 
 
Exploring alternative models of service delivery including the 
potential to  
- encourage community wellbeing through working with artists to 

produce original work  
- create and share productions and participative arts activity 

digitally and contactless non-digital e.g. radio, printed/recorded 
packs 

- stage outdoor performances or use of alternative spaces 

Tudalen 43



 

 
 

COMMUNITY AND CHILDRENS’ SERVICES 

PUBLIC 
HEALTH, 
PROTECTION 
& 
COMMUNITY 
SVS 

Summary of steps to Recover, Renew individual Council 
Services 

 
Introduction of an outreach programme for shielding and 
vulnerable residents e.g. performances within residential home car 
parks 

Community 
Wellbeing & 
Resilience – 
Children & 
Family Centres 

Service delivery has been limited to business critical areas only, 
which has included emergency childcare and so has required the 
buildings in which they are based to be open and accessible.  For 
local authority maintained nurseries, this has meant that two of the 
three Children and Family Centres have needed to be open 
throughout the lockdown, from the start of the pandemic.   
Centres will no longer be used as office bases for staff as service 
will remain fully agile/work from home. Instead space will be used 
to support face to face work with service users. Building layout and 
facilities will be changed to accommodate safe working 
arrangements for staff and families.  This will be accompanied by 
enhanced hygiene regimes and the completion of a Risk 
Assessment for each of the buildings.   
Phase 1 – Already established during the lockdown.  Includes 
hosting emergency childcare from the nursery areas within the 
centres i.e. LA maintained settings and commissioned providers, 
and providing limited access to small meeting rooms and sensory 
rooms for Disabled Children’s Teams to access for respite 
sessions with their most vulnerable children.   
Phase 2 – Includes receptionist returning to working from the 
centre daily, providing access for Community Wellbeing and 
Resilience Service teams to access meeting rooms to host 
meetings with individuals and families, where home visiting is not 
appropriate.  
Phase 3 – Includes hosting targeted family interventions (e.g. 
family play sessions, parenting support, talk and play support) 
from the centre, if guidance allows 
Phase 4 - Provide small group training sessions in large 
community rooms where social distancing can be achieved. 
Phase 5 - Fully re-open the centres, allowing for agile working and 
community usage 
 
 
 

Community 
Wellbeing & 
Resilience - 
Early 
Intervention 

Staff have been engaged in supporting commissioned providers 
to fulfil grant requirements, maintaining contact with and support 
for the Flying Start commissioned providers delivering emergency 
childcare, maintaining contact with Welsh Government to report 
on modifications to grant funded services and disseminate 

Tudalen 44



 

 
 

COMMUNITY AND CHILDRENS’ SERVICES 

PUBLIC 
HEALTH, 
PROTECTION 
& 
COMMUNITY 
SVS 

Summary of steps to Recover, Renew individual Council 
Services 

and Prevention 
Commissioning 

guidance and undertaking performance and compliance reporting 
on behalf of the CfW+ Team in response to these staff being 
transferred into frontline roles to manage the Community 
Resilience Centres. 
Digitalisation to facilitate change in practice - commissioned 
providers to access Capita One to evidence outcomes and 
performance and support. Compliance monitoring arrangements 
to be undertaken remotely in the main with onsite visits by 
exception. Team to remain fully agile/working from home  
 
Priorities: 
1. Ensure the Council has an operational Children & 

Communities Grant (CCG) delivery plan that will meet WG 
guidance and comply with Covid-19 requirements. 

2. Ensure arrangements are in place for the appropriate 
management and administration of the WG CCG Framework. 

3. Develop robust guidance to support commissioned providers 
to manage health and safety arrangements 

4. Provide clear guidance for all commissioned providers on 
revised compliance and monitoring protocols. 

Community 
Wellbeing & 
Resilience – 
Flying Start 
Childcare 
 

All Flying Start settings received an early Quarter 1 grant payment 
in March 2020 equal to the full number of commissioned places 
and were requested to remain open in order to provide emergency 
childcare for key workers and for vulnerable children aged 0-4 
years.  As a result of instruction from Welsh Government to 
suspend the provision of childcare for all other children, a number 
of providers operating a mixed economy model chose to close 
their settings and furlough staff, whilst others worked with us 
during very challenging times to provide an emergency response.  
This period has been very unsettling for providers who have faced 
challenges both practically in providing a service where social 
distancing is almost impossible and financially in maintaining their 
running and staffing of nursery settings within CIW regulated 
parameters without guaranteed income. Any change to practice 
will be subject to WG / CIW guidance.  
 
Priorities: 
1. Develop a safe operational model to deliver targeted FS 

childcare opportunities that will meet future WG guidance. 
2. External commissioned childcare providers to continue to 

operate emergency childcare throughout the Summer for 
vulnerable and key worker children.  

Tudalen 45



 

 
 

COMMUNITY AND CHILDRENS’ SERVICES 

PUBLIC 
HEALTH, 
PROTECTION 
& 
COMMUNITY 
SVS 

Summary of steps to Recover, Renew individual Council 
Services 

3. Develop a fit for purpose Provider Delivery Guidance 
document to assist childcare providers to manage health and 
safety arrangements. 

4.  Provide clear guidance for all stakeholders of what the format 
of FS Childcare will consist of 

Community 
Wellbeing & 
Resilience – 
LA Childcare, 
Quality 
Assurance & 
Training Team 

The Childcare Team has been providing emergency childcare 
since 23rd March 2020 from three Council Nursery settings as 
business critical service delivery 2020 and will continue to do so 
until 20th July 2020.  
 
Priorities: 

 Amend the Quality Assurance Framework and delivery 
model.  

 Develop a new virtual and interactive training programme 
to provide specialist training to Flying Start settings and 
the childcare workforce. This will replace existing face to 
face training programme and will provide flexibility for staff 
to be able to undertake training when it is most convenient 
for them. It will also prevent us from needing to close 
childcare settings in order to provide training as we 
currently do. 

 Re-commence Flying Start Childcare in LA maintained 
settings once it is safe to do so in line with the Flying Start 
Provider Delivery Guidance document 

Community 
Wellbeing & 
Resilience – 
Parenting 
Support 

Staff across the Service have been engaged in the regular 
production and distribution of activity packs for vulnerable children 
aged 5-14 known to the Resilient Families Service and the 
Care2Play Service, the production of a range of information videos 
on key topics accessible through social media platforms and 
online delivery of early language and communication support and 
parenting support to families.  Staff have also provided remote 
support to families who were receiving interventions from them at 
the point of lockdown as well as supporting RFS to respond to the 
emerging needs of families facing challenges as a result of covid-
19 restrictions.   
 
Priorities: 
1. Develop a safe operational model to deliver targeted  Early 

Language & Communication / Parenting support opportunities 
that will meet future WG guidance 

2. Provide clear guidance of what the format of Early Language 
& Communication / Parenting support will consist of 

Tudalen 46



 

 
 

COMMUNITY AND CHILDRENS’ SERVICES 

PUBLIC 
HEALTH, 
PROTECTION 
& 
COMMUNITY 
SVS 

Summary of steps to Recover, Renew individual Council 
Services 

3. Promote Early Language & Communication / Parenting 
support using various social media platforms and resources, 
including creating a weekly timetable of virtual support, 
producing information sheets to provide families with activities 
and suggestions to extend and develop their Early Language 
& Communication skills as well as developing a YouTube 
channel. 

4. Continue to develop the digital offer initiated during lockdown. 
Significant coverage and reach of parenting and early 
language support via use of social media platforms. 
Opportunity to improve performance and reduce costs of 
existing parenting programme format 

 

Community 
Wellbeing & 
Resilience – 
Play Service 

Staff across the Service have been engaged in the regular 
production and distribution of activity packs for vulnerable children 
aged 5-14 known to the Resilient Families Service and the 
Care2Play Service, the production of a regular newsletter and the 
delivery of a virtual online play programme during holiday periods 
which we intend to continue with. The digital offer developed 
during lockdown will be maintained as part of ongoing universal 
play offer.  
 
Priorities:  
1. Develop a safe operational model to deliver targeted play 

opportunities that will meet future WG guidance  
2. Utilise the Care2Play providers to offer targeted support 

sessions for vulnerable children and young people identified by 
Children’s Services and continuing to deliver activity packs to 
the homes of open Care2Play children and young people, if 
they are unable to access the targeted support sessions due 
to shielding, isolation etc. 

3. Develop a fit for purpose Provider Delivery Guidance 
document to assist providers to manage health and safety 
arrangements to ensure the safe delivery of face-to-face 
provision during the recovery stage of Covid-19. 

4. Provide clear guidance for all stakeholders of what the format 
of targeted play will consist of to meet future WG guidance. 

5. Develop a publicity campaign to promote the universal (virtual) 
offer the Play Development Team using various social media 
platforms. 

6. Develop a detailed process for the Play Sufficiency 
Assessment membership group to contribute to identify the 
priorities for the 20/21 PSA action plan. 

Tudalen 47



 

 
 

COMMUNITY AND CHILDRENS’ SERVICES 

PUBLIC 
HEALTH, 
PROTECTION 
& 
COMMUNITY 
SVS 

Summary of steps to Recover, Renew individual Council 
Services 

Community 
Wellbeing & 
Resilience – 
Resilient 
Families 
Service 

As a business critical front line service RFS staff have provided 
remote support to families as well as supporting statutory teams 
to respond to child protection concerns including home visiting.  
The service has remained operational however due to the 
intensive nature of service delivery, this has been limited 
throughout this period. 
 
Priorities:  
1. Review each stage of the RFS model to identify the options, 

risks and pressures that increasing the number of families 
accepted by the service would create including undertaking a 
mapping and scoping exercise to determine which local 
authority community buildings can be safely utilised by RFS 
workers.  Buildings will only be used when workers need to 
meet with high need families (child protection, escalation of 
need etc.) and hold confidential discussions not possible at 
home or outdoors. 

2. Introduce a safe process that would allow the RFS to accept 
an increased number of referrals, ensuring that those accepted 
would be able to access the appropriate support to meet their 
needs. 

3. Introduce a process that would allow RFS Teams to increase 
their capacity to provide a safe service to more families 
including continuing to deliver interventions to families utilising 
virtual methods as much as possible. (Telephone, FaceTime 
apps etc.)  

Develop third sector / partner delivery guidance document to 
assist providers in supporting the delivery of RFS functions while 
also managing health and safety arrangements. 

Community 
Wellbeing & 
Resilience – 
YEPS 

All staff across the Community Wellbeing and Resilience Service 
have been working as frontline key essential staff since the start 
of lockdown.  Face to face service delivery has been limited to 
business critical areas only, which has included the case 
management aspect of the Youth Engagement and Participation 
Service over the past few weeks.  Staff have developed a 
comprehensive virtual youth offer, offering universal activities e.g. 
virtual youth clubs and virtual activities programmes, remote 
issue-based support for matters like mental health, self-harm, 
future education, employment and training opportunities.  They 
have continued to manage their open caseload with individual 
young people and have supported the emergency childcare hubs 
on school sites. 
  

Tudalen 48



 

 
 

COMMUNITY AND CHILDRENS’ SERVICES 

PUBLIC 
HEALTH, 
PROTECTION 
& 
COMMUNITY 
SVS 

Summary of steps to Recover, Renew individual Council 
Services 

YEPS likely to be deployed to support summer childcare provision, 
direct support to high risk cases and maintain virtual youth offer. 
 
Change to practice - Digital offer developed during lockdown to be 
maintained as part of ongoing universal youth offer.  Intention to 
continue with virtual youth work opportunities and encourage 
youth support service partners to do the same 
 
Priorities include  
1. Ensuring that referral management is fit for purpose during 

lockdown including using technology to manage cases 
remotely and considering whether face-to-face is necessary for 
cases of young people in crisis where venue space allows 

2. Continuing to raise the profile of the current RCT youth offer 
including utilising schools messaging services and service’s 
social media platforms (FB, IG, Snapchat, Twitter) to promote 
the evolving YEPS offer 

3. Developing a fit for purpose Provider Delivery Guidance 
document to assist providers to manage health and safety 
arrangements 

4. Utilising the YEPS framework and SLA commissioned 
providers to offer a summer programme (July – August) for 
vulnerable children and young people 

5. Providing virtual information, advice and guidance to 
vulnerable young people utilising wicid tv and YouTube. 

6. Continuing to offer virtual open access activities and plan for 
re-introduction of face-to-face provision 

7. Supporting those young people accessing school sites 
including continuing to support the emergency school hubs by 
providing casual youth support worker capacity in the hubs 
most in need and youth worker drop-in sessions for young 
people accessing the hubs.  

8. Ensuring there is adequate staffing capacity to provide all 
YEPS activities and support being offered including working 
with Adult Learning Wales to roll out the Level 2 and Level 3 
Youth Work qualifications to ensure that there is a future pool 
of qualified applicants for vacant YEPS and community youth 
worker posts 

9. Introducing more street-based support, including commencing 
limited evening and weekend street-based youth work, 
alongside YOS and Police, in identified hot spots to provide a 
visible presence in the community for the most vulnerable 
young people and assist to tackle anti-social behaviour. 

Tudalen 49



 

 
 

 

EDUCATION & INCLUSION SERVICES 

EDUCATION Summary of steps to Recover, Renew individual Council 
Services 

Education 
Services, 
Schools and 
PRUs 
 
(subject to 
WG 
Guidance) 

The Council has developed RCT guidance for schools in line with 
recently published WG guidance, preparing schools for the return 
of a wider number of pupils to ‘check in and catch up’.  This includes 
guidance on staffing ratios and capacity restrictions.  The Education 
service is also ensuring schools have undertaken appropriate risk 
assessments prior to reopening and that all statutory compliance 
checks e.g. legionella, fire alarm testing are up to date. 
 
Schools have developed 3 week plans outlining the phased return 
of learners back into school from June 29th, in line with the guidance 
above.  Due to capacity restrictions, schools will be delivering a mix 
of blended onsite and distance learning for most pupils, alongside 
fulltime childcare provision for key workers children and vulnerable 
pupils, and distance learning for those pupils shielding/not 
attending school.  The Education Services are working closely with 
Transport and Schools to ensure that learner cohorts are aligned to 
pupil groupings on transport routes to limit numbers of contacts for 
each child. 
 
With the recent announcement that schools will be open to all pupils 
from 1 September, with a phased introduction over the period to 11 
September. Comprehensive guidance is being prepared to support 
schools. 
 
School improvement services continue to support schools to 
develop best practice for distance learning including guidance on 
live streaming, and devices will continue to be provided for digitally 
excluded learners. 
 
Regular communication will continue with headteachers, governors 
and parents/carers, including information for parents via Council 
website and social media messages. 
Over the next month, a decision has to be made whether Welsh 
Government will follow the action taken by the Scottish, Northern 
Ireland and English Governments in terms of reconsidering the 2m 
social distancing rule in schools. We will have to plan to support our 
schools adequately plan for the safe opening of schools if this is the 
case. 
 
The Attendance & Wellbeing service will support vulnerable 
learners and their families to reengage with education, using 
alternative models of service delivery where possible to avoid face 
to face home visits.  Parents will not be fined for non-school 
attendance. Access & Inclusion service will support schools to 
provide appropriate provision for learners with SEN and continue 

Tudalen 50

https://gov.wales/guidance-published-help-schools-colleges-and-childcare-settings


 

 
 

EDUCATION & INCLUSION SERVICES 

EDUCATION Summary of steps to Recover, Renew individual Council 
Services 

preparations for the introduction of the ALNET Act.  Wellbeing 
support will be provided for staff, families and pupils e.g. producing 
a wellbeing pack to help staff support pupil’s transition back into 
school and implementing enhanced counselling support for children 
and young people. 

School & 
Community 
Meals 

Schools to be supported to implement split sittings for lunch or use 
‘grab bags’ to allow meals to be eaten outdoors/in classrooms, 
depending on site layout. 
 
The service will provide a method of sanitising biometric systems 
and remove cash payments to ‘on line’ payments for school meals. 
 
Continue to support and review the additional frozen meal provision 
for shielded vulnerable individuals. 

  

Tudalen 51



 

 
 

PROSPERITY, DEVELOPMENT & FRONTLINE SERVICES 

FRONTLINE 
SERVICES 

Summary of steps to Recover, Renew individual Council 
Services 

Streetcare and 
Waste 

Waste Services has maintained most of its collections since 
lockdown.  Also Cleansing, Parks, Enforcement have returned to 
varying degrees and at reduced levels.  Public conveniences have 
been closed over the period of the pandemic but toilets are now 
open at Pontypridd and Aberdare bus stations and are staffed. On 
6th July three further toilets opened in Talbot Green, Tonypandy, 
Mountain Ash and Treorchy. All the remaining toilets and urinals ill 
be open from 20th July. Toilets in Aberdare Public Park and 
Ynysangharad Park, Pontypridd will re-open from 27th July with 
enhanced cleaning.  
 
Offices at Ty Glantaf have now been refurbished following damage 
from Storm Dennis.  Changes implemented to keep front line safe 
include, ‘support vehicles’ being used to reduce the number of 
collection operatives in waste collections allowing social 
distancing; daily vehicle sanitising; additional PPE and vehicle 
signage to reinforce social distancing message for residents and in 
AMGEN recycling facility, screens have been fitted to separate 
sorting staff during processing of materials.  Staff have been 
redirected to other key services e.g. Cleansing, Parks and Amgen.  
Enforcement staff also deployed to backfill in Waste Collection.  
 
Specific services offered on-line only e.g. trade waste bags, bulky 
waste collections.  
 
Service Recovery includes reinstating Enforcement and 
Awareness Raising to address the high levels of excess waste and 
contamination as a result of Storm Dennis and lockdown and 
reopening some main Town Centre bus station toilets with 
organised queuing and enhanced cleaning resources in place.   
 

Highways Highways Services have continued throughout lockdown albeit 
with a reduced service in some aspects.  There continues to be a 
constant re-evaluation of risk and safe working practices as 
highways traffic increases.  Consideration has also been given to 
national guidance, advice and briefing notes including those from 
the Construction Leadership Council (CLC), Civil Engineering 
Contractors Association (CECA), etc.  
New ways of working include, only two people in a working gang 
where possible, and the same two people sharing a wagon every 
day; Highways inspections are undertaken at times to avoid public 
contact; Carriageway resurfacing in semi/rural areas has been 
undertaken before urban areas until lockdown eases and civil 
parking enforcement is being slowly re-introduced and has started 
in principle Town Centres. 
Plans include, restoring highway maintenance inspections; 
undertaking an evaluation of working practices and possible 

Tudalen 52

https://www.constructionleadershipcouncil.co.uk/
https://www.ceca.co.uk/
https://www.ceca.co.uk/


 

 
 

PROSPERITY, DEVELOPMENT & FRONTLINE SERVICES 

FRONTLINE 
SERVICES 

Summary of steps to Recover, Renew individual Council 
Services 

purchase of alternative equipment to minimise number/interactions 
between staff e.g. use of mechanical lifters, etc.; planning for the 
impact of a potential second wave on winter gritting, e.g. additional 
training and availability of extra drivers; the utilisation of external 
contractors for services with potential deployment of depot staff to 
attend drainage matters. 
 

Transportation Staff have been working to existing Delivery Planning priorities, 
e.g. reacting to requests and delivering passenger transport, 
managing project and section 106 finances, developing schemes, 
preparing to invite Expressions of Interest for ‘Safe Routes in the 
Community Schemes, undertaking a response to the Active Travel 
Guidance consultation and fielding enquiries from the public.  
However, this work has also been impacted by Covid-19 in 
numerous ways e.g. agreeing and communicating Public Transport 
timetable changes and responding to associated enquiries, putting 
in place transport for vulnerable children to attend the various 
Childcare Hubs, and re-working bus shelter layouts/ bus station 
layout to accommodate social distancing.  
 
However, the service has focused on ensuring safe and effective 
transport arrangements are in place to enable pupils to return to 
schools from June 29th as part of the ‘Check in, Catch up, Prepare 
for summer and September’ arrangements announced by the 
Welsh Government in early June.  As part of the Education 
‘Recovery’ planning the service is working closely with education 
colleagues.  This includes identifying reduced capacities in line 
with social distancing, prioritising seats on transport for vulnerable 
learners and those travelling the furthest who have no travel 
alternative, preparing guidance for schools, parents/carers and 
young people to support the safe transportation of learners to and 
from schools, ensuring that operators, and their drivers and 
escorts, are provided with appropriate advice and in particular 
guidance on cleaning and PPE and that timely information is 
provided to remind parents and pupils to adhere to social 
distancing on their way to school, in the community, on local buses, 
school transport, etc.  This will also inform the planning for 
September, against two possible transport scenarios – with or 
without social distancing - adhering to the applicable Welsh 
Government guidance at that time and determining whether it is 
appropriate to reinstate the school crossing patrol service. 

Fleet and 
Maintenance 
Services 

Fleet Management and Vehicle Maintenance Workshop has 
continued to provide a service, albeit reduced in volume/output.  
Operations have been affected by a number of factors including 
the Government’s decision to postpone vehicle MOTs; temporary 
cessation of taxi testing; a reduced number of vehicles operating 
as a result of some services being temporarily closed or changed.  

Tudalen 53



 

 
 

PROSPERITY, DEVELOPMENT & FRONTLINE SERVICES 

FRONTLINE 
SERVICES 

Summary of steps to Recover, Renew individual Council 
Services 

There have been significant alterations to workshop shift times due 
to extreme staff shortages.  
Service aims to return to normal shift times; review the opening of 
the Ty Amgen workshop; risk assess all changed/new methods of 
working; vehicle maintenance schedules will be revisited and 
postponed MOT testing reintroduced.  Service also plans to 
research electronic means of reporting defects and also the 
potential efficiencies in stores management brought about by direct 
electronic input into ‘Tranman’ system by stores supplier.  The 
existing fleet will be reviewed in line with changes in other Council 
services e.g. mobile libraries operations if a pre-ordering service is 
successful. 
 

 

PROSPERITY, DEVELOPMENT & FRONTLINE SERVICES 

PROSPERITY & 
DEVELOPMEMENT 

Summary of steps to Recover, Renew individual 
Council Services 

Housing Continue to deliver the full housing strategy and housing 
grants services remotely, including 
Processing grants: 

- emergency Disabled Facilities Grants for vulnerable 
clients at risk of becoming hospitalised and those that 
require hospital discharge 

- Emergency Flood Recovery Grants for those 
individuals that are in temporary accommodation or at 
risk of becoming homeless 

 

 Develop a Registered Social Landlord Covid 19 recovery 
plan, from information collated from RSL partners.  Offer 
support to RSL’s to implement and monitor progress. 

 Work with colleagues in Housing Advice to prioritise 
housing need in response to Cocid-19 such as 
Homelessness, temporary accommodation, landlord 
support. 

 Complete the Social Housing Grant for 2020/2021, to 
continue to support the development of affordable 
houses that meets LA need. 

Town Centres and 
Business Support 

Facilitate good social distancing arrangements in the towns 
and green spaces and working with the business 
community and BIDs to make sure their premises meet 
social distancing guidelines. 
 
Currently developing a package of support to help 
businesses recover, including: 

Tudalen 54



 

 
 

PROSPERITY, DEVELOPMENT & FRONTLINE SERVICES 

PROSPERITY & 
DEVELOPMEMENT 

Summary of steps to Recover, Renew individual 
Council Services 

- Developing a repurposing/social distancing grant to 
help town centre businesses quickly adapt to the new 
circumstances 

- Refocusing existing business grants such as the 
Enterprise Support and Town Centre Maintenance 
Grants to support businesses to take advantage of 
new opportunities in the recovery period 

- encouraging local marketing, purchasing and supply 
chain development, working with town centre 
businesses and BIDs to encourage the ‘buy and sell 
local’ message, developing local business to 
business supply chains and markets 

- Support local manufacturing and distribution 
companies to develop local supply chains rather than 
a reliance on imports and to explore and develop 
new product opportunities 

- Provide information and support to help local 
businesses access all available Government support. 
 

Tourism and Events Prepare for the reopening of key visitor attractions such as 
Welsh Mining Experience and Lido, and Council Leisure 
Centres. In respect of the WME, when appropriate we will 
be looking to open a limited service whilst adhering to the 
government guidelines when the date is confirmed by 
Welsh Government for opening play grounds. Plan the post 
Covid-19 Tourism Exit Strategy for delivery in line with lifting 
of restrictions. 
Communication with key visitor businesses to determine 
current positon and the assistance required to help each 
resume normal business and future growth.   
 

Building Control 1. Statutory Dangerous Structure site visits and formal 
action have continued as normal  

2. The whole service area including vetting of building 
control applications is being processed remotely from 
officers homes 

3. Building Control Inspections are still being processed 
virtually from photographs or video links. 

4. Site visits have started to be undertaken if they cannot 
be readily determined virtually from photographs or 
video links 

Data from the first quarter shows a 25% reduction in 
applications/inspections.  This is positive e.g. compared to 
Cardiff which reported a 75% reduction.  Due to the strong 
relationships and regular communication between the BC 
Officers and contractors, the service has been able to 
continue for most developments/cases.   

Tudalen 55



 

 
 

PROSPERITY, DEVELOPMENT & FRONTLINE SERVICES 

PROSPERITY & 
DEVELOPMEMENT 

Summary of steps to Recover, Renew individual 
Council Services 

 
We will expect to see a decrease in BC income due to the 
decrease in applications/inspections for the first quarter. 
 
Continue to deliver the full service remotely, including: 

 Continue to offer Building Control inspections through 
film and photographic evidence where possible 

 Clear the current backlog of surveys and issue revised 
schedules of work. 

Planning Since the end March and start of lockdown restrictions 
enforcement has been actually busier than usual, receiving 
70+ complaint in May compared to ‘normal’ month pre CV-19 
30-40+.  The service has tried to maintain business as usual 
as far as possible, scaling back on site visits with lock down 
requirements.  Since the easing of restrictions site visits, with 
appropriate social distancing have resumed.  Increased 
number of on-line/email complaints received rather than 
telephone calls.  An enforcement ‘hot-line’ has been re-
directed through to an officer’s mobile phone.  The switch to 
digital/ home working has worked well for the enforcement 
team.  
 
Develop revised delivery plan for Local Development Plan 
review, including consultation and engagement strategies in 
line with Covid-19 restrictions. 
 

 

  

Tudalen 56



 

 
 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

FINANCE & 
DIGITAL 
SERVICES 

Summary of steps to Recover, Renew individual Council 
Services 

Customer 
Care 

Service was re-purposed to focus resources on vulnerable 
residents via the new ‘Covid’ line developed within the Council to 
support Volunteers, Vulnerable Persons, Business Grants, 
Childcare and Free School Meal Payments.  Also continued to 
operate Lifeline and Adult First Response Services, Streetcare line, 
OOHs emergency line, print, processing blue badge applications 
and responding to issues and defects raised via social media and 
email.  Staff are currently working in Ty Elai.   
 
Website and Customer Care Centre Pay it/Report it/Apply for 
it/Book it – All these services are now available except for leisure 
and sports pitch bookings as the service remains closed for the 
foreseeable future; 
 

Customer Care Telephone Services – On 13th July, the vast 
majority of all customer care telephone services were reinstated 
except for the following services which can only be accessed via 
the website, and via email – Planning, General Enquiries, 
Revenues & Benefits financial queries not associated with a debt 
recovery letter, and non-emergency Streetcare services such as 
missed collections, bulky waste collections, etc which can be 
requested online. Currently a large number of the Customer Care 
staff are undertaking Test, Track and Protect roles, and once these 
staff can be released the remainder of the services can return to 
the levels prior to the pandemic.  
 
This will include plan to ‘flex’ lines dependent on capacity and 
organisational need.  
 
Put in place interim home working solutions including piloting 
‘Connecting Wales’ a platform that will enable some (main contact 
centre) telephone services to be delivered from home by agents 
not able to attend the office. 
 
Currently looking at ways to support an assisted digital approach 
e.g. live chat and social media. 
Working with Adult Social Care to understand and scope 
opportunities for a Lifeline/First Response service to support 
shielded cohort long term as part of an assistive technology model. 
 
Seek opportunities to implement a new CRM system ahead of 
schedule.  Also investigate, trial and implement improvements in 
business processes. 

ICT The ICT Service has continued to deliver operations and wider 
business requirements as normal.  Home working has proved 
effective supported by site visits or office presence as appropriate 

Tudalen 57



 

 
 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

FINANCE & 
DIGITAL 
SERVICES 

Summary of steps to Recover, Renew individual Council 
Services 

in compliance with protective measures e.g. Ty Bronwydd Hub 3 
days per week to enable equipment handovers, cheque printing, 
etc.  
 
Key focus has been the provision of ongoing support to enable 
service continuity and recovery.  Through the deployment of digital 
solutions including collaboration tools and virtual meeting 
technologies ICT has supported 3,000 staff to work from home as 
well as SLT and elected Members to continue the Council’s key 
decision making arrangements.  The service has also supported 
digitally excluded learners by providing them with equipment 
across the HWBs.  The service has also put in place a Digital 
Platform to deliver Shielding Support to residents via WCCIS and 
the Web.  
 
The service has also worked:  

 Regionally with Powys CC to put in place an interim digital 
delivery platform solution for Contact Tracing across the 
CTM region, 

 Nationally to support the  National digital solution to deliver 
Contact Tracing across the CTM Region and Wales. 

 
Future plans include:  

 Continually monitoring the IT infrastructure to ensure that it is 
stable, meets demand and reduces avoidable contact e.g. 
implementing a single ICT Service Desk number that can be 
accessed remotely from home/any location.  

 Enabling an increasingly agile workforce, ensuring standard 
equipment, digital platforms and consistent user experience, 
irrespective of location.   

 Working with Services and Estates to assist the development 
of shared office work spaces.  

 Increasing the resilience of key systems from the Council’s 
primary Datacentre/Cloud including the migration of Email and 
Web site to the Cloud. 

 Upgrading the Service desk telephony platform to support 
remote call handling capability,  

 Enabling business processes to be undertaken effectively and 
efficiently remotely from the traditional office through a digital 
solutions. 

 Delivering the Schools HWB Digital Transformation 
Programme including Network and Wi Fi upgrades and 
equipment to digitally excluded learners. 

 Establishing appropriate sharing and support methods in the 
delivery of Subject Access Requests (SARs) that are highly 

Tudalen 58



 

 
 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

FINANCE & 
DIGITAL 
SERVICES 

Summary of steps to Recover, Renew individual Council 
Services 

sensitive and often require face to face contact with clients to 
explain information and provide support.  Also, Police access 
to social care information to assist in investigations.  It is 
expected that over time, requests for information will increase. 

 

Accountancy 
and 
Performance 

Continuing business as usual in respect of corporate financial and 
performance management arrangements to enable compliance 
with legislative requirements, demonstrate continued 
accountability for the Council’s performance and support internal 
service management processes.  This includes the Council’s 
accounts, Treasury Review, risk and performance reporting.  In 
2020/21 the main focus will be Service Recovery with Financial 
Management and Planning arrangements maintained to ensure the 
continued financial stability of the Council. 
 
The Service will ensure that the Council can maximise funding 
through claims to WG in respect of Covid-19 and will support any 
other key arrangements that will enable the Council to claim for the 
financial implications e.g. (CTRS increase in demand/lower Council 
Tax collection rates/furlough).  Timescales to be confirmed 
following dialogue with Welsh Government.  
 
Re-start Internal Audit function and related governance in July, 
including agreeing the 2021 Audit Plan and Audit Committee.  
 
Mid-year Budget Review and updated interim MTFP scheduled for 
September. 
 

Pensions, 
Procurement 
& 
Transactional 
Services 

The majority of functions within Pensions, Procurement and 
Transactional Services, have continued to operate.  Management 
of key activities and business critical support functions has been 
maintained.  This includes processing benefits, which has seen an 
increased number of claims as a result of Covid-19.  In addition, 
critical Covid-19 support has been provided including validation 
and payment of Welsh Government Grants and Rate Relief for 
Businesses, Free School Meals payments, ensuring appropriate 
furlough claims are submitted and providing Grants arising from 
recent flooding to residents and businesses on behalf of the 
Council and WG.  The service is also sourcing and procuring 
suitable PPE for use across the Council.  
A significant digital shift for both staff and customers has been 
necessary which has presented an opportunity to build and 
enhance our digital and self service capability.  
It is expected that recovery impact will be minimal for the services 
below. 

Tudalen 59



 

 
 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

FINANCE & 
DIGITAL 
SERVICES 

Summary of steps to Recover, Renew individual Council 
Services 

 Revenues & Benefits will liaise with the contact centre to 
enable more telephone payment transactions; Reintroduce 
inspections for domestic and non-domestic properties to ensure 
the integrity of reductions/reliefs and the tax base in general; 
Initiate appropriate debt recovery proceedings and reinstate 
appropriate recovery actions i.e. enforcement agents; Monitor 
the Council Tax Relief (CTR) caseload/expenditure and report 
to WG, ensuring the Council is not detrimentally financially 
affected by the increase in demand.  

 Corporate Fraud will support new service delivery models that 
ensure the Council is protected against emerging risks and 
exploitation, and continue to share intelligence with relevant 
Government departments on associated risks e.g. business 
grants. 

 Payroll & Payments will progress the new HR/Payroll system, 
improving existing digital and self-serve offerings and develop 
the ‘Intelligence Scanning Software’ process to accept all digital 
invoices. 

 Pensions will recommence formal Pension Fund Governance 
arrangements and review the requirements for ‘face to face’ 
support. 

 Procurement will continue to ensure sufficient and appropriate 
PPE is available and support Council Services with the review 
of contracts as required.  

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE 

Summary of steps to Recover, Renew individual Council 
Services 

Corporate 
Estates 

Currently delivering support service needs, providing access to 
specialist kit/spaces to allow projects to be delivered.  
Identifying additional maintenance requirements across the 
portfolio to assist in the fight against Covid-19.  Supporting the 
reopening of Council offices.  
Supporting the reopening of Schools and changes to school 
buildings/arrangements following the recent WG announcement 
re school reopening and also planning for the re- occupation of 
Ty Trevithick.  This will include reduced capacity and 
introducing flexible, multi- functional meeting/project areas and 
smaller breakout pods.  
Produced a Manager’s Guide for the reoccupation of Buildings 
to be applied when planning to re-establish services within 
Council Buildings. 
 
Plans include 

Tudalen 60

http://rctinform/en/supportservices/performancemanagement/servicerecoveryplans/relateddocuments/managersguidetoreoccupybuildings1.pdf


 

 
 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE 

Summary of steps to Recover, Renew individual Council 
Services 

 Developing guidance for staff to support the safe viewing of 
empty and occupied external buildings with the aim of 
recommencing site visits, when safe to do so. 

 Conducting a full asset review to ascertain current/future 
asset requirements  

 Resuming normal search services, including Con 29 
searches. 

 Further developing the use of digital working practices within 
Corporate Estates including design, mapping and energy 
efficiency   

 

Human 
Resources 

HR has been providing core services remotely where possible.  
Business processes e.g. Absence Management and 
Recruitment and Selection are being reviewed in the light of 
Covid-19.  Backlogs from processes impacted by Covid are 
currently being addressed.  
 
Occupational Health Unit staff have been working with UHB to 
provide telephone support to shielded residents.  Health 
Surveillance is currently suspended.  Clinical OHU staff are 
providing virtual clinical assessments.  Appropriate 
Building/Clinical and Personal Safety measures are being out in 
place.  
 
Plans are being developed 
• To hold a limited number of face to face appointments for 

specific circumstances and following initial virtual 
assessments 

• Restart Health Surveillance 
• Enhance the existing Well-being support to staff and 

Managers. 
 
Stay Well at Work service is currently providing virtual 
appointments and is working with ICT to trial video consultation 
software for physiotherapy, counselling and nursing referrals. 
Business engagement, events and SME Health Surveillance 
will also be restarted virtually as businesses reopen. 
 
Education, Employment & Training  
Majority of functions continue to take place remotely including 
contact with school groups, Children Looked After (CLA), 
Apprentices and Graduates.  CLA working with the team have 
been provided with ‘my-fi’, to enable them to remain in contact 
and undertake any necessary training.  Limited physical 
meetings will be reintroduced for CLA where virtual contact 
method are not possible/appropriate.  Resources has been 

Tudalen 61



 

 
 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE 

Summary of steps to Recover, Renew individual Council 
Services 

revised to provide online Careers advice to schools for Gatsby 
benchmarks.  Service is also  
Revising the delivery methods for Induction, Staff and 
Management Training and Development to enable online 
delivery. 
Proceeding with new Apprenticeship & Graduate Recruitment 
Programme, with launch plans for a further programme being 
developed.  
Planning an online careers fair for the Autumn and work 
ongoing with IT to test live broadcasting for larger events. 

Democratic 
Services and 
Communications 

All aspects of the service have continued remotely, making the 
best use of all the digital options available.  Recovery will see an 
increase in other services returning to a new normal and 
Democratic Services will need to meet the demands and 
expectations to support this increased activity, using digital 
approaches, ensuring this is inclusive and developed alongside 
elected Members, residents and stakeholders. 
 
Decision making and governance continues to operate in 
compliance with the Council’s Constitution although no 
Committees met in the early stages of lockdown.  Council 
Cabinet, Planning and the Overview and Scrutiny Committee are 
now operating virtually.  Preparations are being made to hold a 
further range of ‘virtual’ committees via Zoom to enable the 
Council’s democratic processes to continue until the webcasting 
provision is available for Members in Autumn 2020.  Zoom is also 
providing the opportunity to make recordings of meetings 
available to residents via the Council’s web pages to encourage 
public participation until the webcasting facility is available.  
 
Providing opportunities for all elected Members to have training 
on virtual platforms to enable them to better access, understand 
and increase the use of technology that is in place to manage the 
Council’s business.  
 
In the coming months the service will put in place guidance to 
support services in virtual public engagement and provide and 
develop alternative inclusive approaches to those residents who 
are not online.  This will be tested and evaluated prior to 
introduction across all services. 

Legal Services Legal Services have continued to operate and function 
throughout the Lockdown arising from Covid-19 and staff are 
staying abreast of the key changes in emergency legislation 
being produced as a result of the virus.  
 
The Legal Service Delivery Plan for 2020/21 has not been hugely 
impacted by Covid-19 and many of the priorities originally 

Tudalen 62



 

 
 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE 

Summary of steps to Recover, Renew individual Council 
Services 

identified remain valid and necessary.  However, the current 
situation has required a ‘fast track’ approach to these priorities 
and to develop new ways of working. 
 
Childcare legal support has experienced a high demand 
throughout the lockdown.  Demand for other legal services is 
returning to pre Covid-19 levels following an initial fall.  The 
service will be considering the potential future demand for Legal 
services.  This will need to be accompanied by a review of 
capacity needed to meet this demand and ensure appropriate 
legal advice is available in a post-Pandemic environment.  In 
particular it is expected that demand for legal advice will increase 
in e.g. Public Health, Education and Social care.  The Council’s 
Recovery Plans will be reviewed to establish any additional 
demands arising from other services.  
 
Future plans include 
• Investigating and scoping a replacement for the current 

Legal Case Management System to meet the Council’s 
Digital Programme, support modern working practices 
and facilitate paperless and remote working.  

• Reviewing the service’s approach to collaborative 
working.  Issues that have previously prevented 
collaborative working, have in part, been overcome with 
the necessity to work remotely, and the perspective of 
potential participating parties may have changed.   

• Identifying services that can be provided online and 
taking steps to progress this. 

 

 

Tudalen 63



Tudalen wag



RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2019/20  

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM 4 

30th July 2020 
COUNCIL PERFORMANCE REPORT – 

31st March 2020 – YEAR END  

REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR DEMOCRATIC SERVICES & 
COMMUNICATIONS

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

To introduce the Year-End Council Performance Report (to 31st March 2020). The Overview 
& Scrutiny Committee is considering this matter as part of the temporary arrangements set 
in place to progress and establish virtual committee arrangements.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that Members: 
2.1 Scrutinise the Council’s financial and operational performance position as at 31st 

March 2020 (Year-End).  

2.2 Consider whether they wish to scrutinise in greater depth any matters contained in 
the report.  

3. YEAR-END (QUARTER 4) PERFORMANCE REPORT

3.1 The Council’s Year-End Performance Report (to 31st March 2020) was presented 

to the Cabinet meeting of the 28th July 2020 and is replicated for the Overview & 

Scrutiny Committee’s review at Appendix 1.  

3.2 The report contains revenue and capital budget performance; Treasury 

Management prudential indicators; Organisational Health information including staff 

turnover, sickness and Council strategic risks; Corporate Plan priority action plan 

updates (including investment updates and the cross cutting theme of ‘Living Within 

Our Means’); and other national measures and target setting.    

3.3 With regard to the Corporate Plan priority up dates, an overall summary of 

performance measure results as at 31st March 2020 are set out in Table 1. 

Tudalen 65

Agendwm 4



Table 1 – Corporate Plan performance measure results (as at 31st March 2020) 

Total 
no. of 

PIs 

Total no. of 
PIs 

reported 
this Qtr 

Total no. of PIs 
reported this 

Qtr with a 
Target 

On Target 
Not on 
Target 

Within 5% 
of Target 

No. % No. % No. % 

98 90 71 46 65 16 22 9 13 

 

3.4  Members will note that sixteen Corporate Plan performance measures were ‘Not 

on Target’ as at 31st March 2020 and are set out in Table 2.  

3.5  In addition, sixteen national measures do not form part of the Council’s Corporate 
Plan and are excluded from the analysis above. As at Quarter 4, twelve measures 
were reported with a target, of which, nine were ‘On Target’, 2 were ‘Within 5% of 
the target’ and 1 was ‘Not on Target’. The measure reported ‘Not on Target’ is 
shown in Table 3 below. 

 
  Table 3 – National Measure ‘Not on Target’ (as at 31st March 2020) 
 

Performance Measure 

2018/19 2019/20 

Quarter 4 Comments Qtr 4 
Actual 

Target 
Qtr 4 

Actual 

% of child assessments 

completed on time 

97 98 88.79 Performance has dropped during the 

quarter & previous issues regarding 

staffing in our key assessment teams 

has impacted on overall performance 

for this indicator. Monitoring 

arrangements regarding progress of 

assessments in key teams will be 

strengthened with the expectation that 

this will have a positive impact on 

performance but there is some 

anticipation that the Covid-19 pandemic 

may have an adverse impact on 

performance over the short to medium 

term. 

 

Tudalen 66



Table 2 – Corporate Plan Performance Measures ‘Not on Target’ (as at 31st March 2020) 
T

h
e
m

e
 

PI Description 

2018/19 2019/20 

Quarter 4 Comments Qtr 4 
Actual Target 

Qtr 4 
Actual 

E
C

O
N

O
M

Y
 

No. of additional housing 
units provided during the 
year  

386 500 452 The 452 dwellings completed during the year is a substantial rate of 
completion, although not quite reaching the target of 500. There 
remain levels of constraint to the development of the remaining 
allocations in the LDP, giving further weight to the need to continue 
with the revision of the LDP. 

The rate of registered 
enterprises /business births 
(start-ups) 

34.2** 
(2,935) 

>34.2 27.1 This data is derived from the Office of National Statistics (ONS). Whilst 
there is a notable decline in business births and deaths and we have 
not achieved our optimistic targets, there is a positive increase in the 
number of registered businesses within RCT for this reported year. 
 

The rate of registered 
enterprises /business deaths 
(closures) 

8.9** 
(765) 

<8.9 18.0 

No. of empty properties 
brought back into use per 
annum 

213 190 179 Performance for the year was slightly below target due to a delay in 
the launch of the Valleys Taskforce Empty Homes Grant Scheme, 
which led to a delay in Grants being approved between July and 
October 2019.  

% attendance at PRU/EOTAS 
provision 

80.2 >80.2 74.12 Due to differing return dates for Primary and Secondary - this figure 
comprises of Ty Gwyn, home tuition and group tuition to 24/05/19 and 
year round attendance at Tai Education Centre. Ty Gwyn attendance 
was particularly poor this year and therefore led to the missed target. 
Focused work took place at Ty Gwyn last year and will continue this 
year. 

Number of economically 
inactive, or unemployed, adults 
entering employment as a 
result of 'Communities4Work' 
(C4W) intervention 

50 48 44 Target for 2019/20 reduced following Welsh Government national 
review, performance is reported against the revised target. The DWP 
focus has now changed from supporting both adults and young people 
to just focussing on adults. This has reduced the number of adults 
referred to the local authority and has impacted on our outputs. Welsh 
Government are aware of this position. 

 

T
udalen 67



T
h

e
m

e
 

PI Description 

2018/19 2019/20 

Quarter 4 Comments 
Qtr 4 

Actual Target 
Qtr 4 

Actual 

E
C

O
N

O
M

Y
 

Number of adults gaining a 
vocational qualification – 
Communities for Work Plus  

N/A 450 303 As reported in the previous quarter, the change in funding has 
impacted on our delivery against target set earlier in the year.  Other 
CfW+ and Legacy clients gaining a qualification through the 
community learning grant totals 300 for the year, with 507 
qualifications gained. These are reported separately to WG and the 
LA so are no longer included in CfW+ reported figures 

Staying Well @ work project: 
Participants employed, 
including self-employed, with 
work limiting health condition 
or disability 

N/A 614 147 Delayed commencement of delivery of this project impacted on 
performance earlier in the year. Performance has improved following 
WEFO review of referral criteria as reported in Q3, which widened the 
scope to include preventative treatment. However, WEFO position 
has changed due to the Covid 19 pandemic and they are not able to 
consider change requests for project targets until Covid 19 conditions 
are reviewed. A project recovery plan is in place. 

Staying Well @ work project: 
Participants with a work 
limiting health condition or 
disability returning to work 
after a period of absence 

N/A 306 81 

Staying Well @ work project: 
Number of micro, small and 
medium enterprises supported 

N/A 56 41 

P
E

O
P

L
E

 

The rate of delayed transfers 
of care for social care reasons 
per 1,000 population aged 75+ 

3.43 2.80 4.52 There were 90 reported delays during 2019/20. Whilst performance 
is below target and higher than 2018/19 levels, it is better than the 
reported Welsh average (4.90). Reasons for the current delays are 
mainly attributable to home care capacity and housing supply 
pressures. The COVID-19 Pandemic outbreak in March would have 
adversely impacted on discharge timeliness from hospital. 

% of children & young 
people requiring 
intervention from statutory 
services 

30.6 30.0 41.62 Performance dropped slightly through quarter 4 and the year-end 
target has not been met. Further analysis of the data shows that of 
the 2,487 cases that progressed into Statutory Services for a more 
comprehensive assessment of needs, 1,710 (69%) did not require 
any on-going care & support and their cases were either signposted 
to the Resilient Families Service or closed. 

T
udalen 68



T
h

e
m

e
 

PI Description 

2018/19 2019/20 

Quarter 4 Comments 
Qtr 4 

Actual Target 
Qtr 4 

Actual 

P
E

O
P

L
E

 

No. of children looked after 
(CLA) 

674 674 717 The number of children looked after increased during the quarter to 
717. The number of children looked after is regularly and closely 
monitored by the Children Looked After Quality Assurance Board. A 
key action in the CLA QA Panel Work Plan is to implement a model 
of practice to support reunification and funding was obtained to 
recruit 2 social workers to support reunification work. This had been 
progressing but was halted as a consequence of the emerging 
Covid-19 crisis. Achieving reunification, wherever this is possible and 
in the best interests of the child, remains a key service priority and 
the planned work will be progressed in line with the Children's 
Services Recovery Plan. 

% of re-registrations of 
children on Local Authority 
CPR 

6.72 6.72 10.05 Slight drop in performance during Q4 but numbers of registrations & 
re-registrations have been relatively stable throughout the year. Re-
registration is monitored closely & regularly by the Cwm Taf 
Morgannwg Safeguarding Board. 

% of all care leavers who are 
in education, training or 
employment at 24 months 
after leaving care 

36.40 50.00 32.61 Performance has dropped this quarter.  31 out of 46 young people 
were not in EET 24 months after leaving care for a variety of 
reasons, for example, claiming benefits but actively job searching, 
attending university and also a reluctance by some young people to 
engage with the 16+ teams. This area will continue to be afforded a 
high priority to ensure young people have the support, and 
opportunity of support, to help them access education, training or 
employment. 

P
L

A
C

E
 Kilograms of residual waste 

generated per person 
189 <189 204 The target has not been achieved this year due to the 

unprecedented amount of unavoidable flood damage waste that was 
sent to landfill during February and March 2020 following the impacts 
of Storm Dennis. 

 
 
3.6  An analysis of 2019/20 targets has also been included within the Quarter 4 report to enable the Committee to consider this 

information, as deemed appropriate.  

T
udalen 69



 
3.7 In line with feedback from the Finance and Performance Scrutiny Committee, Table 4 below sign-posts a selection of other 

reports presented to Scrutiny Committees during Quarter 4 with the aim of providing Members with as full a picture as possible 
of scrutiny related business activity during the period in relation to the Council’s Corporate Plan priority areas. Members will 
note that the information included in Table 4 is not an exhaustive list.   

 
Table 4 – Other reports presented during Quarter 4  

Corporate Plan Priority - ECONOMY 
 

Committee Date of 
meeting 

Report 

Children and 
Young People 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

11-Mar-20 Community Wellbeing and Resilience Service and the Delivery of Early Years Services in RCT 

26-Feb-20 Impact of the work of the Central South Consortium in Schools in Rhondda Cynon Taf in the Academic 
Year 2018-2019 

Key Stage 4 and 5 Examination Results for 2019 and Final Primary and Secondary School 
Categorisation for 2019/20 (and reported to Cabinet on 13th February 2020) 

Review of Learning Support Class Provision for Pupils with Social, Emotional and Behavioural Difficulties 
(SERB) and Significant Additional Learning Needs 

Annual School Attendance Performance Report for the Academic Year 2018/19 

12-Feb-20 The Council's Future Commitment to Delivering Shared Education Advisory Services (and reported to 

Cabinet 20th February 2020)  

22-Jan-20 Perception Survey Outcomes of the Band A 21st Century Schools Investment Programme  

Annual School Exclusion Performance Report for the Academic Year 2018/19 
 

Health and 
Wellbeing 
Scrutiny 
Committee 
 

24-Feb-20 Update on the RCT Homelessness Strategy 2018-2022  

Overview of Housing First and Project Development in Rhondda Cynon Taf 

28-Jan-20 Positive Impacts on Young People Participating and Engaging with the Council’s Arts Service 

 

T
udalen 70

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/ChildrenandYoungPeopleScrutinyCommittee/2020/03/11/Reports/AgendaItem4CWRServiceDeliveryofEarlyYearsinRCT.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/ChildrenandYoungPeopleScrutinyCommittee/2020/02/26/Reports/AgendaItem5ImpactofworkofCSCinSchoolsinRCT201802019.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/ChildrenandYoungPeopleScrutinyCommittee/2020/02/26/Reports/AgendaItem5ImpactofworkofCSCinSchoolsinRCT201802019.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/ChildrenandYoungPeopleScrutinyCommittee/2020/02/26/Reports/AgendaItem6SchoolPerformanceScrutinyReort.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/ChildrenandYoungPeopleScrutinyCommittee/2020/02/26/Reports/AgendaItem6SchoolPerformanceScrutinyReort.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/ChildrenandYoungPeopleScrutinyCommittee/2020/02/26/Reports/AgendaItem7REVIEWOFLEARNINGSUPPORTCLASSPROVISION.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/ChildrenandYoungPeopleScrutinyCommittee/2020/02/26/Reports/AgendaItem7REVIEWOFLEARNINGSUPPORTCLASSPROVISION.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/ChildrenandYoungPeopleScrutinyCommittee/2020/02/26/Reports/AgendaItem8AnnualSchoolAttendancePerformanceReport.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/ChildrenandYoungPeopleScrutinyCommittee/2020/02/12/Reports/AgendaItem6ScrutinyCouncilsFutureCommitmenttoDeliveringSharedEducAdvisoryServicesFINAL.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Cabinet/2020/02/20/Reports/Item2TheCouncilsFutureCommitmenttoDeliveringSharedEducationAdvisoryServices.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Cabinet/2020/02/20/Reports/Item2TheCouncilsFutureCommitmenttoDeliveringSharedEducationAdvisoryServices.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/ChildrenandYoungPeopleScrutinyCommittee/2020/01/22/Reports/AgendaItem5PerceptionSurveyOutcomesofBandA21stCenturySchoolsInvestmentProgrammes..pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/ChildrenandYoungPeopleScrutinyCommittee/2020/01/22/Reports/AgendaItem6ExclusionsReport.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/HealthandWellbeingScrutinyCommittee/2020/02/24/Reports/AgendaItem6HWBScrutinyReportUpdateonHomelessnessStrategy240220.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/HealthandWellbeingScrutinyCommittee/2020/02/24/Reports/AgendaItem7HWBScrutinyReportHousingFirstProjects240220.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/HealthandWellbeingScrutinyCommittee/2020/01/28/Reports/AgendaItem6ArtServiceReport.pdf


 
 

Corporate Plan Priority - PEOPLE 
 

Committee Date of 
meeting 

Report 

Children and 
Young People 
Scrutiny 
Committee 
 

11-Mar-20 Progress Update: Implementation of the Accommodation and Support Strategy for Young People 16+ 
years of age Leaving Care 2019-2022 

12-Feb-20 Welsh Government Children Looked After Reduction Expectations 

Health and 
Wellbeing 
Scrutiny 
Committee 
 

24-Feb-20 Care Inspectorate Wales – Inspection of Older Adults in Rhondda Cynon Taf 

28-Jan-20 Welsh Audit Office Report on Environmental Health Services 2019 

Raising Awareness of Dementia Across Rhondda Cynon Taf 

07-Jan-20 Mental Health Awareness  

Delayed Transfers of Care  

Motor Neurone Disease (Mnd) Charter 

Cwm Taf Public 
Services Board 
Joint Overview 
and Scrutiny 
Committee  

07-Feb-20 Update Report on the Work to Date on Developing a Shared Regional (Cwm Taf Morgannwg-Wide) 
Understanding and Approach to Social Prescribing. 

(LiveLab) Work to date on tackling and mitigating the effect of Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs) in 
Cwm Taf (LiveLab) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
udalen 71

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/ChildrenandYoungPeopleScrutinyCommittee/2020/03/11/Reports/AgendaItem5ProgressUpdatedontheImplementaionoftheAccomidationStrategy16.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/ChildrenandYoungPeopleScrutinyCommittee/2020/03/11/Reports/AgendaItem5ProgressUpdatedontheImplementaionoftheAccomidationStrategy16.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/ChildrenandYoungPeopleScrutinyCommittee/2020/02/12/Reports/AgendaItem4WeshGovernmentCLAReductionExpectaions.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/HealthandWellbeingScrutinyCommittee/2020/02/24/Reports/AgendaItem5CIWScrutinyReport.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/HealthandWellbeingScrutinyCommittee/2020/01/28/Reports/AgendaItem5WalesAuditReportonEnviromentalHealthServices.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/HealthandWellbeingScrutinyCommittee/2020/01/28/Reports/AgendaItem7DementiaUpdateReport.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/HealthandWellbeingScrutinyCommittee/2020/01/07/Reports/AgendaItem3MentalHealthReport.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/HealthandWellbeingScrutinyCommittee/2020/01/07/Reports/AgendaItem4DTOCreport.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/HealthandWellbeingScrutinyCommittee/2020/01/07/Reports/AgendaItem5MNDReport.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/CwmTafPublicServicesBoardJointOverviewandScrutinyCommittee/2020/02/07/Reports/Item6SocialPrescribingreport.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/CwmTafPublicServicesBoardJointOverviewandScrutinyCommittee/2020/02/07/Reports/Item6SocialPrescribingreport.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/CwmTafPublicServicesBoardJointOverviewandScrutinyCommittee/2020/02/07/Reports/Item5ScrutinyReportLIVELAB.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/CwmTafPublicServicesBoardJointOverviewandScrutinyCommittee/2020/02/07/Reports/Item5ScrutinyReportLIVELAB.pdf


Corporate Plan Priority - PLACE 

 

Committee Date of 
meeting 

Report 

Public Service 
Delivery, 
Communities and 
Prosperity 
Scrutiny 
Committee 
 

27-Feb-20 South Wales Parking Group (SWPG) Update  

16-Jan-20 Recycling in Communal Areas; Working Group 

Priority Investment Update – Parks, Play Areas and Pitches 

 

 

 

 

********************************** 

T
udalen 72

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/PublicServiceDeliveryCommunitiesandProsperityScrutinyCommittee/2020/02/27/Reports/Item4SouthWalesParkingGroup.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/PublicServiceDeliveryCommunitiesandProsperityScrutinyCommittee/2020/01/16/Reports/AgendaItem3RecyclingInCommunalAreasCabinetResponseReport.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/PublicServiceDeliveryCommunitiesandProsperityScrutinyCommittee/2020/01/16/Reports/AgendaItem6PARKSPLAYAREASANDPITCHES.pdf


RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

CABINET 

28th July 2020 

COUNCIL PERFORMANCE REPORT – 31st March 2020 (Quarter 4/Year End) 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND DIGITAL SERVICES IN 

DISCUSSION WITH THE RELEVANT PORTFOLIO HOLDER (CLLR NORRIS) 

AUTHOR: Paul Griffiths, Service Director – Finance and Improvement 

Services (01443) 680609  

1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

1.1 This report provides Members with an overview of the Council’s 
performance, both from a financial and operational perspective, for the 
financial year ended 31st March 2020.  

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 

It is recommended that the Cabinet: 

2.1 Note the unprecedented context the 2019/20 year-end report is set within, 
in respect of Storm Dennis and the start of the COVID-19 pandemic.  

Revenue 

2.2 Note and agree the General Fund revenue position of the Council as at the 
31st March 2020 (Section 2 of the Executive Summary) and note the 
incorporation of additional one-off Welsh Government funding to support 
winter and emergency care measures across the health and social care 
system.  

2.3 Note the net financial impact of Storm Dennis, incorporated into the 
2019/20 year-end position.  

Capital 

2.4 Note the capital outturn position of the Council as at 31st March 2020 
(Sections 3a – e of the Executive Summary). 

Appendix 1

Tudalen 73



2.5 Note the details of the Treasury Management Prudential Indicators as at 
the 31st March 2020 (Section 3f of the Executive Summary). 

 
 

Corporate Plan Priorities 

 
2.6 Note the year-end position regarding progress made against the agreed 

Corporate Plan priorities (Sections 5 a – d of the Executive Summary), 
Other National Measures (Section 5e of the Executive Summary) and 
comparison of 2019/20 targets set against prior year and ‘All Wales 
Average’ performance information (Section 5f of the Executive Summary).  

 

 
3.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
3.1  To agree the Council’s financial and operational performance position as at 

31st March 2020, in line with the requirements set out in its Constitution, 
and in doing so enable elected Members and other stakeholders to 
scrutinise the performance of the Council.  

 

 

4.0 BACKGROUND 

 
4.1  This report provides Members with a year-end statement of the Council's 

financial and operational performance position for the financial year ending 
the 31st March 2020.  

 
4.2 The aim of the report is to bring together the Council’s performance into an 

Executive Summary and make available more detailed information to the 
reader through electronic links. Information contained in the Executive 
Summary includes financial data and progress against our Corporate Plan 
priorities, and exceptions are highlighted within the detailed sections to 
ensure that elected Members and other readers are able to quickly identify 
the key issues.  
 

4.3 More specifically for this year-end report are the unprecedented events that 
have occurred during the last quarter of the financial year: firstly, Storm 
Dennis in February 2020 that caused significant damage to many 
communities across Rhondda Cynon Taf and was by far the most 
destructive weather event the area has experienced for a generation; and 
secondly, the start of the COVID-19 pandemic in March 2020. Further 
information is set out on these areas in the Executive Summary.  
 

4.4 Looking ahead, work has begun across all services to compile Service 
Recovery Plans, setting out the Council’s priorities for 2020/21 in line with 
the new Corporate Plan “Making a Difference” 2020-2024. It is anticipated 
that the outcome of this work will form the basis of quarterly Performance 

Tudalen 74



Reports over the next 12 months, these being more action focussed than 
performance indicator focussed, to ‘tell the story’ of the Council’s work to 
recover, and support communities and businesses in their recovery, from 
this unprecedented event. This approach will ensure the continuation of 
regular updates on the delivery of priorities and importantly provide the 
opportunity for the Council to be held to account for its performance.  
 

4.5 Table 1 below summarises the performance measures within each 
Corporate Plan priority area as well as the cross-cutting priority of ‘Living 
Within Our Means’.  
 
Table 1 – Summary of Corporate Plan performance measures  
 

Priority Area 

No. of 

Measures 

in Priority 

No. of measures reported / with a target1 

Quarter 

1  

Quarter 

2 

Quarter 

3 

Quarter 

4 

Economy 51  20 / 5 32 / 12 37 / 23 47 / 32 

People 23 21 / 21  23 / 23 23 / 22 22 / 19 

Place 16 8 / 8 8 / 8 10 / 10 13 / 13 

Living Within 

Our Means 
8 5 / 5  6 / 6 7 / 6 8 / 7 

Total 98 54 / 39 69 / 49 77 / 61 90 / 71  

 
4.6  In addition to the measures in Table 1, there are a number of national 

measures that do not form part of the Council’s Corporate Plan. These are 
set out in Table 2 below.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                            
1 The Quarter 3 Performance Report anticipated that the number of Corporate Plan priority 
performance measures ‘reported / with a target’ in quarter 4 would be 93 / 86 respectively. 
However, the service disruption as a result of Storm Dennis and COVID-19 has meant that year-
end performance results for a number of measures are not comparable to the targets set at the 
start of the year; accordingly, these measures have been reported ‘for information only’ and the 
number of performance measures ‘reported / with a target’ has been revised to 90 / 71 respectively.  
 

Tudalen 75



 Table 2 – Other National Measures   
 

Other 

National 

Indicators 

No. of 

Measures  

No. of measures reported / with a target 

Quarter 1 
Quarter 

2 

Quarter 

3 

Quarter 

4 

162 7 / 7 8 / 8 10 / 10 13 / 12 

 
 

5.0 YEAR-END REPORT 
   

5.1  The year-end report is attached and comprises:  
 

 Executive Summary – setting out, at a glance, the overall performance 
of the Council at year-end;  
 

 Revenue Monitoring – sections 2a – e setting out the detailed year-
end financial spend against budget across our Revenue Budget with 
exceptions highlighted;  

 

 Capital Monitoring – sections 3a – e setting out year-end capital 
spend across our Capital Programme with exceptions highlighted and 
section 3f covering Prudential Indicators; 

 

 Organisational Health – includes year-end information on turnover, 
sickness absence, organisational health related investment areas and 
Council strategic risks; and 

 

 Corporate Plan / Other National Measures – includes:  
 

o   Three action plans (sections 5a – c) setting out year-end 
performance and progress against measures and actions across 
each of the three Corporate Plan priorities. An electronic link has 
been included within the Executive Summary setting out those 
performance measures ‘Not on Target’ i.e. noted as ‘Red’ 
performance measures.  

 

o   Performance measures in respect of the ‘Living Within Our Means’ 
cross-cutting priority (Section 5d).  

 

o   Other National Measures (Section 5e).  
 

o   Target setting (Section 5f).  

                                            
2 Other National Indicators – 16 national measures in place and a total of 13 to be reported at year-
end. Those not being report are: ‘The number of working day/shifts per fulltime equivalent (FTE) 
local authority employee lost due to sickness absence‘ (due to insufficient assurance that the 
Council’s information fully complies with the national definition and therefore the Council has 
developed a local measure for this area, the information from which is included within this Report), 
and the ‘% of pupils assessed in Welsh at the end of the foundation phase‘ and ‘% of year 11 pupils 
studying Welsh (first language)‘ as these indicators have been withdrawn nationally by Welsh 
Government. 

Tudalen 76



6.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 

 
6.1  The Council’s Performance Report provides an update on financial and 

operational performance in line with its Constitution, statutory duties and 
locally determined arrangements that have previously been formally 
approved, where required. As a result, no Equality Impact Assessment is 
deemed required for the purposes of this report.  

 

 

7.0 CONSULTATION  

 
7.1  Following consideration by Cabinet, this Report will be presented to the 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee as a temporary or interim reporting 
arrangement as part of the Council’s recovery from COVID-19. As recovery 
arrangements are developed further, the scrutiny of future Performance 
Reports will revert to the Finance and Performance Scrutiny Committee.  

 
 

8.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

8.1  There are no financial implications as a result of the recommendations set 
out in the report. 

 
 

9.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED  

9.1  There are no legal implications as a result of the recommendations set out 
in the report. 

 
 

10.0  LINKS TO CORPORATE AND NATIONAL PRIORITIES AND THE WELL-

BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT 

 
10.1  The operational performance information included within this report has 

been aligned to the priorities within the Council’s Corporate Plan and 
demonstrates the progress Council services are making toward the delivery 
of these priorities.  These priorities were adopted as the Council’s Well-
being Objectives at a meeting of Cabinet on 2 November 2016, alongside 
the Council’s Policy statement, which set out how the Council would 
respond to and apply its legal duties in respect of the Well-being of Future 
Generations Act. 

 
10.2  The Sustainable Development principles (i.e. the 5 Ways of Working) were 

considered as part of the development of the action plans supporting each 
of the Council’s priorities of Economy, People and Place. These were 
presented to Council on 31st July 2019  as part of the Council’s Corporate 
Performance Report.  

 
 

Tudalen 77

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Cabinet/2016/11/02/Reports/AgendaItem8WellbeingActCouncilsResponse.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Council/2019/07/31/Reports/Item13TheCouncilsCorporatePerformanceReport201920.pdf


11.0 CONCLUSION 

 
11.1  This report sets out the financial and operational performance of the 

Council at Quarter 4 2019/20, that is, 31st March 2020.  
 
11.2 The year-end revenue budget position is a £0.289M overspend and 

represents an improved position compared to the projections reported at 
quarters 2 and 3 during the year. Members will note that the position 
incorporates significant additional cost pressures, particularly in respect of 
adult social care and the recovery costs from Storm Dennis, as well as 
accompanying one-off Welsh Government funding to partly off-set these. It 
will be critically important that additional funding to address key cost 
pressures remains in place for 2020/21 and beyond, together with support 
to enable the Council to tackle the unprecedented impact of COVID-19 on 
communities across Rhondda Cynon Taf.  

 
11.3  Capital investment as at 31st March 2020 totalled £121M and is supporting 

visible improvements to infra-structure and assets across the County 
Borough.  

 
11.4  Performance across the three Corporate Plan priorities during the year was 

positive overall, with some timescales revised and specific performance 
indicator results reported ‘for information only’ due to the impact of Storm 
Dennis and the start of the COVID-19 pandemic.  

 

 

Other Information:- 

Relevant Scrutiny Committee: Overview and Scrutiny Committee  

Contact Officer: Paul Griffiths  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 78



 
 

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 

 

AS AMENDED BY 

 

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 

 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

 

28th July 2020 

 

COUNCIL PERFORMANCE REPORT – 31st March 2020 (Quarter 4/Year-End) 

 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND DIGITAL SERVICES IN 

DISCUSSION WITH THE RELEVANT PORTFOLIO HOLDER (CLLR NORRIS) 
 

Item:   

 

Background Papers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Officer to contact: Paul Griffiths  

 

 

 

Tudalen 79



COUNCIL PERFORMANCE REPORT 

QUARTER 4 2019/20 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Contents 

Section 1 – INTRODUCTION  

 

Section 2 – REVENUE BUDGET  

Revenue Budget Performance – more detailed breakdowns are included in the 
following sections:  

 

 2a Education and Inclusion Services;   

 2b Community and Children’s Services;  

 2c Chief Executive;  

 2d Prosperity, Development & Frontline Services; and 

 2e Authority Wide Budgets.  
 

Earmark reserve update – Section 2f provides a breakdown of expenditure against 
service areas. 
 

Section 3 – CAPITAL PROGRAMME   

Capital programme budget – more detailed breakdowns are included in the following 
sections:  

 

 3a  Chief Executive;  

 3b  Prosperity, Development & Frontline Services;  

 3c Education and Inclusion Services; 

 3d  Community and Children’s Services; and 

 3e  Capital Programme Funding.  
 

Prudential Indicators – a detailed breakdown is included in Section 3f.   

Section 4 – ORGANISATIONAL HEALTH  

 Turnover; 

 Sickness Absence;  

 Organisation Health related investment areas; and 

 Council Strategic Risks.  

Section 5 – CORPORATE PLAN / OTHER NATIONAL MEASURES  

Corporate Plan progress updates – Quarter 4 position statements are included in the 
following sections:  

 

 5a – Economy; 

 5b – People; 

 5c – Place;  

 5d - Living Within Our Means;   

 Overall summary of Corporate Plan performance indicators;  

 5e – Other National Measures; and 

 5f – Target Setting.  

Tudalen 80



Section 1 – INTRODUCTION  
 
The Executive Summary aims to bring together and summarise the Council’s financial 

and operational performance position as at 31st March 2020 and is set in the context 

of Storm Dennis, by far the most destructive weather event the area has experienced 

for a generation, and also the start of the COVID-19 pandemic.  

 

The impact of both events are unprecedented: Storm Dennis being significant in terms 

of service disruption, damage to infrastructure and causing adverse financial and 

performance implications in 2019/20; and COVID-19, due to national lockdown 

measures becoming effective from 23rd March 2020, Council services have been 

required to operate with reduced resources, providing different levels of provision and 

in some cases temporarily suspending services, and the resulting additional cost 

implications and income loss in 2019/20 that will become much more significant in 

2020/21 and potentially beyond, with funding solutions continuing to be developed 

with Welsh Government.    

 

Where appropriate, additional information has been included within the Executive 

Summary to provide further context of the impact these two events have had on the 

Council’s financial and service performance results for 2019/20.  

 

Throughout the Summary electronic links have been included that enable the reader 
to access more detailed information, as required.  
 
 

Section 2 – REVENUE BUDGET   
 

Revenue Budget Performance  

 

 2019/20 – as at 31st March 2020 

Service Area  

Full Year 

Budget 

£M 

Full Year 

Expenditure  

£M 

Variance 

Over / (Under) 

£M 

Education & Inclusion Services 
(2a)  

179.240 179.135 (0.105) 

Community & Children’s 
Services (2b)  

152.986 153.543 0.557* 

Chief Executive (2c) 25.921 25.614 (0.307) 

Prosperity, Development & 
Frontline Services (2d) 

56.864 56.936 0.072 

Sub Total 415.011 415.228 0.217 

Authority Wide Budgets (2e)  68.458 68.530 0.072 

Grand Total 483.469 483.758 0.289 

 
* Includes additional one-off Welsh Government funding to support the delivery of 
urgent and emergency care services in line with the priorities identified for the winter, 

Tudalen 81

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QuarterlyPerformanceReport1920/Qtr41920/Section2aEducationQ4.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QuarterlyPerformanceReport1920/Qtr41920/Section2aEducationQ4.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QuarterlyPerformanceReport1920/Qtr41920/Section2bCOMMQ419.20002.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QuarterlyPerformanceReport1920/Qtr41920/Section2bCOMMQ419.20002.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QuarterlyPerformanceReport1920/Qtr41920/Section2cChExecsQ419.20.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QuarterlyPerformanceReport1920/Qtr41920/Section2dPDFLServQ419.20.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QuarterlyPerformanceReport1920/Qtr41920/Section2dPDFLServQ419.20.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QuarterlyPerformanceReport1920/Qtr41920/Section2eAuthWideQ419.2011.6.20.pdf


amounting to £10Million across Wales and announced on 1st October 2019. The 
specific amount allocated to Rhondda Cynon Taf Council is £1.189M.  
 
 

Key Revenue Budget variances at year-end  

 Education and Inclusion Services 
 
Education and Inclusion Services 

o Education Other than at School (£0.183M overspend);  
o Nursery & Early Years (£0.226M underspend); and 
o Group Directorate (£0.071M underspend). 

 

 Community and Children’s Services  
 
ADULT SERVICES 

o Long Term Care & Support (£0.165M overspend); 
o Commissioned Services (£2.116M overspend);  
o Provider Services (£0.282M overspend);  
o Short Term Intervention Services (£0.849M underspend);  
o Fairer Charging (£0.232M overspend); and  
o Management, Safeguarding & Support Services (£0.077M overspend).  

 
CHILDREN SERVICES 

o Safeguarding & Support (including Children Looked After) (£1.010M 
overspend);  

o Early Intervention (£0.556M underspend); 
o Cwm Taff Youth Offending Service (£0.128M underspend);and 
o Intensive Intervention (£1.068M underspend). 

 
TRANSFORMATION  

o Regional Training Unit (£0.169M underspend); and  
o Group & Transformation Management (£0.235M underspend). 

 
PUBLIC HEALTH, PROTECTION & COMMUNITY SERVICES  

o Public Protection (£0.186M underspend); 
o Communities & Well-being (£0.164M underspend); and  
o Leisure, Parks & Countryside and Community Facilities (£0.136M 

overspend).  
 

 Prosperity, Development & Frontline Services  
 
FRONTLINE SERVICES  

o Highways Management (£0.184M underspend); 
o Transportation (£0.290M underspend);  
o Strategic Projects (£0.114M underspend); 
o Street Cleansing (£0.118M overspend); 
o Facilities Cleaning (£0.117M underspend); 
o Waste Services (£0.603M overspend); 
o Fleet Management (£0.058M overspend); and  
o Group Directorate (£0.058M underspend). 

 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 82

https://gov.wales/ps30-million-support-health-and-social-care-services-winter


 Chief Executive 
 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
o Legal Services (£0.111M underspend); and 
o Financial & Digital Services (£0.134M underspend). 

 

 Authority Wide Budgets  
 
o Miscellaneous (£0.743M overspend, of which £0.565M relates to Storm 

Dennis); and 
o Council Tax Reduction Scheme (£0.712M underspend). 
 

The expenditure incurred by the Council to respond to the short term impact of 
Storm Dennis (for example, providing hardship payments to those residents and 
businesses flooded, clearing debris from highways, pavements, footpaths and 
parks, initial repairs to roads and inspections of bridges, culverts and river walls 
etc.,) has been accounted for within Authority Wide Budgets together with the 
funding the Council applied for and received from Welsh Government through its 
Emergency Financial Assistance Scheme (EFAS). Table 1 sets out a summary 
of response costs incurred by the Council and the Welsh Government EFAS 
funding received.  
 
Table 1 – Storm Dennis response costs incurred and Welsh Government funding 
received  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
In respect of the medium to long term impact of Storm Dennis, the Council is 
progressing the assessment of damage to its infrastructure, which at present is 
estimated to be in excess of £60M. Discussions are on-going with Welsh 
Government and the UK Government in this regard.  

 

 

Earmark Reserve Update   

 

 A breakdown of full year expenditure against approved earmark reserves for 

Service Areas can be viewed at Section 2f by clicking here.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                            
3 General Fund allocation - as approved by Records of Urgent Decision of the Leader of the Council on 
17th February 2020 (£1M) and 21st February 2020 (£0.500M).  

Storm Dennis 
Total 

£ 

Total Cost to Council  3,762,168 

Less EFAS Grant (1,696,913) 

Net Cost to Council 2,065,255 

General Fund allocation3 ( 1,500,000) 

Balance unfunded  565,255 

Tudalen 83

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QuarterlyPerformanceReport1920/Qtr41920/Section2fEMRPosition.pdf


Section 3 – CAPITAL PROGRAMME 

The immediate implications of COVID-19 necessitated avoiding all non-essential 
contact with others from 16th March 2020 and an initial 3 week lockdown from 23rd 
March 2020. The Council took immediate steps to comply with this to ensure the 
safety of Council staff and contractors.  
 
Although the necessary steps taken resulted in some schemes not progressing as 
originally planned to the 31st March 2020, there has been no significant adverse 
impacts in terms of progress. During this period, the Council and its contractors have 
worked together and are putting in place appropriate arrangements to enable works to 
resume as soon as it is safe to do so in 2020/21.  

 

Capital Programme Budget  

 

Service Area  

2019/20 

as at 31st March 2020 

Actual Expenditure   

£M 

Chief Executive (3a)  6.397 

Prosperity, Development & Frontline Services (3b) 77.168 

Education & Inclusion Services (3c) 27.884 

Community & Children’s Services (3d) 9.835 

Total 121.284 

 

 

Key Capital Variances at year-end   

 

 Re-profiling of a number of projects to reflect changes in the total cost of schemes 

and revised delivery timescales.  

 

 Grant approvals introduced into the Capital Programme: Welsh Government (WG) 

Targeted Regeneration Investment (TRI) Programme (£1.540M); WG Local 

Transport Fund (£1.368M); WG Local Road Refurbishment Grant (£1.261M); WG 

Capital Funding Towards School Maintenance Budgets (£3.460M); WG Hwb in 

Schools Infrastructure Grant (£2.619M); and Intermediate Care Fund (£1.246M).  

 

For information on how the Capital Programme is funded see section 3e by clicking 

here.  

Prudential Indicators  

For a detailed breakdown of Prudential Indicators, see section 3f by clicking here.  

Tudalen 84

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QuarterlyPerformanceReport1920/Qtr41920/CapitalSection3a.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QuarterlyPerformanceReport1920/Qtr41920/CapitalSection3b.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QuarterlyPerformanceReport1920/Qtr41920/CapitalSection3c.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QuarterlyPerformanceReport1920/Qtr41920/CapitalSection3d.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QuarterlyPerformanceReport1920/Qtr41920/CapitalSection3e.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QuarterlyPerformanceReport1920/Qtr41920/Section3fPrudIndpd1219.20.pdf


 

Section 4 – ORGANISATIONAL HEALTH 

   Turnover   

 

Service Area 

2019/20 2018/19 

As at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March 2019  

Staff Nos. % Turnover Staff Nos. % Turnover 

Turnover – Council Wide  10,670 9.85 10,592 12.32 

Community & Children’s Services 2,883 8.50 2,962 6.62 

Prosperity, Development & Frontline 
Services  

964 8.40 1,276 6.90 

Education & Inclusion Services  1,265 8.14 1,233 16.55 

Schools 
Primary 
Secondary  

4,855 
3,066 
1,789 

11.64 
  9.95 
14.53 

4,832 
3,093 
1,739 

16.35 
12.90 
22.48 

Chief Executive’s Division  703 8.11 289 9.34 

 

   Sickness Absence  

 
Since the introduction of lockdown, where staff have been unavailable for work due 
to self–isolating; being part of the shielded list; have underlying conditions that 
places an individual at risk, such as being pregnant; or lives in the same household 
as someone that needs to be shielded, these occurrences have not been 
categorised as ‘sickness absence’ and as such are excluded from the analysis 
below.  

 

Service Area 

2019/20 2018/19 

As at 31st March 2020 

% 

As at 31st March 2019 

% 

% days lost to sickness absence – 

Council Wide  
4.16 4.34 

Community & Children’s Services 5.59 5.55 

Prosperity, Development & Frontline 
Services  

4.74 4.58 

Education & Inclusion Services 3.70 4.57 

Schools 
Primary  
Secondary 

3.56 
3.79 
3.16 

3.56 
3.69 
3.34 

Chief Executive’s Division  2.39 2.45 

 
For a more detailed breakdown of Quarter 4 2019/2020 sickness absence 
information, click here.  

Tudalen 85

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QuarterlyPerformanceReport1920/Qtr41920/SummaryCouncilSicknessQ41920.pdf


Organisation Health related investment areas  

 
There continues to be a focus on investing in organisational health related areas, for 
example, IT infrastructure and invest to save energy efficiencies schemes, with this 
work being supported through existing resources.  

 

 Council Strategic Risks  

 
The Council’s Quarter 4 Strategic Risk Register can be viewed by clicking here. 
Risks have been updated to take account of COVID-19, based on the information 
available as at year-end, and all strategic risks will continue to be reviewed on an on-
going basis and where appropriate revisions made to the Strategic Risk Register.  

Tudalen 86

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QuarterlyPerformanceReport1920/Qtr41920/RiskRegisterUpdates201920Q4.pdf


Section 5 – CORPORATE PLAN 
 

Where service delivery / performance for Corporate Plan priority areas has been 
impacted by Storm Dennis and COVID-19, this has been set out in the action plan 
updates. This includes, for example, some annual performance indicator results not 
being comparable with the annual targets set, such as town centre footfall, and where 
the case, performance results have been reported ‘for information only’.  

 

Corporate Plan progress updates  
 

 ECONOMY (Section 5a) 
 

Summary of progress to 31st March 2020  

We continued to make positive progress in supporting regeneration across the region as part of the 

City Deal and masterplan developments have been completed to shape the future development of both 

Pontypridd and Hirwaun industrial estate. 
 

Redevelopment projects continue in Pontypridd, with the YMCA project commencing on site. The Llys 

Cadwyn development is nearing completion, although slight delays were caused by Storm Dennis, 

which also had a considerable negative impact on visits to our town centres and the number of vacant 

properties. Delivery of the Porth Town Centre Strategy continues, including site assembly for the 

Transport hub with demolition of Barclays Bank and the Alec Jones Day Centre. The Mountain Ash 

Town Centre Framework is also progressing, with planning permission secured for the Guto square 

project and a Compulsory Purchase Order submitted to secure the necessary land. Good progress has 

also been made towards producing draft strategies for Treorchy and Tonypandy town centres.  
 

An integrated package of support for town centre businesses agreed earlier in the year has proved 

successful, although the number of grants awarded for business and job growth have been impacted 

by the effects of Storm Dennis on local businesses. The Enterprise Support Programme has been well 

received with a significant volume of applications / approvals.  The Programme will need to be revisited 

in light of Covid-19 and the impact on the business economy, with the focus on sustainability and 

diversification. 
 

Due to the effects of Covid-19, a delegated decision was made on 24th March 2020 to approve the 

Tourism Strategy; further engagement activity on this strategy has been delayed as a result. The Dare 

Valley Country Park has been successfully designated as a Discovery Gateway for the Valleys 

Regional Park initiative, with work underway to improve visitor facilities.  
 

Good progress is being made delivering Band B 21st Century schools projects, with all statutory 

consultation completed and the outcome of the judicial review challenge awaited. National delays to 

the implementation of the Additional Learning Needs Tribunal (ALNET) Act and the initial impact of 

Covid-19 have slowed progress, and school closures will also delay planned engagement on the RCT 

Education Strategy.  
 

Following Welsh Government’s national review of targets, we have achieved our targets for the 

majority of our employment support programmes, which continue to support people to improve their 

skills and return to work. However, progress at the end of March was impacted by the beginning of the 

Covid-19 pandemic, which also delayed WEFO’s review of the Stay Well at Work project targets. 
 

The full action plan can be viewed by clicking here 

Progress in our KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS as at 31st March 2020 

Total no. of 

PIs in the 

Priority 

Total no. of 

PIs  

reported 

this Qtr 

No. of PIs 

reported this 

Qtr with Target 

On Target Not on Target 
Within 5% of 

Target 

No. % No. % No. % 

51 47 32 17 53 10 31 5 16 

Tudalen 87

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QuarterlyPerformanceReport1920/Qtr41920/ECONOMYQtr41920.pdf


 

Progress in our Investment Priorities – Economy 
 

Investment 

Area 

Investment 

Value4 

£M 

Quarter 4 Update 

Empty Property 
Grant  

1.500 Between April 2019 and March 2020, 11 properties surveyed, 
22 approved and 46 completed as part of the Council’s Empty 
Property Grant Scheme (Note: the number of applications 
processed through the Council’s scheme has been updated to 
reflect those that are eligible and have been progressed via the 
Welsh Government Valleys Taskforce Scheme).  
  

Schools  2.200 
 

(excludes 
funding for 
Ferndale 

Community 
School 3G 

pitch 
(£0.200M) 

and 
Maesgwyn 

Special 
School 

(£0.100M) as 
schemes 
complete) 

Funding relates to that agreed by Council on 28th February 
2018 (£0.500M) and 6th March 2019 (£1.500M) together with 
the allocation of £0.500M from the Tonypandy Town Centre 
project (where the costs were lower than originally anticipated). 
Progress on projects include:  
 

 Schemes completed during the year- YG Rhydywaun (3G 
pitch); Bryncelynnog Comprehensive (3G pitch/running 
track, roof works and toilet refurbishment); Ysgol Garth 
Olwg (remodelling/refurbishment works); YGG Llwyncelyn 
(refurbishment works); Y Pant (asbestos strip and 
refurbishment works); Trehopcyn Primary (toilet 
refurbishment and flooring works); and Llantrisant Primary 
(roof works).  

 Schemes on-going include:  
o Ferndale Community School – all internal refurbishment 

works and external pitched/flat roofs complete; works 
on-going to the main swimming pool hall and 
construction of new retaining wall and entrance path.  

o Gelli Primary - internal refurbishment works, extension 
and demolition of existing mobile/external works 
complete; on-going work includes construction of a new 
ramp, tarmacking in the yard/new softplay area.  

o Llanharan Primary – internal refurbishment works and 
external yard works complete; further works relate to 
extension, car parking and fencing works;  

o Cymmer Primary – the contractor has been appointed 
for the asbestos/site clearance and demolition, and 
commencement of work is subject to planning.  
 
 

Transport 
Infrastructure  

2.500  This investment funding relates to that approved by Council on 
1st March 2017 (£1.2M), 6th March 2019 (£0.350M), 23rd 
October 2019 (£0.500M) and 4th March 2020 (£0.450M) and is 
continuing to support a wider programme of highways capital 
works including the completion of Bridge St. roundabout 
(Pontypridd); A4059 Asda roundabout and B4275 Aberaman; 
Abercynon Town Centre management improvements; A473 
Tonteg Rd; and Upper Boat and A4119 Tonyrefail/Trebanog 
roundabouts scheme development.  
 

                                            
4 Investment Value – relates to LIVE projects / works only that have been allocated additional investment 
funding.  Tudalen 88



Investment 

Area 

Investment 

Value4 

£M 

Quarter 4 Update 

In addition, the investment is also supporting Pedestrian, 
Zebra and Puffin crossings at Penrhiwceiber, Mountain Ash, 
Hawthorn, Rhydyfelin and Trealaw. Further designs are 
ongoing with A473 Gwaun Miskin Rd being completed and 
early stages for Tonteg Rd and Quartermile junction being 
completed. Some delays have occurred in March due to 
COVID-19 and dialogue will be on-going with contractors to 
support the recommencement of works in 2020/21 as soon as 
it is deemed safe to do so.  
 

Tonyrefail 
Roundabout 
(NEW) 
 

0.500 This investment funding relates to that approved by Council on 
4th March 2020 (£0.500M) for Tonyrefail Roundabout for 
feasibility and design to improve the congestion and 
compliment the strategic development at Coed Ely. 
 
 

Taff Vale 
Development 

2.024 This investment funding relates to that approved by Council on 
30th November 2016 (and is in addition to the £1.5M approved 
by Council on 28th October 2015).  
 

Positive progress has been made on site during the period with 
the successful handover of Buildings B and C. Significant 
progress has also been made with the fit-out of the Library, 
One4All and Leisure facilities in Building C.  
 
The brickwork and curtain walling in Building A has been 
completed and the fit-out works for Transport for Wales are 
well underway.  
 
The Installation of the footbridge also commenced during the 
period with the Mast and first section of the bridge deck 
successfully lifted into place.  
 

Park and Ride 
Programme  

1.000 This investment funding relates to that approved by Council on 
29th November 2017 and is supporting the development work 
needed to create additional ‘park and ride’ car parking spaces 
at Pontyclun (feasibility / preliminary design is on-going) and 
Porth (Phase 2 is complete and design underway for Phase  
3).  
 

Strategic 
Regeneration 
Investment 
(previously 
Town Centre 
Regeneration)  
 

 

1.100 Funding comprises £0.100M approved by Council on 28th 
February 2018 and further funding of £1.000M approved by 
Council on 24th October 2018.   
 
The investment supported the purchase of 50-53 Taff Street 
(Iceland) (Pontypridd) and 1-4 Oxford Street (Mountain Ash) 
alongside on-going projects that include the redevelopment of 
Guto Square (Mountain Ash), development work for Treorchy 
and Tonypandy town centre strategies and detailed project 
development for Valleys Regional Park Discovery Gateways in 
Dare Valley Country Park and Ynysangharad Park.   
 

Robertstown 4.200 This investment funding relates to that approved by Council on 

Tudalen 89



Investment 

Area 

Investment 

Value4 

£M 

Quarter 4 Update 

and Coed Ely 
ERDF Match 
Funding  
 

24th October 2018.  
 
Robertstown – An enabling works contract was awarded to 
complete vegetation clearance works on the site in quarter 4 
under the supervision of an ecologist, prior to the bird nesting 
season, with this work completed by year-end. The tendering 
process for the main contract is on-going.  
 
Coed Ely – Construction progress: a structural steel frame has 
been erected and the majority of the roof cladding has been 
installed. Works were suspended in March due to COVID-19 
and dialogue will be on-going with the contractor to support the 
recommencement of works in 2020/21 as soon as it is deemed 
safe to do so.  
 

Total 15.024  

 
 

Tudalen 90



PEOPLE (Section 5b) 

 

Summary of progress to 31st March 2020 

 

Within the context of significant service pressures in delivering the Council’s challenging 
targets and improvement agenda, alongside the initial impacts of COVID-19, good progress 
has been made in many key areas relating to people and community needs.  
 
Our Extra Care Housing Development Programme and Supported Housing Schemes 
progressed with our partners to meet the long term needs of residents requiring our support to 
live independently. Good progress was made during quarter 4 to enable Maesffynnon Extra 
Care in partnership with Linc Cymru to open in May 2020, our second Extra Care facility in 
Aberaman.  We are also developing supported housing schemes to help vulnerable people to 
live more independently within their communities, and opened Penllew Court in January 2020 
which provides supported housing for people with learning disabilities. The implementation of 
the Stay well@home service Phase 2 and the new Assistive Technology model will continue to 
support people in their own homes and reduce the need for unnecessary hospital admissions. 
There is more work to be done to develop social prescribing approaches to support the health 
and wellbeing of our residents with our partners. We are also continuing to invest in our Leisure 
facilities including at the new Llys Cadwyn development in Pontypridd and outdoor pitches to 
encourage residents to participate in exercise, contributing to improved health and well-being.  
 
The new Integrated Substance Misuse Service in Cwm Taf commenced on 1st April 2019, to 
ensure no matter where an individual lives in Cwm Taf they will receive the same help and 
support, to avoid problems escalating. We are also reviewing our Domestic Abuse and Sexual 
Violence services, identifying gaps in provision and redesigning the services to provide the best 
support possible for individuals experiencing abuse and their families. This work will now be 
completed in 2020/21 to consider services from a Cwm Taf Morgannwg perspective. 
 
A child's first 1,000 days has been identified as a critical part of life, having a long lasting 
impact on individuals and families; therefore, we are continuing to review the delivery of Early 
Years in RCT ensuring services are targeted towards specific need rather than geographical 
areas. We are also ensuring that our services provide the right support for those children with 
additional needs. We recognise the importance of engaging with Children and Young People in 
shaping plans for the future, for example, the implementation of Community Zones. We will 
now work with our regional partners in 2020/21 to better understand how we engage with our 
young people. 
 
We have further developed a robust quality assurance framework across Children's Services to 
ensure appropriate interventions are put in place to protect children from abuse and neglect 
and prevent longer term harm. We have also worked with our foster carers to provide the 
training and support they need to cope with children with challenging behaviours, helping them 
provide a positive and stable environment to support children and young people who cannot 
live with their families. 
 
The full action plan can be viewed by clicking here 
 

Progress in our KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS as at 31st March 2020 

Total 

no. of 

PIs in 

the 

Priority 

Total no. of 

PIs  

reported 

this Qtr 

No. of PIs 

reported this 

Qtr with 

Target 

On Target Not on Target 
Within 5% of 

Target 

No. % No. % No. % 

23 22 19 12 63 5 26 2 11 
 Tudalen 91

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QuarterlyPerformanceReport1920/Qtr41920/PEOPLEQtr41920.pdf


 

Progress in our Investment Priorities – PEOPLE 

Investment Area 

Investment 

Value5 

£M 

Quarter 4 Update 

Leisure Centre 
Changing Rooms  

0.150 This investment funding relates to works at Sobell Leisure 
Centre to replace the gym flooring and refurbish the changing 
rooms. The gym floor coverings work has been completed. The 
Changing Room works were originally scheduled to commence 
in March 2020; however, due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
works have been paused and will recommence in 2020/21 
when deemed safe to do so.  
 

Extracare 
Housing  

 

6.974 
 

(Investment 
value reduced 
by £0.026M to 

reflect 
expenditure 
incurred in 
2018/19) 

This investment funding relates to that approved by Council on 
28th February 2018 (£2M), 24th October 2018 (£2M), 6th March 
2019 (£1M), 23rd October 2019 (£1M) and 4th March 2020 
(£1M) to support the modernising of accommodation options for 
older people  
 
Works at the former Maesyffynnon Home for the Elderly site 
were completed in early 2020 and the first residents are 
scheduled to move into the new facility in May 2020. Works 
commenced at the Pontypridd site in July 2019 and 
consideration of development proposals for Rhondda (Porth), 
Treorchy and Mountain Ash schemes are on-going. 
 

Tackling Poverty 
Fund 

0.300 This investment funding relates to that approved by Council on 
4th March 2020 (£0.300M) to help address areas where there 
are high levels of poverty (including fuel poverty). The area will 
be progressed in 2020/21.  
 
 

Total 7.424  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                            
5 Investment Value – relates to LIVE projects / works only that have been allocated additional investment 
funding.  Tudalen 92



 PLACE (Section 5c) 

 

Summary of progress to 31st March 2020 

Performance during 2019/20 progressed largely as planned, with some delays due to the 
impacts of Storms Ciara and Dennis in February 2020 and the start of the Covid-19 pandemic 
in March 2020.  
 
We continue to deliver partnership actions as part of the Cwm Taf Community Safety Delivery 
Plan and anti-social behaviour is a key priority on our agenda with the focus on intervention and 
prevention, together with our work to enforce responsible drinking in our communities. We are 
currently reviewing the evaluation of the Public Space Protection Order and Pontypridd 
Community Alcohol Partnership. 
 
Our second stage grant funding application for additional work at Ynysangharad Park has been 
submitted and includes actions to progress and enhance the bandstand, sunken garden and 
the development of a horticultural training centre. This will complement our successful grant 
applications to the Valleys Regional Park Discovery Gateway for both Dare Valley and 
Ynysangharad Parks. During the year we have continued to improve playgrounds and parks in 
the community as part of the ‘RCT Invest’ programme and where playgrounds scheduled for 
upgrade were not completed by year-end, these will be carried forward to 2020/21. There 
continues to be an on-going focus on environmental issues including biodiversity, air pollution 
and tree planning, and these actions and others will feature in 2020/21 Recovery Plan 
arrangements supported by decisions made by the Council’s Climate Change Cabinet Steering 
Group. 
 
With regard to more involved and resilient communities, progress has been made throughout 
2019/20 on a wide range of areas including the development of Community hubs, improving 
empty properties, encouraging community engagement through our Creative Hub in Treorchy 
and progressing plans for the Bryn Pica Eco Park. There have been some delays in the latter 
part of the financial year because of the storms Ciara and Dennis and the start of the Covid-19 
pandemic, which have brought about different ways of thinking and working, particularly in our 
arrangements for the homeless and private sector housing. These will be areas of focus in our 
2020/21 Recovery Plan.  
 
A focus on infrastructure investment and keeping the County Borough clean and green has 
continued throughout 2019/20 with positive progress being made in our highways and 
structures investment programme. We have met our targets for the condition of our roads and 
waste, and continue to undertake activities relating to recycling awareness that positively 
contribute to our recycling rates (64.71% at year-end) and street cleanliness (100%). 

 
The full action plan can be viewed by clicking here 
 

Progress in our KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS as at 31st March 2020 

Total no. 

of PIs in 

the 

Priority 

Total no. 

of PIs  

reported 

this Qtr 

No. of PIs 

reported 

this Qtr with 

Target 

On Target Not on Target 
Within 5% of 

Target 

No. % No. % No. % 

16 13 13 10 77 1 8 2 15 

 

Tudalen 93

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QuarterlyPerformanceReport1920/Qtr41920/PLACEQtr41920.pdf


 

Progress in our Investment Priorities – PLACE 
 

Investment Area 

Investment 

Value6 

£M 

Quarter 4 Update 

Highways 
Infrastructure 
Repairs  
 

18.264  This investment funding relates to that approved by Council on 
1st March 2017 (£2.264M), 28th February 2018 (£1.000M), 24th 
October 2018 (£12.000M), 6th March 2019 (£1.500M) and 4th 
March 2020 (£1.500M).  
 
The additional resources are being used in conjunction with 
existing resources to deliver a programme of highways 
infrastructure repairs between 2019/20 and 2021/22. 
 
 

Outdoor Leisure 
Facilities  

0.650 
 

(excludes 
funding for 3G 

pitches at 
Ferndale 

Community 
School 

(£0.400M) and 
Abercycnon 

Sports Centre 
(£0.200M) as 

schemes 
complete)  

 

This investment funding relates to that approved by Council on 
29th November 2017 for Bryncelynnog Comprehensive and 
Ysgol Gyfun Rhydywaun Schools, and has been combined with 
an agreed contribution from the Education budget.  
 

Updates in respect of the 3G Pitches at Bryncelynnog 
Comprehensive School and Ysgol Gyfun Rhydywaun are 
included within Section 5a – Economy (Investment Area – 
Schools).  
 
 

Play Areas  
 

1.026  This investment funding relates to that approved by Council on 
28th February 2018 (£0.026M), 6th March 2019 (£0.500M) and 
4th March 2020 (£0.500M).  
 
During 2019/20 there are 27 schemes which form the planned 
programme of works and, as at 31st March 2020, 18 schemes 
had been completed, 2 were under construction, 4 had been 
designed, costed and scheduled and 3 schemes are to be 
designed. Where works on schemes are on-going / to be 
designed, these will be progressed during 2020/21.  
 

Skate Parks/Multi 
Use Games Areas  

0.200 This investment funding relates to that approved by Council on 
6th March 2019. A planned programme of 9 schemes has been 
developed to undertake various works including rebuilding and 
line marking.  
 
As at 31st March 2020, 5 schemes have been completed, 2 
were under construction and 2 are to be designed. Where 
works on schemes are on-going / to be designed, these 
schemes will be progressed during 2020/21.  
 

Cynon Gateway 
South – Mountain 
Ash Cross Valley 

4.750 An additional £1M investment funding was approved by Council 
on 23rd October 2019. Various elements of work are ongoing 
and the Dwr Cymru Welsh Water sewer diversion works are 

                                            
6 Investment Value – relates to LIVE projects / works only that have been allocated additional investment 
funding.  Tudalen 94



Investment Area 

Investment 

Value6 

£M 

Quarter 4 Update 

Link  now complete. The bridge beams were lifted and successfully 
installed at the end of September and bridge deck works are 
complete including retaining walls. Extensive drainage works 
are ongoing.  
 

Structures: St 
Albans Bridge,  
Brook Street 
Footbridge and 
Pontrhondda 
Bridge 

4.600   St. Alban's Bridge – works commenced on site but have been 
paused due to Covid 19;  

 Brook St. Footbridge – detailed design options completed, 
tenders received for construction stage. Active Travel funding 
bid made for 2020/21; and  

 Pontrhondda Bridge – Works were completed during March 
2020.  
 

Structures  6.500 Funding allocated / progress:  
 

 £1.5M additional investment was approved by Council on the 
28th February 2018 and has been allocated to structure 
projects with the works at various stages of design, 
procurement and construction. 

 £1.5M of investment was approved by Council on 6th March 
2019 and is supporting the following schemes: Hopkinstown 
River Wall (Pontypridd) – completed; Castle Ifor 
(Hopkinstown) works are suspended until 2020/21; Station 
Rd Bridge (Hirwaun) – completed; Williamstown Footbridge 
requires extensive repairs and is scheduled for 2020/21; and 
confined space culverts (with culvert repairs at various 
locations completed).  

 £1M investment funding was approved by Council on 23rd 
October 2019 and a further £2M on the 4th March 2020 which 
will continue to support these schemes with further advanced 
preparation works in the pipeline. 

 

Parks Structures  1.750 £1M Investment was approved by Council on 6th March 2019 
and £0.750M on 4th March 2020 for various footbridge repairs 
and replacements within Parks. Works and design are ongoing 
at various locations for culvert repairs and wooden footbridges. 
2 schemes were completed, 3 schemes are ongoing but 
delayed due to Covid 19 and 2 schemes are out to tender and 
are scheduled to commence in 2020/21. Various inspections 
and surveys are continuing to be undertaken as advance 
preparation for future schemes.  
  

Parks and Green 
Spaces  

2.400 This investment funding relates to that approved by Council on 
6th March 2019 and 4th March 2020, and covers:  

 £1.900M is supporting drainage, pavilion and infrastructure 
improvements to various parks sites. Out of the 55 schemes 
included in the programme, 51 have completed and 4 
schemes to be completed in 2020/21 (revised timescales 
due to flooding).  

 £0.500M supported the investment in the King George V 
Athletics Track – this scheme is now complete.  
 

Tudalen 95



Investment Area 

Investment 

Value6 

£M 

Quarter 4 Update 

Cemeteries 0.400 This investment funding relates to that approved by Council on 
6th March 2019 for refurbishment of the south chapel at Glyntaff 
Crematorium and drainage works, wall and fencing repairs, 
painting works and resurfacing works at cemetery sites.   
 
Works have been undertaken across 13 cemeteries (Penrhys, 
Treorchy, Ferndale, Trealaw, Maes Yr Arian, Abercynon, 
Aberdare, Bryn Yr Gaer, Ynysybwl, Glyntaff, Cefn Yr Parc, 
LLanharan and Taffs Well). As at year-end, works at 8 different 
Cemetery locations had been completed and 5 were on-going.  
 

Llanharan 
Bypass  
 

2.000 This investment funding relates to that approved by Council on 
29th November 2017 (£1.000M), 24th October 2018 (£0.500M) 
and 4th March 2020 (£0.500M), and is supporting preliminary 
design work, ecology surveys (which are now complete) and 
the design / tender of ground investigation work.  Cabinet 
agreed the route on 24th September 2019 after taking into 
consideration the feedback received during the public 
consultation.   
 

A4119 Dualling 
(Stinkpot Hill) 

 

6.000 This investment funding relates to that approved by Council on 
29th November 2017 (£1.000M), 24th October 2018 (£1.500M), 
6th March 2019 (£1.500M), 23rd October 2019 (£1.000M) and 
4th March 2020 (£1.000M) to support the dualling of this section 
of the highway. Preliminary designs are now complete and 
Cabinet agreed to progress with a number of key elements of 
the scheme on 18th July 2019. These include detail design of 
the dual carriageway together with a footbridge for pedestrians 
and cyclists to cross the A4119, and advanced works such as 
site clearance and public utility diversions. The purchase of 
land will also start to take place. 
  

Community Hubs   
 

1.150 This investment funding relates to that approved by Council on 
29th November 2017 (£0.500M), 24th October 2018 (£0.250M) 
and 4th March 2020 (£0.400M) to support the creation of 
community hubs:  

 Canolfan Pennar (Mountain Ash) - opened June 2019;  

 Rhondda Fach Hwb (Ferndale) - opened in July 2019;   

 Porth Plaza – works were due to commence in January 2020 
and scheduled to be completed by the end of quarter 4. 
However works were temporarily paused in March 2020 due 
to the COVID 19 pandemic and will recommence in 2020/21 
when it is deemed safe to do so; and 

 Treorchy – £0.400M of investment funding was approved by 
Council on 4th March 2020 to improve the proposed site of 
Treorchy Community Hub at Treorchy Library.  
 

Gelli/Treorchy 
Link Road  
 

0.400 This investment funding relates to that approved by Council on 
24th October 2018 (£0.200M), 23rd October 2019 (£0.100M) 
and 4th March 2020 (£0.100M) for investigatory works for a 
solution which will help alleviate congestion at Stag Square.  
Feasibility and preliminary design options are ongoing. 

Tudalen 96



Investment Area 

Investment 

Value6 

£M 

Quarter 4 Update 

Cynon Gateway 
(North), Aberdare 
Bypass 
 

2.000 This investment funding relates to that approved by Council on 
24th October 2018 (£1.000M) and 4th March 2020 (£1.000M) for 
preliminary design for a bypass continuation from A4059 
Aberdare to Hirwaun. Ground investigation is now complete 
and ecology, preliminary design and procurement is ongoing.  
 

Bryn Pica Eco 
Park 
 

1.400 This investment funding relates to that approved by Council on 
24th October 2018 (£0.200M), 6th March 2019 (£0.200M) and 
23rd October 2019 (£1.000M) to support enabling works, 
planning and ecology for the development of an Eco Park at 
the Waste Management Facility.  
 

Dinas Community 
Recycling Centre 
(NEW) 
 

0.250 This investment funding relates to that approved by Council on 
4th March 2020 (£0.250M) for the provision of a portacabin and 
improvements on the site of Dinas Community Recycling since 
the demolition of the previous site building. 
 

Land Drainage 0.750 This investment funding was approved by Council on 6th March 
2019 (£0.200M), 23rd October 2019 (£0.150M) and 4th March 
2020 (£0.400M) for drainage and culvert network works in 
Aberdare, Ton Pentre, Porth and Cymmer. Schemes 
progressed during the year and works are scheduled to 
commence in Porth in 2020/21; the most recent additional 
funding allocation (i.e. 4th March 2020) will support a further 
programme of schemes.  
 

Total 54.490  

Tudalen 97



LIVING WITHIN OUR MEANS (Section 5d) 

The Council’s Corporate Plan aims to apply a disciplined and planned approach to 
meeting the financial challenges ahead and has set a number of measures to gauge 
efficiency and the use of resources. These can be viewed by clicking here and a 
summary position is included below.  
 

Progress in our KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS as at 31st March 2020 

Total 

no. of 

PIs  

Total no. of 

PIs reported 

this Qtr 

No. of PIs 

reported this 

Qtr with 

Target 

On Target 
Not on 

Target 

Within 5% of 

Target 

No. % No. % No. % 

8 8 7 7 100 0 0 0 0 

 

 

 OVERALL SUMMARY OF CORPORATE PLAN PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

 

Progress in our KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS as at 31st March 2020 

Total 

no. of 

PIs  

Total no. of 

PIs reported 

this Qtr 

No. of PIs 

reported this 

Qtr with 

Target 

On Target 
Not on 

Target 

Within 5% of 

Target 

No. % No. % No. % 

98 90 71 46 65 16 22 9 13 

 

 
Those performance indicators that were ‘Not on Target’ can be viewed by clicking here.  

 

 OTHER NATIONAL MEASURES (Section 5e) 

In addition, there are a number of national measures that do not form part of the 
Council’s Corporate Plan. These can be viewed by clicking here. A summary is provided 
in the table below.  

  

Progress in our KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS as at 31st March 2020 

Total 

no. of 

PIs  

Total no. of 

PIs reported 

this Qtr 

No. of PIs 

reported this 

Qtr with 

Target 

On Target 
Not on 

Target 

Within 5% of 

Target 

No. % No. % No. % 

16 13 12 9 75 1 8 2 17 

  

 TARGET SETTING (Section 5f) 

An analysis of 2019/20 targets set compared to previous year’s performance and targets, 
and ‘All Wales Average’ performance levels, where collected, can be viewed by clicking 
here.  

 
 

Tudalen 98

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QuarterlyPerformanceReport1920/Qtr41920/LWoMQtr41920.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QuarterlyPerformanceReport1920/Qtr41920/Q41920REDSummary.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QuarterlyPerformanceReport1920/Qtr41920/OthernationalindicatorsQtr41920.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/QuarterlyPerformanceReport1920/Qtr41920/Q41920TargetAnalysisb.pdf


Section 2a

Education & Inclusion Services Revenue Budget - to 31st March 2019/2020

Revised Budget as 

at 31st December    
Service Area

Virements as at 

31st March

Revised Budget as 

at 31st March 
Final Outturn Variance 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Delegated Schools

19,188 Middle 0 19,188 19,188 0

69,452 Primary 0 69,452 69,452 0

51,686 Secondary 0 51,686 51,686 0

8,523 Special 0 8,523 8,523 0

148,849 0 148,849 148,849 0

Total Delegated School Budgets

148,849 0 148,849 148,849 0

Education & Inclusion Services

1,219 School Achievement 0 1,219 1,217 -2

866 Education Improvement Grant 0 866 866 0

422 Service Transformation & Education Information Systems 0 422 467 45

5,897 Additional Learning Needs 0 5,897 5,865 -32

2,396 Education Other than at School 0 2,396 2,579 183

Increased numbers of pupils receiving 

home tuition

634 Attendance and Wellbeing Service 0 634 638 4

5,280 Nursery & Early Years 0 5,280 5,054 -226

Reduction in demand for nursery 

provision 

2,401 Group Directorate 0 2,401 2,330 -71

Reduction in bad debt provision and 

former Mid Glamorgan pension 

payments

136 Music Service 136 136 0

19,251 0 19,251 19,152 -99

21st Century Schools

1,425 School Planning & Reorganisation 0 1,425 1,381 -44

3,018 Asset Management / Financing 0 3,018 3,018 0

6,697 Catering 0 6,697 6,735 38

11,140 0 11,140 11,134 -6

Total Non School Budgets

30,391 0 30,391 30,286 -105

Overall Total Budget

179,240 0 179,240 179,135 -105

Director of Education & Inclusion Services Gaynor Davies

Head Of Finance Stephanie Davies

Reasons for Variances

T
udalen 99



Education & Inclusion Services  - to 31st March 2019/2020

31st March Virements Report

Education & Inclusion Services Total

Delegated 

Schools

Education & Inclusion 

Services

21st Century 

Schools

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Revised Budget as at 31st December 179,240 148,849 19,251 11,140

Virements proposed to 31st March

Nil 0 0 0 0

Proposed Revised Budget - 31st March 179,240 148,849 19,251 11,140

 Virements that require approval by the Executive, in accordance with Section 

4.8 of the Council's Financial Procedure Rules

T
udalen 100



Section 2b

Community & Children's Services Revenue Budget - to 31st March 2019/2020

Revised budget 

as at 31st 

December

Service Area
Virements as 

at 31st March

Revised budget 

as at 31st 

March

Final 

Outturn 
Variance 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Adult Services

7,365 Long Term Care & Support 0 7,365 7,530 165
Overspend due to staffing costs partly offset through the use 

of one-off external grant funding

51,723 Commissioned Services 0 51,723 53,839 2,116

Overspend in the main relates to community based care 

packages due to increases to client numbers and package 

sizes, as a result of demographic pressures, transfer of care 

responsibility from the Health Board (specialist placements), 

facilitating hospital discharge and preventing hospital 

admission

18,996 Provider Services 0 18,996 19,278 282

Overspend primarily relates to increased demand for Learning 

Disabilities Day Services (complex Autism Services) and 

under-achievement of income within In-house Residential 

Care homes due to lower occupancy levels. The overspend 

has been partly off-set by one-off Welsh Government funding 

received during the year

9,525 Short Term Intervention Services 0 9,525 8,676 -849

Underspend due to temporary staffing vacancies and 

maximising grant funding streams, and this position has been 

partly offset by the continued increased demand for 

Intermediate Care & Re-ablement Services (as a result of 

maintaining people in the community, facilitating hospital 

discharge and preventing hospital admission) and the under-

achievement of income for UPVC sales at Vision Products 

-4,056 Fairer Charging 0 -4,056 -3,824 232
Overspend relates to lower than anticipated income levels and 

increased Provision for Bad Debt

3,198
Management, Safeguarding & Support 

Services
0 3,198 3,275 77 Overspend due to staffing costs 

86,751 0 86,751 88,774 2,023

Reasons For Variances

T
udalen 101



Section 2b

Community & Children's Services Revenue Budget - to 31st March 2019/2020

Revised budget 

as at 31st 

December

Service Area
Virements as 

at 31st March

Revised budget 

as at 31st 

March

Final 

Outturn 
Variance 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Reasons For Variances

Children Services

27,350
Safeguarding & Support (inc. Children 

Looked After)
0 27,350 28,360 1,010

Overspend relates to Children's Homes and increased 

reliance on External Residential Care Placements, and this 

position has been partly offset by underspends in  In House  

and External Fostering, Relative Foster Carers and  Advocacy

6,404 Early Intervention  0 6,404 5,848 -556
Underspend relates to temporary staffing vacancies in 

Assessment Care Planning and Early Intervention Teams and 

maximising grant funding opportunities 

928 Cwm Taff Youth Offending Service 0 928 800 -128 Underspend due to temporary staffing vacancies

10,855 Intensive Intervention 0 10,855 9,787 -1,068

Underspend primarily due to temporary staffing vacancies in 

Assessment Care Planning Teams together with lower than 

anticipated  Court Costs, Legal Disbursements and Direct 

Payments 

2,136 Management & Support Services 0 2,136 2,110 -26

47,673 0 47,673 46,905 -768

T
udalen 102



Section 2b

Community & Children's Services Revenue Budget - to 31st March 2019/2020

Revised budget 

as at 31st 

December

Service Area
Virements as 

at 31st March

Revised budget 

as at 31st 

March

Final 

Outturn 
Variance 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Reasons For Variances

Transformation

756 Regional Training Unit 0 756 587 -169
Underspend due to temporary staffing vacancies and lower 

than budgeted accommodation costs

826 Group & Transformation Management 0 826 591 -235
Underspend in the main due to temporary staffing vacancies 

and maximising grant funding opportunities 

1,100 Service Improvement 0 1,100 1,064 -36

22 Purchasing & Commissioning 0 22 24 2

2,704 0 2,704 2,266 -438

Public Health, Protection & Community Services

5,406 Public Protection 0 5,406 5,220 -186
Underspend due to additional income and temporary staffing 

vacancies 

4,418 Community Services 0 4,418 4,373 -45

909 Communities & Wellbeing 0 909 745 -164
Underspend due to temporary staffing vacancies and 

maximisation of grant funding opportunities, partly offset by 

additional license costs

4,973
Leisure, Parks & Countryside and 

Community Facilities
0 4,973 5,109 136

Overspend primarily relates to additional in-year staffing costs 

and lower than budgeted income levels 

152 Group Directorate 0 152 151 -1

15,858 0 15,858 15,598 -260

152,986 0 152,986 153,543 557

Group Director Giovanni Isingrini

Head of Finance Neil Griffiths

T
udalen 103



Section 2b

31st March Virements Report

Community & Children's Services Group Total Adult Services Children Services Transformation 

Public Health, 

Protection & 

Community Services

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Revised Budget as at 31st December 152,986 86,751 47,673 2,704 15,858

Virements proposed to 31st March

Nil 0 0 0 0 0

Proposed Revised Budget - 31st March 152,986 86,751 47,673 2,704 15,858

Community & Children's Services Revenue Budget - to 31st March 2019/2020

 Virements that require approval by the Executive, in accordance with Section 4.8 of the 

Council's Financial Procedure Rules

T
udalen 104



Section 2c

Revised budget as 

at 31st December
Service Area

Virements as at 

31st March

Revised budget 

as at 31st March Final Outturn Variance 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Chief Executive
395 Chief Executive 0 395 389 -6

2,792
Democratic Services & 

Communications
0 2,792 2,759 -33

6,817 Human Resources 0 6,817 6,772 -45

1,594 Legal Services 0 1,594 1,483 -111
Temporary staffing vacancies together 

with higher than anticipated external 

funding

10,864
Finance & Digital 

Services
0 10,864 10,730 -134

Temporary staffing vacancies together 

with higher than anticipated external 

funding

3,459 Corporate Estates 0 3,459 3,481 22

25,921 0 25,921 25,614 -307

Chief Executive Chris Bradshaw

Head of Finance Martyn Hughes

Chief Executive Revenue Budget - to 31st March 2019/2020

Reasons For Variances

T
udalen 105



Section 2c

Chief Executive Total

Chief 

Executive

Democratic Services 

& Communications

Human 

Resources

Legal 

Services

Finance & 

Digital 

Services

Corporate 

Estates

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Revised Budget as at 31st December 25,921 395 2,792 6,817 1,594 10,864 3,459

   

Virements proposed to 31st March

Nil 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Proposed Revised Budget - 31st March 25,921 395 2,792 6,817 1,594 10,864 3,459

31st March Virements Report

Chief Executive Revenue Budget - to 31st March 2019/2020

 Virements that require approval by the Executive, in accordance with Section 4.8 of the 

Council's Financial Procedure Rules

T
udalen 106



Section 2d

Revised 

budget as at 

31st December

Service Area
Virements as at 

31st March

Revised 

budget as at 

31st March

Final Outturn Variance 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Prosperity, Development & Frontline Services 

2,723 Prosperity & Development 0 2,723 2,729 6

2,723 0 2,723 2,729 6

Frontline Services

3,512                Highways Management 0 3,512              3,328              -184 Temporary staffing vacancies 

14,611              Transportation 0 14,611            14,321            -290
Higher than anticipated external funding together with savings as a 

result of contract gatekeeping arrangements

319                   Strategic Projects 0 319                 205                 -114 Temporary staffing vacancies 

4,125                Street Cleansing 0 4,125              4,243              118 Lower than anticipated income received

1,020                Facilities Cleaning 0 1,020              903                 -117
Reduction in costs due to rationalisation of the Council's properties 

together with increase in income for other areas

                4,322  Highways Maintenance 0 4,322              4,305              -17

              18,245  Waste Services 0 18,245            18,848            603
Overspend due to increased costs in relation to Waste Disposal and 

increase in demand for recycling and food waste bags

                2,140  Fleet Management 0 2,140              2,198              58 Lower than anticipated workshop income received

                4,127  Parks Services 0 4,127              4,078              -49

                1,720  Group Directorate 0 1,720              1,778              58
Increase in utility costs and increase in the level of bad debt provision 

required

54,141 0 54,141 54,207 66

56,864 0 56,864 56,936 72

Group Director Nigel Wheeler

Head of Finance Martyn Hughes

Prosperity & Development

Prosperity, Development & Frontline Services Revenue Budget - to 31st March 2019/2020

Reasons For Variances

T
udalen 107



Section 2d

Prosperity, Development & Frontline Services Revenue Budget - to 31st March 2019/2020

Prosperity, Development & Frontline Services Group
Total

Prosperity & 

Development
Frontline Services

£'000 £'000 £'000

Revised Budget as at 31st December 56,864 2,723 54,141

Virements proposed to 31st March

Nil 0 0 0

Proposed Revised Budget - 31st March 56,864 2,723 54,141

31st March Virements Report

 Virements that require approval by the 

Executive, in accordance with Section 4.8 of 

the Council's Financial Procedure Rules

T
udalen 108



Section 2e

Council Wide Revenue Budget - to 31st March 2019/2020

Revised 

budget as at 

31st 

December

Service Area
Virements as 

at 31st March

Revised 

budget as at 

31st March

Final Oututrn
Variance 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

18,917 Capital Financing 0 18,917 18,917 0

11,930 Levies 0 11,930 11,949 19

11,815 Miscellaneous 0 11,815 12,558 743

Overspend due to the net financial impact of costs 

associated with Storm Dennis in 2019/20 (after 

accounting for Welsh Government Emergency Financial 

Assisitance Scheme funding and release of one-off 

Council General Reserves) and higher than anticipated 

expenditure on authoirty wide budgets

400 NNDR Relief 0 400 422 22

24,336 Council Tax Reduction Scheme 0 24,336 23,624 -712
Lower than anticipated demand for the Council Tax 

Reduction Scheme

1,060
MTFP - in Year Budget Reductions - 

Transition Funding
0 1,060 1,060 0

68,458 0 68,458 68,530 72

 

Reasons For Variances

T
udalen 109



Section 2e

£'000

Revised Budget as at 31st December 68,458

Virements proposed to 31st March

Nil 0

Proposed Revised Budget - 31st March 68,458

 Virements that require approval by the Executive, in accordance with Section 4.8 of the Council's Financial Procedure 

Rules

31st March Virements Report

Council Wide Budgets - to 31st March 2019/2020

TotalCouncil Wide Budgets

T
udalen 110



Section 2f

Full Year Expenditure as at 

31
st 

March

 2020

£M

Prior-Year 

Commitments:

Education &

Inclusion Services
0.471 0.137

Community &

Children’s Services
1.235 0.621

Prosperity, 

Development & 

Frontline Servcies

1.752 0.209

Chief Executive’s

Division
1.420 0.353

Authority Wide

Budgets
0.622 0.231

Total 5.500 1.551

* Revised Earmarked Reserves - The prior year commitment earmark reserve has been 

adjustment to take account of the re-allocation of funding agreed by Council on 23rd October 

2019 (£0.388M) to support additional investment in Corporate Plan priority areas.

At the end of the last financial year (2018/19) there were a number of commitments and proposed projects 

which had not been completed by 31st March 2019. These have been set up as Earmark Reserves for 

2019/20 and shown below is committed expenditure against each Service Area. 

Service Area
Revised Earmarked Reserves*

T
udalen 111



Chief Executive Section 3a

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Finance & Digital Services

CIVICA Financials 227 -44 183 244 200 627 183

Capitalisation of Computer HW/SW & Licences 500 470 970 500 500 1,970 970 g
Increase in total cost of 

scheme

Introduce Revenue funding into the Capital 

Programme
Paul Griffiths

Total Finance & Digital Services 727 426 1,153 744 700 2,597 1,153

Corporate Estates

Major repair/refurbishment and/or rationalisation of 

Service Group Accommodation 
2,173 1,771 3,944 150 150 4,244 3,944 g

Update the Capital 

Programme in line with 

latest cost projections

Introduce Revenue funding and reallocate the 

Council's own resources within the Capital 

Programme 

Dave Powell

Strategic Maintenance 75 -10 65 50 50 165 65

Asset Management Planning  50 -2 48 50 50 148 48

Asbestos Management 320 -306 14 175 175 364 14 g

Update the Capital 

Programme in line with 

latest cost projections

Reallocate the Council's own resources within 

the Capital Programme
Dave Powell

Asbestos Remediation Works 10 -10 0 50 50 100 0

Legionella Remediation Works 275 -127 148 275 275 698 148 g

Update the Capital 

Programme in line with 

latest cost projections

Reallocate the Council's own resources within 

the Capital Programme
Dave Powell

Legionella Management 185 -63 122 175 175 472 122 g

Update the Capital 

Programme in line with 

latest cost projections

Reallocate the Council's own resources within 

the Capital Programme
Dave Powell

Housing & Regeneration 10 -3 7 148 0 155 7

Invest to Save Initiatives 1,128 -232 896 251 0 1,147 896 g

Realign budgets in line 

with the latest cashflow 

forecasts

Re-profile budget from 2019/20 into 2020/21 Steve Lock

Total Corporate Estates 4,226 1,018 5,244 1,324 925 7,493 5,244

Group Total 4,953 1,444 6,397 2,068 1,625 10,090 6,397

Chief Executive Chris Bradshaw

Head of Finance Martyn Hughes

3 Year Capital Programme 2019 - 2022

Scheme

2019/2020 

Budget 

Variance

2019/2020 

Budget as 

at 31st 

March 2020

2019/2020 

Budget as 

at 31st 

December 

2019

Management Action Agreed
Responsible 

Officer
Commentary

2019/2020 

Actual Spend 

as at 31st 

March 2020

Is
s

u
e

s2020/2021 

Budget

2021/2022 

Budget

Total 3 

Year 

Budget

T
udalen 112



Prosperity, Development and Frontline Services Section 3b

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Prosperity & Development

Planning & Regeneration

Business Support Grants 349 -57 292 257 200 749 292 g
Realign budgets in line with latest 

cashflow forecasts Reprofile budget from 2019/20 into 2020/21
Simon Gale

Taff Vale Development 26,228 -1,814 24,414 7,061 0 31,475 24,414 g
Update Capital programme in line 

with latest cost projection Reprofile budget from 2019/20 into 2020/21
Simon Gale

Targeted Regeneration Investment (TRI) 

Programme Regional
383 -233 150 1,087 0 1,237 150 g

Realign budgets in line with latest 

cashflow forecasts Reprofile budget from 2019/20 into 2020/21
Simon Gale

TRI Bingo Hall (Pontypridd) 0 1,328 1,328 1,341 0 2,669 1,328 g New scheme

Re-allocate the Council's own resources within the 

Capital Programme and introduce WG Targeted 

Regeneration Investment grant funding

Simon Gale

Regeneration Investment 518 24 542 827 400 1,769 542 

Robertstown Development 50 -21 29 5,123 0 5,152 29 

Coed Ely Development 1,706 -692 1,014 3,106 59 4,179 1,014 g
Realign budgets in line with latest 

cashflow forecasts Reprofile budget from 2019/20 into 2020/21
Simon Gale

Hirwaun Industrial Estate 50 -14 36 14 0 50 36 

RCT Tracks and Trails Development 20 -20 0 120 40 160 0 

Pontypridd YMCA 500 -191 309 1,461 0 1,770 309 g
Realign budgets in line with latest 

cashflow forecasts Reprofile budget from 2019/20 into 2020/21
Simon Gale

VRP Discovery Gateways Dare Valley Country 

Park
1,348 -138 1,210 138 0 1,348 1,210 g

Realign budgets in line with latest 

cashflow forecasts Reprofile budget from 2019/20 into 2020/21
Simon Gale

VRP Discovery Gateways Ynysangharad War 

Memorial Park
0 0 0 310 0 310 0 

Porth Interchange Metro+ LTF 820 -30 790 30 0 820 790 

Total Planning & Regeneration 31,972 -1,858 30,114 20,875 699 51,688 30,114

Private Sector Housing 

Disabled Facilities Grants/Adaptations (DFG) 3,897 -146 3,751 4,000 4,000 11,751 3,751 g
Realign budgets in line with latest 

cashflow forecasts Reprofile budget from 2019/20 into 2020/21
Simon Gale

Maintenance  Repair Assistance (MRA) 554 -77 477 450 450 1,377 477 g
Realign budgets in line with latest 

cashflow forecasts Reprofile budget from 2019/20 into 2020/21
Simon Gale

Renovation Grants Exceptional Circumstances 

& Home Improvement Zones
733 -9 724 767 450 1,941 724

Empty Properties Grants Investment 1,557 -632 925 0 1,532 2,457 925 g
Realign budgets in line with latest 

cashflow forecasts Reprofile budget from 2019/20 into 2021/22
Simon Gale

Valleys Taskforce RCT+ Empty Homes 4,500 -4,146 354 3,272 0 3,626 354 g
Update Capital programme in line 

with latest cost projection Reprofile budget from 2019/20 into 2020/21
Simon Gale

Affordable Housing 403 -373 30 903 800 1,733 30 g
Update Capital programme in line 

with latest cost projection

Reprofile budget from 2019/20 into 2020/21 and 

2021/22
Simon Gale

Storm Dennis - Emergency Flood Recovery 

Grant
0 0 0 800 0 800 0 g New scheme

Re-allocate the Council's own resources within the 

Capital Programme and introduce Revenue funding
Simon Gale

Tackling Poverty Fund 0 0 0 300 0 300 0

Community Regeneration 256 -126 130 250 250 630 130 g
Realign budgets in line with latest 

cashflow forecasts

Re-allocate the Council's own resources within the 

Capital Programme and reprofile budget from 

2019/20 into 2020/21

Simon Gale

Total Private Sector Housing 11,900 -5,509 6,391 10,742 7,482 24,615 6,391

Total Prosperity & Development 43,872 -7,367 36,505 31,617 8,181 76,303 36,505

Scheme

2019/2020 

Actual Spend 

as at 31st 

March 2020 Is
s

u
e

s

2020/2021 

Budget

2019/2020 

Budget as at 

31st 

December 

2019

3 Year Capital Programme 2019 - 2022

2019/2020 

Budget as at 

31st March 

2020

Commentary Management Action Agreed
Responsible 

Officer

2019/2020 

Budget 

Variance

2021/2022 

Budget

Total 3 Year 

Budget

T
udalen 113



Prosperity, Development and Frontline Services Section 3b

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Scheme

2019/2020 

Actual Spend 

as at 31st 

March 2020 Is
s

u
e

s

2020/2021 

Budget

2019/2020 

Budget as at 

31st 

December 

2019

3 Year Capital Programme 2019 - 2022

2019/2020 

Budget as at 

31st March 

2020

Commentary Management Action Agreed
Responsible 

Officer

2019/2020 

Budget 

Variance

2021/2022 

Budget

Total 3 Year 

Budget

Frontline Services

Highways Technical Services

Highways Improvements 10,473 -247 10,226 8,095 3,804 22,125 10,226 g
Update Capital programme in line 

with latest cost projection

Re-allocate the Council's own resources within the 

Capital Programme
Roger Waters

Car Parks 45 -5 40 76 45 161 40

Structures 5,186 -251 4,935 6,521 300 11,756 4,935 g
Update Capital programme in line 

with latest cost projection Reprofile budget from 2019/20 into 2020/21 Roger Waters

Parks Structures 750 -359 391 1,385 0 1,776 391 g
Update Capital programme in line 

with latest cost projection

Re-allocate the Council's own resources and 

introduce borrowing to the Capital Programme
Roger Waters

Street Lighting 432 -78 354 278 200 832 354 g
Realign budgets in line with 

service priorities Reprofile budget from 2019/20 into 2020/21 Roger Waters

Total Highways Technical Services 16,886 -940 15,946 16,355 4,349 36,650 15,946

Strategic Projects

Transportation and Travel Schemes 3,566 53 3,619 999 0 4,618 3,619 g
Update Capital programme in line 

with latest cost projection

Reprofile budget from 2019/20 into 2020/21 and 

introduce additional WG Active Travel Fund grant 

funding

Roger Waters

Safe Routes in Communities 296 35 331 0 0 331 331

Transportation Infrastructure 8,873 -187 8,686 11,062 2,525 22,273 8,686 g
Update Capital programme in line 

with latest cost projection

Reprofile budget from 2019/20 into 2020/21 and 

introduce additional WG Local Transport Fund 

grant, borrowing and Revenue funding

Roger Waters

Traffic Management 632 3 635 214 160 1,009 635

Drainage Improvements 1,146 292 1,438 949 140 2,527 1,438 g
Update Capital programme in line 

with latest cost projection

Reprofile budget from 2019/20 into 2020/21 and 

introduce WG Flood & Coastal Erosion Risk 

Management grant and additional WG Land 

Drainage grant funding

Roger Waters

Land Reclamation 11 3 14 0 0 14 14

Total Strategic Projects 14,524 199 14,723 13,224 2,825 30,772 14,723

Waste Strategy

Waste Strategy 8,355 598 8,953 2,690 0 11,643 8,953 g
Update Capital programme in line 

with latest cost projection

Reprofile budget from 2019/20 into 2020/21 and 

introduce WG Development Costs for Waste 

Strategy grant, WG Circular Economy Fund grant 

and Revenue funding

Nigel Wheeler

Total Waste Strategy 8,355 598 8,953 2,690 0 11,643 8,953

T
udalen 114



Prosperity, Development and Frontline Services Section 3b

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Scheme

2019/2020 

Actual Spend 

as at 31st 

March 2020 Is
s

u
e

s

2020/2021 

Budget

2019/2020 

Budget as at 

31st 

December 

2019

3 Year Capital Programme 2019 - 2022

2019/2020 

Budget as at 

31st March 

2020

Commentary Management Action Agreed
Responsible 

Officer

2019/2020 

Budget 

Variance

2021/2022 

Budget

Total 3 Year 

Budget

Fleet

Vehicles 940 16 956 6,244 1,573 8,773 956

Total Fleet 940 16 956 6,244 1,573 8,773 956

Buildings

Buildings 185 -171 14 157 100 271 14 g
Realign budgets in line with 

service priorities
Reprofile budget from 2019/20 into 2020/21 Nigel Wheeler

Capitalised Equipment 0 71 71 0 0 71 71 g
Realign budgets in line with 

service priorities

Introduce Revenue funding into the Capital 

Programme
Nigel Wheeler

Total Buildings 185 -100 85 157 100 342 85

Total Frontline Services 40,890 -227 40,663 38,670 8,847 88,180 40,663

Group Total 84,762 -7,594 77,168 70,287 17,028 164,483 77,168

Group Director Nigel Wheeler

Head of Finance Martyn HughesT
udalen 115



Education and Inclusion Services Section 3c

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Schools

Aberdare School & Sports Centre 395 -394 1 394 0 395 1 g
Realign budgets in line with 

latest cashflow forecasts
Reprofile budget from 2019/20 into 2020/21 Chris Bradshaw

Y Pant Comprehensive School 138 0 138 0 0 138 138

School Modernisation Rhondda and Tonyrefail 10,491 -2,458 8,033 7,321 52 15,406 8,033 g
Realign budgets in line with 

latest cashflow forecasts
Reprofile budget from 2019/20 into 2020/21 Chris Bradshaw

School Modernisation 200 528 728 2,680 140 3,548 728 g
Update Capital programme in 

line with latest cost projections
Reprofile budget from 2019/20 into 2020/21 Chris Bradshaw

Cwmaman Community Primary School 9 -6 3 36 0 39 3

Ffynnon Taf Primary Refurbishment and Extension 631 -267 364 1,881 0 2,245 364 g
Realign budgets in line with 

latest cashflow forecasts
Reprofile budget from 2019/20 into 2020/21 Chris Bradshaw

St John Baptist Church in Wales High School 208 0 208 0 0 208 208

Reducing Infant Class Sizes 1,662 -465 1,197 1,117 0 2,314 1,197 g
Realign budgets in line with 

latest cashflow forecasts
Reprofile budget from 2019/20 into 2020/21 Chris Bradshaw

SRIC - School Modernisation Programme 71 -71 0 571 0 571 0 g
Realign budgets in line with 

latest cashflow forecasts
Reprofile budget from 2019/20 into 2020/21 Chris Bradshaw

WG Welsh Medium Capital Grant 790 -375 415 395 0 810 415 g
Realign budgets in line with 

latest cashflow forecasts
Reprofile budget from 2019/20 into 2020/21 Chris Bradshaw

WG Childcare Grant 2,929 -1,425 1,504 4,008 22 5,534 1,504 g
Update Capital programme in 

line with latest cost projections

Reprofile budgets between 2019/20, 2020/21 and 

2021/22
Chris Bradshaw

WG Flying Start 0 47 47 0 0 47 47 g New scheme Introduce WG Flying Start grant funding Chris Bradshaw

21st Century Schools Band B

Hirwaun Primary School 3,312 -178 3,134 6,255 354 9,743 3,134 g
Realign budgets in line with 

latest cashflow forecasts
Reprofile budget from 2019/20 into 2020/21 Chris Bradshaw

Total 20,836 -5,064 15,772 24,658 568 40,998 15,772

Scheme

2019/2020 

Budget 

Variance

3 Year Capital Programme 2019 - 2022

2021/2022 

Budget

2020/2021 

Budget

2019/2020 

Budget as at 

31st 

December 

2019

2019/2020 

Budget as at 

31st March 

2020

Responsible 

Officer

2019/2020 

Actual Spend 

as at 31st 

March 2020 Is
s
u

e
s

Commentary

Total 3 

Year 

Budget

Management Action Agreed

T
udalen 116



Education and Inclusion Services Section 3c

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Scheme

2019/2020 

Budget 

Variance

3 Year Capital Programme 2019 - 2022

2021/2022 

Budget

2020/2021 

Budget

2019/2020 

Budget as at 

31st 

December 

2019

2019/2020 

Budget as at 

31st March 

2020

Responsible 

Officer

2019/2020 

Actual Spend 

as at 31st 

March 2020 Is
s
u

e
s

Commentary

Total 3 

Year 

Budget

Management Action Agreed

Supplementary Capital Programme

Planned Kitchen Refurbishments 703 -43 660 740 200 1,600 660

Window & Door Replacements 263 -57 206 328 150 684 206 g
Update Capital programme in 

line with latest cost projections

Reprofile budget from 2019/20 into 2020/21 and 

introduce WG Capital Funding Towards Schools 

Maintenance Budgets grant funding into the Capital 

programme

Gaynor Davies

Essential Works 1,960 -304 1,656 2,844 400 4,900 1,656 g
Update Capital programme in 

line with latest cost projections

Reprofile budget from 2019/20 into 2020/21 and 

introduce WG Capital Funding Towards Schools 

Maintenance Budgets grant funding into the Capital 

programme

Gaynor Davies

Capitalisation of Computer HW / SW & Licences 239 2,692 2,931 267 250 3,448 2,931 g
Update Capital programme in 

line with latest cost projections

Introduce Revenue funding and WG Hwb in Schools 

Infrastructure grant funding into the Capital 

programme

Gaynor Davies

Roof Renewal 953 -86 867 1,489 700 3,056 867 g
Update Capital programme in 

line with latest cost projections

Reprofile budget from 2019/20 into 2020/21 and 

introduce Revenue and WG Capital Funding Towards 

Schools Maintenance Budgets grant funding into the 

Capital programme

Gaynor Davies

Boiler Replacement 347 11 358 432 250 1,040 358

Equalities Act/Compliance Works 488 -70 418 533 225 1,176 418 g
Update Capital programme in 

line with latest cost projections

Reprofile budget from 2019/20 into 2020/21 and 

introduce WG Capital Funding Towards Schools 

Maintenance Budgets grant funding into the Capital 

programme

Gaynor Davies

Education & Inclusion Services Condition Surveys 127 -76 51 126 50 227 51 g
Update Capital programme in 

line with latest cost projections
Reprofile budget from 2019/20 into 2020/21 Gaynor Davies

Electrical Rewiring 225 -90 135 381 200 716 135 g
Update Capital programme in 

line with latest cost projections

Reprofile budget from 2019/20 into 2020/21 and 

introduce WG Capital Funding Towards Schools 

Maintenance Budgets grant funding into the Capital 

programme

Gaynor Davies

Asbestos Remediation Work 902 -477 425 1,810 900 3,135 425 g
Update Capital programme in 

line with latest cost projections

Reprofile budget from 2019/20 into 2020/21 and 

introduce WG Capital Funding Towards Schools 

Maintenance Budgets grant funding into the Capital 

programme

Gaynor Davies

Fire Alarm Upgrades 141 -30 111 130 100 341 111

Toilet Refurbishments 362 72 434 719 350 1,503 434 g
Update Capital programme in 

line with latest cost projections

Reprofile budget from 2019/20 into 2020/21 and 

introduce WG Capital Funding Towards Schools 

Maintenance Budgets grant funding into the Capital 

programme

Gaynor Davies

Schools Investment Programme 4,286 -789 3,497 1,348 0 4,845 3,497 g
Update Capital programme in 

line with latest cost projections

Reprofile budget from 2019/20 into 2020/21 and 

introduce WG Capital Funding Towards Schools 

Maintenance Budgets grant funding into the Capital 

programme

Gaynor Davies

Improvements to Schools 100 180 280 100 100 480 280 g
Update Capital programme in 

line with latest cost projections

Introduce Revenue funding into the Capital 

Programme
Gaynor Davies

Capitalisation of Other Education Expenditure 0 83 83 0 0 83 83 g
Update Capital programme in 

line with latest cost projections

Introduce Revenue funding into the Capital 

Programme
Gaynor Davies

Total 11,096 1,016 12,112 11,247 3,875 27,234 12,112

Group Total 31,932 -4,048 27,884 35,905 4,443 68,232 27,884

Director of Education and Inclusion Services Gaynor Davies

Head of Finance Stephanie Davies

T
udalen 117



Community and Children's Services Section 3d

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Adult & Children's Services

Modernisation Programme (Adults) 4,552 -1,228 3,324 4,161 5,200 12,685  3,324 g
Realign budgets in line with latest 

cashflow forecasts

Reprofile budget from 2019/20 into 

2020/21 and 2021/22
Neil Elliott

Modernisation Programme (Childrens) 280 -2 278 132 50 460 278

Asbestos Remediation 45 -44 1 45 45 91 1

Telecare Equipment (Inc of Carelink 

Equipment)
164 -79 85 379 200 664  85 g

Realign budgets in line with latest 

cashflow forecasts

Reprofile budget from 2019/20 into 

2020/21
Neil Elliott

Capitalisation of Computer HW / 

SW/Licences & Equipment
125 -2 123 0 0 123 123

Total Adult & Children's Services 5,166 -1,355 3,811 4,717 5,495 14,023  3,811

 

Public Health, Protection & Community Services

Leisure Centre Refurbishment 

Programme
906 -242 664 282 90 1,036 664 g

Realign budgets in line with latest 

cashflow forecasts

Reprofile budget from 2019/20 into 

2020/21 Dave Batten

Parks & Countryside 3,007 -152 2,855 1,379 100 4,334 2,855 g
Realign budgets in line with latest 

cashflow forecasts

Reprofile budget from 2019/20 into 

2020/21 Dave Batten

Play Areas 918 -292 626 936 50 1,612 626 g
Realign budgets in line with latest 

cashflow forecasts

Reprofile budget from 2019/20 into 

2020/21 Dave Batten

Cemeteries Planned Programme 588 -124 464 259 135 858 464 g
Realign budgets in line with latest 

cashflow forecasts

Reprofile budget from 2019/20 into 

2020/21
Dave Batten

Community Safety Initiatives 144 -3 141 53 50 244 141

Libraries

Libraries 0 1 1 0 0 1 1

Community Hubs 821 13 834 401 0 1,235 834

Culture 412 -36 376 57 20 453 376 

Buildings 171 -108 63 158 50 271 63 g
Realign budgets in line with latest 

cashflow forecasts

Reprofile budget from 2019/20 into 

2020/21
Paul Mee

Total Public Health, Protection & 

Community Services
6,967 -943 6,024 3,525 495 10,044 6,024

Group Total 12,133 -2,298 9,835 8,242 5,990 24,067 9,835

Group Director Giovanni Isingrini

Head of Finance Neil Griffiths

2019/2020 

Budget as at 

31st March 

2020

Scheme
Responsible 

Officer
Commentary

Is
s

u
e

s

Total 3 Year 

Budget
Management Action Agreed

 2019/2020 

Actual Spend 

as at 31st 

March 2020 

3 Year Capital Programme 2019 - 2022

2019/2020 

Budget as at 

31st 

December 

2019

2021/2022 

Budget

2019/2020 

Budget 

Variance

2020/2021 

Budget

T
udalen 118



Section 3e

 

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 Total

£M £M £M £M

Chief Executive 6.397 2.068 1.625 10.090

Prosperity, Development & Frontline Services 77.168 70.287 17.028 164.483

Education and Inclusion 27.884 35.905 4.443 68.232

Community and Children's Services 9.835 8.242 5.990 24.067

Total 121.284 116.502 29.086 266.872

Estimated Resources Required to Fund Capital Programme

Supported Borrowing 6.906 6.829 6.829 20.564

Unsupported Borrowing 29.589 26.686 5.610 61.885

Total 36.495 33.515 12.439 82.449

Capital Grants

General Capital Grant annual base allocation 8.444 4.156 4.156 16.756

General Capital Grant additional allocation 2020/21 0.000 2.692 0.000 2.692

General Capital Grant additional allocation 2018/19 carry forward 6.260 0.000 6.260

WG Capital Funding to support Economic Stimulus within Local 

Authorities 1.555 1.555

WG Building For The Future ERDF Programme 1.214 1.214

WEFO ERDF Modern Industrial Units Developments 0.550 4.391 0.039 4.980

WG Targeted Regeneration Investment (TRI) Programme 1.572 1.768 3.340

WG Enabling Natural Resources and Wellbeing 0.036 0.100 0.032 0.168

WG Valleys Regional Park Discovery Gateways Capital Grant 0.804 0.296 1.100

WG Valleys Taskforce RCT+ Empty Homes Grant 0.354 3.272 3.626

WG Local Transport Fund 2.941 0.097 3.038

WG Active Travel Fund 2.786 0.121 2.907

WG Active Travel Fund Core Allocation 0.312 0.249 0.561

WG Local Transport Network Fund 0.507 0.093 0.600

WG Local Road Refurbishment Grant 2.502 1.261 3.763

Metro Plus 0.214 0.214

Dept for Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy 0.025 0.025

WG Safe Routes In The Community 0.296 0.296

WG Road Safety Grant 0.365 0.030 0.395

WG Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management Grant 0.550 0.550

WG Development Costs for Waste Management Grant 0.473 0.473

WG Eco Park Development 0.065 0.065

WG Museums, Archives & Libraries Division 0.050 0.050

WG Welsh Medium Capital Grant 0.415 0.395 0.000 0.810

Drainage Improvement Grants 0.335 0.335

WG Land Reclamation Schemes 0.014 0.014

WG Circular Economy Fund 0.055 0.055

WG Absorbent Hygiene Product (AHP) Waste Programme in Wales 

Grant 0.158 1.012 1.170

WG 21st Century Schools 8.285 4.762 13.047

WG 21st Century Schools & Education Programme - Community 

Hubs Capital Scheme 0.424 0.636 1.060

WG Reducing Infant Class Sizes 1.170 0.370 1.540

WG Flying Start Grant 0.215 0.028 0.243

WG Childcare Offer Capital Grant Programme 1.564 4.758 0.022 6.344

WG Capital Funding Grant Towards School Maintenance Budgets 3.460 3.460

WG Hwb in Schools Infrastructure Grant 2.619 2.619

WG ENABLE 0.293 0.317 0.610

Integrated Care Fund 3.260 3.260

Grantscape Windfarm Community Benefit Fund 0.000 0.017 0.017

WG Post 16 Digital 2030 Grant 0.026 0.026

Arts Council of Wales 0.135 0.135

Heritage Lottery Grant 0.019 0.019

Sport Wales Grant 0.081 0.081

Total 54.403 30.821 4.249 89.473

Third Party Contributions 8.822 1.230 0.010 10.062

Council Resources

Revenue Contributions 17.840 35.482 8.433 61.755

General Fund Capital Resources 3.724 15.454 3.955 23.133

Total 21.564 50.936 12.388 84.888

Total Resources Required to Fund Capital Programme 121.284 116.502 29.086 266.872

Difference Total Spend to Total Resources 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Capital Programme from 1st April 2019 to 31st March 2022

Group

Tudalen 119



Section 3f 
 
Prudential Indicators 2019/20 (as at 31st March 2020) 
 
 
 

Indicator 

2019/20 
Actual 

as at 31st 
March 
£’000 

2019/20 
Outturn 

as at 31st 
March 
£’000 

2019/20 
Estimate / 

Limit 
 

£’000 

Comments 

     

Indicator : 
Limits to 
Borrowing 
Activity (Net 
Borrowing) 

   

 

Gross Borrowing 373,100 373,100 379,031 Gross borrowing 
should not exceed 
the Council's Capital 
Financing 
requirement. 

Capital Financing 
Requirement 

493,487 493,487 505,600 

     

Indicator : The 
Authorised Limit 

   
 

Gross Borrowing 372,645 372,645 510,000 The limit beyond 
which borrowing is 
prohibited. 

Other long term 
liabilities  

455 455 2,000 

    

     

Indicator : The 
Operational 
Boundary 

   
 

Gross Borrowing 372,645 372,645 380,000 This indicator acts 
as a warning signal 
to protect the 
authorised limit. 

Other long term 
liabilities  

455 455 1,000 

    

Tudalen 120



 

Indicator 

2019/20 
Actual 

as at 31st 
March 

2019/20 
Outturn as 

at 31st 
March 

2019/20 
Estimate / 

Limit 
 

Comments 

Indicator : 
Maturity 
Structure 

    

Under 12 months 13% 13%  0% - 70% 

These limits protect 
the Council from 
being exposed to 
large fixed rate loans 
becoming repayable 
and due for 
refinancing within 
similar timescales. 

12 months to 2 
years 

3% 3% 0% - 70% 

2 years to 5 years 10% 10% 0% - 60% 

5 years to 10 
years 

17% 17% 0% - 70% 

10 years to 20 
years 

8% 8% 0% - 90% 

20 Years to 30 
years 

0% 0% 0% - 90% 

30 years to 40 
years 

49% 49% 0% - 90% 

40 years to 50 
years 

0% 0% 0% - 90% 

     

Indicator : Total 
principal funds 
invested 

   
 

Maximum 
invested over 1 yr 

£4.25 million * £4.25million * £25 million 

To ensure that day 
to day cash-flow 
requirements are not 
compromised by 
investing for long 
periods. 

 
 
*The total value of the long term investment is £4.5million of which £0.25 million is being 
repaid within one year 
 

Tudalen 121



Summary of Council Sickness Absence by Group and Service Area 
 

QUARTER 4 2019/20 
 

% Total  
% <28 
Days 

% >28 
Days 

Staff 
Turnover 

COUNCIL WIDE 
(Headcount 10,670) 

4.16 1.18 2.98 
9.85% 
1,051 

COMMUNITY & CHILDREN’S SERVICES 
(Headcount 2,883) 

5.59 1.40 4.19 
8.50% 

245 

PROSPERITY, DEVELOPMENT & FRONTLINE 
SERVICES  
(Headcount 964) 

4.74 1.06 3.68 
8.40% 

81 

EDUCATION & INCLUSION SERVICES  
(Headcount 1,265) 

3.70 1.13 2.57 
8.14% 

103 

SCHOOLS 
(Headcount 4,855) 

3.56 1.13 2.43 
11.64% 

565 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S DIVISION  
(Headcount 703) 

2.39 0.90 1.49 
8.11% 

57 

 
 

COMMUNITY & CHILDREN’S SERVICES  
 

% Total  
% <28 
Days 

% >28 
Days 

Staff 
Turnover 

Total  
(Headcount 2,883) 

5.59 1.40 4.19 
8.50% 

245 

Accommodation Services 
(Headcount 531) 

7.79 1.84 5.95 
4.33% 

23 

Adult Direct Services (and Group Director)  

(Headcount 182) 
6.14 1.71 4.43 

13.74% 
25 

Adult Short Term Intervention 
(Headcount 527) 

7.28 1.66 5.62 
9.87% 

52 

Adult Social Work Services 
(Headcount 163) 

6.82 1.55 5.27 
13.50% 

22 

Business Support Adults 
(Headcount 38) 

4.28 1.30 2.98 
13.16% 

5 

Children’s Services1 
(Headcount 662) 

4.63 1.30 3.33 
7.85% 

52 

Public Health & Protection & Community 
Services 
(Headcount 700)  

3.40 0.91 2.49 
8.71% 

61 

Safeguarding2 
(Headcount 16) 

2.27 0.05 2.22 
0.00% 

0 

Transformation 
(Headcount 64) 

4.20 1.02 3.18 
7.81% 

5 

  

                                                 
1 Includes Children's Commissioning Consortium Cymru (Headcount 7) 

 
2 Includes Regional Commissioning Unit (Headcount 1) 

Tudalen 122



 

PROSPERITY, DEVELOPMENT & 
FRONTLINE SERVICES  
 

 
% Total  

% <28 
Days 

% >28 
Days 

Staff 
Turnover 

Total 
(Headcount 964) 

4.74 1.06 3.68 
8.40% 

81 

Frontline Services (and Group Director) 
(Headcount 841) 

4.70 1.08 3.62 
8.57% 

72 

Prosperity & Development 

(Headcount 123)  
5.00 0.92 4.08 

7.32% 
9 

 
 

EDUCATION & INCLUSION SERVICES  
 

% Total  
% <28 
Days 

% >28 
Days 

Staff 
Turnover 

Total 
(Headcount 1,265) 

3.70 1.13 2.57 
8.14% 

103 

Education Improvement & Inclusion 
Services 
(Headcount 230) 

3.21 1.10 2.11 
6.96% 

16 

21st Century Schools 
(Headcount 1,035) 

3.81 1.13 2.68 
8.41% 

87 

 

SCHOOLS 
 

% Total  
% <28 
Days 

% >28 
Days 

Staff 
Turnover 

Total 
(Headcount 4,855) 

3.56 1.13 2.43 
11.64% 

565 

Primary Schools 
(Headcount 3,066) 

3.79 1.10 2.69 
9.95% 

305 

Secondary Schools 
(Headcount 1,789) 

3.16 1.17 1.99 
14.53% 

260 

 
 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S DIVISION 
 

% Total  
% <28 
Days 

% >28 
Days 

Staff 
Turnover 

Total 
(Headcount 703) 

2.39 0.90 1.49 
8.11% 

57 

Cabinet Office & Public Relations (and Chief 
Executive) 

(Headcount 27) 
0.35 0.35 0.00 

7.41% 
2 

Corporate Estates 
(Headcount 87) 

3.01 0.97 2.04 
12.64% 

11 

Financial & Digital Services  
(Headcount 276) 

2.66 0.91 1.75 
5.80% 

16 

Human Resources 
(Headcount 271) 

2.15 0.90 1.25 
9.59% 

26 

Legal Services 
(Headcount 42) 

2.03 0.97 1.06 
4.76% 

2 

 

Tudalen 123



COUNCIL PERFORMANCE REPORT (QUARTER 4 - 31st March 2020)

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER UP DATE 

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER UPDATES 2019/20

I L RATING

1 LIVING 

WITHIN  

OUR 

MEANS

Barrie Davies If the Council does not ensure that the 

investment and financial planning decisions 

are aimed at long term stability and 

sustainability, it will be unable to deliver 

effective services to residents and 

businesses within the County Borough.

CONTROLS

• Decision making arrangements need to demonstrate links with the Council’s Corporate Plan priorities (that are 

themselves aligned to the Well-being of Future Generations Act);

• Investment and financial planning decisions are subject to Cabinet approval and where appropriate pre-scrutiny; and 

• A requirement for the Council to forecast its revenue budget over the medium term and set a rolling three year Capital 

Programme. 

ACTIONS

• Budget holders and Finance / Performance officers working together to ensure: 

o Robust and deliverable annual revenue budgets and 3 year capital programme are set taking into account Corporate 

Plan priorities. 

o In year operational performance results are in line with targets and the agreed capital / revenue resources and 

additional investment funding approved. 

o The Council’s year-end Statement of Accounts (SoA) receive an unqualified opinion (i.e. clean bill of health) and 

General Balances are at an appropriate level as determined by the Responsible Finance Office i.e.  a minimum of £10M. 

• The public reporting of financial and operational performance information during the year to enable results to be 

scrutinised and designated elected members and officers held to account; and 

• Applying a medium term financial planning approach to service planning to enable the Council to effectively plan future 

service delivery in line with expected resources available.  

5 4 20 (ORIGINAL RISK RATING 5x4=20) The year-end Performance Report for 2019/20 shows a revenue budget overspend (i.e. £0.289M) 

against a total net budget of £483.469M and incorporates significant additional cost pressures, particularly in respect of adult social 

care and the recovery costs from Storm Dennis, as well as accompanying one-off Welsh Government funding to partly off-set these. 

During the year, there was a continued focus on Medium Term Financial Planning (MTFP) to help ensure the on-going delivery of 

robust financial and service planning arrangements now and into the future, and continued investment in essential services in line with 

Corporate Plan priorities. The current MTFP does however forecast a financial outlook that remains extremely challenging, with the 

scale of the challenge now becoming both significantly heightened and uncertain due to the impact of Storm Dennis and COVID-19. 

The well embedded arrangements of robust financial and service management will be critical in continuing to support the Council in 

navigating its way through an unprecedented period. This will include: delivering a balanced budget for 2020/21; producing an interim 

MTFP to forecast the scale of the challenge over the next 3 years alongside a mid-year review for 2020/21; claiming for eligible 

additional costs / income loss / capital and infrastructure repair costs to Welsh Government due to the impact of COVID-19 and Storm 

Dennis; identifying further opportunities for on-going investment in Corporate Plan priority areas; and progressing the formulation of a 

draft 2021/22 budget strategy (on the basis of the continued delivery of budget savings).  

It will be critically important that additional funding to address on-going permanent cost pressures remains in place for 2020/21 and 

beyond, together with support to enable the Council to tackle the unprecedented impact of COVID-19 on communities across Rhondda 

Cynon Taf. No change to the risk rating. 

2 PEOPLE Annabel Lloyd If the  priorities for Children's Services (CiN, 

CPR & CLA) are not managed effectively 

then the ability of the Council to effectively 

support vulnerable children and families and 

meet the requirements of the Social 

Services & Wellbeing (Wales) Act may be 

compromised.

CONTROLS

• C&S – monitored through Children Services Management Team on a quarterly bases.

• CP: Monitored through the Cwm Taf Safeguarding Quality Assurance Group that reports to the Safeguarding Board on 

a quarterly bases.

• CLA: Monitored through the CLA Strategic Group and CLA Quality Assurance Group that meets monthly.

ACTIONS

• CLA - plan in place to continue to work to reducing CLA. This covers close monitoring of those who come into the 

system and those who need to leave the system. This includes putting in systems that challenges decision making at 

relevant points in process, auditing, monitoring and analysis trends.

• CP - the quality assurance group have a plan of auditing a number of aspects of those children on the child protection 

register that fall into a number of identified categories: i.e. those who have been on the register for over a year.

• C&S – Plan to redesign the delivery of Early Intervention Services (Resilience Families Programme) to look at how early 

intervention services are delivered.

5 3 15 (ORIGINAL RISK RATING: 5x3=15)

This continues to be a strategic risk and no amendment to the risk rating should be made. We continue to see an increase in the 

number of children accessing services. Due to the complexity of needs, families  are requiring services longer which puts continued 

pressures on services across Children’s Services.  The impact of the Covid 19 means that looked after numbers  will increase in year 

due to delays in work on safe exits from the looked after system. The temporary dip in the rate of referral as partners adjusted their 

services under lock down, the halt in preventative face to face work with families, and the impact for vulnerable families of having to 

stay at home is likely to lead to an increase in demand for statutory children’s services.     

3 PEOPLE Neil Elliott The changing demographics and potential 

increase in demand to social services may 

impact on the ability of the Council to 

safeguard its vulnerable adults and keep 

citizens independent for longer.  If we do not 

continue to modernise services (working 

with partners including Health and Third 

Sector) in line with the SS@WB Act this may 

result in inappropriate care and support and 

increased costs of providing services.

CONTROLS

The multi-agency Transformational Leadership  and Strategic Partnership groups are now in place reporting  to the Cwm 

Taff Social Services & Wellbeing Board and Cwm Taff Public Service Board to maximise integration opportunities across 

the region. 

ACTIONS

• Stay well @ Home Service in place

• Statement of Intent for Older People’s Services 

• Population needs assessments 

• Adult Services Improvement/development plans being developed with partners focusing on early intervention, 

prevention and support. 

5 3 15 (ORIGINAL RISK RATING: 5x3=15)

We continue to experience increases in people with higher levels of complex needs, which are placing pressure across the health and 

social care system. We are working closely with our partners and providers to focus on early intervention and prevention approaches to 

manage this demand and ensure people are supported to live as independently as possible, but also ensure we are able to prioritise 

those most at risk, and in need of care and support services.

 

The COVID-19 Pandemic outbreak has placed increased pressures on Adult Services, and we are currently concentrating support on 

those who are most vulnerable to ensure they are safe and well and receiving the support needed during this time. All our care and 

support services are under regular review and no changes are proposed to the risk rating at this stage.

6 LIVING 

WITHIN  

OUR 

MEANS

Tim Jones If the Council does not manage its 

information assets in accordance with 

requirements set down within legislation 

then it may be faced with financial penalties 

and possible sanctions that hinder service 

delivery.

CONTROLS

• Governance Structures are in place and the Council has a designated SIRO.

• Policies and Procedures are in place.

• Designated team in place that provides on-going training and also undertake investigations that involve potential 

breaches.

• External Reviews & Accreditation e.g. PSN, PCI, WAO.

ACTIONS

• GDPR gap analysis to be completed in readiness for May 2018.

• Continue to review technology measures and update as necessary.

• Continue to investigate and report potential events/incidents.

• Continue with external reviews and attain accreditations for PSN/PCI.

• Deliver risk-based training / regular communication, face to face and via e-learning, staffing bulletins, global emails.

5 2 10 (ORIGINAL RISK RATING: 4x3=12)

Significant work has been undertaken by the Information Management Team during the quarter to strengthen GDPR compliance, 

minimise the risk of personal data breaches and enforcement action by the Information Commissioner. Key deliverables include: 

• Data Protection Impact Assessments are now being conducted for key data processing activities to help identify and minimise data 

protection risks. 

• Crime and taxation exemption guidance now published. 

• Data Protection Register (DPR) entries and privacy notices developed and approved for Adults Services and the vast majority of 

Children’s Services processing. These are in the process of being uploaded to the new electronic Data Protection Register 

(Corestream). 

• A review of DPR entries and privacy notices has commenced for Education Services.  

No change to the risk rating.

QTR 4 UPDATE 2019/20

Strategic 

Risk 

Register 

Reference

COUNCIL 

PRIORITY

RESPONSIBLE 

OFFICER
RISK DESCRIPTION CONTROLS & ACTIONS

Risk Rating QTR 4 

2019/20

T
udalen 124



COUNCIL PERFORMANCE REPORT (QUARTER 4 - 31st March 2020)

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER UP DATE 

I L RATING QTR 4 UPDATE 2019/20

Strategic 

Risk 

Register 

Reference

COUNCIL 

PRIORITY

RESPONSIBLE 

OFFICER
RISK DESCRIPTION CONTROLS & ACTIONS

Risk Rating QTR 4 

2019/20

11 ECONOMY Simon Gale If projects aimed at regenerating the local 

communities through the Council’s 

investment programme are not planned, 

procured and managed effectively by the 

Council, then delivery could be severely 

compromised and the benefits lost.

CONTROLS and ACTIONS

Robust service delivery arrangements and governance structures are in place to ensure the successful delivery of key 

strategic regenerations projects. This includes: 

• Developing effective business cases for individual projects to ensure they are viable and cost effective.

• Involving stakeholders to support the delivery of key interventions from across the Council, other public Bodies, Welsh 

Government and the private sector.

• Establishing project boards responsible for overseeing the delivery of individual projects. 

• A Project Protocol which is made available for project development and implementation that identifies the mechanisms 

needed to structure successful project delivery.

• The establishment of an External Funding Officer Group which reviews externally funded project activity across the 

Council at least quarterly.

• Regular update reports  considered by SLT  and the Council’s Cabinet

• ACTIONS

• To ensure that all projects  adhere to the project protocol procedures  the completion of which is overseen by Officers 

from Regeneration and Finance.

• To ensure that all such funding bids are compliant with funding terms and conditions.

4 3 12 (ORIGINAL RISK RATING: 4x3=12)  

The Prosperity and Development Service is currently delivering/co-ordinating the largest economic investment programme in the 

Council's history. Significant progress has been made on the delivery of key regeneration projects as set out in the Service's delivery 

plan. This includes the redevelopment of Taff Vale, the development of light industrial business units at Robertstown and Coedely, and 

the delivery of the objectives set out in the Council's five strategic opportunity areas and town centre masterplans. All projects and 

programmes have established robust service delivery arrangements and governance structures, which is ensuring the successful 

management of these schemes. However, towards the very end of Quarter 4 the global coronavirus pandemic started to take effect 

across all walks of life and work. It is not proposed to change the risk rating at this point but it will be reviewed at the end of Q1 (20/21) 

when a fuller assessment can be made of the effects of the crisis on our projects 

13 PEOPLE Paul Mee If the resources the Council has available 

are reduced or not targeted in a coherent 

way that meets need, then the ability to 

tackle the root causes of poverty and help 

build sustainable and resilient communities 

through an early intervention and 

preventative approach may be compromised 

thereby creating greater pressure on 

statutory services, and thereby reducing the 

impact on wellbeing priorities.

CONTROLS

The following controls have been put in place to manage risk:

• Delegated team in place to manage risk.

• Regular monitoring of tackling poverty grants to ensure compliance, impact and value for money.

• Regular meetings with Welsh Government as part of the Building Resilient Communities national work programme.

•  Liaising with Cabinet Members to provide regular updates. 

ACTIONS

To develop and deliver services that focus on building more involved and resilient communities to tackle poverty and 

promote well-being. This includes:

• Implementing the recommendations following a review into all Families First Commissioned services, with a focus on 

prevention, integration, collaboration and involvement (5 ways of working).  

• Implementation of the Team around the Family review recommendations in order to improve the long term prospects of 

the family and prevent problems from escalating.

• Implement a revised Communities First programme in line with Welsh Government priorities for 2017/18.

4 3 12 (ORIGINAL RISK RATING: 5x2=10)

Funding allocation offers for 2020/21 received from Welsh Government in quarter 4 and returned. Standstill allocation for next year so 

effectively a small reduction when considering salary increases. Impact to be managed by service providers, internal and external, 

within existing budget allocations. Impact of COVID19 towards end of quarter with suspension of some commissioned activities and 

WG allowing more flexibility in how grant funding is used to respond to pandemic. Service providers continue to be funded to ensure 

continuity. Early Years Pathfinder grant was withdrawn by WG to redirect funding to COVID19 but may be reinstated in part in quarter 1 

of 2020/21.

 

No change to risk rating.

14 ECONOMY Gaynor Davies

More comprehensive schools than ever are 

facing a financial deficit as they seek to 

maintain sixth form provision with falling 

pupil numbers and funding. This could have 

an adverse impact on KS3 & 4 provision.  If 

schools reduce teaching capacity to help 

deliver the savings required to manage 

deficits, then the ability to deliver positive 

educational outcomes at KS 3 & 4 may be 

compromised in the medium to longer term.

CONTROLS

• Open communication with Head teachers.

• Support available from key officers from within the Council.

ACTIONS

• Liaise with all Head teachers to communicate the financial pressures that the Council is under and re-iterate their 

involvement in aiming to realise more efficient working practices.

• Work with Schools in order to identify possible areas to increase efficiency.

4 4 16 (ORIGINAL RISK RATING: 4x3=12)  

Support and challenge meetings have continued to take place to review schools’ progress in implementing previously agreed recovery 

plans and since Covid-19 these meetings have been undertaken remotely. It is highly likely that Covid 19 will present significant 

challenges on the capacity of schools to implement restructures (and undertaking consultation with staff and trade unions on 

management of change processes) and on other workforce related processes, and as such may impact adversely on school budgets in 

some settings. In parallel, it is anticipated that there will be school based staff that will be required to shield, be vulnerable and/or 

pregnant, and will therefore impact on their ability to return to duties; this may result in  additional supply costs as and when learners 

return to school. In addition, there are a number of schools with budget deficits that do not have viable 6th forms and have experienced 

reduction in post 16 funding. 

The cumulative impact of the above factors have resulted in an increase to the risk score.

15 PLACE Nigel Wheeler The Council has a comprehensive highways 

infrastructure that relies on many significant 

structures such as bridges and retaining 

walls to ensure constant traffic movement. 

Many of these structures are of a 

considerable age and the risk of potential 

failure, which results in road closures, is 

significant. If unforeseen road closures 

occur then these can have a major impact 

on local communities and the local 

economy.

CONTROLS

• Routine monitoring of the entire highways network.

• Regular reports to SLT & Cabinet. 

• We have appointed a additional staff; this means we have appropriate in-house capability to manage this complex and 

significant asset.

ACTIONS

• Invest additional monies in road, highways infrastructure and pavement networks over the next four years, on top of the 

previous investment since 2011.

• Provide an up date on the impact of key investment projects in 2016/17/18 through the investment programme

• Provide an up date to Scrutiny Committee on delivery of the Highways / Transportation infrastructure investment 

programme. 

• Review and update the Highways Asset Management Plan (HAMP) to ensure that the principal assets have been 

identified and form part of the Plan, and relevant document and service standards agreed.

4 2 8 (ORIGINAL RISK RATING: 4x2=8)

The level of risk remains unchanged due to the comprehensive programme of work for structures, retaining walls and bridges both on 

the Highway network and in parks. The Highways Project Board (HPB) monitors the investment that is evidencing on-going 

improvement to the network; there are however challenges in terms of recruiting qualified staff (when competing with the private sector) 

and limited numbers of both consultants and contractors to support our staff. The HPB will continue to monitor these issues and ensure 

the capital programme is delivered and the highway network effectively maintained. 

No change to risk rating. 

18 LIVING 

WITHIN  

OUR 

MEANS

Chris Bradshaw If the Council does not develop and invest in 

its staff, transforming the way it delivers its 

services to meet future demographic and 

financial pressures will  be more difficult. It 

will also have an adverse impact on the 

retention and recruitment of staff.

CONTROLS

• Workforce planning arrangements are in place that aim to identify possible gaps now and in the future.

• Staff consultation and communication.

ACTIONS

• Continue with the apprenticeship and graduate schemes and ensure that placements are focussed on areas where 

workforce planning issues may become apparent in the future.

• Review training that is available to staff and ensure that it is suitable.

4 3 12 (ORIGINAL RISK RATING: 4x3=12)  

The Council has committed to a further comprehensive apprentice and graduate programme for 20/21. With the Covid 19 lockdown it is 

planned to change the advertising, interview and assessment processes for the posts and to phase the recruitment over a longer 

period.  The management development programmes are progressing well, with the focus now being on the delivery of the programme 

by remote learning and Microsoft Teams sessions.

T
udalen 125



COUNCIL PERFORMANCE REPORT (QUARTER 4 - 31st March 2020)

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER UP DATE 

I L RATING QTR 4 UPDATE 2019/20

Strategic 

Risk 

Register 

Reference

COUNCIL 

PRIORITY

RESPONSIBLE 

OFFICER
RISK DESCRIPTION CONTROLS & ACTIONS

Risk Rating QTR 4 

2019/20

20 LIVING 

WITHIN  

OUR 

MEANS

Tim Jones If the Council’s I.T infrastructure is not 

continuously reviewed to confirm that it is fit 

for business use and secure, then access to 

information and systems could be hindered, 

by for example cyber risk/attack, resulting in 

interruption to service delivery.

CONTROLS

• Disaster Recovery Plan in place should an interruption be experienced.

• Digital Strategy – Infrastructure Theme/Plan.

• Governance Structure.

• Policies and Procedures in place e.g. patch management, change control.

• External Reviews & Accreditation e.g. PSN, PCI, WAO, 3rd party suppliers.

• Staff Training / 3rd Party Support Contracts. 

ACTIONS

• Refresh & upgrade end of life infrastructure & software.

• Prepare for the PSN inspection.

• Monitor and measure Infrastructure Availability & Performance.

• Implement recommendations from external review / accreditation.

• Train Staff in order to ensure that they have the appropriate skills to use new systems and software.

5 4 20 (ORIGINAL RISK RATING: 5x3=15) 

The migration to the Data Centre is 90% complete. Final stages unable to be completed due to flooding and Covid19.  Plan in place to 

complete as part of Service Recovery. Several legacy applications still reside on the hardware and application support will prevent the 

movement of these (which will now be tied into application refresh (e.g. Payroll). Schools local infrastructure network has been fully 

refreshed. Wifi in core sites has been refreshed with a new hardware and software solution and this is being rolled out to corporate 

sites inline with plan.                                                                                                                                            

Performance Information Q4: 

Key Application Servers Availability 100%

WAN Availability 99.68%                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           

No change to risk rating. 

21 LIVING 

WITHIN  

OUR 

MEANS

Chris Bradshaw Given the shift in approach to services being 

delivered on a regional footprint, if services 

are delivered to citizens and staff of 

Rhondda Cynon Taf using this method, then 

appropriate arrangements must be in place 

to ensure that the interests of all current 

stakeholders are appropriately represented 

and that service delivery does not fall / 

suffer.

CONTROLS

Legal agreements between local authorities are in place; Governance and scrutiny functions in place; Regular reporting 

of performance is available.

5 3 15 (ORIGINAL RISK RATING: 5x3=15)

Given the shift in approach to services being delivered on a regional footprint, if services are delivered to citizens and staff of Rhondda 

Cynon Taf using this method, then appropriate arrangements must be in place to ensure that the interests of all current stakeholders 

are appropriately represented and that service delivery does not fall / suffer.

22 LIVING 

WITHIN  

OUR 

MEANS

Chris Bradshaw The risk of a No Deal Brexit seems ever 

more likely and whilst the Council can put 

contingency arrangements in place to 

manage some impacts of a No Deal these 

arrangements are temporary. Therefore, 

there will be economic and other risks that  

could materialise that are outside of our 

control, which will impact on the Council and 

local community. 

CONTROLS

- The Council’s Senior Leadership Team (SLT) led by the Chief Executive are leading on issues relating to Brexit

- Dedicated Lead Brexit Officer and Cabinet Member have been identified to monitor progress on Brexit and manage risk.

- Regular updates reported to Elected Members, SLT and Cabinet. 

ACTIONS

- Collaborate with the WLGA through the Brexit Transition Support Programme, set up to help local authorities prepare 

for Brexit.

- Complete the WAO call for evidence and self assessment in relation to Brexit Preparedness.

- Implementation of the self assessment findings.  

5 4 20 (ORIGINAL RISK RATING: 5x2=10)

The UK left the EU on 31 January 2020, and its relationship with the EU is within the defined Transition Period to 31 December 2020. 

The risk of a No Deal Brexit seems ever more likely and whilst the Council can put contingency arrangements in place to manage some 

impacts of a No Deal these arrangements are temporary. Therefore, there will be economic and other risks that  could materialise that 

are outside of our control, which will impact on the Council and local community. 

23 ECONOMY Chris 

Bradshaw/Gaynor 

Davies

If projects are not delivered on time and/or 

on budget then this could impede the 

delivery and intended (positive) impact of the 

21st Century Schools Band B Programme 

within the Council.

CONTROLS

• A designated project board is in place that oversees the delivery of the Council’s 21st Century programme.

• Regular updates are reported to the Welsh Government.

• Individual projects are managed using PRINCE2 methodology.

ACTIONS

• Submission and approval of all business cases within Band B of the 21st Century Schools Programme.

5 3 15 NEW RISK FOR 2019/20

Good progress continues to be made on the 21st Century Schools Programme with Tonyrefail Community School and the Treorchy 

Comprehensive School developments very close to completion. Good progress continues to be made with the new school for Hirwaun 

Primary School. With the introduction of social distancing measures as a result of Covid 19 we would expect to see fewer contractors 

on site and possible disruptions to supply chains. We will continue to keep a close eye on this, 

24 ECONOMY, 

PLACE & 

PEOPLE

Chris Bradshaw Given the expectations placed upon the 

Council to become net zero by 2050 in 

respect of its carbon emissions, if residents 

and businesses do not actively engage with 

the Council and Welsh Government to 

reduce their energy consumption, reduce 

their use of plastics, and adopt sustainable 

approaches to travel, then the full benefits 

will not materialise.

The Council’s approach to implementing net zero has been set out in the report presented to Cabinet at its meeting held 

on 18th June 2019.

CONTROLS

Using the information that we have available to calculate a baseline. 

Regular monitoring & reporting arrangements have now been put in place to monitor delivery of the detailed actions 

outlined within the Cabinet report noted above.

ACTIONS

Calculating a baseline of the Council’s Carbon and other greenhouse gases will enable the Council to identify short term 

and long term actions to change the way we work, procure and deliver our services, and highlight those changes that will 

have the greatest effect on reducing the Council’s carbon footprint.

5 4 20 NEW RISK FOR 2019/20

In the early part of 2020, the Climate Change Committee made good progress on wildflower Grass Management, Air Quality 

Management and reducing the carbon footprint from our modes of transport. Unfortunately, the following 2 meetings were postponed 

due to the impact of Storm Dennis and Covid 19. Hopefully, this Group will re-engage with the Climate Change Agenda very shortly.  

T
udalen 126



 Section 5a

1 - Residents will see a responsible approach to regeneration, with new homes being built and job opportunities created

2 - Rhondda Cynon Taf’s schools will be amongst the best in the country, with all children achieving the best they can

Improving our schools is key to the long-term success of people and communities in Rhondda Cynon Taf.  Providing the right environment and facilities for learning is vital for equipping our young people with the skills they will need in the future.  

We continue to deliver our 21st Century schools programme as part of our vision for making every school a great school, including expanding the provision for Welsh medium education so that parents can choose to have their children 

educated in their language of choice. We will ensure that our schools are fully accessible to accommodate those in the school community with disabilities and additional needs. We will also ensure our building projects are sustainable for future 

generations through using sustainable technologies. 

Involvement of the school and wider communities is key to the success of our new schools and we will use their ideas and input to shape future proposals. We will make sure we listen to as wide a range of views as possible by putting in place 

consistent ways to gather feedback on our projects. We will involve people in all aspects of shaping our schools, for example, working with pupils through school councils and eco committees to develop environmental initiatives. 

Enabling children and young people to have high aspirations and to develop to their full potential, not only academically but also socially and emotionally, will contribute to the prevention of a wide range of social problems including 

unemployment and ill health.  For example, children growing up in poorer families leave school with lower levels of educational qualifications, which reduces their prospects for employment and could increase the likelihood of disengagement. 

We are targeting support and challenge to schools to help them best support groups of pupils who may be at risk of not achieving their potential, including boys and pupils eligible for free school meals.

By collaborating with our partners within the Central South Consortium we can benefit from a wider range of resources and expertise.  School to school working and peer review across the Central South Wales region continues to allow schools 

to learn from each other and share and develop best practice.  We will also work with a wide range of other partners, for example, we collaborated with Welsh Government and the Local Health Board to deliver the School Holiday Enrichment 

Programme, to reduce 'holiday hunger' by providing nutritious meals, cookery lessons and other activities for pupils entitled to free school meals.

An integrated approach  to supporting our young people is key to safeguarding their longer term well-being.  Our work with schools will also support our PEOPLE plan priority that 'Children and young people receive a great start in life'. We will 

provide support to all pupils, particularly those who are more vulnerable, to support their wellbeing. For example, we will work with partners to develop strategic approaches to supporting the mental health of young people and provide training to 

schools in mental health first aid and mitigating against the effects of Adverse Childhood Experiences.

Our ECONOMY plan is focussed on projects which will enhance the long term prospects for the County Borough, such as the Cardiff Capital Region City Deal and development of five strategic areas which will benefit from the City deal 

improvements, including the wider Pontypridd area and A4119 corridor, where masterplan approaches are currently being developed.

We recognise that our vision for Rhondda Cynon Taf is closely linked to the prosperity and success of the wider South Wales region, and are working collaboratively with partners including other South Wales Councils, businesses and higher 

education providers to deliver shared priorities. Through involvement with strategic approaches including the Valleys Taskforce we are promoting schemes which will have the most impact regionally and ensure that resources are targeted 

where they will deliver maximum benefits.

Economic regeneration has a positive influence in preventing a wide variety of problems and supporting individual well-being.  Development in our key strategic sites and improved transport links will provide more employment opportunities for 

residents of all ages and abilities so that they can achieve their aspirations and help to keep them and their families out of poverty.  Redevelopment of key sites such as Llys Cadwyn (Taff Vale), which is now close to completion, will revitalise 

neglected areas and bring people into our town centres, making them vibrant and attractive places to visit and helping to reduce related antisocial behaviour. Our town centre strategies recognise their changing role from retail centres to 

workplace and social destinations and focus on maximising their contribution to social inclusion, local economic opportunity and the provision of services. Arrangements are in place for the delivery of the Porth town centre strategy and Mountain 

Ash Town Centre framework, and the development of town centre strategies for Treorchy and Tonypandy is well underway.

Increasing affordable housing will help prevent homelessness and also the wide variety of health and social issues arising from unsuitable housing. We are using a range of innovative approaches to support small businesses and self builders to 

provide homes in the right locations tailored to individual needs, including supporting the Welsh Government Plot Shop self build initiative to remove the barriers to people building their own homes.

Involvement of stakeholders and our residents is vital in ensuring that our regeneration projects deliver the best possible outcomes.  We continue to work closely with local businesses, education institutions, training providers, individuals and 

communities to shape and support projects for the benefit of everyone.  This involvement ranges from informing strategic priorities such as the City Deal to local issues like the redevelopment of Guto Square in Mountain Ash and the 

Robertstown site in Aberdare. 

Our plan to Build a Strong Economy is closely linked with the way we will deliver our other well-being objectives, for example, the inclusion of Community Hubs and Extra Care Housing within our town centre strategies links closely with our 

priorities for social inclusion in our PLACE plan and supporting people to maintain their independence in our PEOPLE plan.

Corporate Plan Monitoring Report - Quarter 4 2019/20

Council Priority:  ECONOMY - Building a strong economy

Lead Director: Chris Bradshaw

Corporate Plan End of Year Monitoring Report 2019/20

T
udalen 127



Unemployment adversely effects mental and physical wellbeing and is one of the most significant causes of poverty. We are continuing to deliver and develop our successful employment pathway, supporting people into work, to prevent 

disengagement and unemployment and the associated negative outcomes. Building on the positive outcomes of the employment pathway, we are working closely with local small and medium sized enterprises to support people with long-term 

health conditions or disabilities to stay in the workplace by providing occupational health and wellbeing support. We are also investigating the potential of our employment routes programme to train people for hard to fill Council vacancies such 

as social care roles, both providing people with meaningful work and providing vital services for local communities.

We will work together with our schools to enhance careers guidance, working with young people to ensure they have the full range of knowledge to make informed decisions about their futures and working with local businesses to ensure that 

the subjects and pathways learners choose will support their future career goals. We have also improved the opportunities available for extended work placements and accredited work based learning for those young people not suited to more 

traditional academic pathways and evaluate the outcomes this provides.

We are building on the strong creative economy already present in the area, supporting creative partners to provide more career pathways and opportunities and promoting equality of opportunity. We are working to provide more opportunities 

for people to try out creative skills including gaming and coding through our services, although our progress working with some of our creative partners has been impacted by the severe flooding in Pontypridd. 

Our work in this area is closely integrated with our other priorities. Enhancing people's skills not only supports economic development, but also enhances their health and wellbeing and can strengthen links in the community, supporting our 

PEOPLE and PLACE priorities. We will provide a range of courses and learning opportunities which in addition to enhancing employability will have a number of other potential benefits. These include improving mental health and combating 

social isolation, increasing digital inclusion to help people access services and information, and engaging people with Welsh language and culture.

3 - There will be a broad offer of skills and employment programmes for all ages

Corporate Plan End of Year Monitoring Report 2019/20

T
udalen 128



Actual Actual
Wales 

Average
Target Actual (Qtr 4)

LPSR103 No. of new affordable homes delivered 226 83 N/A 140 135

LRGN014a % vacant retail premises in town centres:

Porth

12.0 16 N/A 16 26

LRGN014b Pontypridd 7.0 11 N/A 11 13

LRGN014c Aberdare 14.0 13 N/A 13 15

LRGN014d Treorchy 7.0                      6 N/A                   6                          6 

LRGN015e Footfall - Average weekly number of visitors (Financial Year) to: Pontypridd             68,300 N/A          67,846                 41,168 

LRGN015f Aberdare             41,536 N/A          41,315                 30,794 

LRGN015g Porth               4,097 N/A            4,036                   2,418 

LRGN015h Treorchy             10,032 N/A            9,990                   6,787 

LRGN019 No. of additional housing units provided during the year 552 386 N/A 500 452

LRGN016 The stock of registered enterprises/businesses in the Borough  6,355*               8,585 N/A >8,585                   9,505 

LRGN017 The rate of registered enterprises /business births (start ups)  19.5*

(1,240) 

34.2**

(2,935)

N/A >34.2 27.1

LRGN018 The rate of registered enterprises /business deaths (closures)  10.9*

(690) 

8.9**

(765)

N/A <8.9 18.0

Footnotes:

Actual Actual
Wales 

Average
Target Actual (Qtr 4)

PAM013N

LPSR101

No. of empty properties brought back into use per annum 204 213 N/A 190 179

LPSR102 Total number of interventions aimed at bringing long term empty properties back into use 356 452 N/A 400 467

PAM013

PSR004
% private sector dwellings that had been vacant for more than 6 months at 1

st
 April that 

were returned to occupation during the year 

5.7 7.4 4.7 5.5 5.7

LRGN023

NEW

% of new homes delivered by SME developers N/A N/A N/A Baseline 

Year

86

LRGN024

NEW

% of new homes that are custom built N/A N/A N/A Baseline 

Year

8.6

LRGN022

NEW

No. of property enhancements supported in targeted town centres N/A N/A N/A 50 34

LRGN021 No. of jobs created and safeguarded through grant support programmes 62 67 N/A 40 41

LRGN009 No. of businesses/organisations supported through grant support programmes 75 167 N/A 150 127

Key:

Within Bottom Quartile performance for all of Wales

Performance against this indicator was impacted by Storm Ciara and Storm Dennis. As a result, it is 

considered not meaningful for performance to be compared to target for the year, and is reported for 

information only

This data has been estimated using completions for all sites of less than 5 units, excluding those known 

not to be custom built. Not all sites have been visited. 

This measure includes all new homes built other than by Public Limited companies. 

2018/192017/18

Comment

This indicator is slightly below the target set due to ongoing complications with developments on site 

which have delayed construction and the completion of sites. These complications have been outside of 

the Council’s control, for example, ongoing drainage issues, with discussions ongoing between Cynon Taf 

and Dwr Cymru.

Visits to all our town centres were badly impacted by Storm Ciara and Storm Dennis and the beginning of 

the Covid-19 pandemic. As a result, it is considered not meaningful for performance to be compared to 

target for the year, and is reported for information only

N/A

2019/20

The 452 dwellings completed during the year is a substantial rate of completion, although not quite 

reaching the target of 500. There remain levels of constraint to the development of the remaining 

allocations in the LDP, giving further weight to the need to continue with the revision of the LDP.

Performance within 5% of the targetPerformance met or exceeded target
Within Top Quartile performance for all of Wales

Bolded PIs denote that an existing Corporate Plan high level measure

2019/202018/19

The achievement of this target was affected by Storm Dennis in February and the coronavirus lockdown 

which have had a hugely detrimental impact on businesses in the RCT economy. As a result, it is 

considered not meaningful for performance to be compared to target for the year, and is reported for 

information only

Performance for the year was slightly below target due to a delay in the launch of the Valleys Taskforce 

Empty Homes Grant Scheme, which led to a delay in Grants being approved between July and October 

2019. 

Performance below target

The floods caused by Storm Dennis in February 2020 have had a significant impact on town centre 

properties, particularly within Pontypridd town centre and this had impacted on the current vacancy rate 

for the town, as shops are being redeveloped or refurbished. As part of the Porth Town Centre Strategy, a 

number of properties within the town have been identified for demolition, to support the construction of a 

new Integrated Transport Hub. This has resulted in a temporary increase in the number of vacant 

properties in the town, as they are awaiting demolition. As a result, it is considered not meaningful for 

performance to be compared to target for the year, and is reported for information only.

Council Priority:  

Lead Director: 

Measuring Success

PI Ref Performance Measure

Measures to support Priority 1 - Residents will see a responsible approach to regeneration, with new homes being built and job opportunities created

PI Ref Performance Measure

* Reported a year in arrears

** Provisional Data

2017/18

ECONOMY - Building a strong economy

Chris Bradshaw

This data is derived from the Office of National Statistics (ONS). Whilst there is a notable decline in 

business births and deaths and we have not achieved our optimistic targets, there is a positive increase in 

the number of registered businesses within RCT for this reported year.

Comment

Corporate Plan End of Year Monitoring Report 2019/20

T
udalen 129



2017/18

(Academic 

Year 2016/17)

Actual Actual
Wales 

Average
Target Actual (Qtr 4)

PAM032 Capped 9 Score1 N/A 348.0 349.5 350.0 352.0

LEDU244 

interim national 

measure

Literacy measure (average score of best grade from any literature or first language Welsh 

or English GCSEs awarded to a pupil) (NEW)

N/A N/A N/A Baseline 

Year

38.2

LEDU245 

interim national 

measure

Numeracy measure (average score of best grade from Mathematics or Mathematics – 

numeracy GCSE awarded to a pupil) (NEW)

N/A N/A N/A Baseline 

Year

35.7

LEDU246 

interim national 

measure

Science measure (average score of best grade from a science GCSE awarded to a pupil) 

(NEW)

N/A N/A N/A Baseline 

Year

35.2

LEDU209 % pupils in year 11 (typically aged 16) who achieve the L1 threshold (equivalent to 5 

GCSEs grade A* to G or approved equivalent qualification)

94.7 94.7 93.7 94.7 93.5

PAM006 

EDU017

% of pupils in year 11 (typically aged 16) who achieved level 2 threshold including a 

GCSE grade A* to C in English or Welsh (first language) and Mathematics

49.8 53.1 55.1 55.1 N/A

LEDU243 % of pupils entitled to FSM in year 11 (typically aged 16) achieving Level 2 

Threshold including a GCSE grade A*- C in English or Welsh (first language) and 

Mathematics

24.2 28.0 29.3 30.0 N/A

Footnotes:

2017/18

(Academic 

Year 2016/17)

Actual Actual
Wales 

Average
Target Actual (Qtr 4)

PAM007 

EDU016a

% of pupil attendance in primary schools (excludes special schools) 94.7 94.2 94.58 95.1 94.3

PAM008 

EDU016b

% of pupil attendance in secondary schools (excludes special schools) 93.6 93.0 93.85 94.1 92.9

LEDU218 % attendance at PRU/EOTAS provision 78.6 80.2 N/A >80.2 74.12

LEDU506 % difference in the attendance of FSM / non FSM pupils in primary schools 2.3 2.7 3.0 <2.3 2.2

LEDU507 % difference in the attendance of FSM / non FSM pupils in secondary schools 4.9 5.3 5.1 <5.0 4.8

Key:

Within Bottom Quartile performance for all of Wales

(Academic Year 2018/19)

Performance below target

Key Stage 4

2019/20

Comment

2019/20

Bolded PIs denote that an existing Corporate Plan high level measure

Attendance

PI Ref

2018/19

1
 The Capped 9 score is the points score for the best 9 results for each learner at GCSE or equivalent, including GCSE English or Welsh language, GCSE Mathematics numeracy, GCSE Mathematics, the best two results in Science and the best four results in other subjects

Due to differing return dates for Primary and Secondary - this figure comprises of Ty Gwyn, home tuition 

and group tuition to 24/05/19 and year round attendance at Tai Education Centre. Ty Gwyn attendance 

was particularly poor this year and therefore led to the missed target. Focused work took place at Ty 

Gwyn last year and will continue this year.

(Academic Year 2017/18)

Performance within 5% of the target

Performance Measure

We have not achieved our ambitious primary school attendance target for the 2018/19 academic year. 

However, this figure does represent a 0.1% improvement on the 2017/18 academic year and it is 

considered that following a declining trend in recent years, this is a positive step in the right direction.

Secondary school attendance is below target for the 2018/19 academic year (including for Through 

Schools). We have  therefore implemented a graduated response to attendance to tackle declining 

attendance at this phase.

Foundation Phase, Key Stage 2, Key Stage 3

Data has not been reported against these indicators as official advice from Welsh Government states that no 

comparison of legacy outcomes should be utilised in local authority reporting. These indicators are replaced 

by the interim performance measures above.

(Academic Year 2018/19)

Existing Measures discontinued nationally, at present there is no suitable data to include. Replacement performance indicators are currently being developed nationally.

CommentPerformance Measure
(Academic Year 2017/18)

Measures to support Priority 2 - Rhondda Cynon Taf’s schools will be amongst the best in the country, with all children achieving the best they can

2018/19

PI Ref

Within Top Quartile performance for all of Wales
Performance met or exceeded target

Corporate Plan End of Year Monitoring Report 2019/20

T
udalen 130



2017/18

(Academic 

Year 2016/17)

Actual Actual
Wales 

Average
Target Actual (Qtr 4)

LEDU409a No. of fixed term exclusions per 1,000 pupils in Primary schools 14.2 18.04 N/A 19.6 20.14

LEDU409b No. of fixed term exclusions per 1,000 pupils in Secondary schools 95.7 108.29 N/A 159.6 126.6

LEDU410c Average no. of days lost through fixed term exclusions (All Schools) 2.1 1.93 N/A 2.16 2.00

2017/18

(Academic 

Year 2016/17)

Actual Actual
Wales 

Average
Target Actual (Qtr 4)

PAM046 % of Year 11 leavers known not to be in education, training or employment (NEET) N/A 1.9 1.6 1 N/A

LEDU225 % 18 year olds (Yr. 13) leaving school who are known not to be in education, 

training or employment

2.6 2.9 N/A 1.5 N/A

LCAP011 Number of NEET (Not In Education, Employment or Training) young people entering 

employment upon leaving the 'Inspire2Work' programme

24 50 N/A 40 45

LCAP013 Number of NEET young people gaining a qualification upon leaving the 'Inspire2Work' 

programme

97 106 N/A 100 117

LCAP014 Number of economically inactive, or unemployed, adults entering employment as a result 

of 'Communities4Work' (C4W) intervention

47 50 N/A 48 44

LCAP015 Number of economically inactive, or unemployed, adults gaining a qualification as a result 

of 'Communities4Work' (C4W) intervention

96 242 N/A 64 97

LCAP010 Number of NEET young people entering employment upon leaving the C4W programme 49 57 N/A 96 112

LCAP016 Number of NEET young people gaining a qualification upon leaving the C4W programme 96 115 N/A 64 163

LCAP017 No. of people supported that have entered employment – Communities For Work Plus  N/A 393 N/A 350 434

LCAP030

NEW

No. of people completing a work placement with an employer  – Communities for Work 

Plus 

 N/A N/A N/A 100 91

LCAP031 

NEW

Number of adults gaining a vocational qualification – Communities for Work Plus  N/A N/A N/A 450 303

Key:

Within Bottom Quartile performance for all of Wales

Performance Measure Comment
(Academic Year 2017/18)

Target for 2019/20 reduced following Welsh Government agreed regional reprofiling, performance is 

reported against the revised target. Performance has improved in the current quarter and further 

qualifications have been gained but are awaiting evidence before inclusion for performance reporting 

purposes. 

Target for 2019/20 reduced following Welsh Government agreed regional reprofiling, performance is 

reported against the revised target.

As reported in the previous quarter, the change in funding has impacted on our delivery against target set 

earlier in the year.  Other CfW+ and Legacy clients gaining a qualification through the community learning 

grant totals 300 for the year, with 507 qualifications gained. These are reported separately to Welsh Govt 

and the Local Authority so are no longer included in CfW+ reported figures

Target for 2019/20 reduced following Welsh Government national review, performance is reported against 

the revised target. The DWP focus has now changed from supporting both adults and young people to 

just focussing on adults. This has reduced the number of adults referred to the local authority and has 

impacted on our outputs. Welsh Government are aware of this position. 

Within Top Quartile performance for all of Wales

2019/20

PI Ref

2018/19

Measures to support Priority 3 - There will be a broad offer of skills and employment programmes for all ages

Bolded PIs denote that an existing Corporate Plan high level measure

Schools continue to receive support and challenge sessions with the Head of Inclusion Service, Senior 

EP for Wellbeing and School Improvement Officers, and actions for improvement are agreed.  Schools 

are then requested to attend a follow up session the following term to review progress against agreed 

actions.

Performance met or exceeded target Performance within 5% of the target Performance below target

Target for 2019/20 reduced following Welsh Government national review, performance is reported against 

the revised targets. Due to this reprofiling, DWP figures have now been removed from reported totals, 

which reflect RCTCBC outputs only. Data for the year has been recalculated to reflect this change. 

(Academic Year 2018/19)

Awaiting national publication of this data.

(Academic Year 2018/19)

2018/19

(Academic Year 2017/18)
PI Ref Performance Measure

Exclusion

2019/20

Comment

Corporate Plan End of Year Monitoring Report 2019/20

T
udalen 131



2017/18

(Academic 

Year 2016/17)

Actual Actual
Wales 

Average
Target Actual (Qtr 4)

LCHR301

NEW

Staying Well @ work project: Participants employed, including self employed, with work 

limiting health condition or disability

 N/A N/A N/A 614 147

LCHR302

NEW

Staying Well @ work project: Participants with a work limiting health condition or disability 

returning to work after a period of absence

 N/A N/A N/A 306 81

LCHR303

NEW

Staying Well @ work project: Number of micro, small and medium enterprises supported  N/A N/A N/A 56 41

LCHR304

NEW

Staying Well @ work project: Number of micro, small and medium sized enterprises 

having adopted or improved equality and diversity strategies and monitoring systems

N/A N/A N/A 31 41

Key:

Within Bottom Quartile performance for all of Wales

Actual Actual
Wales 

Average
Actual

PMe01 No. and % of economically active people aged 16 and over, who are unemployed 6,100

5.4 
6

6,800

5.9 
7 4.5 

7
5,300

4.8 
11

Wales Average 

4.1 
11

PMe02 % of people aged 18-24 claiming out of work benefits (including JSA)
4.1

 9
4.4 

10
4.2 

10
5.7 

12
Wales Average 

4.7 
12

PMe03 No. and % of economically active people in Rhondda Cynon Taf
114,100

75.3 
6

116,700

76.4 
7 76.7

 7
110,700

72.3 
11

Wales Average 

76.4 
11

Footnotes:
6
 Data refers to Apr 2017 - Mar 2018

7 
Data refers to Apr 2018 - Mar 2019

9
 Data refers to Mar 2018

10
 Data refers to Mar 2019

11
 Data refers to Jan 2019 - Dec 2019

12
 Data refers to March 2020

Delayed commencement of delivery of this project impacted on performance earlier in the year. 

Performance has improved following WEFO review of referral criteria as reported in Q3, which widened 

the scope to include preventative treatment. However, WEFO position has changed due to the Covid 19 

pandemic and they are not able to consider change requests for project targets until Covid 19 conditions 

are reviewed. A project recovery plan is in place. 

Within Top Quartile performance for all of Wales
Performance met or exceeded target Performance within 5% of the target

2018/19 2019/20

Performance below target

Population & Contextual Measures - 

For information only

Bolded PIs denote that an existing Corporate Plan high level measure

2017/18

Target

CommentPerformance Measure

2019/20

(Academic Year 2018/19)
PI Ref

2018/19

(Academic Year 2017/18)

Corporate Plan End of Year Monitoring Report 2019/20

T
udalen 132



Council Priority:  
Lead Director: 

Challenges and Opportunities linked to this Council 

Priority

Lead Officer

Actions that will deliver Priority 1 Milestones/Sub Actions that will help to achieve overarching Action Delivery 

Date

Responsible 

Officer

Progress to 

date

Overall progress to date on Action

Lead and facilitate the delivery of Porth Town Centre Strategy, including 

delivery of agreed projects including the Transport Hub

Review

Mar-20

Derek 

James/Peter 

Mortimer

On Target Progress continues to be made on key projects within the Strategy. Porth Plaza is now serving as a new Community Hub for the 

town, also contributing to the Covid-19 response for the community. Development and design work has been undertaken on the next 

phase of Park and Ride provision for Porth Railway Station. Design work continues for the Transport hub with site assembly being 

put in place including the demolition of Barclays Bank and the Alec Jones Day Centre. Porth Farm surgery purchase has now been 

secured and demolition consent is in place. An officer group has been established to focus on property improvement in the town 

through enforcement and working positively with property owners and developers. The relocation of RCT staff from Ty Bronwydd to 

Ty Oldway in the town centre started in March 2020, prior to office closures for Covid-19.

To support the delivery of Mountain Ash Town Centre Framework, including 

the delivery of agreed projects including the Community Hub and Medical 

Centre

Review

Mar-20

Derek 

James/Peter 

Mortimer

On Target Arrangements are in place to lead on the delivery of key projects as part of the Mountain Ash Town Centre Framework particularly 

the redevelopment of Guto Square. For this project, designs have been completed, planning permission secured and a Compulsory 

Purchase Order submitted to WG Planning Inspectorate to secure the land necessary to deliver the project. An objection has been 

received on the CPO which is being dealt with by written procedure rather than a public enquiry so the project is still on programme to 

deliver. The CPO for the land adjacent to Guto Square has been confirmed by Welsh Government and plans are now being 

progressed to acquire the land through legal process. The acquisition of additional properties to support the redevelopment of Guto 

Square has progressed with completion expected within the next quarter. Design and preparatory works also continue to support the 

scheme.

Develop a draft town centre strategy for Treorchy for consideration by 

Cabinet

Mar-20 

Revised

Sep-20

Derek 

James/Peter 

Mortimer

On Target Good progress has now been made on the development of the comprehensive Flood Consequence Assessment which is essential 

for the further development of the Strategy. A new target date will be confirmed once the Flood Consequence Assessment is 

completed.

Develop a draft town centre strategy for Tonypandy for consideration by 

Cabinet

March 20

Revised

Sep-20

Derek 

James/Peter 

Mortimer

On Target A programme is in place to complete the masterplan exercise during the current financial year, with the final completion date to be 

agreed with the contractors.

Roll out the town Centre Maintenance grant to Porth, Aberdare and 

Ferndale, to support traders / landlords to undertake maintenance works 

which will improve the appearance of town centre properties, creating a 

more attractive and vibrant town centre environment

Sep-19 Peter Mortimer Complete To date there have been 25 business properties supported in Porth, Aberdare and Ferndale worth £22, 210 in grants awarded.

Develop an integrated package of support for town centre businesses Review

Mar-20

Peter Mortimer Complete A decision was taken by Cabinet in May 2019 to agree the elements and products that comprise the integrated package of support 

for businesses in our town centres. 

Support the development of Business Improvement Districts in Treorchy and 

Aberdare to completion of the scoping and feasibility stages

Mar-20 Peter Mortimer Complete Work to manage the WG funding approvals is in place and will continue until the BID process is complete in Treorchy and Aberdare. 

Regeneration staff continue to support the BID development process in both towns. The BID ballot was undertaken during November 

in Treorchy with a successful outcome being achieved and a majority vote to establish a BID. Work is now underway to establish 

arrangements to put the BID in place and to make it operational. The BID Ballot for Aberdare was undertaken in February with a 

successful outcome being achieved. Both BIDs have now been formally established and several initial board meetings have taken 

place for each. Due to the impact of Covid-19, additional post set up support was procured by the Council. This approach has 

ensured ongoing stability to both BIDs.

Provide Wi-Fi to our Town Centres to ensure residents feel involved and are 

not aversely hampered through digital exclusion

Mar-20 Gareth Pearce Target 

Missed

• 4 Town Centres complete 

• 2 Town Centres infrastructure in place and in testing prior to go live – delay due to Covid 19

• 1 Town Centre majority of infrastructure in place and requires a BT leased line – delay due to Covid 19

Those outstanding will be progressed during 2020/21

Modernise our town centres by building on their role as 

centres for social inclusion, local economic opportunity and 

the provision of services and recognising their changing role 

from retail centres to social destinations and helping them to 

adapt to changes in economic and customers’ expectations

1 - Residents will see a responsible approach to regeneration, with new homes being built and job opportunities created…

ECONOMY - Building a strong economy
Chris Bradshaw

Simon Gale 

Corporate Plan End of Year Monitoring Report 2019/20

T
udalen 133



Actions that will deliver Priority 1 Milestones/Sub Actions that will help to achieve overarching Action Delivery 

Date

Responsible 

Officer

Progress to 

date

Overall progress to date on Action

Modernise our town centres by building on their role as 

centres for social inclusion, local economic opportunity and 

the provision of services and recognising their changing role 

from retail centres to social destinations and helping them to 

adapt to changes in economic and customers’ expectations

Develop a masterplan for Pontypridd that maximises the current 

regeneration opportunities being presented including those through the 

Metro

Sep-19 

Revised

Dec-19

Revised

Mar-20

Derek James Complete The draft masterplan developed with key partners including WG Homes and Place, Valleys Task Force and Transport for Wales was 

completed during the quarter. 

Co-ordinate the delivery of major regeneration projects in Pontypridd 

including the Taff Vale redevelopment and Link Bridge to Ynysangharad 

Park

Review

Mar-20

Peter Mortimer Not on 

Target

Positive progress continued during this quarter in the delivery of both the Taff Vale redevelopment and the Link Bridge to 

Ynysangharad Park. At Taff Vale  two of the three new buildings were handed over in accordance with the programme and the 

marketing campaign to secure tenants for the office and ground floor commercial units remained positive. On the Link Bridge, the 

bridge mast and first section of the bridge deck were successfully installed.                                                                                                                          

However, despite good progress, the programme for both schemes was negatively impacted during the period, initially by the effects 

of Storm Dennis followed by the impact of Covid-19. At the end of the quarter, the workforce on the Taff Vale redevelopment had 

temporarily reduced to approximately 40% due to the need to introduce social distancing measures on site and the Link Bridge 

contractor unfortunately had no choice but to close down the site at the end of March as its supply chain had temporarily shut down 

its operation. 

Co-ordinate and support the development of further significant regeneration 

projects in Pontypridd that have been identified in the town centre 

masterplan

Review

Mar-20

Peter Mortimer On Target Work on the development of the package of projects that will deliver significant improvements to the town has continued. A WG 

award of funding was received enabling the acquisition of the former Bingo Hall and Angharads buildings to take place together with 

a commitment from WG to provide a significant financial contribution towards the future demolition costs. The YMCA redevelopment 

commenced on site and is progressing well in accordance with the construction programme. 

Identify and source external funding to support the delivery of the Strategic 

Opportunity Area (SOA)

Review

Mar-20

Peter Mortimer On Target A programme of project funding for external grants to support the delivery of projects in the SOA is in place and will continue to be 

monitored and developed. This includes the TRI programme where WG grant has been secured for the delivery of the new bridge 

between Taff Vale (Llys Cadwyn) and Ynysangharad Park, the new horticultural centre which forms part of an Heritage Lottery Fund 

bid and the acquisition and subsequent demolition of the former Bingo Hall and Angharads buildings. 

Establish delivery arrangements for the Property Invest Programme (PIP) in 

Pontypridd, deliver the programme and measure progress and outcomes

Review

Mar-20

Peter Mortimer Complete

Support Welsh Government to launch the Plot Shop initiative Sep-19

revised

Ongoing

Simon Gale Not on 

Target

Welsh Government were due to formally launch the Plot Shop in April, however, due to then, impending, onset of Covid-19 have 

delayed its launch until later in the year (pencilled in for September).RCT are the only Council to sit on the Plot Shop Board and WG 

has expressed some disappointment in respect of the progress / commitment of other Councils on this initiative. The RCT plots 

agreed by the Council's Planning Committee will be part of the Self build Wales website when launched.

Deliver the Empty Homes Strategy and monitor progress Mar-20 Alex Coole Complete Implementation of the Empty Homes Strategy and delivery plan continued. Council tax records in April 2019 showed there were 

3,000 empty homes within RCT; 172 of these were brought back into use during 2019/20.  There were 411 Empty Home Grant  

applications across the Valleys Task Force area in 2019/2020, resulting in a £5.5m claim.  RCT received 173 Empty Home Grant 

applications, 131 of those received a schedule by 31st March resulting in a claim of £2,270,866.53.  The remaining 42 applications 

could not be surveyed due to the Covid-19 outbreak, however WG has confirmed that they will 100% fund these grants resulting in a 

further £840,000 claim.  Therefore, the  total claim for RCT will be £3,110,866.53 for phase 1 of the scheme.  

Develop a masterplan approach for Hirwaun Industrial Estate that maximises 

the current regeneration opportunities and addresses environmental 

challenges at the site

Mar-20 Derek James Complete A draft masterplan has been completed which identifies opportunities at Hirwaun Industrial Estate which will also address 

environmental challenges. A project board has been established comprising key stakeholders including the Council, NRW and 

business representatives. This will board will seek to oversee and take forward some of the opportunities identified.

Co-ordinate the development and delivery of significant regeneration 

projects in the Cynon Gateway area such as the redevelopment of the 

former goods yard at Robertstown

Ongoing Peter Mortimer On Target Development work on the Robertstown Business Unit scheme is in the advanced stages. It has completed significant Flood 

Consequence Assessment work and full planning approval is now in place. The procurement process for the appointment of 

construction contractors is being finalised. Railway Tunnel development work for the Rhondda and Abernant tunnels continues with 

detailed feasibility work being undertaken on physical condition and business case economic viability and sustainability. The 

procurement process for expert advice on a sustainable business plan for the Rhondda Tunnel has now been completed and we are  

in receipt of a draft document.  An ENRAW approval for the development of tracks and trails to facilitate visitor and tourism 

experience has been awarded for the Rhigos mountain area and arrangements are in place to develop this work to include detailed 

stakeholder engagement and consultation. The procurement process for the appointment of expert advisors for this work has been 

completed and Sustrans have produced a draft feasibility study. Close liaison work with key NRW officers has also been established.

Develop a masterplan approach for Llanilid that maximises the current 

regeneration opportunities being presented including those through the 

Cardiff Capital region

Mar-20 Derek James On Target The development of a masterplan approach to optimise the opportunities at the Llanilid strategic site is currently being developed by 

key stakeholders including the Council, private sector, neighbouring Councils and supported by the Design Commission for Wales. 

Work with landowners and key stakeholders to develop and deliver the best 

use mix and outcomes for the potential of the Llanilid site

Ongoing Peter Mortimer On Target A Strategic Board is in place including landowners and has been meeting to discuss progress and approaches to the masterplan 

process.

Further develop and deliver the regeneration opportunities set 

out in the Pontypridd Strategic Opportunity Area (SOA) – 

building on the current regeneration momentum in the town 

from significant recent and current investment to deliver jobs, 

growing and attracting businesses, homes for people and 

greater connectivity

Improve the housing offer in RCT by ensuring that 

development happens in the right form in the right places, 

providing good quality housing options, facilitating more 

choice and helping local companies have a greater share of 

the house building market. Ensure that there is a sufficient 

supply of targeted housing to meet the needs of those who 

cannot afford to access the housing market and those citizens 

that need more specialist housing to meet their specific needs

To further develop and deliver the regeneration opportunities 

set out in the Cynon Gateway Strategic Opportunity Area 

(SOA)

To further develop and deliver the regeneration opportunities 

set out in the Llanilid Strategic Opportunity Area (SOA)

Corporate Plan End of Year Monitoring Report 2019/20

T
udalen 134



Actions that will deliver Priority 1 Milestones/Sub Actions that will help to achieve overarching Action Delivery 

Date

Responsible 

Officer

Progress to 

date

Overall progress to date on Action

Modernise our town centres by building on their role as 

centres for social inclusion, local economic opportunity and 

the provision of services and recognising their changing role 

from retail centres to social destinations and helping them to 

adapt to changes in economic and customers’ expectations

To further develop and deliver the regeneration opportunities 

set out in the A4119 Corridor Strategic Opportunity Area 

(SOA)

Co-ordinate and support the development and delivery of significant 

regeneration projects in the A4119 Corridor area such as the redevelopment 

of the former Coedely Colliery site including provision of business property 

and the A4119 duelling

Ongoing Peter Mortimer On Target Arrangements are in place to co-ordinate and support the delivery of significant regeneration projects in this area. The Coedely 

Business Unit project is in the advanced stages of development with planning and design completed and procurement process also 

completed. The formal Joint Venture Agreement with WG has now been signed and sealed and the contract award made. 

Construction works on site have now commenced. Anticipated that the progress on site maybe impacted as a result of Covid-19.  

Further work is being undertaken with WG and prospective tenants to ensure that this prime business site is developed as quickly 

and effectively as possible

Develop a masterplan approach for Treforest Industrial Estate with key 

landowners and stakeholders that maximises the current regeneration 

opportunities being presented including those through the Cardiff Capital 

region and Metro

Mar-20 Peter Mortimer On Target The Estate Masterplan process is being led by the private sector landowner Mileaway who have engaged expert advisors to support 

them in this. They have been engaging with Council Services to ensure a comprehensive approach to the Plan and met with Regen 

and Highways officers in January to share initial thoughts on emerging draft Plan.

Co-ordinate the development of significant regeneration projects in Treforest 

area such as the development of modern  business premises

Ongoing Peter Mortimer On Target This is being revisited as a result of the Storm Dennis implications for the Estate which was badly affected with a need to reassess 

new build options and available sites

Produce a Strategy / Framework for the development of the Visitor Economy 

in the north of the County Borough 

Sep-19

Revised

2020-21

Ian Christopher Target 

Missed

Due to the effects of Covid-19, a delegated decision was made on 24th March to approve the Tourism Strategy for consultation with 

relevant stakeholders.  The decision also agreed to consult with stakeholders at a time deemed appropriate bearing in mind the Covid-

19 pandemic. With this in mind a revised delivery date of September 2020 has been set.

Support the development and delivery of significant visitor economy / 

regeneration projects in the north of RCT such as Zipworld investment

Ongoing Ian Christopher Not on 

Target

Railway Tunnel development work for the Rhondda and Abernant tunnels continues (see detailed update above). The Dare Valley 

Country Park has been successfully designated as a Discovery Gateway for the Valleys Regional Park initiative and funding awarded 

to improve visitor facilities. Contractors were appointed and began work onsite in January 2020. Work initially progressed well 

however slight delays have occurred due to Covid-19.

Deliver the priorities of the Valleys Regional Park through improving the 

visitor facilities and offer in Destination Gateway Sites – Dare Valley Country 

Park and Ynysangharad Park

Ongoing Derek James On Target Separate delivery plans developed for Dare Valley and Ynysangharad War Memorial Park. All WG funding for Dare Valley has been 

drawn down and the majority of work has been complete, however due to Covid-19 overall completion has been delayed. It is 

anticipated that the programme will be finalised in the Autumn of 2020. 

Develop and implement the Business engagement strategy and framework Ongoing On Target This approach is now being incorporated into the new challenges and opportunities for RCT businesses and a radically different 

business environment as a result of the Covid-19 situation. This will be picked up as part of the Economic Recovery Plan which will 

be developed as a result.

Review and refocus the Enterprise support programme so that it better 

meets the needs of modern businesses in a changing economic 

environment

Mar-20 Complete The new Programme has been well received with a significant volume of applications / approvals.  The Programme will need to be 

revisited in light of Covid-19 and the impact on the business economy, with the focus on sustainability and diversification. 

Introduce the Buy With Confidence (BWC) business accreditation scheme to 

ensure consumers can make informed choices about retailers and traders

Mar-20 Judith Parry Complete The buy with confidence scheme is in place and three applications were in progress prior to the Covid lockdown and response.  It is 

hoped these applications can be recommenced shortly, subject to business status changes that may have occurred during the 

lockdown.

Develop and deliver an effective Business Crime Reduction Strategy, 

working with local businesses and town centre forums

Mar-20 Gary Black Complete There are close working relationships in place between all partners who have an interest in business crime reduction. The strategy is 

a two year strategy, 2019-21, and we are ensuring all objectives are being met via a multi agency approach. 

Promote Rhondda Cynon Taf as a visitor destination and 

develop a strategic approach to maximising the potential of 

the visitor economy in the north of the County Borough

Develop growth in the RCT economy by helping to create and 

support sustainable businesses 

To further develop and deliver the regeneration opportunities 

set out in the Treforest Strategic Opportunity Area (SOA)

Corporate Plan End of Year Monitoring Report 2019/20

T
udalen 135



Council Priority:  

Lead Director: 

Challenges and Opportunities linked to this 

Council Priority

Lead Officer

Actions that will deliver Priority 2 Milestones/Sub Actions that will help to achieve overarching Action Delivery 

Date

Responsible 

Officer

Progress 

to date Overall progress to date on Action

Design and develop revised strategy outlining RCT’s ambition and 

expectations for all schools, in partnership with schools, realigning RCT’s 

ambition to take account of the Education in Wales national mission

Aug-19 Complete

Consult on the strategy, revise where required and publish Sep-19 

Revised

Jul-20

Not on 

Target

Shared vision, values and initial actions agreed with senior school leaders. Awaiting 

opportunities to engage and consult with other stakeholders such as pupils which have 

been delayed due to Covid 19 and school closures.

Ensure schools have begun to engage in the All Wales assessment 

evaluation framework

Review

Mar-20

Tim Britton Complete

Adapt procedures for identifying school underperformance in line with 

the new proposed national model and the processes for providing multi-

disciplinary support and challenge to secure improvement

Jan-20 Gaynor Davies, 

Bernard 

Whittingham in 

partnership with 

Tim Britton/Sarah 

Corcoran and LA 

Officers

Complete Policy in relation to underperforming schools in place yet current situation in relation to 

pandemic means that tactics around addressing underperformance will need to be 

reviewed.

Use the self-improving system effectively to enhance professional 

learning across sectors and development of a highly skilled workforce

Review

Mar-20

Bernard 

Whittingham / Tim 

Britton with CSC 

Officers

Not on 

Target

This is an ongoing workstream but further progress is awaited from Central South 

Consortium in the delivery of this action. 

Ensure that the workforce is engaging with the new draft curriculum Review

Mar-20

Bernard 

Whittingham / Tim 

Britton with CSC 

Officers

Not on 

Target

Schools continued to engage with the new curriculum and work is on-going through the 

Central South Consortium in the development of school to school working to enhance 

performance learning. During quarter 4, progress nationally has been impacted by the 

Covid-19 outbreak. 

Ensure self-evaluation and school development processes clearly 

identify appropriate priorities for improvement focussed on learning and 

teaching

Review

Mar-20

Bernard 

Whittingham / Tim 

Britton with CSC 

officers

Complete

Closely monitor inspection outcomes to ensure that progress is made, 

and that timely and effective support and challenge is provided 

Ongoing Gaynor Davies / 

Bernard 

Whittingham / Tim 

Britton

Complete Work completed to end of March but this is an ongoing work stream.

Improve boys performance to narrow the attainment gap between boys 

and girls: Through challenge and support, ensure all schools are 

effectively applying strategies that engage boys and break down barriers 

to learning

Review

Mar-20

Bernard 

Whittingham / Tim 

Britton with CSC 

Officers

Not on 

Target

Impact on strategies in place will be difficult to assess due to the cancellation of 

examinations at KS4 and 5 and the withdrawal of assessment data at KS3 and below

Improve the performance of eFSM learners to narrow the attainment gap 

between eFSM/non eFSM learners: Provide appropriate support and 

challenge to ensure that schools effectively use PGD funding to secure 

improvements for all eFSM learners

Review

Mar-20

Bernard 

Whittingham / Tim 

Britton

Not on 

Target

This action is led by the Central South Consortium and work is on-going to address this 

area. 

ECONOMY - Building a strong economy

Chris Bradshaw

2 - Rhondda Cynon Taf’s schools will be amongst the best in the country, with all children achieving the best they can

Develop inspirational leaders working collaboratively 

to improve outcomes and reduce the attainment 

gap 

Gaynor Davies, 

Bernard 

Whittingham

Gaynor Davies 

Corporate Plan End of Year Monitoring Report 2019/20

T
udalen 136



Actions that will deliver Priority 2 Milestones/Sub Actions that will help to achieve overarching Action Delivery 

Date

Responsible 

Officer

Progress 

to date Overall progress to date on Action

Develop inspirational leaders working collaboratively 

to improve outcomes and reduce the attainment 

gap 

Gaynor Davies, 

Bernard 

WhittinghamDevelop and deliver a bespoke programme for supporting science core 

subject leaders that improves pupil performance in the new science 

GCSE qualifications

Review 

Annually

On Target

Analyse in detail the relative performance of science departments across 

RCT and CSC.  Broker school to school support to enhance 

performance in those departments with the greatest need to improve

Review

Mar-20

Complete

Improve standards in literacy at primary level by ensuring active 

engagement by all schools across the authority in the CSC Voice 21 

project to improve oracy and evaluate impact

Review 

Annually

Tim Britton with 

CSC officers

Not on 

Target

This action is led by the Central South Consortium and work is on-going to address this 

area.

Develop and consult on a Wellbeing in Education Strategy and Action 

Plan in partnership with schools and key agencies 

Aug-19 Rob Kempson Complete Wellbeing strategy and action plan complete.

Develop a robust cross service protocol to tackling severe and persistent 

attendance difficulties, disseminate widely and evaluate its impact

Aug-19 

Revised

Jan-20

Dan 

Williams/Hayley 

Jeans

Target 

Missed

The protocol has been developed and implementation begun, although due to the impact of 

grant conditions on recruitment, the project did not progress as quickly as planned. Wider 

implementation has now been delayed by the Covid-19 pandemic.

Strengthen approaches with external partners to improve the mental 

health of learners and roll out Mental Health First Aid Training to schools

Sep-19 Hayley Jeans/Rob 

Kempson

Complete This action was completed prior to the Covid 19 pandemic and Mental Health First Aid 

Training was being offered as collaborative training between Children Looked After team 

and Education Psychology Service.

Evaluate school counselling services using the  stakeholder feedback 

and review provision if appropriate

Jun-19 Hayley 

Jeans/Commissio

ning Services

Complete Scrutiny report completed and presented to Children and Young People Scrutiny 

Committee

Deliver the school holiday enrichment programme and undertake 

evaluation of programme effectiveness

Sep-19 Andrea Richards Complete The school holiday enrichment programme has been undertaken with more pupils 

participating in the programme this year. Evaluation information received from those 

attending has been positive. 

Improve the progress of vulnerable learners through effectively utilising 

data to inform decision making, tracking progress of CLA learners and 

pupils in Learner support classes to ensure timely support and 

intervention

Sep-19

Revised

Jan-20

Kerry 

Webster/Kate Hill

Complete Perma profiling tool was launched in Autumn Term 2019, wellbeing data sheets continued 

to be utilised

Work with key partners to implement an ALN Transformation 

programme in preparation for the ALNET Act

Mar-20 Ceri Jones Target 

Missed

Training has been provided for relevant staff in preparation for the Act. Due to the delay of 

the implementation of ALNET and the initial impact of Covid 19, certain work areas including 

the sensory review have not yet been completed, and will continue to be delivered in 20/21 

and monitored through Service plans. 

Work with schools to mitigate against the effects of Adverse Childhood 

Experiences (ACEs): Roll out a comprehensive and co-ordinated training 

programme to schools relating to ACEs and undertake post training 

evaluation, ensuring all schools with a high incidence of learners with 

vulnerability factors are targeted for training

From

Sep-19

Hayley Jeans Not on 

Target

Analysis of vulnerability data has been undertaken and is being cross referenced with ACEs 

training which has already been delivered, in order to prioritise schools and staff for relevant 

training. Due to a variety of training being delivered through different providers this 

information is taking time to collate and progress has been delayed due to the Covid-19 

pandemic.

Improve attendance and exclusion outcomes for learners through 

establishing a support and challenge protocol to ensure that a consistent 

approach to addressing exclusion/attendance concerns is adopted and 

building in capacity for strategically supporting schools causing concern

Sep-19 Ceri Jones / Dan 

Williams / Bernard 

Whittingham

Complete

Establish a pilot programme opportunity for secondary schools to 

establish alternative provision for disengaged young people, or in-house 

provision for learners with significant social, emotional and behavioural 

needs

May-19 

Revised

Jul-19

Gaynor Davies Complete A pilot programme opportunity for schools has been established to allow them to bid for 

funding for alternative provision. Resources have been made available for 2 schools and an 

additional collaborative bid covering 5 schools where alternative provision is being 

established.

Develop inspirational leaders working collaboratively 

to improve outcomes and reduce the attainment 

gap 
Bernard 

Whittingham with 

CSC officers

Develop strong inclusive schools committed to 

excellence, equity and wellbeing, with more 

effective strategic and collaborative approaches to 

meeting the wellbeing needs of learners, their 

families and their schools

Improve outcomes in science in Key Stage 4:

Corporate Plan End of Year Monitoring Report 2019/20

T
udalen 137



Actions that will deliver Priority 2 Milestones/Sub Actions that will help to achieve overarching Action Delivery 

Date

Responsible 

Officer

Progress 

to date Overall progress to date on Action

Develop inspirational leaders working collaboratively 

to improve outcomes and reduce the attainment 

gap 

Gaynor Davies, 

Bernard 

Whittingham

Progress Band B Projects in line with school organisation requirements 

subject to Cabinet approval

Review

Mar-20

On Target Good progress is being made, statutory consultation completed and awaiting outcome of 

Judicial Review challenge .

Review Band A projects and identify strengths and areas for 

improvement in order to apply lessons learnt to the Band B projects

Mar-20 Complete

Develop a 21st Century schools standard brief for all new developments Oct-19 Complete Brief has been completed but continually being reviewed and amended following lessons 

learned exercise

Develop and extend Welsh medium provision at pre-school and school 

level

Mar-20 Complete Two pre-school projects are complete and the remaining four are being delivered in line with 

project timescales. Band B projects include additional Welsh Medium capacity. 

Undertake a review of the current accessibility of school buildings and 

issue a revised accessibility plan 

01/11/2019

Revised 

Mar-20

Andrea 

Richards/Ceri 

Jones

Target 

Missed

Following feedback to the Accessibility Strategy Group from Headteachers,  the audit tool 

was revised to ensure it was more user friendly for schools to complete and to encourage 

an increase in the number of school returns.  This has delayed completion of the 

accessibility audit of schools.

Evaluate the impact of all through schools through analysis of existing 

data and putting in place consistent approaches to collate future data 

and stakeholder views, sharing learning to inform future developments

Aug-20 Gaynor 

Davies/Andrea 

Richards

Not on 

Target

Work has continued to analyse existing data but collation of future data and stakeholder 

views is likely to be delayed due to the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic. 

Develop a project proposal to plan Environmentally friendly initiatives in 

schools, working with school eco committees and councils

Dec-19 Andrea Richards Target 

Missed

Positive initial engagement was held with schools and potential school specific initiatives 

and options were identified. However, the closure of 'Learning Curve',  Treforest due to 

flood damage impacted on some of the proposed projects and implementation is now on 

hold due to Covid-19 and associated school closures.

Following a funding bid to WG, if successful develop and deliver 

proposals for establishing learning hubs

Mar-20 Complete

Ensure that Band B projects incorporate community facilities based on 

community need

Mar-20 Complete Band B projects incorporate community facilities

Further improve learning environments across the 

County Borough through the effective 

implementation of RCT's 21st Century 

Modernisation programme

Andrea Richards

Make more effective use of schools to provide 

extended services to their communities, including 

community learning hubs

Andrea Richards

Corporate Plan End of Year Monitoring Report 2019/20

T
udalen 138



Council Priority:  

Lead Director: 

Challenges and Opportunities linked to this Council Priority

Lead Officer

Actions that will deliver Priority 3 Milestones/Sub Actions that will help to achieve overarching Action Delivery 

Date

Responsible 

Officer
Progress to 

date
Overall progress to date on Action

Implement the new In-Work Support & Work Placement programme 

designed to improve retention

Jul-19 Nicola Lewis Complete

Review the pre-employability programme to ensure it continues to provide 

the type of courses required to prepare people for progression

Aug-19 Heulyn Rees Complete

Explore the potential for further developing the Employment Routes 

programme to train unemployed people for hard-to-fill Council vacancies

Jun-19 Wendy Edwards/ 

Ceri-ann Sheen

Complete

The Employment Strategy and Action plan was considered by 

Scrutiny in November 2019 prior to being approved by Cabinet in 

December 2019.

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meet

ings/Cabinet/2019/12/17/Reports/Item6EmploymentStrategy.pdf

Monitor the ESF Employment Projects  - Inspire2Work and Communities for 

Work to ensure they continue to deliver positive outcomes

Review

Mar-20

Syd Dennis Complete

Deliver the building resilience, prosperity and wellbeing project to help 

people with long term health conditions and disabilities stay in work

Review

Mar-20

Deb Hughes Not on 

Target

Delayed commencement of delivery of this project impacted on 

performance earlier in the year. Performance has improved following 

WEFO review of referral criteria as reported in Q3, which widened the 

scope to include preventative treatment. However, WEFO position 

has changed due to the Covid 19 pandemic and they are not able to 

consider change requests for project targets until Covid 19 conditions 

are reviewed. A project recovery plan is in place. 

Ensure the effective implementation of the Gatsby project across all RCT 

secondary provisions 

Oct-19 Bernard 

Whittingham / Kate 

Owens

Complete

Ensure that effective links are established with employers so that learners 

pursue the most appropriate pathway

Mar-20 Martin Silezin / 

Sian Woolson

Complete

Support schools to improve their links with extended work placement 

providers and accredited providers where appropriate, and evaluate the 

outcomes

Mar-20 Martin Silezin / 

Sian Woolson

Target 

Missed

Work in this area is currently on hold due to the impact of Covid-19

Work in partnership with FE and HE establishments to provide career 

pathways and opportunities in the creative economy

Review

Mar-20

Caroline O’Neill Complete Working with Coleg y Cymoedd, USW and UWTSD to provide 

opportunities within our participatory programme.

Seek to develop the digital technology creative industries offer of the Arts & 

Creative Industries and Library teams e.g. gaming, coding

Oct-19 

Revised 

Apr-21

Caroline O’Neill/ 

Nick Kelland

Not on 

Target

Aligned to Cultural Hub Development between Treorchy Library and 

the Park and Dare Theatre. Due to the impact of Covid-19, future 

progress on this project will be delayed. 

Encourage equality of opportunity e.g. open calls for work, identifying 

potential opportunities to work with and support disabled and BME artists

Review

Mar-20

Caroline O'Neill Not on 

Target

This work is aligned to the development of Stiwdio 1, future progress 

is delayed in light of Covid -19 

Secure a presence within Pontypridd supporting creative partners and 

working to develop a Creative Pontypridd Strategy

Jul-20 Wendy 

Edwards/Caroline 

O'Neill

Not on 

Target

This is aligned to the new development of the Muni Arts Centre, Llys 

Cadwyn, Clwb y Bont etc. Progress was delayed due to the severe 

flooding in Pontypridd and will be further delayed due to the impact of 

Covid-19. 

Support the creative economy within RCT so that it can provide more 

opportunities for progression

Further strengthen and develop the RCT Employment Pathway to ensure it 

remains fit for purpose

Develop high quality careers guidance and work experience to allow young 

people to make informed decisions about their future

CompleteDevelop the RCT Employment and Skills Strategy in partnership with the 

Strategic Employment Group and submit to Scrutiny for discussion prior to 

seeking approval from Cabinet

Sep-19 Wendy Edwards

ECONOMY - Building a strong economy

Chris Bradshaw

3 - There will be a broad offer of skills and employment programmes for all ages

Gaynor Davies/Deborah Hughes

Corporate Plan End of Year Monitoring Report 2019/20

T
udalen 139

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Cabinet/2019/12/17/Reports/Item6EmploymentStrategy.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Cabinet/2019/12/17/Reports/Item6EmploymentStrategy.pdf


Section 5b

We know that older people prefer to stay in their own homes and communities until it is impossible for them to do so, rather than move into residential care. Living independently comes with many benefits such as having the freedom to have 

family and friends visit whenever they like and the comforts of remaining in their most familiar place.  As the number of older people in Rhondda Cynon Taf continues to grow, bringing with it the associated increase in age-related chronic 

illnesses our long term aim is to deliver new accommodation models to improve outcomes for those individuals who need support to live independently.  For example, building on the success of our extra care facility in Talbot Green, we are 

working collaboratively with partners to progress the development of further extra care facilities which integrates with our older person’s housing strategy “My Own Front Door – A Plan for Housing in Later Life”. In May 2020, despite the impact 

of Covid-19, we opened Maesffynnon Extra Care in partnership with Linc Cymru, our second Extra Care facility in Aberaman.  We are also developing supported housing schemes to help vulnerable people to live more independently within 

their communities, such as the schemes at Penllew Court and Crown Avenue providing supported housing for people with learning disabilities. Penllew Court was completed in January 2020 and people have started to move in and take up 

new tenancies. Crown Avenue is progressing well and is on target to be completed by August 2020.

Older people whose discharge from hospital is delayed are likely to suffer adverse consequences ranging from anxiety and discomfort to more serious and longer-lasting physical and psychological harm.  Delays may even lead to their 

capacity for independent living being significantly reduced. This can be challenging for both the patient and their family.  To prevent these problems, we are further developing the ‘Stay Well @home’ service with our partners as well as 

seeking other solutions that will support people to live independently at home following hospital discharge.  Stay Well @home Phase 2 was launched in January 2020 as part of Regional Stay Well in Community Transformational Bid to 

provide support to people in their own homes and reduce the need for hospital admissions.

Research has shown that people want to be involved in decisions about their care.  We have continued working with clients, providers and social care managers to co-produce homecare services which meet their needs. We are also working 

with the Carers project to closely involve carers in reviewing and developing services to make sure they receive the support they need. During the year, we have engaged with carers and staff to get a better understanding of what the barriers 

to take up of a carer assessment are. This has resulted in new insight into the carer experience of the offer and a revision of the carer assessment guidance to staff and new public information for carers. Since December 2019, we have been 

piloting a new approach to carer assessment in Care and Support and we had planned to review the initial impact during the Qtr 4. This has been delayed due to the COVID-19 Pandemic and will completed in 2020/21 to inform next steps.

Many factors contribute to health and well-being, including quality of health and social care and lifestyle issues such as diet, exercise and smoking.  To support the delivery of health protection and improvement initiatives, we are collaborating 

with partners to develop a model of social prescribing that promotes well-being and protects the health of the individual. For example, working with GP practices to provide referrals to courses including mindfulness and cookery courses to 

support residents in improving their wellbeing.  This work has been delayed as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic but will remain a priority moving forward. We are also continuing a community based approach to deliver our successful Falls 

Prevention Programme to help older people who have suffered a fall or who are at risk of falling to improve their mobility, strength and balance and re-build their confidence.

Taking regular exercise is an important aspect of staying healthy and active and can help protect against a number of serious health conditions including heart disease and diabetes.  We continue to encourage people of all ages to take 

regular exercise through investing in our leisure facilities, including refurbishing and improving the gym at Sobell leisure centre and opening a new facility at Llys Cadwyn, and by maximising the use of new 3G pitches for all age groups. Whilst 

both the gym at Sobell leisure centre and Llys Cadwyn have been progressed to a point of completion, the direction to shut all leisure centres and gyms by the UK government has meant that we were unable to open facilities as anticipated 

and together with the impacts of storms in the early part of the year, our leisure visit data has been adversely affected.

Corporate Priority Action Plan Monitoring Report - Quarter 4 2019/20

Council Priority:  People - Promoting independence and positive lives for everyone

Lead Director: Giovanni Isingrini

1. Health & Social Care Services will be personalised and integrated, with more people supported to live longer in their own homes

Corporate Plan End of Year Monitoring Report 2019/20

T
udalen 140



The Council understands that to get the most out of its services they need to be fully integrated, efficient and resilient, which is why many local services have been redesigned to encompass early intervention and prevention to better serve 

communities in the long term.

A wide range of problems which impact on our communities are interrelated, including substance misuse, low educational attainment and poor health. Identifying families where issues are present, assessing their needs and providing timely 

support can prevent problems from escalating and requiring specialist services in the future.  

Children and young people who are taken into the care of a Local Authority have frequently been exposed to ‘Adverse Childhood Experiences’ (ACEs).  The Welsh Adverse Childhood Experiences Study clearly highlights the impact that these 

experiences have on the health and well-being of children and the potential long term impact if appropriate support is not provided to mitigate against these experiences. In view of these risk factors for this vulnerable group, the need for early 

intervention and access to timely and effective support is critical. We continue our work to support families as effectively as possible through our Resilient Families Service and wider Resilient Families Programme, collaborating with partners 

including South Wales Police to improve early intervention services, particularly for those families who have experienced Adverse Childhood Experiences. 

Domestic abuse can include physical, emotional, physiological or other forms of abuse. Experiencing domestic abuse can negatively affect a person mentally, physically and even financially and children and young people who witness 

domestic abuse can also be affected mentally in the long-term.  We have reviewed our existing services and identified gaps in provision. We will now redesign our services to provide the best support possible for individuals experiencing 

domestic abuse and their families.

Substance misuse is linked to a range of other problems including crime and disorder, antisocial behaviour, domestic violence, mental health issues and unemployment.  We have worked collaboratively with our partners to ensure that 

wherever an individual lives in Cwm Taf they are entitled to the same access and receive the same support, treatment and quality of service to ensure everyone receives the help and support they need and avoid problems escalating. 

We have reviewed the findings of the Temporary Accommodation and Hostel provision to make sure appropriate housing options and support are available and meeting the needs of our residents, to prevent homelessness and reduce the 

use of temporary accommodation. We have identified areas of improvement by involving staff and service users in consultations and responding to these challenges by collaborating with housing partners and integrating service delivery and 

provision. This is included the introduction of a new locality floating support service.

Having a good start in life helps children and young people to have high aspirations and to develop to their full potential, not only academically but also socially and emotionally.  This positive start will contribute to the longer term prevention of 

a wide range of social problems including unemployment and ill health.

A child's first 1,000 days has been identified as a critical part of life, having a long lasting impact on individuals and families. They shape the destiny for children as they grow up: their educational achievements, their ability to secure an 

income, their influences on their own children and their health in older age. We are reviewing the delivery of Early Years in RCT ensuring services are targeted towards specific need rather than geographical areas. We are also ensuring that 

our services provide the right support for those children with additional needs, in line with the Additional Learning Needs Tribunal (ALNET) Act.

We have developed a robust quality assurance framework across Children's Services to ensure appropriate interventions are put in place to protect children from abuse and neglect and prevent longer term harm. We have also worked with 

our foster carers to provide the training and support they need to cope with children with challenging behaviours, helping them provide a positive and stable environment to support children and young people who cannot live with their families.

Providing early intervention and support is key to preventing problems from escalating. We continue to work to improve information about and access to our Resilient Families Service through collaborating with community groups to promote 

the service, creating an improved online presence and developing drop in services so families can find the help they need quickly. 

We are continuing to review the ways that we are involving children and young people in service provision and development. Using this information, we will work with children and young people to look at ways we can increase their 

involvement in future developments and ensure their voices can continue to be heard. This action will continue in 2020/21 although the impact of Covid-19 may delay this.

This work with children and young people is closely integrated with our Economy priority, as supporting our young people early on in life will help improve their skills and educational attainment, and support the longer term economic 

development of the area. 

2. Redesigned local services - integrated and efficient

3. Rhondda Cynon Taf’s children and young people will receive a great start in life

Corporate Plan End of Year Monitoring Report 2019/20

T
udalen 141



Actual Actual
Wales 

Average
Target

Actual (Qtr 

4)

LSCA014 % of clients choosing their own service providers through Direct 

Payments

14.67 16.1 N/A 16.7 16.8

LSCA101 Proportion of people assessed by adult social care in receipt of 

care and support plan 

70.15 72.74 N/A 72.7 70.47

Measure 20a 

SSOF20a

% of adults who completed a period of reablement & have a 

reduced package of care & support 6 months later

84.95 85.43 43.9 85.43 86.67

Measure 20b 

SSOF20b

% of adults who completed a period of reablement & have no 

package of care & support 6 months later

77.63 73.47 66.8 73.5 81.00

LSCA102 No. of people admitted to residential or nursing care 417 420 N/A 400 385

PAM025

Measure 19

The rate of delayed transfers of care for social care reasons per 1,000 

population aged 75+

1.88 3.43 4.9 2.80 4.52

Measure 21 

SSOF21

The average length of time older people (aged 65 or over) are 

supported in residential care homes

922.47 959.35 833.1 959.35 982.65

PAM015

PSR002

Average no. of calendar days taken to deliver a DFG 234 225 207.32 250 246

PAM017 

LCS002b

No. of visits to local authority sports and leisure centres per 1,000 

population where the visitor will be participating in physical activity (not 

including schools)

          8,140 8,302 9,116*           8,505 7,948

LLCS014 No. of visits from the public and school pupils to local authority sport 

and leisure facilities during the year per 1,000 where the visitor is 

participating in physical activity.

12,218 9,438 N/A 10,000 8,305

LLCL013 No. of visits to public library premises during the year and people 

visited by the @home library service, per 1,000 population (physical 

visits)

 N/A  N/A N/A           3,053 Not yet 

available 

LLCL011

(WPLSQI16b)

Number of visits to Public Library premises (virtual) during the year, 

per 1,000 population. 

             318 513 N/A              517 615

Footnotes: * Altered from 9,235 following data revision from WG

Key:

Measures to support Priority 1 - Health & Social Care Services will be personalised and integrated, with more people supported to live longer in their own homes

Comments

Quarter 4 information is in the process of being compiled (and will be reported as part of the Council’s 

Corporate Performance Report) 

Council Priority:  

Lead Director: 

PI Ref Performance Measure

Measuring Success

2017/18 2019/20

PEOPLE - Promoting independence and positive lives for everyone

Giovanni Isingrini

2018/19

Bolded PIs denote that an existing Corporate Plan high level measure

There were 90 reported delays during 2019/20. Whilst performance is below target and higher than 2018/19 

levels, it is better than the reported Welsh average. Reasons for the current delays are mainly attributable to 

home care capacity and housing supply pressures. The COVID-19 Pandemic outbreak in March would have 

also adversely impacted on discharge timeliness from hospital.

Performance below targetPerformance within 5% of the target

There has been a reduction in the overall leisure centre usage impacted by Storm Dennis and COVID-19 (with 

between a 40-50% reduction over the period January and March 2020 (the months with historically the highest 

usage) and no usage from 20th March 2020). As a result, it is considered not meaningful for performance to be 

compared to target for the year, and is reported for information only. 

Within Top Quartile performance for all of Wales 

Within Bottom Quartile performance for all of Wales 
Performance met or exceeded target

Corporate Plan End of Year Monitoring Report 2019/20

T
udalen 142



Actual Actual
Wales 

Average
Target

Actual (Qtr 

4)

LPPN169 Number and percentage of case reviews whose substance misuse for 

problematic substances is reduced, remains unchanged or abstinent 

between start and most recent review (Cwm Taf APB)

88.26

(10,145)

89.21

(10,730)

N/A 86.5 87.45

LPPN170 % of clients who wait less than 20 working days between referral and 

treatment

92.01 89.25 N/A 80 92.01

LCWR001a Number of families with increased resilience following completed 

intervention with the Resilient Families Service 

N/A 761 N/A 800 1004

LCWR001b % of families with increased resilience following completed 

intervention with the Resilient Families Service 

N/A 95.4 N/A 95.90 95.1

LPPN156 % of domestic violence clients reporting no abuse experienced in the 

past month/since Intake

55 N/A N/A 70 39.7

LPPN135a % of domestic violence clients reporting feeling safer as a result of 

IDVA (Independent Domestic Violence Advisor) intervention

85 N/A N/A 85 90

Actual Actual
Wales 

Average
Target

Actual (Qtr 

4)

LSCC101 % of children & young people requiring intervention from 

statutory services

23.5 30.6 N/A 30 41.62

LSCC102 No. of children looked after (CLA) 676 674 N/A 674 717

Measure 27 

SSOF27

% of re-registrations of children on Local Authority CPR 8.10 6.72 5.1 6.72 10.05

Measure 34a 

SSOF34a

% of all care leavers who are in education, training or employment 

(EET) at 12 months after leaving care

40.7 42.6 53.5 50 52.38

Measure 34b 

SSOF34b

% of all care leavers who are in education, training or employment at 

24 months after leaving care

49 36.4 50.7 50 32.61

Key:

Bolded PIs denote that an existing Corporate Plan high level measure

The number of children looked after increased  during the quarter to 717. The number of children looked after 

is regularly and closely monitored by the Children Looked After Quality Assurance Board. A key action in the 

CLA QA Panel Work Plan is to implement a model of practice to support reunification and funding was  

obtained to recruit 2 social workers to support reunification work. This had been progressing but was halted as 

a consequence of the emerging Covid-19 crisis. Achieving reunification, wherever this is possible and in the 

best interests of the child, remains a key service priority and the planned work will be progressed in line with 

the Children's Services Recovery Plan.

There has been a slight drop in performance during Q4 compared to Q3 (9.39%) but numbers of registrations 

and re-registrations have been relatively stable throughout the year. Re-registration is monitored closely and 

regularly by the Cwm Taf Morgannwg Safeguarding Board.

Performance Measure

2017/18 2019/20

Performance within 5% of the target

Data covers period from 1st April 2019 to 29th February 2020 (Covid-19 restrictions have impacted the 

collection of information for March 2020)

Performance below target
Within Top Quartile performance for all of Wales 

Within Bottom Quartile performance for all of Wales

Performance dropped slightly through quarter 4 and the year end target has not been met. Further analysis of 

the data shows that of the 2,487 cases that progressed into Statutory Services for a more comprehensive 

assessment of needs, 1,710 (69%) did not require any on-going care & support and their cases were either 

signposted to the Resilient Families Service or closed.

2017/18

Comments

Performance met or exceeded target

Performance has dropped this quarter.  31 out of 46 young people were not in EET 24 months after leaving 

care for a variety of reasons, for example, claiming benefits but actively job searching,  attending university and 

also a reluctance by some young people to engage with the 16+ teams. This area will continue to be afforded a 

high priority to ensure young people have the support, and opportunity of support, to help then access 

education, training or employment.

2019/20

Data covers period from 1st April 2019 to 29th February 2020 (Covid-19 restrictions have impacted the 

collection of information for March 2020)

2018/19

2018/19

Measures to support Priority 2 - Redesigned local services - integrated and efficient

PI Ref Comments

Measures to support Priority 3 - Rhondda Cynon Taf's children and young people will receive a great start in life

PI Ref Performance Measure

Performance outcomes vary depending on the type of abuse experienced.  As a result of the complexity of 

some abusive behaviours and the need to apply different types of support interventions which successfully 

prohibit further abuse over differing timescales, there can be significant variables in performance outcomes by 

abuse type.  

It is acknowledged that the PI definition requires review to ensure the appropriate measure(s) is in place to 

monitor and manage performance, and help gauge the outcomes that the Service's work is having. For this 

reason, performance is not being compared with target for 2019/20.

Corporate Plan End of Year Monitoring Report 2019/20

T
udalen 143



Council Priority:  

Lead Director: 

Challenges and Opportunities linked to this Council Priority

Lead Officer

Actions that will deliver Priority 1 Milestones/Sub Actions that will help to achieve overarching 

Action 

Delivery 

Date

Responsible 

Officer

Progress to 

date

Overall progress on action

Complete public consultation in accordance with Cabinet 

decision

Apr-19 Neil Elliott Complete Public Consultation ended on 8th April 2019.

Present outcome of consultation back to Cabinet for final 

approval on agreed way forward

Sep-19 Neil Elliott Complete Report presented to Cabinet on 11 September 2019 - preferred option agreed. 

Consultation on preferred option to commence 1 October 2020.

Complete allocation assessment process Oct-19 

Revised 

Feb 2020

Jill Bow Complete Allocation process in place - assessments will be ongoing based on people's 

assessed need in line with extra care criteria and scheme availability.

Complete construction and open scheme Nov-19 

Revised 

Feb-20

Jill Bow Target 

Missed

Due to impact of Storm Dennis and Covid-19 the new scheme is scheduled to open 

on 4th May 2020.

Commence construction on site Jul-19 Jill Bow Complete

Agree costed development programme Jul-19 

Revised 

2020/21

Jill Bow On Target Development options for Porth Extra Care continue to be considered, although 

progress has been impacted by the Covid-19 Pandemic outbreak. As reported at 

quarter 3, further progress would be reported in 2020/21, pending ongoing site 

investigations on Bronwydd site.

(i) Hold consultation events with people with learning 

disabilities and their parents/carers to showcase new 

development 

Jul-19 Jill Bow Complete Two events held - one with people with learning disabilities and one with parents 

and carers.

(ii) Complete work with agreed Care Provider to assess new 

scheme tenants

Nov-19 Alex Beckham Complete Assessments complete and initial tenancies being agreed with assessed residents.

(iii) Complete construction and open scheme Dec-19 Jill Bow Complete Scheme refurbishment complete and people started to move in and take up new 

tenancies from January 2020. 

(i) Commence construction on site Jul-19 

Revised 

Aug-20

Jill Bow Complete

(ii) Commence work with agreed Care Provider to assess new 

scheme tenants 

Jan-20 Alex Beckham Complete

(iii) Hold consultation events with people with learning 

disabilities and their parents/carers to showcase new 

development

Feb-20 Jill Bow Complete

Increase shared lives provision and offer both short and long 

term support to all people with an assessed need across adult 

services  

Mar-20 Alex Beckham Complete During 2019/20, we increased the number of permanent shared live places from 14 

to 16 and short term places from 2 to 5.

Receive funding approval from Welsh Government Jun-19 Luisa Bridgman Complete Funding approval received from Welsh Government. 

Agree Delivery model Jul-19 Luisa Bridgman Complete Model agreed and work commenced for implementation from January 2020.

Commence recruitment and new model development 

programme

Jul-19 Luisa Bridgman Complete Recruitment underway alongside implementation of new model from January 2020.

Stay Well@Home Phase 2 Go live Mar-20 Luisa Bridgman Complete Stay Well @Home Phase 2 started on 20th January 2020. 

Conclude review of the future shape of Residential Care for older 

people to create the right model of service delivery to respond to 

increasing demand and changing needs

Work jointly with Linc Cymru to deliver the extra care housing 

development programme and enable more people to live 

independently in their own home

Continue to ensure that there are appropriate levels of modern fit for 

purpose housing and accommodation available for vulnerable 

people that meets their needs and supported, where appropriate, by 

access to community facilities

Work with Health and other partners to prevent hospital admissions 

and support hospital discharges to reduce delayed transfers of care 

by enabling people to return to their home when they are well 

enough to do so 

Neil Elliott

PEOPLE - Promoting independence and positive lives for everyone
Giovanni Isingrini

1. Health & Social Care Services will be personalised and integrated, with more people supported to live longer in their own homes

Deliver new extra care housing scheme in Porth:

Deliver new extra care housing scheme in Pontypridd:

Deliver new extra care housing scheme in Aberaman:

Implement Stay Well@Home Phase 2 (as part of Regional Stay Well in Community Transformational 

Bid) to provide support to people in their own homes and reduce the need for hospital admissions 

Deliver Penllew Court (Aberdare) supported housing scheme for people with a learning disability, in 

partnership with Cynon Taf:

Deliver Crown Avenue (Treorchy) supported housing scheme for people with a learning disability, in 

partnership with Trivallis, by August 2020:

Refurbishment of scheme ongoing and opening of refurbished scheme on target 

Corporate Plan End of Year Monitoring Report 2019/20

T
udalen 144



Actions that will deliver Priority 1 Milestones/Sub Actions that will help to achieve overarching 

Action 

Delivery 

Date

Responsible 

Officer

Progress to 

date

Overall progress on action

Conclude review of the future shape of Residential Care for older 

people to create the right model of service delivery to respond to 

increasing demand and changing needs

Receive funding approval from Welsh Government Jun-19 Luisa Bridgman Complete Funding approval received from Welsh Government. 

Agree Delivery Model, commence recruitment and model 

delivery programme development

Jul-19 Luisa Bridgman Complete Model agreed and recruitment underway. 

New Assistive Technology model go-live Mar-20 Luisa Bridgman Complete New Assistive Technology model started on 20th January 2020 

Identify options to strengthen the domiciliary care provider 

base and increase the amount of home care that providers are 

able to supply 

Jul-19 Gwyneth Elliott Complete Options co-produced with providers and agreed to develop and pilot outcome based 

model and improve recruitment and retention across the sector.

Take forward outcome-based commissioning for home care 

provision through co-production of a new service model and 

contract specification 

Oct-19 Gwyneth Elliott Complete New model of service and specification for pilot with home care service customers 

agreed with a nominated provider

Present outcomes of consultation for approval and produce 

delivery programme to implement preferred approach 

Jan-20 Gwyneth Elliott Target 

Missed

Start of planned pilot from April 2020 delayed due to COVID-19 outbreak. Will be 

carried forward into 2020/21 for implementation, when appropriate.

Explore opportunities to improve the way carers assessments 

are promoted and undertaken by reviewing current practice 

and performance informed by staff and carer survey and 

consultation and undertaking best practice review by high 

performing local authorities

Nov-19 Sian Nowell Complete

Use this information to recommend improvements to take 

forward and change current practice 

Jan-20 Sian Nowell Complete

Work with Carers Project to develop alternative offers to 

support to improvements agreed to current practice

Mar-20 Sian Nowell Complete The Carers Project has continued to produce good quality advice and information to 

carers and to ensure activities and services to support low level support is available. 

The ‘#what matters’ campaign has successfully reviewed the carers project offer 

and set priorities for the year ahead against what carers are stating is their priority.

Increase the number of carers assessments completed and 

offers accepted of support when needed

Mar-20 Neil Elliott Complete During the year we increased the number of carers assessment offered by 20% and 

the number undertaken by 15%.

Review respite policy and provision to ensure it continues to 

meet the changing needs and increasing demand pressures 

Oct-19 Neil Elliott Complete

Work with Third Sector Partners to support the development 

of projects focused on befriending or targeted at people in 

areas with greatest loneliness

Oct-19 Sian Nowell Complete

Develop more effective links with:

• GPs (and primary care hubs) 

• Community Coordinators

• Community Hubs 

to improve utilisation of community services to reduce the 

potential deterioration of vulnerable people living 

independently in the community

 On-going 

through 

2019/20

Sian Nowell Complete

Develop a plan to roll out Dementia Friends training to 

increase the number of designated “friends” in RCT so that 

people living with dementia are better supported in their 

communities

Sep-19 Gary Black & 

Amy Lewis

Complete A Dementia Friends session has been delivered to members of the Community 

Safety Partnership team who work with vulnerable victims. A session has also been 

delivered to a community group. The Health and Wellbeing Improvement Officer 

(Older People) continues to be a member of the Dementia Friends Pontypridd 

steering group and the Health and Wellbeing Improvement Manager is a 

representative at the newly formed Cwm Taf Morgannwg Raising Awareness of 

Dementia sub-group.

Monitor and review the implementation of the new community 

outreach model of delivery for mobile libraries, and the 

changes to the @homelibraryservice.

Mar-20 Wendy 

Edwards/Nick 

Kelland

Target 

Missed

The impact of the February 2020 floods and Covid-19 on all partners has meant that 

work on this element has had to be suspended.

Work more closely with all Partners to build supportive relationships 

and strong and resilient communities that help people to live 

independently and reduce loneliness and isolation

Continue to work with all domiciliary care providers to ensure that 

people receive good quality home care based on the outcomes they 

want to achieve and that there is sufficient provision available at the 

right level to meet demand

Ensure the voice of the carer is consistently heard and that support 

is tailored to enable them to achieve their own wellbeing outcomes

Implement new Assistive Technology model (as part of Regional 

Stay Well in Community Transformational Bid), making better use 

of technology to help people stay independently in their own homes, 

preventing escalation of need or enabling recovery and 

independence

During the year, we have engaged with carers and staff to get a better 

understanding of what the barriers to take up of a carer assessment are. This has 

resulted in new insight into the carer experience of the offer and a revision of the 

carer assessment guidance to staff and new public information for carers. Since 

December 2019, we have been piloting a new approach to carer assessment in 

Care and Support and we had planned to review the initial impact during the Qtr 4. 

This has been delayed due to the COVID-19 Pandemic and will be completed in 

2020/21 to inform next steps.

Corporate Plan End of Year Monitoring Report 2019/20

T
udalen 145



Actions that will deliver Priority 1 Milestones/Sub Actions that will help to achieve overarching 

Action 

Delivery 

Date

Responsible 

Officer

Progress to 

date

Overall progress on action

Conclude review of the future shape of Residential Care for older 

people to create the right model of service delivery to respond to 

increasing demand and changing needs

Further develop adult education activities as part of  social 

prescribing arrangements to  support the well-being of 

residents. 

Sep-19 Heulyn Rees Complete We are continuing to work with the Parc Canol surgery to deliver activities and have 

expanded provision in partnership with the GP Cluster Coordinator in Mountain Ash. 

A social prescribing course was set up and delivered at the new hub from 

September 2019.

Explore opportunities to work with Cwm Taf UHB on arts in 

health initiatives linked to the Arts.

Dec-19 

Revised 

2020/21

Caroline O’Neill Target 

Missed

Met with Arts and Health Co-ordinator for Cwm Taf Morgannwg around developing a 

joint project with Health Board and Valleys Steps.  An invite has been extended to 

the Health Board for presenting on the aims of the Arts and Health programme at 

the Strategic Culture and Arts Steering Group but this is currently on hold due to 

Covid-19

Through the Rhondda Fach Community Zone Implementation 

Group, work collaboratively to develop a model for social 

prescribing to pilot across that area. Identify gaps in provision 

and explore how these can be filled.

Dec-19 

Revised 

2020/21

Gary Black & 

Amy Lewis

On Target Work will be undertaken with the Cwm Taf Morgannwg Social Prescribing Group, 

once the different work streams and tasks have been identified and started (this 

being outside of the Service's control). This work is ongoing and will be taken 

forward into the 2020/21 Delivery Plan (timing to be determined, taking into account 

the implications of Covid-19).

Following development of the Social Prescribing model, work 

with partners to review gaps in provision and identify way to 

address unmet needs. 

Dec-20 

Revised 

2020/21

Gary Black & 

Amy Lewis

On Target The Rhondda Fach group have not met for some time, due to the reorganisation of 

different groups. As above, this delay is outside of the Service's direct control. 

Further work will be undertaken with the Cwm Taf Morgannwg Social Prescribing 

Group and this action will be taken forward into 2020/21 (timing to be determined, 

taking into account the implications of Covid-19)

Complete the effective evaluation of the Falls Awareness 

Project to determine the impact on the health and wellbeing of 

participants.

Dec-19 Gary Black & 

Amy Lewis

Complete Evaluation completed and report received from the University of South Wales. 

Review the Falls Awareness Project following the evaluation 

to consider the findings and feedback obtained.

Mar-20 Gary Black & 

Amy Lewis

Complete The evaluation findings and recommendations have been considered and a plan 

has been devised to progress these during 2020/21.

Explore the development of effective referral pathways into the 

Falls Awareness Project.

Mar-20 Gary Black & 

Amy Lewis

Complete Referral pathways have been explored and arrangements are in place with a variety 

of partners, including the National Exercise Referral Scheme team, the @home 

team of Cwm Taf Morgannwg University Health Board, Primary Care Cluster 

Managers and some GP surgeries. 

In line with the requirements of the Public Health (Wales) Act 

2017, complete the consultation with persons likely to be 

interested in the provision of toilets in the County Borough 

using the draft Local Toilets Strategy.

Apr-19 Gary Black & 

Amy Lewis

Complete The 12 week public consultation on the draft Local Toilets Strategy ended 29th April 

2019, following consultation with a wide variety of groups and organisations. The 

feedback was considered and incorporated into the final version of the strategy. 

Following completion of the consultation, ensure feedback is 

considered and a Final Strategy is prepared for consideration 

by Cabinet and adoption by the Council. 

Jun-19 Gary Black & 

Amy Lewis

Complete Feedback from the 12 week public consultation was considered and incorporated 

into the final version of the strategy. Cabinet approved the strategy 18th June 2019. 

The strategy has been published on the Council's website and the link provided to 

Welsh Government.

Complete the refurbishment of  the changing facilities and the 

upgrade of  fitness facilities at Sobell Leisure Centre and 

launch a revised programme of activities supported by a press 

and marketing campaign

Sep-19

Revised

Apr-20

Keith Nicholls Target 

Missed

Work complete to pool boom (i.e. a pool divider) in March 20.  Work to changing 

room development halted due to Covid-19 when all leisure facilities closed on 20th 

March 2020.  Work to changing rooms has now restarted in line with current Covid-

19 regulations and is due to be finished by August 2020  

Produce the tender documentation and start the procurement 

process for the fitness equipment 

Jun-19 

Revised 

Oct-19

Keith Nicholls Complete

Finalise the business delivery model for the new services Oct-19 

Revised 

March-20

Keith Nicholls Target 

Missed

Open the facilities to the public, with the implementation of a 

publicity launch and on-going marketing plan

Mar-20 Keith Nicholls Target 

Missed

Deliver an integrated plan for 3G pitches aimed at 

management, maintenance and usage to ensure long-term 

sustainable use. 

Mar-20 Michelle Gibbs & 

Keith Nicholls

Complete

Work with partners to develop social prescribing approaches to 

support the health and wellbeing of residents

To support delivery of health protection and improvement initiatives 

that support residents and communities to be independent,  

healthier, safer and more resilient. 

Deliver the priority investments for Leisure Facilities to increase 

participation in exercise and contribute to residents health and well-

being

3G Pitches:

Taff Vale Development:

Sobell Leisure Centre:

Building closed due to Covid-19. Management structure in place.  Operational staff 

appointment process not completed due to Covid-19.  All marketing and opening 

plans complete and pre-marketing and sales had begun.  Currently awaiting 

direction from WG regarding the re-opening of leisure facilities. 

Corporate Plan End of Year Monitoring Report 2019/20

T
udalen 146



Council Priority:  

Lead Director: 

Challenges and Opportunities linked to this Council 

Priority

Lead Officers

Actions that will deliver Priority 2 Milestones/Sub Actions that will help to achieve overarching 

Action 

Delivery 

Date

Responsible 

Officer

Progress to 

date

Overall progress on action

Scope the opportunities for Police Community Support 

Officers (PSCOs) to contribute and enhance the work of the 

Resilient Families Programme

Apr-19 Lisa Lewis Complete

Agree and sign the Memorandum of Understanding with 

South Wales Police

Apr-19

Revised 

Mar-20

Paul Mee Complete

Undertake business process mapping to support the 

integration of the EAT Project with the Resilient Families 

Service delivery model 

Jun-19 Geraint Evans Complete

Work with the members of the Operational Partnership Board 

to oversee the Barod transition plan for the new service (tier 1 

and 2)

Sep-19 Gary Black & 

Ceri Ford

Complete The new service commenced 1st April 2019.  The Operational Partnership Board 

continues to oversee the implementation of the new service and development of 

additional joint working policies and protocols. All feedback received has been 

positive and there have been no issues identified.

Work with partners to agree single processes to include single 

assessment documentation, Performance and Audit and 

Clinical governance

Sep-19 

Revised 

Dec-19

Gary Black & 

Ceri Ford

Complete

Review the existing Violence Against Women, Domestic 

Abuse and Sexual Violence Strategy (VAWDASV)

Jun-19 Gary Black Complete

Develop and implement an action plan to address Violence 

Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence

Sep-19 Gary Black Complete

Complete the review and baseline mapping of current service 

provision 

Apr-19 Gary Black  Complete

Identify gaps in current service provision and make 

appropriate recommendations for change 

May-19 Gary Black  Complete An external party was commissioned to review the findings of the Cwm Taf needs 

assessment and gaps analysis, and add to them where necessary. The report was 

presented to the Cwm Taf VAWDASV steering group on the 2nd May 2019.

Based on the recommendations that are approved, redesign 

the new service model and secure approval to progress

Dec 19 

Revised 

2020/21

Gary Black  On Target The report will form part of the work that is being considered by the Task and Finish 

commissioning group. Whilst the recommendations within the original report were 

welcomed, it would require a substantial increase in funding. The feasibility of 

implementing the recommendations will be decided as part of the task and finish 

commissioning group. Therefore, the redesigning of the service has not been 

achieved and will need to be looked at from a Cwm Taf Morgannwg perspective. This 

action will roll into next year and will form part of the Cwm Taf Morgannwg VAWDASV 

delivery plan. 

Make preparation to re-commission new service provider with 

a view to contract commencement in 2020/21

Mar-20 

Revised 

2020/21

Gary Black  On Target Work is continuing between tWG, the PCC office, LAs and all domestic abuse service 

providers to ensure that all possible funding is allocated appropriately for the benefit 

of the services. This work will continue in 2020/21.  

Implement the New Integrated Substance Misuse Service in 

Cwm Taf 

Implement and deliver actions under the Violence Against 

Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 

2015 

Improve service provision across Cwm Taf for Domestic 

Abuse and Sexual Violence Services 

2. Redesigned local services - integrated and efficient

Paul Mee

PEOPLE - Promoting independence and positive lives for everyone

Giovanni Isingrini

Align the implementation of the Early Action Together (EAT) 

project within the Resilient Families Service, in partnership 

with South Wales Police. The Early Action Together Project 

aims to improve early intervention services for families who 

have experienced Adverse Childhood Experiences.

Corporate Plan End of Year Monitoring Report 2019/20

T
udalen 147



Actions that will deliver Priority 2 Milestones/Sub Actions that will help to achieve overarching 

Action 

Delivery 

Date

Responsible 

Officer

Progress to 

date

Overall progress on action

Align the implementation of the Early Action Together (EAT) 

project within the Resilient Families Service, in partnership 

with South Wales Police. The Early Action Together Project 

aims to improve early intervention services for families who 

have experienced Adverse Childhood Experiences.

Review the implementation and effectiveness of the Single 

Point of Contact for Children Services.

Oct-19 Tracy Prosser Complete

Implement any recommendations from the review. Dec-19 Tracy Prosser Complete

Develop a pathway between the single point of contact  and 

Community Zones

Mar-20 Tracy Prosser Target Missed

Collate all review findings and establish Steering Group to 

corporately agree actions to meet current and emerging 

service demands  

Jun-19 

Revised 

Mar-20

Cheryl Emery Target Missed Work has been progressed in quarter 4 and it is planned for this to be concluded in 

2020/21 (timing to be determined) 

Establish one Council database to record all Temporary 

Accommodation (TA) records and explore using the TA 

module on Abritas to record and report on all TA placements

Aug-19 

Revised 

2020/21

Cheryl Emery & 

Ian Jones

Target Missed Due to Covid-19, the timescale has slipped for implementation of a new module. 

Abritas have confirmed they are passing the new system over for testing in quarter 1 

of 2020/21 (at which point consideration will be given to staff training and roll out). 

Implement new locality floating support service for Temporary 

Accommodation

Dec-19 Cheryl Emery Complete New service in place alongside ongoing monitoring arrangements. 

Postponed as a result of the February 2020 flooding and Covid-19. A review of plan 

will be required moving forward. 

Review findings of Temporary Accommodation (TA) and 

hostel provision reviews and take forward recommendations 

to provide appropriate housing options and support for 

vulnerable groups, preventing homelessness and reducing the 

use of temporary accommodation

Review the delivery of the single point of Contact for 

Children's Services and how it aligns to the Community Zones 

Corporate Plan End of Year Monitoring Report 2019/20

T
udalen 148



Council Priority:  

Lead Director: 

Challenges and Opportunities linked to this Council Priority

Lead Officer

Actions that will deliver Priority 3 Milestones/Sub Actions that will help to achieve 

overarching Action 

Delivery 

Date

Responsible 

Officer

Progress to 

date

Overall progress on action

Develop a robust Governance system for Quality 

Assurance within the services that includes all layers of 

managers

Jun-19 Julie Evans Complete

Each service area to produce quality assurance action 

plans

Sep-19 Julie Evans Complete

Identify data sets for inclusion within the Quality 

Assurance process

Sep-19 Cath Tyler Complete

Agree the data sets to be included on a quarterly basis 

and how the data will be analysed and issues/ themes 

identified

Oct-19 Cath Tyler Complete

Identify what service areas are undertaking participation Oct-19 

revised 

2020/21

Cath Tyler Target 

Missed

Develop a system to collate participation information in 

one place

Dec-19 

Revised 

2020/21

Cath Tyler Target 

Missed

Analyse the information and with children and young 

people develop a plan that looks at filling any gaps and 

how future developments are influenced by the 

information received

Mar-20 

Revised 

2020/21

Cath Tyler Target 

Missed

Present the RCT Community Zone Implementation Plan 

to the County Youth Forum and seek their views on the 

Plan

Jul-19  Jessica Allen Complete

Facilitate the feeding back of young people’s views to 

the Community Zones Strategic Group and explore 

regular opportunities for young people's voice to be part 

of the Community Zones Implementation Group

Sep-19 Jessica Allen Complete

Undertake consultation with young people as to the 

facilities and support that would be of benefit to them 

Nov-19 

Revised 

2020/21

Jessica Allen Target 

Missed

Spring term meeting did not go ahead due to Covid-19.  Instead, youth forums 

are being reviewed with the intention of commencing virtual forums from 

Summer 2020

Compare the current foster care training against the 

Fostering Wellbeing training programme

Oct-19 Anne Marie 

Browning

Complete

Develop a training framework for foster carers (including 

kinship carers, peer mentoring) that includes the 10 

principles of the Fostering Wellbeing programme

Jan-20 Anne Marie 

Browning

Complete

Implement training framework for foster carers Mar-20 Anne Marie 

Browning

Complete

Promote engagement with Children and Young People

Engage Children and Young People in shaping plans for the implementation of Community 

Zones: 

Develop a Training  framework for foster carers which includes retention 

of foster carers, stability of placement, and addresses placement 

breakdown

PEOPLE - Promoting independence and positive lives for everyone

Giovanni Isingrini

3. Rhondda Cynon Taf’s children and young people will receive a great start in life

Ann Batley

Develop and implement a Quality Assurance Framework across Children 

Services to ensure children and young people are protected from abuse 

and neglect

Work was due to be carried forward into 2020/21. However, priorities in 2020/21 

will be focused on business critical activity following the ongoing impact of Covid-

19 on young people and their families.

Increase the participation of all children and young people in service 

delivery to promote engagement and coproduction, ensuring all 

participation is accessible and the voice of children and young people is 

heard

Corporate Plan End of Year Monitoring Report 2019/20

T
udalen 149



Actions that will deliver Priority 3 Milestones/Sub Actions that will help to achieve 

overarching Action 

Delivery 

Date

Responsible 

Officer

Progress to 

date

Overall progress on action

Develop and implement a Quality Assurance Framework across Children 

Services to ensure children and young people are protected from abuse 

and neglect

Create an online presence for the Resilient Families 

Service utilising a range of social media platforms and 

the reach of the Family Information Service

Jun-19 Jessica Allen Complete

Establish Resilient Families Service Drop In sessions in 

community locations

Sep-19 Lisa Lewis Complete

Identify opportunities to work in partnership with 

community organisations and groups to promote the 

Resilient Families Service  

Jun-19 Lisa Lewis Complete

Increase the volume of information and advice available 

to young people on the wicid.tv website

Mar-20 Jessica Allen Complete The content and structure of the Wicid website has been radically overhauled, 

providing a more structured platform with clear opportunities to find the right 

information and advice young people require.  Easy links are available to the 

service's range of social media platforms.  Work has also begun on developing a 

Play Team section for those children aged 5 - 14, as the age range overlaps with 

YEPS.  This will continue into 2020/21.

Develop a robust training programme to enhance 

capacity of maintained and non-maintained settings in 

preparation for the ALNET Act

Mar-20 Ceri Jones Complete

Establish and evaluate an outreach programme to 

facilitate transition for pupils with ALN from early years 

into schools and report on outcomes 

Mar-20 Ceri Jones Complete An outreach programme was established with Ysgol Hen Felin and following an 

initial review the pilot has been extended until the end of the Summer Term 2020

Undertake a cross-directorate map and gap analysis 

and agreed action plan in relation to early years 

provision

Aug-19 

Revised 

2020/21

Ceri 

Jones/Denise 

Humphreys/Zoe 

Lancelott

Target 

Missed

Spring term meeting did not go ahead due to Coronavirus.  Instead, youth forums 

are being reviewed with the intention of commencing virtual forums from 

Summer 2020.

Develop a transitional plan to facilitate the move to 

needs based childcare that is not confined by 

geographical boundaries

Aug-19 Zoe Lancelott Complete Risks assessed and documents detailing proposal and required changes shared 

with key partners

Establish an Early Years Vulnerability Profile in 

partnership with Health and Merthyr 

Mar-20 Geraint Evans Target 

Missed
Early Years Vulnerability Profile has been drafted and tested but has not yet 

been established as a result of response to Covid-19

Continue to actively participate in and contribute to the 

Welsh Government Regional Cwm Taf Early Years 

Integration project and report on progress to the Public 

Service Board

Mar-20 Zoe Lancelott Complete PSB is up to date on activities in 2019-20

Work alongside Health to transform the delivery of 

health visiting services in RCT based upon a model of 

progressive universalism

Mar-20 

Revised 

2020/21

Mandy Perry On Target Currently on hold pending Ministerial approval. Delivery date likely to be 2020/21. 

Existing contracts have been rolled over in the interim.

Improve local access to information advice and assistance provision for 

children, young people and families to promote their participation and 

engagement

Remodel the delivery of Early Years ensuring that it is effectively co-

ordinated and delivers positive outcomes

Corporate Plan End of Year Monitoring Report 2019/20

T
udalen 150



Section 5c

Council Priority:  PLACE - Creating neighbourhoods where people are proud to live and work

Lead Director: Nigel Wheeler

Corporate Priority Action Plan Monitoring Report - Quarter 4 2019/20

1. Rhondda Cynon Taf will be amongst the safest places in Wales, with high levels of community cohesion, and residents feeling safe

2. Rhondda Cynon Taf's parks and green spaces will continue to be valued by residents

3. More involved and resilient communities

Promoting community safety, so that people are not only safe in their homes and local areas but also feel safe, enables people to use and enjoy their local environment and in turn has a significant impact on their well-being. Safety is a 

prerequisite for people being able to access many facilities and opportunities, for example, parks, green spaces and town centres, and is closely integrated with other priorities such as promoting the ECONOMY and improving health and 

wellbeing as part of our PEOPLE priority.

Our priority plan for 2019/20 closely integrates with the Cwm Taf Community Safety Delivery Plan 2018-21 and includes partner collaboration in actions to prevent crime and antisocial behaviour, as we know that by addressing the root 

causes of issues is the most effective way to address problems in the long-term. Our plans to refresh the Cwm Taf needs assessment and use this to update the Cwm Taf Delivery Plan have been postponed until 2020/21.

Complex issues relating to antisocial behaviour, such as alcohol and drug misuse, can only be tackled effectively in collaboration with partner organisations. To promote a culture of responsible drinking in our communities, we have 

implemented a Public Space Protection Order (PSPO) for Alcohol Controls in RCT to aid the enforcement of irresponsible intoxicating substance use particularly in our town centres. We also support actions within the Pontypridd Community 

Alcohol Partnership (CAP), working with our partners, South Wales Police, schools, licensees and the local community to reduce underage drinking by educating residents on the impact on communities and reducing young people's access 

to alcohol. The involvement of local people is vital to the promotion of community safety and cohesion. 

We continue to work with residents, schools and colleges to raise awareness of hate crime, substance misuse and knife crime, and to communicate with Cwm Taf residents on current issues through the 'People on Patrol' newsletter. We 

have also continued to protect our more vulnerable consumers and those most at risk from rogue traders. 

Local people identified wildlife, the local landscape quality and outdoor activity as important to their well-being. Well-maintained, accessible outdoor spaces provide opportunities for physical activity and relaxation, contributing to preventing a 

variety of physical and mental health conditions. 

We have continued to actively progress grant funding to improve our parks and open spaces, for example, the continuing development of the Heritage Lottery Fund Parks for People application for Ynysangharad War Memorial Park. This 

includes the development of key heritage features such as the bandstand and sunken garden, and to progress the horticulture centre that will provide opportunities for training and apprenticeships; provide a vibrant visitor offer focusing on 

culture as well as active recreation, and assist in the regeneration of Pontypridd Town Centre. Some of our work has been postponed due to the Covid-19 outbreak. This work will be progressed when it is safe to do so.

Many people are passionate about their local parks and countryside and we will involve communities in developing and protecting our green spaces. We have invested in outdoor play facilities to ensure that all children have access to safe, 

active outdoor play facilities within their communities contributing to physical skills and social development. Those projects not completed in 2019/20 will be prioritised in 2020/21.

Our parks and green spaces serve a wide variety of purposes and it is important that we balance the differing needs of residents whilst also protecting and enhancing the natural environment. Through the delivery of the biodiversity duty and 

action plan we have continued to manage natural resources by mainstreaming biodiversity as we know it is essential for our long-term future as we rely heavily on a great variety of organisms for the production of food, materials and 

medicine. We have also continued to seek improvements to our air quality in locations linked to high levels of pollution within the County Borough, helping to safeguard the biodiversity of the area for future generations.

Community involvement can be a powerful tool in preventing or tackling many of the issues people face, including breaking down the barriers linked to social isolation. 

We have continued to develop capacity in communities and promote shared use of community buildings through a collaborative approach between public, private, voluntary and community sectors. During 2019/20, we have progressed our 

plans to implement community ‘hubs’ at Mountain Ash, Rhondda Fach (Ferndale) and Porth Plaza to deliver integrated services at a local level, although our plans for Porth Plaza have been delayed because of the Covid-19 outbreak. . We 

have also collaborated and encouraged local communities and groups (new or existing) to become empowered and active citizens by delivering services and managing local buildings in their area, and we seek to do this in a planned way, 

that integrates with Community Hub developments.

In partnership, preventing homelessness has also been our priority. We worked to ensure that those facing homelessness are found suitable accommodation and have provided relevant support and advice to ensure that they are able to 

maintain tenancies over the long term. We have also worked with private landlords to ensure that housing in RCT is of the required standard and supports residents with their current and emerging housing requirements. This has included 

bringing existing empty properties back into use wherever possible.

Corporate Plan End of Year Monitoring Report 2019/20

T
udalen 151



Good transport infrastructure is of great benefit to residents, businesses and visitors. We continue with our commitment to invest in highways, footways, structures, make drainage improvements and implement flood alleviation schemes as 

part of the wider 'RCTinvest' schemes. These improvements integrate closely with our other Well-being objectives, by supporting the local Economy through improved logistics making the area more attractive to business and investment; and 

People by promoting active travel, improving people’s health and promoting independence by making it easier for them to access local services and amenities. Some construction projects have been delayed by storms and Covid-19 but have 

now recommenced and will continue in 2020/21.

Although highways development is crucial to the prosperity of the area in the short and medium term, we have balanced this necessary development with investment in long-term strategies to find viable alternatives to car use. This has 

included delivery of safe community routes for walking and cycling, including designing safe routes for our children to travel to school and strategic improvements to public transport such as the A4119 bus corridor to decrease journey times 

and encourage people to switch to more sustainable forms of transport. We have also undertaken bridge works at St Albans Bridge and Pont Rhondda Bridge and continued with the construction of the Mountain Ash Cross Valley Link.

Reducing, reusing and recycling our waste is vital to reduce the environmental impact of our activities to safeguard our landscape, wildlife and natural resources for future generations. Gases produced by waste in landfill release gases that 

play a part in climate change, and some waste, like certain kinds of plastic, cannot be broken down and causes damage to important ecosystems. We are committed to increasing recycling levels and achieving the 70% recycling target set by 

Welsh Government for 2024/25, and we can only do this by involving residents and the community, supporting them with clear information on how to recycle and ensuring they understand the long term benefits. We are reporting positive 

recycling rates of 64.71% at year end 2019/20 reaching our 64% target for waste recycled.

The cleanliness of their local area is extremely important to many people and we have continued to review the effectiveness of our street cleaning operations to enable quicker responses when problems are identified. However, the most 

effective way to keep our streets clean is through the prevention of environmental crimes such as littering, dog fouling and fly tipping. We have continued to work with local schools, community groups, The University of South Wales and 

PCSOs to raise awareness of the personal and environmental issues caused by these environmental crimes, and encourage all parts of the community to take pride in their local area.

4. Rhondda Cynon Taf’s local environment will be clean and attractive, with well-maintained roads and pavements, flowing traffic, increased recycling and less waste sent to landfill

Corporate Plan End of Year Monitoring Report 2019/20

T
udalen 152



Measuring Success

Actual Actual
Wales 

Average
Target

Actual 

(Qtr 4)

LPPN163 % of residents surveyed in targeted town centres who feel unsafe N/A 17 N/A 20 N/A

LPPN127 % of vulnerable repeat victims of anti-social behaviour (ASB) 

that feel safer as a result of intervention

91 94 N/A 95 97

LPPN152 % of perpetrators of anti-social behaviour no longer offending 

within 6 months of the last intervention by the ASB team

79 80 N/A 80 77

Actual Actual
Wales 

Average
Target

Actual 

(Qtr 4)

LLCS016 % of residents satisfied with our parks and open spaces for 

leisure, enjoyment and sport [Survey Data]

Not 

Available

80.7 N/A ≥80 80.0

Actual Actual
Wales 

Average
Target

Actual 

(Qtr 4)

LLSD002 % of residents satisfied with the County Borough as a place 

to live [Survey Data]

80 86.5 N/A ≥80 79.0

PAM012 % of households successfully prevented from becoming 

homeless

74.5 71 68 70.0 74

Key:

Performance below target
Within Bottom Quartile performance for all of Wales

Bolded PIs denote that an existing Corporate Plan high level measure

PI Ref

Performance met or 

exceeded target
Performance within 5% of the target

Comments

Our annual Community Safety survey, which measures how safe people feel in our 

Town Centres, takes place every year during the first two weeks of April. The survey is 

conducted face to face in order for us to engage in conversation and get the true 

reflections of why people are feeling unsafe. This is a far better way of conducting this 

type of survey than an on-line version. Unfortunately, due to the coronavirus 

pandemic, and the necessary restrictions, we have been unable to conduct the survey 

this year

2019/20

Measures to support Priority 1 - Rhondda Cynon Taf will be amongst the safest places in Wales, with high levels of community cohesion and residents feeling safe

Comments

Council Priority:  

Lead Director: 

PI Ref Performance Measure

2017/18 2019/20

PLACE - Creating neighbourhoods where people are proud to live and work

Nigel Wheeler

2018/19

Measures to support Priority 2 - Rhondda Cynon Taf's parks and green spaces will continue to be valued by residents

Performance Measure Comments

2017/18

This data from the latest 2018/19 National Survey for Wales reflects 'Satisfaction with 

local area' (Future Generations indicator)

Within Top Quartile performance for all of Wales 

2017/18

Performance Measure

2019/20

Measures to support Priority 3 - More involved and resilient communities

2018/19

2018/19

This data from the latest 2018/19 National Survey for Wales reflects 'Satisfaction with 

quality of local green space

PI Ref

Corporate Plan End of Year Monitoring Report 2019/20

T
udalen 153



Actual Actual
Wales 

Average
Target

Actual 

(Qtr 4)

PAM020 

LTHS011a

The percentage of principal (A) roads, that are in overall poor 

condition 

5.2 4.9 3.9 4.9 4.7

THS012 The percentage of principal (A) roads, non-principal (B) roads 

and non-principal (C) roads that are in overall poor condition 

5.7 4.8 N/A 5.6 4.8

PAM031 

WMT004b

% of municipal waste sent to landfill 1.76 1.97 N/A 5 4.59

PAM030 

WMT009b

% of municipal waste collected by local authorities and 

prepared for reuse and/ or recycling, including source 

segregated bio wastes that are composted or treated 

biologically in another way 

61.31 61.01 62.79 64.00 64.71

PAM043 Kilograms of residual waste generated per person N/A 189* 180* ≤ 189* 204

PAM010

STS005b

% of streets that are clean 99.4 99.4 94.00 95.0 100.0

LLSD004

New

% of residents satisfied with the condition of roads

[Survey Data]

N/A N/A N/A Baseline 

Year

N/A

LLSD005

New

% of residents satisfied with the condition of pavements  [Survey 

Data]

N/A N/A N/A Baseline 

Year

N/A

PAM035 Average number of working days taken to clear fly tipping 

incidents

N/A 2.26 2.23 5.00 2.41

PAM011

STS006

% of reported fly tipping incidents on relevant land cleared 

within 5 working days 

96.94 97.59 Awaiting 

Wales 

Average

95.00 95.11

Key:

2019/202018/19

Measures to support Priority 4 - Rhondda Cynon Taf’s local environment will be clean and attractive, with well-maintained roads and pavements, flowing traffic, increased recycling and

                                                  less waste sent to landfill

PI Ref Performance Measure Comments

Bolded PIs denote that an existing Corporate Plan high level measure

Within Top Quartile performance for all of Wales 

Within Bottom Quartile performance for all of Wales 

Performance met or 

exceeded target
Performance within 5% of the target

2017/18

The target has not been achieved this year due to the unprecedented amount of 

unavoidable flood damage waste that was sent to landfill during February and March 

2020 following the impacts of Storm Dennis.

Performance below target

* Definition has now been confirmed by Data Cymru and actual data, targets and Wales average changed accordingly

This data will now be published in 2020/21 as part of the biennial Resident 

Engagement Consultation.

Corporate Plan End of Year Monitoring Report 2019/20

T
udalen 154



Council Priority:  
Lead Director: 

Challenges and Opportunities linked to this 

Council Priority

Lead Officer

Actions that will deliver Priority 1 Milestones/Sub Actions that will help to achieve overarching 

Action 

Delivery 

Date

Responsible 

Officer Progress Overall progress on Action

Effectively contribute to the delivery of identified actions in the 

Cwm Taf Community Safety Delivery Plan 2018-21

Mar-20 Gary Black Complete The Cwm Taf Community Safety Delivery Plan is a three year plan, 2018-21. The 

actions are up to date and progress reports are presented to the Cwm Taf 

Community Safety Partnership Board on a quarterly basis.

Effectively contribute to the delivery of the Cwm Taf Community 

Cohesion Action Plan

Mar-20 Gary Black Complete All actions within the Community Cohesion Action Plan are completed / on target. 

The plan aligns the Welsh Government cohesion plan so will continue into 2020/21. 

Work with Partners to refresh the Cwm Taf Community Needs 

Assessment (2017) and review the Delivery plan accordingly to 

identify any new or emerging needs that require partnership 

action 

Dec-19 

Revised 

2020/21

Gary Black On Target The original target of December 19 was missed due to there being no analytical 

assistance from partners. Investigations are currently taking place to establish if 

appropriate data will be available from a variety of sources in order to complete the 

assessment by December 20.

Work with partners to refresh the Cwm Taf Area Partnership 

Board Service Delivery Plan in line with the new Welsh 

Government Substance Misuse 10-year strategy

Mar-20 Ceri Ford Complete Review commenced quarter 4 and finalised.  Monitoring of the associated action 

plan will commence in quarter 1 2020-21.  

Improve communication and engagement with residents

Continue to promote and enhance the 'People on Patrol' 

initiative, as the partners main method of communication for 

community safety matters

Mar-20 Gary Black Complete The initiative has become a vital tool for all partners to use for engagement 

activities. It focusses on community safety messages and complements our social 

media messages. 

Raise awareness in the community of the harms associated with 

knife use and knife crime to ensure continued low incidence of 

knife crime in RCT

Mar-20 Gary Black Complete We continue to the utilise the "Fearless" project, to run alongside the messages 

being conveyed via the All Wales schools liaison programme. The majority of  

Secondary schools have shown an interest in our safeguarding days. We have held 

a partnership meeting with all relevant education providers and are now in a 

position where we are clear there is consistency in the messages being provided. 

Raise awareness in the community of the harms associated with 

substance misuse 

Mar-20 Ceri Ford Complete As part of the tier 2 service provided by Barod, the prevention team link in with 

other agencies across RCT and Merthyr Tydfil to deliver support to vulnerable 

people.  Agencies include; Housing support, children's services providers, schools 

and colleges.  The team attend well being events and also  provide  bespoke 

substance misuse training and support.  These events have promoted the services 

available and provided opportunities to promote information and advice about 

substance use; signposting to partner support and the facilitating of referrals into 

treatment.  Drop in sessions have been set up in areas with no direct service e.g. 

Tonyrefail, Ferndale and Llanharan.  Barod promotes access to services via the 

Drug and Alcohol Single Point of Access and availability of  treatment options via 

Facebook and twitter.   

Deliver a programme of hate crime awareness sessions across 

communities, in all settings including schools and colleges, to 

increase Hate Crime Awareness

Mar-20 Gary Black Complete A comprehensive programme of hate crime awareness sessions have been 

delivered throughout RCT. The scheduled Primary school sessions were completed 

and throughout the year we delivered to a total of 2,629 individuals. Evaluations 

have been carried out after each session and the end of year evaluation indicates 

that 94.6% had an improved awareness of hate crime after the sessions. 

Support effective partnership working in Cwm 

Taf in relation to Community Safety to promote 

Rhondda Cynon Taf as a safe place to live with 

high levels of community cohesion to improve 

Community Safety for the population 

PLACE - Creating neighbourhoods where people are proud to live and work

Nigel Wheeler

1. Rhondda Cynon Taf will be amongst the safest places in Wales, with high levels of community cohesion, and residents feeling safe

Paul Mee

Corporate Plan End of Year Monitoring Report 2019/20

T
udalen 155



Actions that will deliver Priority 1 Milestones/Sub Actions that will help to achieve overarching 

Action 

Delivery 

Date

Responsible 

Officer Progress Overall progress on Action

Support effective partnership working in Cwm 

Taf in relation to Community Safety to promote 

Rhondda Cynon Taf as a safe place to live with 

high levels of community cohesion to improve 

Community Safety for the population 

Proactive initiatives to reduce the prevalence of problem, 

public space drinking in our communities and promote a 

culture of responsible drinking

Evaluate the impact of the PSPO for intoxicating substances, 

introduced in 2018, and respond to any findings 

Dec-19 Gary Black Complete

Evaluate the impact of the Pontypridd Community Alcohol 

Partnership and look at the possibility of a CAP rollout in another 

area

Dec-19 Gary Black Complete

Deliver the Night Time Economy Action Plan to ensure RCT fully 

implements the Welsh Government “Managing The Night Time 

Economy” Framework

Dec-19 

and 

Ongoing

Rhian Hope Complete Complete for 2019/20 but we will continue to work with partners and trade 

organisations to implement the 'Managing the night-time Economy' Framework.

Work in consultation with stakeholders to develop the new RCT 

Licensing Policy for implementation in January 2020 and ensure 

due process is followed to secure adoption by the Council by 

January 2020

Dec-19 Rhian Hope Complete Policy adopted by Full Council in November 2019 and implemented in January 

2020

Anti Social Behaviour

Develop an effective early intervention strategy where all relevant 

partners in particular Registered Social Landlords and Youth 

Offending Service are involved with ASB perpetrators at an early 

stage

Dec-19 Gary Black Complete The ASB process is working well with all partners engaged in the process.

Protecting Vulnerable Consumers

Develop and implement an ‘exit strategy’ for the installation of 

call blocking devices in the homes of the vulnerable; ensuring 

protection is still ensured to those most at risk within the authority 

area

Jun-19 Judith Parry Complete

Extend support to the vulnerable and vulnerable groups through 

the active promotion of Friends Against Scams and Scam 

Marshalls to reach 200 Friends and 10 Scan Marshalls within 

Rhondda Cynon Taf

Mar-20 Judith Parry Complete

Support effective partnership working in Cwm 

Taf in relation to Community Safety to promote 

Rhondda Cynon Taf as a safe place to live with 

high levels of community cohesion to improve 

Community Safety for the population 

Implement the Wales Heads of Trading 

Standards priority of ‘Protecting Vulnerable 

Consumers’ by identifying at risk individuals 

and patterns of rogue trading

Corporate Plan End of Year Monitoring Report 2019/20

T
udalen 156



Council Priority:  
Lead Director: 

Challenges and Opportunities linked to this Council Priority

Lead Officer

Actions that will deliver Priority 2 Milestones/Sub Actions that will help to achieve overarching Action Delivery 

Date

Responsible 

Officer
Progress Overall progress on Action

Ynysangharad War Memorial Park, Pontypridd

In collaboration, and with the involvement of other services and community 

groups, draft the Heritage Grant 2
nd

 stage application documents

Jun-19 Michelle Gibbs

Chris Richards

Complete This application included further actions to progress and enhance key 

heritage features such as the bandstand, sunken garden and the 

development of a horticultural training centre.

Submit a Heritage Grant 2nd stage application to develop and enhance key 

heritage features such as the bandstand, sunken garden and develop a 

horticultural training centre, and enhance key visitor features

Aug-19 

Revised Feb-

20

Michelle Gibbs

Chris Richards

Complete

Work in collaboration to develop a Valleys Regional Park Discovery Gateway 

multi service strategic plan

Jun-19 Michelle Gibbs

Chris Richards

Complete

Comply with the future application process for external funding Mar-20 Michelle Gibbs

Chris Richards

Complete

Dare Valley Country Park (DVCP)

Work in collaboration to develop a Valleys Regional Park Discovery Gateway 

multi service strategic plan

Jun-19 Michelle Gibbs

Chris Richards

Complete

Ensure compliance with the future application process for 'Discovery 

Gateway' funding that will support refurbishment and extending the 

accommodation offer at DVCP, and the development of a family cycle centre 

experience

Mar-20 Michelle Gibbs

Chris Richards

Complete

Work with private sector visitor attraction businesses in locating attractions 

within DVCP and the Upper Cynon Valley

Dec-19 Chris Richards Complete Contractors for accommodation and catering secured until 2022.

Continue to invest in outdoor play facilities to ensure that all 

children have access to safe, active play facilities within their 

local communities, supporting active lifestyles at an early age, 

including physical skill and social development

Deliver and complete all scheduled projects, including Hendreforgan Skate 

Park, Gilfach Goch; Meadow Street Park, Treforest;  Pentwyn Court, 

Penywaun;  and Hendrecafn Park in Penygraig

Mar-20 

Revised 

2020/21

Lisa Austin On Target The majority of identified Capital outdoor play/park schemes for 2019/20 

were scheduled for completion by the end of the year. However, during 

Qtr3 a new large scale priority project was added to the list (following  

funding from the Valleys Regional Park to renew the play area at Dare 

Valley Country park). As a result, several schemes were rescheduled for 

inclusion in the 2020/21 to allow this project to be completed. Progress 

has been further impacted by the February floods which required 

contractors to be diverted to flood sites e.g. Ynyshangharad War Memorial 

Park, and Covid-19. The 2020/21 Capital programme will re-commence in 

the new financial year with priority given to the postponed 2019-20 

schemes.

Convene a cross service group and map current provision and priority areas 

of work

Sep-19 Dave Batten Complete This work has been integrated into the Corporate Climate Change 

workstream

Finalise the plan and work programme for 2019-21, and commence delivery 

and monitoring of outcomes

Mar-20 Dave Batten Complete This work has now been integrated into the Corporate structures that are 

looking at biodiversity across all departments

In partnership with Public Health Wales and CTUHB, develop a tool to 

consider air pollution risks and the wider health factors  in RCT and 

determine how this can be used to better inform interventions to improve air 

quality

Aug-19 Neil Pilliner Complete Use of the Health & Air Pollution Risk Assessment /Area Prioritisation 

(HAP-RAP) Tool has potentially identified two clusters, one based around 

Mt Ash/Penrhiwceiber and the other based around 

Cymmer/Ferndale/Llwynypia & Tylorstown, where air quality improvements 

may well have the greatest benefit to the community. This information has 

been included in the 2019 Air Quality Progress Report.

Work with partners to deliver the Air Quality Action Plan, prioritised in order to 

maximise the health benefits to local communities

Mar-20 Neil Pilliner Complete

Convene a cross service group and map current provision and priority areas 

of work

Jun-20 Dave Batten On Target

Produce a plan and work programme for 2021-23, and commence delivery 

and monitoring of outcomes

Jun-21 Dave Batten On Target

Develop an overarching tree plan for the Council, to include 

planning for future tree provision on Council owned land, 

management and maintenance of the existing tree stock, delivery 

of tree protection and enhancement through the planning process  

and the integration of the different ‘tree related’ Council initiatives 

and  actions which are currently in place

Develop and deliver an integrated biodiversity plan for Leisure, 

Parks and Countryside, including sustainable tree management 

services, that supports and updates our Local Biodiversity Action 

Plan

Seek to make improvements in air quality across the County 

Borough in locations linked to high levels of pollution

This work has been integrated into the Corporate Climate Change 

workstream

PLACE - Creating neighbourhoods where people are proud to live and work

Nigel Wheeler

2. Rhondda Cynon Taf's parks and green spaces will continue to be valued by residents

 Dave Batten 

Working in collaboration with a range of partners, progress 

business and grant funding opportunities to support a programme 

of redevelopment that will make a lasting difference for residents, 

communities, RCT heritage and enhance key visitor features and 

the tourism offer 

Corporate Plan End of Year Monitoring Report 2019/20

T
udalen 157



Council Priority:  
Lead Director: 

Challenges and Opportunities linked to this Council 

Priority

Lead Officer

Actions that will deliver Priority 3 Milestones/Sub Actions that will help to achieve overarching Action Delivery 

Date

Responsible 

Officer Progress Overall progress on Action

Work with partners to implement community hubs at Mountain Ash, Rhondda 

Fach (Ferndale), Porth Plaza and provide quarterly progress reports to Cwm 

Taf Community Zone Strategic group during the year

Sep-19 &

Ongoing

Wendy 

Edwards/Nick 

Kelland

Not on 

Target

Storm Dennis and Covid-19 have adversely affected  development of 

Porth Plaza. Works now due for completion in June 2020 

Develop proposals for the phased implementation of further community hubs 

within the County Borough and report to Cabinet for consideration

Dec-19 

Revised 

2020/21

Wendy 

Edwards/ Syd 

Dennis

On Target Covid-19 has required the development of  7 Community Resource 

Centres (CRCs) plus those pending development which harnesses the 

Community Volunteers and Core Steering Group commitments 

Expand Neighbourhood Network programme in line with community hub 

developments

Ongoing Syd 

Dennis/Deb 

Hanney

Complete Teams recruited and established.

Implement Customer Self-service Kiosk(s) in Hub Jun-19 Roseann 

Edwards/Chris 

Phillips

Complete

Mountain Ash – relocate One4aLL into Community Hub Aug-19 Roseann 

Edwards/Chris 

Phillips

Complete

Prioritise the development of a further 7 community Hubs and complete 

project plans for each development

Dec-19 

Revised 

2020/21

Syd 

Dennis/Deb 

Hanney

On Target A review of the priorities is required following the need to develop  7 

CRC's in response to Covid-19 support, Cynon Linc and the new 

development at Llanilid. 

Review and further develop RCT Together to be fully integrated with 

Community Hub developments

Ongoing Syd 

Dennis/Deb 

Hanney

Complete Teams recruited and established.

Investigate digital solutions to improve the Expression of Interest/application 

process 

Sep-19 &

Ongoing

Syd 

Dennis/Deb 

Hanney

Complete

Promote the Council’s Neighbourhood Network and Community Hub 

approach, providing support and guidance to Community Groups, increasing 

Community engagement and supporting Community development 

Ongoing Syd 

Dennis/Deb 

Hanney

Complete 7 CRC's have virtual partnerships supporting the Covid-19 response at 

Community Level 

Develop and implement Homelessness Delivery Plan to ensure 

implementation of Homelessness Strategy 2018-22

    - Establish working group to formulate Delivery Plan

    - Monitor Delivery Plan against key milestones 

Jun-19 

Revised 

Dec-19

Cheryl Emery Complete

Review and evaluate performance data from 2018/19  in relation to 

commissioned projects including: 'The Resilience Project' - Merthyr and the 

Valley Mind; Financial Project' - Pontypridd CAB; 'The Emphasis Project' - 

Llama; 'Streetsmart' - Adref; 'Target Hardening Care and Repair' and 'Housing 

and Mental Health' - Gofal, 'Step by Step' - Merthyr and the Valley Mind and 

the 'Homelessness Intervention Project' (HIP) - Rhondda Housing Association

May-19 Cheryl Emery Complete

Consider findings of review of the above HIP and use this to inform future 

commissioning decisions for 2020-21

Sep-19 Cheryl Emery Complete

Finalise process to record  project provider outcomes on all homelessness 

cases via Abritas to allow effective and consistent monitoring 

Apr-19

Revised

Apr-20

Cheryl Emery Target 

Missed

Work to implement the new system has been further delayed by Covid-

19. We are expecting handover of the new system in June 2020 and as 

part of this will consider staff training - with the new  system 

implemented in 2020/21.

Work in collaboration with residents, other service areas 

and third sector partners, to establish community hubs and 

develop neighbourhood networks that provide integrated 

service provision at all co-located facilities 

Further develop the RCT Together programme to ensure 

the successful transfer of Council buildings to community 

organisations as appropriate

Prevent homelessness by maintaining current housing 

arrangements where possible or by sourcing affordable 

alternative accommodation. Working with trusted partner 

organisations to find suitable accommodation, and 

providing clients with the most appropriate Housing related 

advice to sustain tenancies over the long term

PLACE - Creating neighbourhoods where people are proud to live and work

Nigel Wheeler

3. More involved and resilient communities

Paul Mee

Corporate Plan End of Year Monitoring Report 2019/20

T
udalen 158



Actions that will deliver Priority 3 Milestones/Sub Actions that will help to achieve overarching Action Delivery 

Date

Responsible 

Officer Progress Overall progress on Action

Work in collaboration with residents, other service areas 

and third sector partners, to establish community hubs and 

develop neighbourhood networks that provide integrated 

service provision at all co-located facilities 

Private Rented Sector Housing

Develop a Private Rented Sector (PRS) Strategy for RCT to plan for a long 

term, sustainable relationship with private landlords

Jul-19 

Revised 

Mar-20

Neil Pilliner & 

Cheryl Emery 

Target 

Missed

This work is on-going. Welsh Government funding opportunities are 

anticipated to be available in June 2020 (as a consequence of Covid-

19) will allow for an application to be submitted for the development of  

PRS Social Housing Letting Agency . If successful this will help provide 

additional housing to support the needs of homeless and other client 

groups.

Empty Properties

Agree pro-active inspection programme to visit  long term empty properties 

identified in the Empty Property Strategy 2018 

Jul-19 Neil Pilliner Complete

Take any necessary enforcement action for empty property disrepair and/or 

provide advice to owners regarding re-use of the property

 Mar-20  Neil Pilliner Complete Enforcement action is being taken and appropriate advice provided 

where necessary. Enforced sales provisions being utilised with the aim 

of bringing properties back in to beneficial use.

Housing Services

Review current customer evaluation processes and recommend any 

improvements 

Jul-19 Cheryl Emery Complete Improvements have been identified and implemented to positively 

support customer frontline housing services. These changes will inform 

the improvements to be made to customer evaluation. 

Implement any agreed  improvements , and devise reporting format and 

frequency  

Sep-19 Cheryl Emery Complete A client questionnaire has been developed for 'Homefinder' and for 

users of our homelessness service. 

Housing Allocation Scheme

Monitor impact of Housing Allocation Scheme changes at 'Homefinder 

Steering Group' with partners on a quarterly basis 

Mar-20 & 

Ongoing

Cheryl Emery On Target Operational arrangements have been introduced for applicants  who 

have former tenant debt and are placed in 'Band A' to access the 

register. Ongoing monitoring is being undertaken  to understand the 

impact of the policy on clients accessing the register who are not placed 

in Band A. 

Evaluate the 'Homefinder' process and register to ensure it meets the needs 

of disabled people and those with protected characteristics

Mar-20 Cheryl Emery Complete Complete for 2019/20. Equalities monitoring is in place across the 

Homefinder and Homelessness services. 

Develop further drop in sessions with partners to make it easier for clients to 

access timely advice – Probation , Women’s Aid , Children’s Services, DWP 

Dec-19 Cheryl Emery Complete Mobile devices issued to all staff and agile/ outreach work started in 

Probation Service and Aberdare Library. 

Establish and attend contact points for Veterans and their families through 

Veterans Advice Service RCT, Merthyr and Vale of Glamorgan 

Jun-19 Roseann 

Edwards/Chris 

Phillips

Complete

Maintain and develop a programme of community 

engagement within the theatres and on an outreach basis 

and deliver a high quality, balanced, exciting and thought 

provoking programme 

Produce an RCT Theatres Co-production Plan of work created with and for 

our communities, particularly children, young people and their families, 

involving companies and artists in residence at the Creative Hub in the Park 

& Dare Theatre

Mar-20 Caroline 

O'Neil/Angela 

Gould

Complete RCT Theatres have had Flossy and Boo in residence engaging with our 

communities and co-creating work of relevance to families.  Our 

Creative Hub has been home to various arts associates, also engaging 

and co-creating with our communities.  These co-productions have been 

shared with audiences at the theatres and across Wales.

Bryn Pica Eco Park Development - turning rubbish into 

resources through the use of waste materials produced on 

site to generate heat and energy  

Progress the first phase of Bryn Pica Eco Park - Secure available technology 

to process three targeted material groups: rigid plastics, absorbent hygiene 

products (AHPs) including nappies and waste paint

Mar-20 Lee Foulkes Complete Complete for 2019/20. Capita RedStart commissioned to commence 

RIBA Stages 3 and 4. Slight delay in project due to COVID-19 and 

potential impact on WG Funding. Project Programme updated 

accordingly.

Improve collaborative working with all internal and external 

partners to improve service efficiencies and promote early 

prevention 

Support residents with current and emerging housing 

requirements  ensuring safe, accessible, vibrant housing 

within the County Borough

Corporate Plan End of Year Monitoring Report 2019/20

T
udalen 159



Council Priority:  
Lead Director: 

Challenges and Opportunities linked to this Council 

Priority

Lead Officer

Actions that will deliver Priority 4 Milestones/Sub Actions that will help to achieve overarching Action Delivery 

Date

Responsible 

Officer

Progress 
Overall progress on Action

Continue construction of the Mountain Ash Cross Valley Link Mar-20 and 

ongoing

Andrew Stone On Target Bridge Deck completed.  

Complete construction of the Pont Rhondda Bridge (delayed due to the original 

contractor going into administration)

Nov-19 

Revised 

2020/21

Andrew Griffiths Complete Works completed and bridge reopened.

Commence construction of St Albans Bridge renovation works Oct-19 Andrew Griffiths Complete Advance statutory undertakers works for bridge construction commenced in 

September 2019.

Complete detailed design of A4119 dualling Mar-20 and 

ongoing

Andrew Stone On Target Preliminary design signed off and detailed design progressing.  Issue with 

Dwr Cymru/Welsh Water treatment works to resolve

Continue to undertake improvements to our highways assets through a 

comprehensive programme including highway and footway resurfacing, 

streetlight replacement and structure repair and replacement

Mar-20 Andrew Griffiths Complete

Complete Design and Construction of the Roundabout Improvement works at 

'Asda' Roundabout Aberdare

Mar-20 Andrew 

Stone/Andrew 

Griffiths

Target 

Missed

Construction affected by Covid-19 - dialogue on-going with contractor and 

works will recommence in 2020/21 when deemed safe to do so. 

Implement a programme of works (subject to funding) to promote a strategic bus 

corridor along the A4119, in partnership with Welsh Government, to reduce 

travel time and promote use of public transport - ongoing

Mar-20 and 

ongoing

Andrew Stone On Target

Complete Construction of the Roundabout Improvement Works at Gwaun Miskin 

on the A473

Oct-19 Andrew Stone Complete

Complete the Construction of Pontyclun Safe routes Jan-20 Andrew Stone Complete

Commence construction of Llantrisant Community Route Phase 2.  Subject to 

land agreement

Oct-19 Andrew Stone Complete

Replacement of the Bridge over the Nant Cae Dudwg on the Taff Trail Nov-19 Andrew Stone Complete

As part of the required Flood Risk Regulations 2009 (Section 24) review the 

Flood Hazard Maps produced by Natural Resources Wales

Jun-19 Owen Griffiths Complete

Report on the progress against the objectives within the Local Flood Risk 

Strategy

Mar-20 Owen Griffiths Not on 

Target

Completion of the report has been delayed due to the unprecedented flooding 

during February 2020 i.e. Storm Ciara, Dennis and Jorge which resulted in 

the redeployment of staff to deal with the initial response to the flooding event 

and subsequent recovery phase which is ongoing. Revised delivery date in 

the process of being determined. 

Develop the Register and record of significant Flood Risk Assets to improve the 

management of flood risk within the county borough

Provide a year end report on the number of assets recorded and condition of 

assets inspected

Mar-20 and 

Ongoing

Owen Griffiths On Target

Flood Warning/Information

Install and establish three additional Rainfall Sensors that provide a wider 

geographical coverage of the whole of the County Borough. The data provided 

by the additional stations will be used to provide a full geographical coverage 

which will be used to better inform the understanding of local flood risk

Oct-19 Owen Griffiths Complete

Produce a Year end Hydrological Report based on the monitoring equipment 

placed within the authority (supported by the above); the outcome of which will 

identify seasonal and geographical differences associated to rainfall patterns to 

better inform the understanding of local flood risk and support the prioritisation of 

further investigations

Mar-20 Owen Griffiths Not on 

Target

Completion of the report has been delayed due to the unprecedented flooding 

during February 2020 i.e. Storm Ciara, Dennis and Jorge which resulted in 

the redeployment of staff to deal with the initial response to the flooding event 

and subsequent recovery phase which is ongoing. Revised delivery date in 

the process of being determined. 

PLACE - Creating neighbourhoods where people are proud to live and work

Nigel Wheeler

4. Rhondda Cynon Taf’s local environment will be clean and attractive, with well-maintained roads and pavements, flowing traffic, increased recycling and less waste 

sent to landfill

Nigel Wheeler

Continue to invest in our highways and infrastructure to 

improve the condition of our road network and improve 

traffic flow

Deliver  a variety of sustainable transport schemes 

throughout Rhondda Cynon Taf to promote walking, cycling 

and public transport, improve safety and wellbeing, provide 

leisure opportunities and reduce pressure on the road 

network

As Lead Local Flood Authority, carry out the requirements of 

the Flood Risk Regulations 2009 (FRR) and the Flood and 

Water Management Act 2010

Corporate Plan End of Year Monitoring Report 2019/20

T
udalen 160



Actions that will deliver Priority 4 Milestones/Sub Actions that will help to achieve overarching Action Delivery 

Date

Responsible 

Officer

Progress 
Overall progress on Action

Continue to invest in our highways and infrastructure to 

improve the condition of our road network and improve 

traffic flow

Collaborate with other local authorities, industry partners and 

funding agencies to deliver the most sustainable, integrated 

and effectively scheduled network of passenger transport 

services

Involving the community transport organisations, review their plans and allocate 

the Council’s community transport funding accordingly to ensure the continued 

development of an alternative and sustainable integrated responsive transport 

network for the longer term that prevents social exclusion

Aug-19 Charlie Nelson / 

Sue Jones / Antony 

Richardson

Complete

Collaborate and contribute to the regional and Wales-wide 

discussions with the Welsh Government on mechanisms for 

the long term funding of bus services, issuing of 

concessionary bus passes and the reimbursement of 

concessionary travel

Work collaboratively with Transport for Wales to re-issue concessionary 

smartcards, and progress a more integrated and centralised portal for the 

issuing of concessionary bus passes in a manner that is accessible for all and 

prevents social exclusion

Dec-19 and 

ongoing

Charlie Nelson / 

Sue Jones

Complete The South East Wales Concessionary Pass Re-issue Working Group, 

established by Transport for Wales to manage the re-issue of concessionary 

smartcards within the region met regularly during the year. Centralised portal 

similar to that used for the issuing of young person's discount card is being 

used, with consistent guidance on how to deal with eligibility. Enhanced fraud 

identification measures and centralised reimbursement are being developed 

as part of the wider project. 

Programme and seek funding for longer term transport 

related capital infrastructure projects, such as Active Travel, 

park and ride/share, public transport, road safety, road 

improvement and safe routes in communities schemes

Prepare funding bids as approved by Cabinet to Welsh Government, City Deal 

and other funding agencies that meet the Environment Act (Wales) 2016 and 

have Business Cases prepared as guided by the seven well-being goals of the 

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015

Jan-20 or as 

directed

Charlie Nelson / 

Jessica Lonergan

Complete

Attend seminars and open days advertising the latest in market developments in 

alternative fuelled vehicles 

Mar-20 Julie Waites Complete

Arrange demonstrations of alternative fuelled vehicle where possible and assess 

their feasibility and suitability for Council operational needs 

Mar-20 Julie Waites Complete

Work collaboratively with other organisations (where possible) to explore 

alternative fuelled vehicle opportunities

Mar-20 Julie Waites Complete Working with Welsh Government to take part in an electric refuse vehicle trial

Recycling participation

Using relative intelligence, identify areas of low recycling to target for awareness 

raising 

Mar-20 C Evans Complete

Undertake door-knocking exercises to ensure residents are participating in 

recycling 

Mar-20 C Evans Complete

Monitor recycling participation and target non participating properties Mar-20 C Evans Complete

Recycling information and promotion

Ensure the Council website waste pages are accurate and contain timely 

information including the A-Z recycling guide pages

Mar-20 and 

Ongoing

N Jones On Target Ongoing and up to date with emphasis on seasonal green collections

Collaborate with local supermarkets to take part in promotional events Mar-20 C Evans Complete

Provide comprehensive schools and council buildings with up to date recycling 

information to prevent contamination

Mar-20 and 

Ongoing

N Jones On Target

Undertake customer satisfaction surveys to improve our service provision Mar-20 C Evans Complete Satisfaction surveys were undertaken but unusable following water damage 

caused by flooding at Ty Glantaf. Further surveys will be undertaken once it is 

safe to hold trailer events and door knocking exercises

No further door knocking took place during Q4.  In January, the Awareness 

Team worked on the Christmas Card Competition with schools. Since this 

time, the team have supported the Council's work through Storm Dennis and 

COVID-19 (with recycling awareness activity to re-commence when deemed 

safe to do so). 

Monitor the continual development of alternative fuelled 

vehicles and legislation governing carbon reduction

Increase  recycling levels to achieve the 70% recycling 

target set by Welsh Government for 2024/25 through 

awareness raising and participation checks and providing 

residents and businesses the information, bins and bags to 

help them  recycle correctly 

Corporate Plan End of Year Monitoring Report 2019/20

T
udalen 161



Actions that will deliver Priority 4 Milestones/Sub Actions that will help to achieve overarching Action Delivery 

Date

Responsible 

Officer

Progress 
Overall progress on Action

Continue to invest in our highways and infrastructure to 

improve the condition of our road network and improve 

traffic flow

Service provision

Provide residents and businesses with appropriate equipment to recycle 

correctly preventing non-recycling and e.g. bins, bags, etc.

Mar-20 and 

Ongoing

N Jones On Target All bin and bag deliveries up to date.

Continue to monitor the number of council distribution points and local recycling 

bank facilities

Mar-20 and 

Ongoing

N Jones On Target Banks and distribution points have been reviewed and the website updated 

accordingly.

Review the trial of trade food waste collections from existing trade waste 

customers 

Dec-19 and 

Ongoing

N Jones On Target Ongoing.  Awaiting feedback from WG on trade waste changes.  In the 

meantime we continue with separate food waste collections.  

Review collection methods in secondary schools and Council Buildings Mar-20 N Jones Complete

Minimising waste and preventing contamination

Attend public events to raise awareness and involve residents in initiatives to 

encourage recycling  

Mar-20 C Evans Complete

Promote arrangements for non- kerbside recyclable items e.g. textiles, electrical 

and electronic items

Mar-20 N Jones Not on 

Target

This activity was planned for Qtr 4 but training materials were  destroyed in 

flooding at Ty Glantaf and resources were then redirected to address storm 

damage. This will be re-considered in 2020/21. 

Communal bin collection points

Collaborate and agree with the six social landlords,  to identify problem 

communal bin collection points in terms of poor recycling participation and high 

fly tipping

Apr-19 and 

Ongoing

N Jones Not on 

Target

Priorities dedicated to Storm Dennis.  All mapping completed.  Next phase 

will be to remind residents of business continuity planning rules and start 

enforcement and reporting.

Complete a consultation and involvement activity in Rhydyfelin with residents 

and Newydd Housing Association to gain opinions on how recycling and the 

use/layout of communal bin collection points can be improved upon

Aug-19 N Jones Complete Community engagement event on 3rd July with Scrutiny members and 

Newydd Housing.

Propose trial recommendations to working group to increase recycling 

participation of residents using communal bin collection points.  Working group 

will submit final recommendations to Scrutiny and Cabinet

Oct-19 

Ongoing

N Jones Complete

Utilise enforcement powers available to the Council and landlords to manage 

communal bin collection points

Feb-20 

Revised 

2020/21

T Jones On Target This project has been extended for a further 12 months

Complete the operational trial at the agreed communal bin collection points and 

prepare and submit feedback and recommendations to Scrutiny

Mar-20 N Jones Not on 

Target

Priorities dedicated to Storm Dennis.  All mapping completed.  Next phase 

will be to remind residents of business continuity planning rules and start 

enforcement and reporting.

Following approval from Scrutiny, implement final operational recommendations 

made by Public Services Scrutiny Committee

Apr-20 N Jones Complete Report supported by Scrutiny in September 2019.

Continue to raise awareness in schools, residents and 

community groups on environmental issues, including dog 

fouling, fly tipping and littering

Enforcement and prevention

Raise awareness & use enforcement to assist and support with education and 

Fixed Penalty Notice (FPN) actions including:

- Attending regular PACT meetings with Community Groups, residents

  and local PCSO’s.

- Meet with local schools and Community Groups regarding the personal

  and environmental issues caused by dog fouling.

- Arrange a schedule of presentations to Infant, Junior and Comprehensive

  schools. 

Mar-20 T Jones Complete

Undertake targeted enforcement exercises in problem areas e.g. PSPO’s for dog 

fouling 

Mar-20 and 

Ongoing

T Jones On Target Ongoing. Patrols to target problem areas are undertaken 7 days a week and 

vary in times between 6am and 8pm

Continue to report offenders on ‘Who Done It ‘web page, involving RCT 

residents in the identification of perpetrators 

Mar-20 T Jones Not on 

Target

This action has been delayed as resources deployed to deal with covid-19.

Continue to review mobile technology for quicker responses for cleansing issues, 

councillor requests and resident queries

Mar-20 and 

Ongoing

T Jones On Target Requests for service continue to be delivered electronically. This functionality 

is being developed to include fly-tipping reports which in turn will bring 

positive resource benefits. 

Continue to deploy surveillance equipment (CCTV) in hot-spot areas Mar-20 and 

Ongoing

T Jones On Target Currently trialling alternative CCTV cameras which if successful, would enable 

more cameras to be installed.

Increase  recycling levels to achieve the 70% recycling 

target set by Welsh Government for 2024/25 through 

awareness raising and participation checks and providing 

residents and businesses the information, bins and bags to 

help them  recycle correctly 

Ensure that residents dispose of their waste correctly 

abiding by their legal duty of care as part of the 

Environmental Protection Act 1990, and using the Council's 

enforcement powers to hold culprits to account where 

necessary

Corporate Plan End of Year Monitoring Report 2019/20

T
udalen 162



Section 5d

Measuring Success

Actual 
All Wales 

Average
Actual Target

Actual (Qtr 

4) 

LACP005 Gross Revenue Expenditure (£) on Council 

Tax Benefits & Administration per head of 

population**

8 N/A 8 N/A 9

LACP004 The level of Council Tax increase 2.25 N/A 3.3 3.6 3.6

LCSC308 % of customer interaction via the web and 

mobile devices  

85.2 N/A 87.8 >80% 89.1

LCSC401 % of payments receipted via Customer Care 

that are self served via website and/or 

touchtone or kiosks

82.2 N/A 88.5 >80% 86.2

LCSC206 % enquiries resolved at first point of contact 

based on customer view - One4aLL centres

97.7 N/A 97.8 >95% 98.0

LCSC110 % of enquiries resolved at first point of 

contact based on customer view - telephone, 

daytime service

94.3 N/A 97.8 >90% 93.3

LCSC309 % enquiries resolved at first point of contact 

based on customer view - website/e-access

86.5 N/A 87.8 >80% 88.2

LEST001 % Reduction in the occupied office 

accommodation floor space across the 

Council (m2)

14.05 N/A 22.26 25.00 25.38

Key:

** reported a year in arrears

Bolded PIs denote that an existing Corporate Plan high 

Within Top Quartile performance for all of Wales 

Within Bottom Quartile performance for all of Wales 
Performance below targetPerformance met or exceeded target

Performance within 5% 

of the target

Council Priority:  

2017/18

LIVING WITHIN OUR MEANS - Where services are delivered 

efficiently to achieve value for money for the tax payer

PI Ref Performance Measure

2018/19

Comments

2019/20

Corporate Plan End of Year Monitoring Report 2019/20

T
udalen 163



2017/18

(Academic 

Year 2016/17)

Actual Actual Wales 

Average

Annual 

Target

Actual

Economy LRGN019 No. of additional housing units provided during 

the year 

552 386 N/A 500 452 The 452 dwellings completed during the year is a substantial rate of completion, although not quite reaching the target of 500. There remain levels of constraint to the 

development of the remaining allocations in the LDP, giving further weight to the need to continue with the revision of the LDP.

Economy LRGN017 The rate of registered enterprises /business births 

(start ups)

 19.5*

(1,240) 

34.2**

(2,935)

N/A >34.2 27.1

Economy LRGN018 The rate of registered enterprises /business 

deaths (closures)

 10.9*

(690) 

8.9**

(765)

N/A <8.9 18.0

Economy PAM013N

LPSR101

No. of empty properties brought back into use per 

annum

204 213 N/A 190 179 Performance for the year was slightly below target due to a delay in the launch of the Valleys Taskforce Empty Homes Grant Scheme, which led to a delay in Grants being 

approved between July and October 2019. 

Economy LEDU218 % attendance at PRU/EOTAS provision 78.6 80.2 N/A >80.2 74.12 Due to differing return dates for Primary and Secondary - this figure comprises of Ty Gwyn, home tuition and group tuition to 24/05/19 and year round attendance at Tai 

Education Centre. Ty Gwyn attendance was particularly poor this year and therefore led to the missed target. Focused work took place at Ty Gwyn last year and will continue 

this year.

Economy LCAP014 Number of economically inactive, or unemployed, 

adults entering employment as a result of 

'Communities4Work' (C4W) intervention

47 50 N/A 48 44 Target for 2019/20 reduced following Welsh Government national review, performance is reported against the revised target. The DWP focus has now changed from 

supporting both adults and young people to just focussing on adults. This has reduced the number of adults referred to the local authority and has impacted on our outputs. 

Welsh Government are aware of this position. 

Economy LCAP031 

NEW

Number of adults gaining a vocational qualification – 

Communities for Work Plus 

N/A N/A N/A 450 303 As reported in the previous quarter, the change in funding has impacted on our delivery against target set earlier in the year.  Other CfW+ and Legacy clients gaining a 

qualification through the community learning grant totals 300 for the year, with 507 qualifications gained. These are reported separately to WG and the LA so are no longer 

included in CfW+ reported figures

Economy LCHR301

NEW

Staying Well @ work project: Participants employed, 

including self employed, with work limiting health 

condition or disability

 N/A N/A N/A 614 147

Economy LCHR302

NEW

Staying Well @ work project: Participants with a work 

limiting health condition or disability returning to work 

after a period of absence

 N/A N/A N/A 306 81

Economy LCHR303

NEW

Staying Well @ work project: Number of micro, small 

and medium enterprises supported

 N/A N/A N/A 56 41

People PAM025

Measure 19

The rate of delayed transfers of care for social care 

reasons per 1,000 population aged 75+

1.88 3.43 4.90 2.80 4.52 There were 90 reported delays during 2019/20. Whilst, performance is below target and higher than 2018/19 levels, it is better than the reported Welsh average. Reasons 

for the current delays are mainly attributable to home care capacity and housing supply pressures. The COVID-19 Pandemic outbreak in March would have adversely 

impacted on discharge timeliness from hospital.

People LSCC101 % of children & young people requiring 

intervention from statutory services

23.5 30.6 N/A 30.0 41.62 Performance dropped slightly through quarter 4 and the year end target has not been met. Further analysis of the data shows that of the 2,487 cases that progressed into 

Statutory Services for a more comprehensive assessment of needs, 1,710 (69%) did not require any on-going care & support and their cases were either signposted to the 

Resilient Families Service or closed.

People LSCC102 No. of children looked after (CLA) 676 674 N/A 674 717 The number of children looked after increased  during the quarter to 717. The number of children looked after is regularly and closely monitored by the Children Looked 

After Quality Assurance Board. A key action in the CLA QA Panel Work Plan is to implement a model of practice to support reunification and funding was  obtained to recruit 

2 social workers to support reunification work. This had been progressing but was halted as a consequence of the emerging Covid-19 crisis. Achieving reunification, 

wherever this is possible and in the best interests of the child, remains a key service priority and the planned work will be progressed in line with the Children's Services 

Recovery Plan.

People Measure 27 

SSOF27

% of re-registrations of children on Local 

Authority CPR

8.10 6.72 5.10 6.72 10.05 Slight drop in performance during Q4 but numbers of registrations & re-registrations have relatively stable throughout the year. Re-registration is monitored closely & 

regularly by the Cwm Taf Morgannwg Safeguarding Board.

People Measure 

34b 

SSOF34b

% of all care leavers who are in education, training or 

employment at 24 months after leaving care

49.00 36.40 50.70 50.00 32.61 Performance has dropped this quarter.  31 out of 46 young people were not in EET 24 months after leaving care for a variety of reasons, for example, claiming benefits but 

actively job searching,  attending university and also a reluctance by some young people to engage with the 16+ teams. This area will continue to be afforded a high priority 

to ensure young people have the support, and opportunity of support, to help then access education, training or employment.

Place PAM043 Kilograms of residual waste generated per person N/A 189* 180* ≤ 189* 204 The target has not been achieved this year due to the unprecedented amount of unavoidable flood damage waste that was sent to landfill during February and March 2020 

following the impacts of Storm Dennis.

Other 

National 

PIs

PAM028

Measure 24

% of child assessments completed on time 93 97 88.9 98 88.79 Performance has dropped during the quarter & previous issues regarding staffing in our key assessment teams has impacted on overall performance for this indicator. 

Monitoring arrangements  regarding progress of assessments in key teams will be strengthened with the expectation that this will  have a positive impact on performance 

but there is some anticipation that the Covid-19 pandemic may have an adverse impact on performance over the short to medium term.

Measures that are 'Not on Target' at Quarter 4 2019/20

Priority PI Ref Performance Measure

(Academic Year 

2017/18)

Delayed commencement of delivery of this project impacted on performance earlier in the year. Performance has improved following WEFO review of referral criteria as 

reported in Q3, which widened the scope to include preventative treatment. However, WEFO position has changed due to the Covid 19 pandemic and they are not able to 

consider change requests for project targets until Covid 19 conditions are reviewed. A project recovery plan is in place.

Bolded PIs denote that an existing Corporate Plan high level measure

2018/19 2019/20 Comment

(Academic Year 

2018/19)

This data is derived from the Office of National Statistics (ONS). Whilst there is a notable decline in business births and deaths and we have not achieved our optimistic 

targets, there is a positive increase in the number of registered businesses within RCT for this reported year.

Corporate Plan End of Year Monitoring Report 2019/20

T
udalen 164



Section 5eOther National Performance Measures 

Actual Actual
All Wales 

Average
Target

Actual (Qtr 

4)

PAM018 % of all planning applications determined in time 90 91 87.97 92 94

PAM019 % of planning appeals dismissed 50 66.7
 2 67.25 66 80

PAM021

LTHS012b

% of Principal B Roads in overall poor condition 6.2 6.5 4.5 6.1 6.2

PAM022

LTHS012c

% of Principal C Roads in overall poor condition 6.2 3.0 14.0 3.5 3.5

PAM023

PPN009

% of food establishments which are broadly compliant with food hygiene 

standards

93.75 93.95 95.69 94.50 94.82

PAM028

Measure 24

% of child assessments completed on time 93 97 88.9 98 88.79

PAM029 / 

SCC004

% of children looked after on 31 March who have had three or more 

placements during the year *

7.4 5.2 9 6 6.3

PAM045 No. of new homes created as a result of bringing empty properties back into 

use

N/A N/A Awaiting 

Wales 

Average

5 10

PAM036 No. of additional affordable housing units delivered per 10,000 households - 

NEW

N/A 9** 19.1 6 13

PAM040 % of Welsh Public Library Standards Quality Indicators (with targets) 

achieved by the library service - NEW

N/A 55 N/A 65 80

PAM033 % of pupils assessed in Welsh at the end of the foundation phase N/A 18.49 N/A 19.7 N/A

PAM034 % of year 11 pupils studying Welsh (first language) N/A 0 N/A 19 N/A

PAM/041 % of National Exercise Referral Scheme (NERS) clients who completed the 

exercise programme

N/A 55 Awaiting 

Wales 

Average

50 61.49

PAM/042 % of NERS clients whose health had improved on completion of the exercise 

programme

N/A 100 Awaiting 

Wales 

Average

95 100

PAM/044

(New)

Number of apprentices on formal recognised apprenticeship schemes per 

1,000 employees

N/A N/A N/A N/A 19.1

PAM001

CHR002

The number of working day/shifts per fulltime equivalent (FTE) local authority 

employee lost due to sickness absence 

N/A N/A 10 N/A N/A

Footnote

** Previous year data restated following national publication, as locally an incorrect denominator figure was used. 

Key:

Performance below target

This data represents those individuals who are part of the Council's Corporate Apprenticeship 

Scheme and not other Council staff who may be undertaking apprenticeship level qualifications 

supported directly by service areas. It is therefore likely that the information reported is an 

underestimate of the total number of Council employees being supported to pursue 

apprenticeship level qualifications. 

* - % of children looked after on 31 March who have had three or more placements during the year - the Council's 2018/19 year-end Performance Report reported performance as 6.2%. Further to year-end validation processes, performance for 2018/19 has been amended to 5.2%. 

2
 Data changed following Data Cymru release

PI Ref Performance Measure

Within Top Quartile performance for all of Wales

Comment

Not reported - insufficient assurance that the Council’s information fully complies with the 

national definition

Within Bottom Quartile performance for all of Wales 

2017/18 2019/202018/19

Performance met or exceeded target Performance within 5% of the target

Welsh Government provide the data for this indicator and have confirmed that it is no longer 

being collected / reported 

Welsh Government provide the data for this indicator and have confirmed that it is no longer 

being collected / reported 

Performance has dropped during the quarter. Work is on-going to review arrangements for the 

monitoring of progress of assessments in key teams to further strengthen the processes 

currently in place. Notwithstanding this, it is anticipated that the Covid-19 pandemic may have 

an adverse impact on performance over the short to medium term.

Corporate Plan End of Year Monitoring Report 2019/20

T
udalen 165



Theme Total No. of PIs Better % Worse % Same % N/A %

TOTAL 114 39 34% 37 32% 17 15% 21 18%

Economy 51 15 29% 15 29% 9 18% 12 24%

People 23 12 52% 3 13% 5 22% 3 13%

Place 16 2 13% 9 56% 3 19% 2 13%

LWOM 8 1 13% 6 74% 0 0% 1 13%

Other National PIs 16 9 56% 4 25% 0 0% 3 19%

TOTAL 114 30 26% 22 19% 28 25% 34 30%

Economy 51 16 31% 11 22% 8 16% 16 31%

People 23 5 22% 7 30% 3 13% 8 35%

Place 16 4 25% 1 6% 8 50% 3 19%

LWOM 8 1 13% 1 13% 5 63% 1 13%

Other National PIs 16 4 25% 2 13% 4 25% 6 38%

Theme Total No. of PIs On Target %
Not on 

Target
%

Within 

5% of 

Target

% N/A %

TOTAL 114 55 48% 17 15% 11 10% 31 27%

Economy 51 17 33% 10 20% 5 10% 19 37%

People 23 12 52% 5 22% 2 9% 4 17%

Place 16 10 63% 1 6% 2 13% 3 19%

LWOM 8 7 88% 0 0% 0 0% 1 13%

Other National PIs 16 9 56% 1 6% 2 13% 4 25%

Theme Total No. of PIs Better % Worse % Same % N/A %

TOTAL 114 34 30% 36 32% 2 2% 42 37%

Economy 51 11 22% 14 27% 0 0% 26 51%

People 23 8 35% 9 39% 0 0% 6 26%

Place 16 5 31% 7 44% 1 6% 3 19%

LWOM 8 4 50% 3 38% 0 0% 1 13%

Other National PIs 16 6 38% 3 19% 1 6% 6 38%

TOTAL 111 15 14% 14 13% 0 0% 82 74%

Economy 50 5 10% 2 4% 0 0% 43 86%

People 22 3 14% 6 27% 0 0% 13 59%

Place 15 3 20% 3 20% 0 0% 9 60%

LWOM 8 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 8 100%

Other National PIs 16 4 25% 3 19% 0 0% 9 56%

2019/20 Actual compared to 2018/19 Wales 

Average - where available

                                                                            QUARTER 4 2019/20 TARGET ANALYSIS - SUMMARY                                                                                           Section 5f

2019/20 Target compared to 2018/19 Actual

2019/20 Target compared to 2018/19 Target

2019/20 Actual compared to Target

2019/20 Actual compared to 2018/19 Actual

T
udalen 166



Detailed supporting information for 2019/20 Target Analysis Section 5f

Corporate 

Theme
PI Ref PI Description Target

RCT Actual

(Year End)

Wales 

Average
Target 

RCT Actual

(Year End)
Target 

How does the 

proposed 

2019/20 target 

compare 

2017/18 Welsh 

Average

How does the 

proposed 

2019/20 

Target 

compare to 

2018/19 Data 

How does 

the proposed 

2019/20 

target 

compare to 

2018/19 

Target

Qtr 4 

Year End

Qtr 4 19/20 

Actual 

Compared to 

18/19 Actual

2018 Wales 

Average

Compared to 

2018/19 Wales 

Average -

where applicable

Economy LPSR103 No of new affordable homes delivered 200 226 N/A 130 83 140 N/A Better Better 135 N/A N/A N/A

Economy LRGN014a % vacant retail premises in town centres - Porth <14.0 12.0 N/A <12.0 16 16 N/A Same Worse 26 N/A N/A N/A

Economy LRGN014b % vacant retail premises in town centres - Pontypridd <8.8 7.0 N/A <7.0 11 11 N/A Same Worse 13 N/A N/A N/A

Economy LRGN014c % vacant retail premises in town centres - Aberdare <10.4 14.0 N/A <14.0 13 13 N/A Same Better 15 N/A N/A N/A

Economy LRGN014d % vacant retail premises in town centres - Treorchy <5.8 7.0 N/A <7.0 6 6 N/A Same Better                      6 N/A N/A N/A

Economy LRGN015e Footfall - Average weekly number of visitors to Pontypridd N/A N/A N/A N/A            68,300            67,846 N/A Worse N/A            41,168 N/A N/A N/A

Economy LRGN015f Footfall - Average weekly number of visitors to Aberdare N/A N/A N/A N/A            41,536            41,315 N/A Worse N/A            30,794 N/A N/A N/A

Economy LRGN015g Footfall - Average weekly number of visitors to Porth N/A N/A N/A N/A              4,097              4,036 N/A Worse N/A              2,418 N/A N/A N/A

Economy LRGN015h Footfall - Average weekly number of visitors to Treorchy N/A N/A N/A N/A            10,032              9,990 N/A Worse N/A              6,787 N/A N/A N/A

Economy LRGN019 No. of additional housing units provided during the year 600 552 N/A 600 386 500 N/A Better Worse 452 Better N/A N/A

Economy LRGN016 The stock of registered enterprises/businesses in the Borough >5,745          6,355 N/A  >6,355              8,585  >8,585 N/A Same Better              9,505 Better N/A N/A

Economy LRGN017 The rate of registered enterprises/business births (start ups) >16.1

(925)

 19.5

(1,240) 

13.7  >19.5

(1,240) 

34.2

(2,935)

 >34.2 Better Same Better 27.1 Worse N/A N/A

Economy LRGN018 The rate of registered enterprises/business deaths (closures) <11.7

(670)

 10.9

(690) 

10.4  <10.9

(690) 

8.9

(765)

 <8.9 Better Same Better 18.0 Worse N/A N/A

Economy PAM013N

LPSR101

Total number of empty properties brought back into use per 

annum

190 204 N/A 190 213 190 N/A Worse Same 179 Worse N/A N/A

Economy LPSR102 Total number of interventions aimed at bringing long terms empty 

properties back into use.

400 356 N/A 400 452 400 N/A Worse Same 467 Better N/A N/A

Economy PAM013

PSR004

% Private sector dwellings that had been vacant for more than 6 

months at 1st April that were returned to occupation during the 

year 

5.50 5.7 5.2 5.5 7.4 5.5 Better Worse Same 5.7 Worse 4.65 Better

Economy LRGN023

(NEW)

% of new homes delivered by SME developers N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A NEW 

BASELINE 

YEAR

N/A N/A N/A 86 N/A N/A N/A

Economy LRGN024

(NEW)

% of new homes that are custom built N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A NEW 

BASELINE 

YEAR

N/A N/A N/A 8.6 N/A N/A N/A

Economy LRGN022

(NEW)

No. of property enhancements supported in Targeted town centres N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 50 N/A N/A N/A 34 N/A N/A

Economy LRGN021 Number of direct jobs created and safeguarded in businesses 

supported through grant programmes.

100 62 N/A 60 67 40 N/A Worse Worse 41 Worse N/A N/A

2019/20 Target Analysis 2019/20 Actual Analysis2017/18 2018/19

T
udalen 167



Corporate 

Theme
PI Ref PI Description Target

RCT Actual

(Year End)

Wales 

Average
Target 

RCT Actual

(Year End)
Target 

How does the 

proposed 

2019/20 target 

compare 

2017/18 Welsh 

Average

How does the 

proposed 

2019/20 

Target 

compare to 

2018/19 Data 

How does 

the proposed 

2019/20 

target 

compare to 

2018/19 

Target

Qtr 4 

Year End

Qtr 4 19/20 

Actual 

Compared to 

18/19 Actual

2018 Wales 

Average

Compared to 

2018/19 Wales 

Average -

where applicable

2019/20 Target Analysis 2019/20 Actual Analysis2017/18 2018/19

Economy LRGN009 No. of businesses/ organisations supported through grant support 

programmes

90 75 N/A 75 167 150 N/A Worse Better 127 N/A N/A N/A

Economy PAM032 Average Capped 9 score for pupils in year 11 N/A N/A N/A NEW 

BASELINE 

YEAR

348 350 N/A Better Better 352 Better 349.52 Better

Economy LEDU244 interim 

national 

measure

Literacy measure (average score of best grade from any literature 

or first language Welsh or English GCSEs awarded to a pupil) (NEW)

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A NEW 

BASELINE 

YEAR

N/A N/A N/A 38.2 N/A N/A N/A

Economy LEDU245 interim 

national 

measure

Numeracy measure (average score of best grade from Mathematics 

or Mathematics – numeracy GCSE awarded to a pupil) (NEW)

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A NEW 

BASELINE 

YEAR

N/A N/A N/A 35.7 N/A N/A N/A

Economy LEDU246 interim 

national 

measure

Science measure (average score of best grade from a science GCSE 

awarded to a pupil) (NEW)

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A NEW 

BASELINE 

YEAR

N/A N/A N/A 35.2 N/A N/A N/A

Economy LEDU209 % pupils in year 11 (typically aged 16) who achieve the L1 threshold 

(equivalent to 5 GCSEs grade A* to G or approved equivalent 

qualification)2

96.7 94.7 94.4 94.7 94.7 94.7 Better Same Same 93.5 Worse 95 Worse

Economy PAM006 

EDU017

% of Year 11 pupils achieving 5 GCSEs at grades A*-C, or 

equivalent, including English or Welsh first language and Maths

59.0 49.8 54.8 55.0 53.1 55.1 Better Better Better Not reported N/A 53.10 N/A

Economy LEDU243 % of pupils entitled to FSM, aged 16, achieving Level 2 Threshold 

including a GCSE grade A*- C in English or Welsh (first language) 

and Mathematics 

34.0 24.2 28.6 30 28 30 Better Better Same Not reported N/A 28 N/A

Economy PAM007 

EDU016a

% of pupil attendance in primary schools 95.3 94.7 94.9 95.4 94.2 95.1 Better Better Worse 94.3 Better 94.58 Worse

Economy PAM008 

EDU016b

% of pupil attendance in secondary schools 94.3 93.6 94.1 94.3 93.0 94.1 Same Better Worse 92.9 Worse 93.85 Better

Economy LEDU218 % attendance at PRU/EOTAS provision N/A 78.6 N/A 78.9 80.2 >80.2 N/A Same Better 74.12 Worse N/A N/A

Economy LEDU506 % difference in the attendance of FSM / non FSM pupils in primary 

schools 

<2.6 2.3 N/A <2.6% 2.74 <2.3 N/A Better Better 2.2 Better 3.0 Better

Economy LEDU507 % difference in the attendance of FSM / non FSM pupils in 

secondary schools

<4.5 4.9 N/A <4.5% 5.31 <5.0 N/A Better Worse 4.8 Better 5.1 Better

Economy LEDU409a No. of fixed term exclusions per 1,000 pupils in Primary schools 12.91 14.2 N/A 14.2 18.04 19.6 N/A Worse Worse 20.14 Worse N/A N/A

Economy LEDU409b No. of fixed term exclusions per 1,000 pupils in Secondary schools 98.4 95.7 N/A 95.7 108.29 159.6 N/A Worse Worse 126.6 Worse N/A N/A

Economy LEDU410c Average No. of days lost through fixed term exclusions (All Schools) 2.2 2.1 N/A 2.07 1.93 2.16 N/A Worse Worse 2.00 Worse N/A N/A

Economy PAM046 % of Year 11 leavers not in education, training or employment 

(NEET)

N/A N/A 1.6 1.0 1.9 1.0 Better Better Same Not yet 

available

N/A 1.60 N/A

Economy LEDU225 % 18 year olds (Yr 11) leaving school who are known not to be in 

education, training or employment (NEET)

4.0 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.9 1.5 Better Better Better Not yet 

available

N/A N/A N/A

T
udalen 168



Corporate 

Theme
PI Ref PI Description Target

RCT Actual

(Year End)

Wales 

Average
Target 

RCT Actual

(Year End)
Target 

How does the 

proposed 

2019/20 target 

compare 

2017/18 Welsh 

Average

How does the 

proposed 

2019/20 

Target 

compare to 

2018/19 Data 

How does 

the proposed 

2019/20 

target 

compare to 

2018/19 

Target

Qtr 4 

Year End

Qtr 4 19/20 

Actual 

Compared to 

18/19 Actual

2018 Wales 

Average

Compared to 

2018/19 Wales 

Average -

where applicable

2019/20 Target Analysis 2019/20 Actual Analysis2017/18 2018/19

Economy LCAP011 Number of NEET young people entering employment upon leaving 

the Inspire 2 Work programme

NEW 

BASELINE 

YEAR

24 N/A 65 50 40 N/A Better Better 45 Worse N/A N/A

Economy LCAP013 Number of NEET young people gaining a qualification upon leaving 

the Inspire to work programme

NEW 

BASELINE 

YEAR

97 N/A 147 106 168 N/A Better Better 117 Better N/A N/A

Economy LCAP014 Number of economically inactive, or unemployed, adults entering 

employment as a result of CfW intervention

NEW 

BASELINE 

YEAR

47 N/A 48  50 48 N/A Better Better 44 Worse N/A N/A

Economy LCAP015 Number of economically active, or unemployed, adults gaining a 

qualification as a result of CfW intervention

NEW 

BASELINE 

YEAR

96 N/A 192 242 64 N/A Worse Same 97 Worse N/A N/A

Economy LCAP010 Number of NEET young people entering employment upon leaving 

the CfW programme

NEW 

BASELINE 

YEAR

49 N/A 96 57 220 N/A Better Better 112 Better N/A N/A

Economy LCAP016 Number of NEET young people gaining a qualification upon leaving 

the CfW programme

NEW 

BASELINE 

YEAR

96 N/A 118 115 96 N/A Worse Worse 163 Better N/A N/A

Economy LCAP017 No. of people supported that have entered employment – 

Communities for Work Plus 

N/A N/A N/A 350 393 350 N/A Worse Same 434 Better N/A N/A

Economy LCAP030

NEW

No. of people completing a work placement with an employer  – 

Communities for Work Plus 

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 100 N/A N/A N/A 91 N/A N/A N/A

Economy LCAP031 NEW Number of adults gaining a vocational qualification – Communities 

for Work Plus 

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 450 N/A N/A N/A 303 N/A N/A N/A

Economy LCHR301

NEW

Building resilience, prosperity and wellbeing project: Participants 

employed, including self employed, with work limiting health 

condition or disability

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 614 (Qtr 1 

target 0)

N/A N/A N/A 147 N/A N/A N/A

Economy LCHR302

NEW

Building resilience, prosperity and wellbeing project: Participants 

with a work limiting health condition or disability returning to work 

after a period of absence

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 306 (Qtr 1 

target 0)

N/A N/A N/A 81 N/A N/A N/A

Economy LCHR303

NEW

Building resilience, prosperity and wellbeing project: Number of 

micro, small and medium enterprises supported

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 56 (Qtr 1 

target 0)

N/A N/A N/A 41 N/A N/A N/A

Economy LCHR304

NEW

Building resilience, prosperity and wellbeing project: Number of 

micro, small and medium sized enterprises having adopted or 

improved equality and diversity strategies and monitoring systems

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 31 (Qtr 1 

target 0)

N/A N/A N/A 41 N/A N/A N/A

People LSCA014 % of clients choosing their own service providers through Direct 

Payments

14.63 14.67 N/A 15.5 16.1 16.7 N/A Better Better 16.8 Better N/A N/A

People LSCA101 Proportion of people assessed by adult social care in receipt of care 

and support plan. 

67.04 70.15 N/A 70.15 72.74 72.7 N/A Better Worse 70.47 Better N/A N/A

People Measure 20a

SSOF20a

% of adults who completed a period of reablement & have a 

reduced package of care & support 6 months later

NEW 

BASELINE 

YEAR

84.95 41.19 84.95 85.43 85.43 Better Same Better 86.67 Better 43.9 Better

People Measure 20b

SSOF20b

% of adults who completed a period of reablement & have no 

package of care & support 6 months later

77.23 77.63 67.62 77.63 73.5 73.5 Better Same Worse 81 Better 66.8 Better

People LSCA102 No. of people admitted to residential or nursing care 422 417 N/A 400 420 400 

(Qtr 1 target 

100)

N/A Better Same 385 Better N/A N/A

People PAM025

Measure 19

The rate of delayed transfers of care for social care reasons per 

1,000 population aged 75+

4.50 1.88 3.48 1.3 3.43 2.8 Better Better Worse 4.52 Worse 4.9 Better

T
udalen 169



Corporate 

Theme
PI Ref PI Description Target

RCT Actual

(Year End)

Wales 

Average
Target 

RCT Actual

(Year End)
Target 

How does the 

proposed 

2019/20 target 

compare 

2017/18 Welsh 

Average

How does the 

proposed 

2019/20 

Target 

compare to 

2018/19 Data 

How does 

the proposed 

2019/20 

target 

compare to 

2018/19 

Target

Qtr 4 

Year End

Qtr 4 19/20 

Actual 

Compared to 

18/19 Actual

2018 Wales 

Average

Compared to 

2018/19 Wales 

Average -

where applicable

2019/20 Target Analysis 2019/20 Actual Analysis2017/18 2018/19

People Measure 21 

SSOF21

The average length of time older people (aged 65 or over) are 

supported in residential care homes

903.43 922.47 869.02 N/A 959.35 959.35 Worse Same N/A 982.65 Worse 833.1 Worse

People PAM015

PSR002

Average No. of calendar days taken to deliver a DFG 280 234 213 260 225 250 Worse Worse Better 246 Worse 207.32 Worse

People PAM017 No. of visits to local authority sports and leisure centres per 1,000 

population where the visitor will be participating in physical activity 

(not including schools)

           7,710 8140            8,502 8,369              8,302 8,505

 (Qtr 1 target 

2,615)

Better Better Better 7,948 N/A 9234.59 Worse

People LLCS014 No. of visits from the public and school pupils to local authority 

sport and leisure facilities during the year per 1,000 where the 

visitor is participating in physical activity.

         11,824 12,218 N/A 12,500 9,438 10,000

 (Qtr 1 target 

2,500) 

N/A Better Worse 8,305 N/A N/A N/A

People LLCL013 No. of visits to public library premises during the year and people 

visited by the @home library service, per 1,000 population 

(physical visits)

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 3,053 N/A N/A N/A Not yet 

available

N/A N/A N/A

People LLCL011

WPLSQI16b

Number of visits to Public Library premises (virtual) during the year, 

per 1,000 population. 

NEW 

BASELINE 

YEAR

318 N/A 518                  513 517

 (Qtr1 target 

129)

N/A Better Worse 615 N/A N/A N/A

People LPPN169 Number and percentage of case reviews whose substance misuse 

for problematic substances is reduced, remains unchanged or 

abstinent between start and most recent review (Cwm Taf APB)

71 88.26 N/A 86.5 89.21 86.5 N/A Worse Same 87.45 Worse N/A N/A

People LPPN170 % of clients who wait less than 20 working days between referral 

and treatment

N/A 92.01 N/A N/A 89.25 80 N/A Worse N/A 92.01 Better N/A

People LCWR001a Number of families with increased resilience following intervention 

with the Resilient Families Service 

N/A N/A N/A NEW 

BASELINE 

YEAR

761 800 

(Qtr 1 target 

200)

N/A Better N/A              1,004 Better N/A N/A

People LCWR001b % of families with increased resilience following intervention with 

the Resilient Families Service 

N/A N/A N/A NEW 

BASELINE 

YEAR

95.4 95.9 N/A Better N/A 95.1 Worse N/A N/A

People LPPN156 % of domestic violence clients reporting no abuse experienced in 

the past month/since Intake

N/A 55 N/A N/A N/A 70 N/A N/A N/A 39.7 N/A N/A N/A

People LPPN135a % of domestic violence clients reporting feeling safer as a result of 

IDVA (Independent Domestic Violence Advisor) intervention

N/A 85 N/A N/A N/A 85 N/A N/A N/A 90 N/A N/A N/A

People LSCC101 No. of children & young people requiring intervention from 

statutory services

18.00 23.5 N/A N/A 30.6 30 N/A Better N/A 41.62 Worse N/A N/A

People LSCC102 No. of looked after children 655 676 N/A 655 674 674 N/A Same Worse 717 Worse N/A N/A

People Measure 27

SSOF27

% of re-registrations of children on Local Authority CPR 8 8.1 5.35 8 6.72 6.72 Worse Same Better 10.05 Worse 5.1 Worse

People Measure 34a

SSOF34a

% of all care leavers who are in education, training or employment 

at 12 months after leaving care

50 41 51.40 50 42.6 50 Worse Better Same 52.38 Better 53.5 Worse

People Measure 34b

SSOF34b

% of all care leavers who are in education, training or employment 

at 24 months after leaving care

53 49 51.42 53 36.4 50 Worse Better Worse 32.61 Worse 50.7 Worse

Place LPPN163 % of residents surveyed in targeted town centres who feel unsafe 

(NEW)

N/A N/A N/A 25 17 20 N/A Worse Better N/A N/A N/A N/A

Place LPPN127 % of vulnerable repeat victims of anti-social behaviour that feel 

safer as a result of intervention

90 91 N/A 90 94 95 N/A Better Better 97 Better N/A N/A

T
udalen 170



Corporate 

Theme
PI Ref PI Description Target

RCT Actual

(Year End)

Wales 

Average
Target 

RCT Actual

(Year End)
Target 

How does the 

proposed 

2019/20 target 

compare 

2017/18 Welsh 

Average

How does the 

proposed 

2019/20 

Target 

compare to 

2018/19 Data 

How does 

the proposed 

2019/20 

target 

compare to 

2018/19 

Target

Qtr 4 

Year End

Qtr 4 19/20 

Actual 

Compared to 

18/19 Actual

2018 Wales 

Average

Compared to 

2018/19 Wales 

Average -

where applicable

2019/20 Target Analysis 2019/20 Actual Analysis2017/18 2018/19

Place LPPN152 % of perpetrators of anti-social behaviour no longer offending 

within 6 months of the last intervention by the ASB team

N/A 79 N/A 80 80 80 N/A Same Same 77 Worse N/A N/A

Place LLCS016 % of residents satisfied with our parks and open spaces for 

leisure, enjoyment and sport [Survey Data]

≥86 N/A N/A ≥86 80.7 ≥80 N/A Worse Worse 80 Worse N/A N/A

Place LLSD002 % of residents satisfied with the County Borough as a place to live 

[National Survey for Wales Data]

≥85 80 N/A ≥80 87 ≥80 N/A Worse Same 79 Worse N/A N/A

Place PAM012 % of households successfully prevented from becoming homeless 68 74.7 66.4 70 71 70 Better Worse Same 74 Better 67.90 Better

Place PAM020

LTHS011a

% of Principal A Roads in overall poor condition 5.4 5.2 3.7 4.9 4.9 4.9 Worse Same Same 4.7 Better 3.92 Worse

Place THS012 The percentage of principal (A) roads, non-principal (B) roads and 

non-principal (C) roads that are in overall poor condition 

6.5 5.7 N/A 5.6 4.8 5.6 N/A Worse Same 4.8 Same N/A N/A

Place PAM031

WMT004b

% of municipal waste sent to landfill 5.00 1.76 11 5 1.97 5 Better Worse Same 4.59 Worse N/A N/A

Place PAM030

WMT009b

% of municipal waste collected by local authorities and prepared 

for reuse and/ or recycling, including source segregated 

biowastes that are composted or treated biologically in another 

way 

65 61.31 62.7 63 61.01 64 Better Better Better 64.71 Better 62.79 Better

Place PAM043 Kilograms of residual waste generated per person (NEW) N/A N/A N/A NEW 

BASELINE 

YEAR

189 ≤ 189 N/A Same N/A 204 Worse 180.12 Worse

Place PAM010

STS005b

% of streets that are clean 95 99.4 95.8 95 99.4 95.8 Same Worse Better 100 Better 93.87 Better

Place LLSD004

New

% of residents satisfied with the condition of roads N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A NEW 

BASELINE 

YEAR

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Place LLSD005

New

% of residents satisfied with the condition of pavements N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A NEW 

BASELINE 

YEAR

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Place PAM035 Average number of working days taken to clear fly tipping incidents N/A N/A N/A 5 Days 2.26 5 N/A Worse Same 2.41 Worse 2.23 Worse

Place LSTS006

PAM011

% of reported fly tipping incidents on relevant land cleared 

within 5 working days 

95.00 96.94 95.08 95 97.59 95 Worse Worse Same 95.11 Worse N/A N/A

LWoM LACP005 Gross Revenue Expenditure on Council Tax Benefits & 

Administration per head of population

N/A 8 N/A N/A 8 NTS N/A N/A N/A 9 N/A N/A N/A

LWoM LACP004 The level of Council Tax increase ≤2.75 2.25 N/A 3.3 3.3 3.6 N/A Worse Worse 3.6 Worse N/A N/A

LWoM LCSC308 % of customer interaction via the web and mobile devices  50.0 85.2 N/A 80 87.8 >80 N/A Worse Same 89.1 Better N/A N/A

LWoM LCSC401 % of payments receipted via Customer Care that are self served 

via website and/or touchtone or kiosks

70.0 82.2 N/A 80 88.5 >80 N/A Worse Same 86.2 Worse N/A N/A

LWoM LCSC206 % enquiries resolved at first point of contact based on customer 

view - One4aLL centres

90.0 97.7 N/A 95 97.8 >95 N/A Worse Same 98.0 Better N/A N/A

LWoM LCSC110 % of enquiries resolved at first point of contact based on 

customer view - telephone, daytime service

90.0 94.3 N/A 90 97.8 >90 N/A Worse Same 93.3 Worse N/A N/A

LWoM LCSC309 % enquiries resolved at first point of contact based on customer 

view - website/e-access

80.0 86.5 N/A 80 87.8 >80 N/A Worse Same 88.2 Better N/A N/A

T
udalen 171



Corporate 

Theme
PI Ref PI Description Target

RCT Actual

(Year End)

Wales 

Average
Target 

RCT Actual

(Year End)
Target 

How does the 

proposed 

2019/20 target 

compare 

2017/18 Welsh 

Average

How does the 

proposed 

2019/20 

Target 

compare to 

2018/19 Data 

How does 

the proposed 

2019/20 

target 

compare to 

2018/19 

Target

Qtr 4 

Year End

Qtr 4 19/20 

Actual 

Compared to 

18/19 Actual

2018 Wales 

Average

Compared to 

2018/19 Wales 

Average -

where applicable

2019/20 Target Analysis 2019/20 Actual Analysis2017/18 2018/19

LWoM LEST001 % Reduction in the occupied office accommodation floor space 

across the Council (m2)

18.14 14.05 N/A 18.14 22.26 25 N/A Better Better 25.38 Better N/A N/A

Other 

National PIs

PAM018 % of all planning applications determined in time NEW 

BASELINE 

YEAR

90 88.5 90 91 92 Better Better Better 94 Better 87.97 Better

Other 

National PIs

PAM019 % of planning appeals dismissed NEW 

BASELINE 

YEAR

50 62.3 66 67 66 Better Worse Same 80 Better 67.25 Better

Other 

National PIs

PAM021

LTHS012b

% of Principal B Roads in overall poor condition 6.1 6.2 4.3 6.4 6.5 6.1 Worse Better Better 6.2 Better 4.47 Worse

Other 

National PIs

PAM022

LTHS012c

% of Principal C Roads in overall poor condition 8.9 6.2 14.1 6.7 3.0 3.5 Better Worse Better 3.5 Worse 14.01 Better

Other 

National PIs

PAM023 Percentage of food establishments that meet food hygiene 

standards

95.00 93.75 95.27 95 93.95 94.5 Worse Better Worse 94.82 Better 95.69 Worse

Other 

National PIs

PAM028

Measure 24

% of child assessments completed on time 98 93 N/A 98 97 98 N/A Better Same 88.79 Worse 88.9 Worse

Other 

National PIs

PAM029

Measure 33

% of children in care that had to move 3 or more times 5.9 7.4 N/A 7 5.2 6 N/A Better Better 6.3 Worse 9.2 Better

Other 

National PIs

PAM045 No. of new homes created as a result of bringing empty properties 

back into use

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 5 N/A N/A N/A 10 N/A N/A N/A

Other 

National PIs

PAM036 No. of additional affordable housing units delivered per 10,000 

households

N/A N/A N/A NEW 

BASELINE 

YEAR

4 6 N/A Better N/A 13 N/A N/A N/A

Other 

National PIs

PAM040 % of quality Indicators (with targets) achieved by the library service N/A N/A N/A 65 55 65 N/A Better Same 80 Better N/A N/A

Other 

National PIs

PAM033 % of pupils assessed in Welsh at the end of the foundation phase N/A N/A N/A NEW 

BASELINE 

YEAR

18.49 19.7 N/A Better N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Other 

National PIs

PAM034 Percentage of year 11 pupils studying Welsh (first language) N/A N/A N/A NEW 

BASELINE 

YEAR

0 19 N/A Better N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Other 

National PIs

PAM041 % of NERS clients who completed the exercise programme N/A N/A N/A 50 55 50 N/A Worse Same 61.49 Better N/A N/A

Other 

National PIs

PAM042 % of NERS clients whose health had improved on completion of the 

exercise programme

N/A N/A N/A 100 100 95 N/A Worse Worse 100 Same N/A N/A

Other 

National PIs

PAM044 (NEW) Number of apprentices on formal recognised apprenticeship 

schemes per 1,000 employees

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A NEW 

BASELINE 

YEAR

N/A N/A N/A 19.1 N/A N/A N/A

Other 

National PIs

PAM001

CHR002

The number of working day/shifts per fulltime equivalent (FTE) 

local authority employee lost due to sickness absence 

N/A N/A 10.41 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 10.48 N/A

T
udalen 172


	Agenda
	2 Cofnodion
	3 Y Diweddaraf ynglŷn â COVID-19 yn Rhondda Cynon Taf
	Atodiad a

	4 Adroddiad ar Gyflawniad y Cyngor – 31 Mawrth 2020 (diwedd blwyddyn)
	ScrutinyReport-Q4 1920-PG
	App 1 - Q4 P&R Rpt for O&S
	1. Q4 1920 Performance Rpt Cab
	2. Section2aEducationQ4
	3. Section2bCOMMQ419.20002
	4. Section2cChExecsQ419.20
	5. Section2dPDFLServQ419.20
	6. Section2eAuthWideQ419.2011.6.20
	7. Section2fEMRPosition
	8. CapitalSection3a
	9. CapitalSection3b
	10. CapitalSection3c
	11. CapitalSection3d
	12. CapitalSection3e
	13. Section3fPrudIndpd1219.20
	14. SummaryCouncilSicknessQ41920
	15. RiskRegisterUpdates201920Q4
	16. ECONOMYQtr41920
	17. PEOPLEQtr41920
	18. PLACEQtr41920
	19. LWoMQtr41920
	20. Q41920REDSummary
	21. OthernationalindicatorsQtr41920
	22. Q41920TargetAnalysisb



